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Welcome to Mitie
Annual Report and Accounts 2019

We are the UK leading
facilities management and
professional services company,
providing a range of services

to a large, diverse, blue-chip
client base. Our expertise, care,
technology and insight create
amazing work environments,
helping our customers be
exceptional, every day.

Strategic report Governance Financial statements
01 Introduction 50 Board of Directors 90  Independent auditor’s
02  Finandal highiights 53  Chairmant imroduction report 1o the members
04 Atvagance 1o Corporate Governance of Mitie Group plc
06 Chairman's statement $4  Govermance at a glance 98  Consolidated
08 Business model $& The Board income statement
10 Marke review 62 Audi Committee 96  Consoldated sintemert.
11 Chief Executives 68  Nomination Commitize of comprehensive income
strategic review 70 Oirectory’ remuneration 97  Consolidated balance sheet
M Key performance report 99 Consolidated statement
indicators 82 Directors’ report: of changes in equity
16 Operating review other disclosures 100 Consolidated statement
22 Finance review 88 Directors’ report: statement of cash Nows
26 Stakeholder engagerment of Directors’ responsibilities 102 Notes to the consolidated
28 Non-financial inforration financial statemens
statement 158 Company balance sheet
29 Sodal value 159 Company stetement
34  Curpeople of changes in equity
38 Prindpal risks and 160 Nores to the Company
yncertainties finandial statements
47  Viability statement
1863 Appendix ~ Alternitive
Performance Measures
(APMs)

16& Sharehoider information



»

Exceptional,
every day
for our

customers

Qur customers range
from banks and retailers,
to hospitals, schools and
government entities.

We have an order book
of £4.1bn and a pipeline
of opportunities of
£10.2bn.

@ Read more on PG 12

Exceptional,
every day
for our

environment

in 2010, we committed
to reduce our emissions
intensity by 35% by
2020. We are proud to
have achieved this target
a year early. We did so by
rationalising our estate,
restricting business
travel and improving
fleet efficiency.

() Read more on PG 3233

Exceptional,
every day
for our

employees

Our 52,500 employees

go the extra mile for our
colleagues and clients

to deliver basics brilliantly.
We are driven by our vision
of "The Exceptional,
Every Day' and our values.
We are One Mitie.

() Read more on PG 34-37
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Financial highlights

Financial hlghllghts (for the year ended 31 March 2019)

£2.2bn

Revenye!

(FY 17/18: £2.0br}

16.8;

Basic earnings before other
items per share'?
(FY 1718: 15.2p)

£140.7m

Nec debt (at period and)’
(FY 17/18: £193.5m)

£4.| bn

£88.2m

Operating profic before other items™

(FY 17118, £83.2m)

4.0,

Dividends per share
(FY 1718. 40p)

£3020m

Net debt (daily average)
{FY 17/18: £286,1m)

£10.2bn

Revenue up 94% to £2.2bn (FY I17/18: £2.0bn)
with organic growth at 5.5% reflecting strong
performance from top strategic accounts
* Qperating profit before other items up

6.0% 10 £88.2m (FY 17/18: £83.2m)
« Operatng profit up to £50.2m
(FY 17i18: £).lm)
Final dividend recommendation of 2.67p,
making the total fub-year dividend of
4.0p per share (Y 17/18: 40p)
* Leverage musttipie reduced ta | 33x net debt!
EBITDA (FY 17/18: 1.98x, covenart <3x) with
period end net debt further improved to
£140.7m (FY 1218; £193.5m)
Core businesses performing strongly
Project Helix largely complete with exit
run-rate savings of c.£45m; Project Forte
(Phase 1 of Mrbe's transformation)
rrow launched with primary focus on
Engineering Secvices
Order baok from contining operations
stabie at £4.1bn with pipeline growing to
£10.2bn on the back of inclusion onto the

+

'y

Secured order book' Pipeline of opportunities Crown Commercial Services Framework
(FY 17/18; £4,2br) (FY 17118 NJA) « Net Promoter Score up 22 points to
+12 (FY 17/18:-10)
= Employee engagement up 12 ppAts to 45%
* Paying our supphers faster (50 suppler
paymént days down from 58 days in FY 17/18)
Financial summary
FY 1819 FY 1718
Before Before
£m uniess gtherwise specified other hams! Total  other items’ Total
Revere’ 204 22114 20306 20306
Operating profit! .2 502 832 11
Operating profit margin' 40% 1% 4% GI%
Profit/(loss) before tax' 74.4 364 7%} (i54)
Profitiioss) for the year €3.7 309 612 260) Reconciiation of the Group's perfarmance
Basic earnings/{loss) per share 18.8p' 8.6p 152¢" 78)p Me2SLrES O i Statutory cesults is provided in the
Full-year total dvdend per share 4Dp 40p Appendix - ARternitive Performance
FY 1919 FY 1718 {. From continuing operatiors.

Cash gentrated from(used ih) operations 415 9 1. Qthver itvems are as described in Nate 4 to the
Period ond vt ooil T Wis daed firandal statements.
Order book! 4,147 840 3 gmg;g the consok:

Delivering the exceptional through a range of services

Revenue' FY 18/19

Engineering

Services Security

£905.7m

(FY 17/18: £886.3m)

£536.5m

(FY 17/8: £432.0m)

Cleaning &
Professional Environmental
Services Services

£131.4m

(FY 17N8B. £131.2m)

02 Mitie Group ple | Annual Repart and Accounts 2019

£404 4m

(FY 1718: £384.2m)

Care &
Custody Catering

£107.3m

(FY 1718: £599m)

£136.Im

(FY 1718: £137.0m)



At a glance

Chairmans statement
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Market review
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Finance review
Stakeholder engagement
Non-financial inforrnation
statement

Social value
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Exceptional, |
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x

ASTY BEEE

every day g
for our
customers

technology to enable us to offer added value
to our customers, improve operationak
efficiency and reduce refiance on manual
labour. Our open source platform allows

us 1o integrate mutltiple systems and data
sources, perform advanced data analytics
and deliver solutions through easy-to-use
customer interfaces.

Owr nationwide flexible offering combined
with the smart use of technology remains
attractive. With a focus on key drivers —
customer, people, cost and technology -
we are helping to shape next generation
facilties management.

@ Read more on PG 13

5 6m

Integrated facilities daily data readings
T T T management

contracts with

Connected Workspace

COmponent won in

FY |89
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At a glance

Group

information

Our vision

Our purpose

What we do

The Exceptional, Every Day.

Qur expertise, care, technology and insight create amazing work
environmenits, helping our customers be exceptional, every day.

We are the UKs leading facilities management (FM) and professional services
comparty employing 52,500 people. We manage and maintain some of the
nation's most recognised landmarks and work with a wide range of blue-chip
private and public sector dierts. We have scale and nationwide reach as well
as breadth and depth of fadlities management services, which we deliver in

a flexible, tailored proposition through self-delivery or strategic partnerships.
We work in partnership with our dients to grow customer ifetime value

by offering technology-backed solutions where our Connected Workspace
technology is a true differentiator. We are ambitious for the future of the

FM industry, our customers and our employees.

We deliver the exceptional through a range of services

Engineering
Services (ES)

Mitie Engineering Services
delivers tachnical and building
mantenance sérvices and
specialist services in heating,
cooling, kghting, water
treatment, ard building
controls. The division carries
out project works, including
roofing ard painting works.

@ Read more on PG 16-17

Security Professional Cleaning &
Services (PS) Environmental

The Securtty division comprises Professional Services is Mitie's i

Security Management, From. of consultancy senvices division, sewlc.es (CES)

House, Document Management. which indudes Connected The Cleaning & Environmental

and the employee vetting ‘Workspace solutions, Services divisian oﬂ‘er;

business, Procius. Internationa), Sustainabiiry. cornmerdal and technical
Waste Management, dearing, as well as specialist
Risk Managesnent and services such as landscaping
Ocaupier Services, and healthcare services.

@ Read more on PG 17-18

04 Mitie Group plc | Annual Repert and Accounts 2019

@ Read more o0 PG 1819

@ Read more on PG 19



Customer type Forward order book
£m FY (89 fm FY 18119
@ Government 700.3 @ Lessthan | year 1,251.9
FY 1819 @ Non-government 1.521.1 FY 1809 @ More than | year 2,895.4
Revenue Total secured
e etions Pl
operations operations
£m FY 17118 m FY 1018
@ Government 6204 @ Lessthan | year 11216
Y 17118 @ Non-government 14102 FY 17118 @ More than | year 30644
Revenue Total secured
opearations .
S ————— N ——
£m FY 1819
@ Engineering Services 905.7
FY I8/19 @ Security 5365
. Revenue @ Professional Servites 1314
H rom continuing
Care & Catering operations ® CEs 404.4
Custody by division @ Care 3 Custody 107.3
The Care & Custody division The Catering division @ Catering 136.1
provides a range of services comprises: Gather & Gather,
to vulnerable adults in secure our workplace catering
environments, induding brand; and Creativevents,
managing immigration removal our specialist indoor
centres and detention and and outdoor event
escorting serv(i:()? on be}w:lh; catering business. £m £Y 18
of the Home Office, as as —
forensk medical examiner and @ Engineering Services 8863
oustody support senvices for FY (78 @ Seurty 4320
m‘&;ﬁ“ across England o e @ Frofessional Services 1312
rom continuing
operations @ CES 384.1
@ Read more on PG 20 @ Read more on PG 2021 by division @ Care & Custody 599
@ Catering 137.1
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Chairman’s statement

Shaping Mitie
for the future

;2.2bn

Revenue from continuing
opetrations
(FY {7/18: £2.0bn)

88.2.,

Operating profit before other
items from continuing operations'
{FY 17/18: {83.2m)

4.0,
Dividends per share

(FY 17718: 4.0p)

1. Reconchation of operating L3
before other items o the o

06 Mitie Group pic | Annual Report and Accounts 2019
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We want to drive a

change from today’s mostly
reactive approach to a
preventive approach using
data and technology.

Derek Mapp
Chairman

Dear Mitie sharehoider,
| am pleased to report on the progress of Mitie’s second year
of transfarmation. 1t has been a year of delivery and change —
i financial and cultural - in a competitive facilities rmanagement
market with a challenging industry backdrop.

FM industry overview and changing customer demands
Last year | referenced the demise of Carillion, ane of our major
competitors. The outsourcing sector has remained in the spotlight

with Interserve — another major competitor — poing into pre-pack
administration, following which lnterserve's landers acquired its
operating subsidiaries. Despite the angoing chalienges for the industry,

| still betieve that the medium-term cutlook for your comparny 15
positive. On the one hand, there is significam opportunity for increased
outsourdng penetration of the fadiities management industry, On the
other hand, we expect censolidation in the market to continue over the
next couple of years, as the industry addresses some of its fundamental
strategic and finantial chaltenges.

Qutsourcing remnains a low-margin industry. in this ervironment,
technology and scale remain two of Mitie's most significant differentiators.
Creating a technology-enabled busness can fundamentally change the
economics of the industry, We will continue 1o focus our technology
programme on three key areas: transforming our internal technology
infrastructure to build a more cost-efficient organisation; investing in
service defivery technologies to improve the customer experience and
cost-to-serve; and finally, creating new services and products which add
significant new value for our customers.

As a consequence, we believe that the aconomics of facliities
management is shifting from a low-margin, labour-based model to a

are beginning to evolve as a result of the challenges facing the industry,
the impact of technology and new employee workplace expectations.
While cost efficiency and the quality of service delivery remain front

and centre for our customers, they are increasingly also focusing on
employee wellbeing, sustainability and better use of thew buildings.
These softer benefits are becoming important in attracting and retaining



the best people and enabling them 1o be as productive as possible.
At Mitie, we therefore continue to drive adoption of our Connected
Workspace offering, which is focused on products and services that
improve the performance of bulldings, and the wellbeing of their
occuparnts, for the benefit of our customers,

Strategy

Our strategy is based on four pillars - customer, people, cost and
technology - and is designed to grow customer iifetime value through
technology-based solutions. We are focusing on those business lines
where we can secure market-leading positions to ensure long-term
sustainable growth, Qur vision is to deliver The Exceptional, Every Day.
It is clear to me that by the end of year two in our transformation
journey, we have made progress.

During FY 18/19 we simplified and strengthened the Mitie portfolic

by seling our Pest Control and Social Housing businesses and acquiring
a security business, Vision Security Group (VSG). The acquisition of
VSG boosts cur already strong position in the UK security market.

We have embedded technology into the heart of our offering. Examples
indude our Connected Workspace technology, our MiTec centre in
Belfast, our global security operations centre {GSOC) in Northarmpton
and our service operations centre (5QC) in Bracknell. We are
showcasing our technology solutions in our Shard headquarters.

We want to drive a change in the facilities management industry from
today's mostly reactive approach to a preventive approach using data
and technology to optimise the performance of a customer’s estate

and enhance the wellbeing of their people.

During the year, we continued to prioritise customer service, which

i reflected in a very encouraging 22-point increase in Net Promoter
Score {NFS) to +12 points. This s testament to all the hard work from
the teams on the ground and at account management level However,
we will not be complacent about the result; we have more to do, so
we will continue 1o listen to our customers and act on their feedback.

Our people are our most critical asset. Without their commitment
and hard work, the Group would not have progressed as far n its
transformation journey during the first two challenging years.

We are committed 1o creating a ‘Great Place to Work', During the
year, employee engagement improved to 45% from 33% last year —

a remarkable achievement given the ongoing transformation and scale
of change within the Group. Along with my fellow Board members,

| personally participated in our ‘back to the floor’ initiative to meet
more of our colleagues, hsten to their experiences and celebrate
excaptional performance.

We have continued to focus on rigorous cost control under our

Project Helix programme. By the end of March 2019, we had reached
our target exit run-rate savings — annualised reductions to the cost

base — of ¢.£45m per annum, through various cost saving inftiatives across
HR, Procurement. Property, Finance, [T and Engineering Services. We
now expect to launch a new cost saving inttiative programme in FY 19/20.

Stakeholder engagement

The Board has reviewed governance in readiness for the UK Corporate
Governance Code 2018, which applies to actounting periods beginning
on or after | January 2019. Given the extent of change at Mitie aver

the last two years. we as a Board wish to engage proactively with our
stakeholders. In FY |B/19, the Board established a format for regular
engagement with sharehclders and for supporting Mitie's workforce
during transformation. Through regular updates from the Executive
Leadership Team, the Beard also remains abreast of developments

with customers, suppliers. banks, noteholders and other stakehclders.

We will continue to develop dialogue between the Board and

all stakeholders to ensure a mutual understanding of views on
governance and to promaote discussion of the Group's performarnce.
Along with a number of Non-Executive Directors, | have directly
engaged with institutional shareholders with a cumulative holding

of §9% of Mitie’s issued share capital. Discussion covered a range

of governance matters including Mitie's culture and cultural
transformation, as well as Board support for the executive teamn,

In hine with the UK Corporate Governance Code 2018 and the Financial
Reporting Council's guidance on board effectiveness, Mitie appointed
Jennifer Duvalier as the Group's designated Non-Executive Director to
oversee Board engagement with our workforge. Jennifer champions the

voice of Mitie employees at Board discussions and participates directly in
our employee engagement initiatives.

Board composition

The Nomination Committee regulary reviews Board composition
and considers matters such as skills and diversity. During the year,
the Board adopted an inclusion policy, setting objectives in terms of
diversity and inclusion.

tn July 2018, Larry Hirst retired from the Board and Roger Yates
succeeded him as Semior independent Director. Mark Reckitt also
stood down from the Board, with Mary Reilly assuming the role of
Chair of the Audit Committee.

Jack Boyer stood down from the Board with effect from 31 August
2018. jennifer Duvalier succeeded him as Chair of the Remuneration
Committee.

| would like to thank Larry, Mark and Jack for their service to Mitie.

Results and dividends

| am pleased to report that revenue from continuing operations
duning the year was strong at 94% 1o £2.20n (FY 17H8: £2.0bn),
boosted by the acquisition of the security firm VSG. Operating profit
from cantinuing operations before other rtems also grew by 6.0% to
£88.2m (FY 17/18: £83.2m) with Engineering Services, Security and
Care & Custody all delvering good growth.

The Board has recommended a final dividend of 2.67p, taking total
dividends for the year 1o 4.0p. We expect to hold the dividend fiat
at least until trarsformation is complete, when we will review the
dividend pohcy.

Qutlook

While change can be unsettling, 1t can also be rewarding, and these

are exciting times for your Company. The strength of our strategy.
manzgemert, scale, technology offenng and, of course, the dedication of
our peaple, really set us apart. We will continue to build upon the progress
achieved over the first two years of transformation, strengthening our
position as the UK's leading fadiities management organisation.

On behalf of the Board. | would like to thank our many stakeholders, and
all Mitie employees, inchuding the VSG colleagues who joined us recently,
for their dedication and commitment to the Company, and for going the
extra mile. And finally, 1 would also like to thark you, our shareholders,
for your continued support.

Derek Mapp
Chairrnan

Mitie Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019 07
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Business model

Creating value
for all our stakeholders

Our vision
The Exceptional, Every Day.

@ Read more on PG 11

Our purpose

Our expertise, care,
technology and insight create
amazing work environments,
helping our customers be
exceptional, every day.

@ Read more on PG |1

Our values
* We are One Mitie,

* We are built on
integrity and trust.

* We go the extra mile.

* Qur diversity makes
us stronger.

* Our customers' business,
is our business.

@ Read more on PG 35

Diligence
and design

Mobilisation
and running
operations

>

What we do  We start by engaging with a new We look to mobilise our
or existing client to understand contracts in the most
its needs or any changes to efficient way. Once In
requirements. YWe design 1 bespake operation, we are continually
solution using our expertise, looking for opportunities
knowledge and C d 10 remove cost, expand
VWorkspace technology. our offering where it would
be of benefit to customers
and become a valued
strategic partner.
The Mitie We have crested 2 One Mitie Scale
approach  approachin everything we dato The scale of our operahans
deliver a seamiess, unrivalled service. allows us to self-deliver
most services, induding
some specialist services.
We aiso partner with
third partiés to deliver
additional specualist services.,
Delivered We offer 3 breadih of services
through our underpinned by broad expertise,
business aflexible bespoke approach
and proprietary market-leading Engineering  Security
technology. Services
Guided by  Our four strategic pilars — customer,
our strategy people, cost and technology —
underpin cur strategy of focusing on
our larger businesses and strategic Customer: putting
accounts where our technology offer customers at the
i a true diflerentiator to ensure heart of what we do
long-tern sustzinable growth, defvery Building market-lsacing
of our vision of ‘The Exceptional, positions in higher growth
Every Day” and creation ¢f vakoe for segments and increasing
all our stakeholders, austomer NPS.

08 Mitie Group plc | Annuat Report and Accounts 2019



Insights to
drive value

—_— >

Using our proprietary technology, data analysis and open source data
take, as well a5 wraditional mechods, we collace information on customers’
buildings and assets and the wellbeing of their employees. We convert
data and feedback into actionable recommendations for our clients,

Recognising that every customer is different, our approach is tailored
to customers’ unique needs and is designed to deliver continual
improvements throughout the life of the concract.

>

Nationwide Expertise Technology
reach We are a partner Our technology sufte
Our nationwide reach trusted for our includes Connected
allows us 1o service expartise and ‘Workplace, MiTec,
large clients with for putting our service operations
presence all over customers at the centre (SOC) and
the UK. heart of our business. global security
operations centre
(GSOC).
Professional  Cleaning & Care & Catering
Services Environmental Custody
Services
Peaople: our Cost: strong Technology:
single most balance sheet technology
important and cost control solutions and
resource Strengthening Connected
Creating a ‘Great oyr balancing sheet Workspace
Place 10 Worl" for and maintaining Embedding technology
our employees. cost disaipfine to into the heart of
remain competrtve. our offering .

<
O
2
=4

Strateg

Creating value for
all our stakeholders

Customers

We am to move (rom being just another service provider
o being a trusted partner for our customers, helping
them create hvgh-performance work environments by
optimising utisation of their bulldings and improving the
welibeing and performance of their people

+12

Net Promoter Score (an improvement
of 22 points from -0 in FY 17/18)

Governance

Shareholders

We are a business in turnaround with strong
management, an excellent customer base and a
dear strategy. We are committed to strong financial
management and the creation of shareholder value,

8.6p

Basic earnings per share
(improved from loss of 7.6p in FY 17/18)

Financial statements

Employees

Ve are creating a great working environment and
learming and development opportunities far our
employees. We empower our people and recognise
great work.

52,500

employees

Sacial value: communities, environment,
people, innovation and regional business
Through the Mitie Foundation we provide opportunities
for learning and employment: Ready2Work scheme;
employer engagement days: Think Differently
programme; and school, academy and college events.

151 Mitie colleagues

volunteered to assist in a range of
educational and community events

Suppliers

We are commitied 10 ensuring a responsible supply
chain., We work with all suppliers to ensure adherence
to our Code of Conduct, including Modern Slavery and
Human Trafficking, Safety and Sustanabifty objectives.
and our Mitie vetting standards.

‘We procured from

7,500

suppliers in FY 18/19

Mitie Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019 09



Market review

A world of
opportunity

We are focused on improving our custorers'
experience and embedding technology-driven
solutions in our offering.

Key market driviers How we are respanding

Facilities
management
industry

@O
®@

The UK has a large and established autsourced
faciffues management (FM) market Overall itis
forecast to grow at moderate levels (c.2%) asthe
market continues to move siowdy from insourdng to

Desprte recent industry turbulence, we
are not seeing any marked {rends for insourding, FM
outsourdng penetration ranges from ¢.55% for
catering to ¢.30% for cleaning. The relative share of
contract types (singke service ¢.55%, Lundlefintegrated
FM ¢ 45%) has remaned refatively stable. Customers’
primary focus continues to be on cost, efficency and
service quainy, but with an increasing focus on
technology and employee welbeing. Turbulence in the
sector has highlighted the need for a more informed
approach to priong and risk transfer. Scrutiny into
public sector cutsourcding has remained high,

We are the UK's largest FM companry and we are
transforming the industry by continuing to focus on
delivering an outstanding service and custorer
experience, generiting cost efficency, creating an
environment whare our people can thrive and irvesting
ntechnology. Our Connectad Workspace technology
differentiates us from our competition. We are generating
data-driven insights and enabling dedsions that improve
efflidency and our cost-to-serve, as well as create new
services and products for our customers.

Read more in the CEQ’s strategic review on pages | to 13
Read about prinopal risks and uncertainties on pages 38 to 46

UK
economy

®®

According to the Cffice for Navonal Statistics (OINS),
in 2018 UK GDP grew 1 4%, slower than 1.8% in 2017.
OIS reported that the Consumer Prices index {CPj)
12-month rate was 2.1% in December 2018. ONS
revised down real GDP growthin 2019 from 1.6% to
1.2%, against the backdrop of considerable unicertainty
wmenextstepsmﬂweBrexttprooess As Brexit
uncertainty subsides, and productivity growth

gradually improves, ONS expects GDP growth to pick
up to 1.4% in 2020 and to 1.6% a year thereafter as the
small margin of spare capacity is absorbed. The
unempioyment rate is expected to rise marginally to
4.1% in 2019 as output falls below potential.

Qutsourding is typically shiekled from economec cycles,
benefiting from an increased customer Cost-cutting

focus during economic siowdowns, and from contract
expansion in economic upturns. Our national footprint,
scale of operations and fllexible proposition remain
compelling, while our Connected Workspace technology
serves as a dear differentiator.

We have assessed potential Brexit impacts under a range of
scenanios. We expect the main impacts in wage and food
price inflabion and labour and parts shortages. all of which
we are addressing through contingency planning and
working dosely with our supply chain,

Read abaut, prinipal risks and unosrtainties on pages 38 o 46

Customer
expectations

OIS

Although cost, eflicency and service quakty continue
to be pricrities lor customers, employee wellbeing and
technology are’ gaining further traction, Customers
are increasingly looking 10 improve the working
enviranment, employee satsfaction and wellbeing of
their empioyees. Flexible workspace soluticns, effioent
use of their estate and operstional insights supported
by real-time data prewide an opportunity for
customers 1o smprove the performance and wellbeing
of their people and functioning of their buildings

We are invesung in Connected Waorkspace technology
to reduce our cost-to-serve and create new products
and services that add significant value for our customers,
Our open source technology platform allows us to
ntegrate muttiple systems and data sources, perform
advanced data analytics and deliver better services for
our customers. We will continue reshaping our business
to be the leader in next generation FM.

Read more n the CEO's strategic review on pages | ta 13
Read about principal risks and ucertainties on pages 38 to 46

Legislation

®®
®S

UK employers must comply with legal and regulatory
requirements in areas such as taxation, the National
Minirum Wage (NIMW) and the Mational Uving
Wage (NLW). the Apprenticeship Levy. workplace
pensions and the Modern Slavery Act,

The majority of Mitie front-ine employees are within
the NLW category. The NUW for workers aged

25 and over increased by 45% from £7.83 to £8.21
from Aprd 2019,

The Apprenticeship Levy is required from UK
employers to fund new apprenticeships and is

charged at a rate of 0.5% of an employer's payroll

By Yaw all ernployers rmust offer a workplace pension
scheme to eligible employees.

10 Mitie Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019

The rmajority of our existing contracts already contain
a change-of-law clause which allows us to pass on related
cost increases, helping us to protect our margins. We
are utilising the Apprenticeship Levy for front-fine stafl
training and development. We are also moving beyond a
‘labour-plus’ model towards more value-added sarvices
and embedding more technology in dur operations,
Preswreonmmsﬁhelytooonunueaslabourmsts
increase driven by legislation and CP1 i

We paid £4.7m into the Apprenticeship Levy scheme in FY
18/19 and utilised £1.2m

Read about principal risks and uncertainties on pages 38 to 46




Chief Executive’s strategic review

Strengthening the business,

in a challenging market

Owr vision

“The Exceptional, Every Day. It's a combination of expertise, care and
insights, backed by the latest technology and data, 10 create an offering
that goes beyond traditional FM. To our people we promise a place to
work where they can thrive and be the best every day. To our customers
we promise to be a trusted partner. creating exceptional environments for
clients and colleagues, as well as adding value. Everything we do is backed
by our core values, which oversee how we behave as a resporsible
corporate citizen, and as individuals.

Our purpose

Achieving The Exceptional, Every Day’ doesn't happen by chance.
And we want our customners to be exceptional too. We start by doing the

data-drven solutions, embedding technology seamlessly into everything we
do. The insights gained allow us to offer customers a new level of flexdbility
and control, helping them become exceptional at what they do best.

Our strategic pillars

Customer: build market-leading positions in higher
growth sagments and increase customer NPS

People: create a ‘Great Place to Work’ for
our employees

Cost: strengehen our balance sheet and malntain
cost discipline to remain competitive

Tachnology: embed technology into the heart of
our offering

& H®®

(6

Our vision is to deliver

‘The Exceptional, Every Day’
for our customers, people
and other stakeholders.

Phil Bentley
Chief Executve Officer

Dear Mitie shareholder,

| am pleased to report on our progress in my second full year as

CEO of Mre Group ple. Two years into our transformation journey

we are already seeing the benefits of our strategy to focus on our larger
businesses and strategic accounts where our technology ofler is a true
differentiator to ensure long-term sustainable growth, delivery of our
wvision of "The Exceptional, Every Day’ and areation of value for al our
stakeholders through our four strategic pillars of customer, people, cost
and technology.

Over FY |8/19 we sharpened the focus by continuing to invest in
customer service and technology and by changes 1o our portfolio
of businesses. This has enabled us to grow revenue and profits.

We see our larger businesses and strategic clients as offering the best
opporiunties for growth and margin expansion as we deepen our
capabilities and relationships. These are also areas where we are best
able to deploy technology.

Project Helix has provided solid foundations for Mitie's future

growth, enabling investments in our people, customer and technology.
With the foundations now built, we are now mowing to Project Forte,
which 1s focused primarily on driving simplicity and efficiency in
Engineering Services. Together with our focus on strategic accounts

and larger businesses, we should see Improvement in the Group's profits.

At the same time, we are making good progress in strengthening our
balance sheet.
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Chief Executive’s strategic review continued

Business performance

It has been another challenging year with the FM sector remaining firmly
inthe spothght. Despite this, we grew our revenues and top strategic
accounts, reduced our perod end net debt and qualified for Phases | and
Il of the Crown Commercial Services (CCS) FM Marketplace Framework
thereby positoning ourselves 10 win mare government work.

Revenue from contirwing operations was 9.4% up on the previous year,
at £2.2bn, with organic growth at 5.5%. Operating profit before other
items from continuing operations increased to £88.2m from (83.2m in
FY 17/18, Operating profit for FY 18/49 was up to £30.2m from £1.Im a
year earher and basic earnings per share were 8.6p, from a loss of 76pin
FY 17/18. Basic earnings per share before other items Irom continuing
operations were 16.8p (FY 17/18; 15.2p).

The fixed-term order book from continuing operations was broadly flat
at £4.1bn, benefiting from VSG's order book and significant contract wins
towards the end of the year. Following the successful reorganisation of
our sales team and the introduction of strategic account managers, we
have seen a steady flow of wins and retentions. The pipeline of £10.2bn
indudes significant opportunities on the CCS Framework.

Our balance sheat health remains a key focus. We are commitied to
further reducing customer invoice discounting, normalising creditor days,
asking clientts for fairer payment terms, streamlining our billing processes
and delivering faster cash collection. Qur efforts have seen a dechine in
average daily net debt in H2 18/19 to £286.5m from £3174m in HI 18/19
as we resolved working capital impacts following the outsourcing of
transactionat processing to India in early FY {8/19, Overall. average daily
net debt for FY 18/19 was £15.9m higher than prior year at £302.0m.
Our medium-term objective is to continue to raduce the average daily
net debt. The period end net debt was £140.7m versus £193.5m a year
eariier as we make continuing improvemants to the cash collection
cyde: the net debt position ako indudes proceeds from two disposal
transactions eflected during FY 18/19. We are operating cornfortably
within debt covenants with period end net debt to EBITDA of 1.33x.

Focusing our business

In FY 18119, we also focused our business by seling our Pest Controi and
Social Housing businesses and acquiring the Vison Security Group (VSG).
The first two transactions simplified our operations; they also provided
funds to strengthen the balance sheet and accelerate partal repayment
of the deficit under the Group's defined benefit persion scheme. The
VSG acquisition strengthens our position as one of the UK's largest
providers of security services 10 businesses,

Customer focus

Listening 1o clients is essential as we focus on delivering services that our
customers need, By taking on board feedback from last year's customer
survey and continuing to invest in customer service, we have secured

an impressive improvement in our NPS score, which increased from
1010 +12in FY 18/19. A follow-up programme for account directors
will ensure we improve our score further still, helping us te win and
retain more business.

Mitie's success rests on growing our largest strategC accounts and
deepening our relationship with them. it was pleasing to see that
these accounts grew revenues by 8% in FY 18/19. which demonstrates
that our biggest clients are trusting us with more of their business,

We have recently secured a place on several key government
franneworks, giving us an opportunity ta became a strategic partner for
the UK government in outsourced FM, defence, security and custody.

@

A great place to work

Supportng our people to be the best they can be is one of our core
objectves. We do more than just prowide the tools required for the job;
we are making Mitie a great place to work through various inftiatives.

Qur online People Hub, supported by SAP SuccessFactors, is a single
point of access for anything HR-related. The recently launched Learning
Hub offers 2 doud-based pool of 2,500 instructor-led courses.

Mitie Exceptionals is a diverse employee consulting group which laises
with our Non-Executive Director, jennifer Duvalier, on the interests
of the wider workforce. In April 2018, we launched Upload, a people
survey providing the opportunity 10 feedback on working with Mitie.
We launched a “You Said, We Did' campaign to address employees’
feedback throughout the year. it was therefore very encouraging to
see that the employee engagement score went up 1o 45% from 33%
i the prior year.

In addition, we were the only FM company to be ised by two
prestigious awarding bodies. We were certified a 2019 Top Employer
by the Top Emplayer institute Certification Programme. And we came
17th on the Inclusive Top 50 UK Employers list lor promoting diversity
and inclusion. )

Our strategy

in action
Our strategy is to focus on

Customer: bulld market-leading
positions in higher growth segments
and increase customer NPS

)

People: create a ‘Great Place
to Work’ for our employees

Achievements

our larger businesses and Achievements
strategic accounts where our '?'Pslnuelgedzzpoimmuz oox

. * Top strategic accounts grew revenues
tgmmlquofférsanue * Mitie qualified as a supplier on Crown
differentiator to ensure Comemercal Services Framewark for FM,

H efence secur ‘Y services

Iong-term susta:pgble growth, KPhs: Orgaric b cperating proft
delivery of our vision of margin before other items, order book, NPS
The Exceptional, Every Day’
and creation of value for

all our stakeholders.

£ | 0.2bn

pipeline of opportunities
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* We bunched Peaple Hub and Learming
Hub phlatforms

¢ Employee engagement increased to 45%

* jennifer Duvaler oversees Board
&ngagement with the workforce

KPls: Stafl turnover, employee engagement,

all injury frequency rate

454

employee engagement



Cost discipline

In june 2017 our cost programme, Project Helix, was launched to
kickstart Mitie's transformation. Two years on, we have largely
achieved our aims, exdting FY 18/1% with run-rate cost savings of
¢.£45m. We started by delayering and removing central management
heads both at Group level and within the divisions. We standardised
and centralised our IT, HR and Finance functions. For IT and Finance
we also offshored the majority of back-office processes. In HR, we
imtroduced SAP SuccessFactors to manage all people-related matters,
as well as temporary and permanent hiring sclutions.

The final elements of this project will continue throughout FY 1920,
with expected run-rate cost benefits — these are annual cost savings to
the cost base following the finalisation of currently running programmes
at the end of Project Helix— of ¢.£50m by March 2020.

The next phase of transformation is Project Forte, aimed at changing
the processes and technology underpinning our largest division,
Engineering Services.

Project Forte will include a full roll-out of the *Click” dynamic
scheduling and deployment system and implemertting a new case
management and billing application. it will result in improved engineer
productrty and back-office efficiencies, Project Forte will also include
further Group-wide organsational consolidation and additional cost
reductions by automating manual and paper-based processes and
migration of our accounting system to a Mitie-wide SAP solution

It 1 & two-year programme with estimated gross run-rate cost
benefits of ¢.£30m by March 2021 and associated one-off cost of
change of c.£30m.

Technology at our core

Mitie’s use of technology sets us apart from the competition and s at
the core of customer satisfaction and retention success. Qur dients
need and expect high-performance facilities that not only provide

the right work environment but operate efficiently and support their
sustainability agenda. Our skilled resources, natiorwide reach andg
experience of managing different types of facities pive us unparalieled
capabilities to help clents achveve these objectives.

For example. our Connected Workspace solutions include a
sophisticated service operations centre {(SOC) that provides remote
monitoring of buildings and facilties. SOC uses advanced algorithms
to detect anomalies and trigger corrective actions prior to an asset
failing, We are also able 10 reduce energy consumption for buldings,
plant and equipment. We call this 'Monitonng as a Service’ and it is the
core of cur predictive maintenance offering

Other fast-growing technology applications include our MiTec centre,
Fire & Securtty systems and our global security operations centre.
Our approach isn't just transforming clients’ organisations, rt 15
transforming Mitie and consolidating our position as the UK's leader
in Fi1

Outlook

We expect to continue to grow revenue organically at 3%-4% in the
medium term. For FY |9/20 we expect operating profit to grow at
mid-single digits — with revenue growth and cost savings partially offset
by the dilutive effect of the FY 18/19 contract renewals and continued
reinvestment in our business. Project Forte and focus on strategic
accounts and larger businesses should drive operating profit margin

in the medium term to our target of 4.5%-5.5%.

Looking ahead

Mitie's transformation continues at pace. Qur strength is supported

by great customers and loyal staff. Through our use of technology and
expertise, we are leading the field, transforming our operations and
how we interact with our clients. Change has been challenging at times,
but our progress and performarxce to date are encouraging Revenue
is growing, Project Helix has allowed us to lay sokd foundations for the

business and i addition to wins across the business, the CCS Framework

presents a considerable opportunity. Mitie 1s n a strong position for
future growth and we look forward to the year ahead,

Phil Bentley
Chief Executive Officer
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Cost: strengthen our balance
sheet and maintain cost discipline
to remain competitive

Achievements

* Project Helxx largely complete m HR, [T,
Finance, Procurement and other (CES and
property estate)

* FY 18/19 in-year benefits of . £38m, with exil
run-ate benefits of c.£45m

KPls: operating profit margn before cther iterns,

et debt/EBITDA ratin and average daily net debt

£45m

gross FY |8/1% exit run-rate benefits

Technology: embed technology
into the heart of our offering

Achievements

*+ Growing revenue stream in Security

* Technology solutions through MiTec, GSOC,
Fire & Security systerns in Security

* Connected Workspace embedded in five
new large IFM contracts

* Mi dashboards live in Healthcare chents (CES)
KPIs: Organic revenue growth, order book, NPS

12

new CW projects in FY 18/19

Focusing our business

Achievements

* Pest Control business' sold to leverage
subtontractor expertise

* Social Housing business' sold 1o exit
a low-growth low-margin sector

* VSG! acquined to boost our pesition in
1he security market

* Disposats smpkfy Mitie Group and
strengthen the balance sheet

t Note 5 to the conschdated financial statements on
discontinued operations and disposal of subsidiaries.

2 Note 30 1o the consolidated financial statements
on acquistions,

3

successful transactions

Mitie Group ple | Annual Report and Accounts 2019 13



Key performance indicators

Monitoring
our progress

Our KPls are measures we use

1o assess the Group's progress
against our strategy of focusing on
our larger businesses and strategic
accounts where our technology
offer is a true differentiator to
ensure long-term sustainable
growth, delivery of our vision

of "The Exceptional, Every Day’
and creation of value for all

our stakeholders.

The health and safety of our people is the highest priority
for us as a business. YWe are constantly striving to deveiop
a zero-harm workplace. Coordinated by Mitie's Quality,
Health, Safety and Environment (QHSE) team, cur
LiveSafe programme was launched in December 2018,
This highlights the importance of workplace safety and
was developed out of the need 1o constantly improve
QHSE performance across the business This year we are

a non-financial QHSE KP! to our reporting ~
allinjury frequency rate.

Our styategic plllars.

Ci : bulld mar ding positions in higher
growth segments and increase customer NPS
People: creats a ‘Great Place to Work' for

our eTnpicyees

Cost: strengthen our balance sheet and maincain
cost discipine 1o remain competitive

Technology: embed technology inte the heart of
our offering

@®®
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Organic revenue growth (%)

oo

Revenue growth reflects the health of our grder book, our abifity te upsell and
erost-sell, the pipeline of potential oppociunities, our win and retention rates and
our broader reputation in the sector. Organkc revenue growth is growth on a
comparable bass before any impact from acquisitions and excluding discontinued
operatiors. Reconciliation of revence exdudng the impact from the VG
acquisition to the statutory accounts is provided in Appendix ~ Alternative
Performance Measures on pages 163 to 165.

FY 18719 £122Im

FY B9 fownirg V5G] £2,42m 5.5«

FY 18 oom  pEreEmeh
How we did It Outlook

Orgunic ravenue grew by 5.5% desprie  Our plan s 1o achieve 3%-4%
a challenging market environment, due 1o ongdnic revenue growth in the
new wins and locusing on adding more medium term.

value and services 10 Dur top Customers,

We continue 10 invest in o serwce

and technology to drive customer retention

and win rates. Revenue growth of 9:4% from

continuing operations induded the mpact

from the acquisition of V3G,

Operating profit margin
before other items (%)

®
Description

The UK £M industry is a mature and highly competitive market, Profitability on
covmracts improves as we enhance the effidency of our operations throughout
the life of the contract. Reconclliation of operating profit before cther items
from continuing operations 1o statutory accounts is provided in Appendix —
Alternative Performance Measures on pages 163 to 165

Fy 1819 40X lo
bpts
Fy 718 4.1% :
prévious year
How wa did it Outlook

The operating profit sargin before other For FY 19720 we expect operating
tems reduced slightly to 4.0% over the year  prolit 1o grow at mid-single digits

as the diutive impact from the acqursition — with revenue growth and cost
of YSG was mitigated through toniinued savings partially offset by the
strong performance within our lrger diutive effect of the FY 1819

contracts and realised cost savings from our

oomra:twnewalsandcontl‘ inued

trangformation programme. We invested strpant inour b

back into qustomer service, our technalogy Pro,ectFoﬂe and foous on

capability and stafl incentive schemes, strategic accounts and krger
businesses shouid drive operating
profit margin in the medium term
10 our target of 4.5%-5.5%.

Ovrder book (£m)

Description

The reporied order book inchudes only secured fixad-term contracted work
and exclydes vanable work, such as catering point-of-saie, See Note 3 10 the
consolidated finantial statements for analysis of the forward order book.

Fr Bng £4,14Tm I
Ff 7718 £4.)86m
decrease from
previous year
How we did it Outiook

QOur order book for continuing operations  InFY 18719, we were successiul in
dedined by 1%, Contract wins and the qualifying as a supplier on Phases |
benefit from the acquisition of VSG offset and ll of the Crown Commerdial

he deSivery of revenue under longierm Services Facities Managernent

contracts, Marketplace Framework. We
will be focusing on this area as
sgnificant wins would matecially
improve our order position



Net debt/EBITDA ratio ()

Description

®

Pericd end net debt/EBITDA ratio or leverage ratio is one of the two debt
covenams used to assess our financial position. For the leverage covenant the

Average daily net debt (fm)

Description

®

Our balance sheet health is of paramount importance to the long-term
sustainability of cur business. Average daity net debt reflects working capital

ratio of net debt to EBITDA should be no more than 3x The other covenant and bill-to-collect management,

ratio is interest cover (ratio of EBITOA to net finance costs to be no less than 4x),

FY 189 133x FY 18119 £302m

Fr 8 : 198 065 x FY 8 £286m £ I 6"‘_
improvement from deterioration from
previous year previous year

How we did it Outlook How we did it Outlook

Cur period end net debt decreased by We expect to continue to reduce Our average daily net debrt increased Proactive management will be an

£52.8mto £140.7m as we benefited from our period end net debt/EBITDA compared to the prior year's level The ongoing theme. Over the medium

net proceeds from disposals and focused ratio whilst also reducing . increase in Hi to £317.4m was due to term, we aim to continue to

on accelerating our order to cash cytle. off-balance sheet financing. temporary working capital issues related reduce average daily net debt.

We continue to operate comfortably
within our debt covenants,

See Note 26 to the consohdated financial
statements for analysis of net debt.

to outsourcing of transactional processing,
This was reversed in H2 resulting in lower
average daily net debt in the H2 period at
£286.5m. Overal, average daily net deby
for FY 18/ was L£15.9m higher than prior
year at £302.0m.

Staff turnover (%)

Description

&

We measure the number of employees leaving us voluntarity over 2 12-month

period against our ovenalt headcount.

Employee engagement (%)

Description

@

The survey asks cofleagues at Mitie how they feel about working with the
organisation, and what improvemnents could be made, Thxs is followed by
the “You Said, We Did’ campaign to demonstrate actions undertaken in

response 1o feedback.

FY 1819 19.7% Fy 1% 45%
FY /18 16.8% 2°9PP“ FY 1718 33% I2PP“

increase from increase from

previous year previous year
How we did it Qutlook How we did it Qutlook
In FY 18/19, we launched People Hub, & We will continue to utilise 28% of employees {(exduding VSG The ansual survey is a vital tool
cne-stop-shop for everything related to technology to support cur colleagues) completad the Upload survey in raising employee engagement.
the employee fifecyde. and Learning Hub, peaple processes. [n FY 18/19, and the engagement score was 45%, up but it is not the only one. Senior
an onfine portal through which employees we appointed a head of resourcing from 33% the year before. managemernt meet employees
@n access courses related to their career, 10 ¢reate an industry-leading talent throughout the year at roadshow
as well as health and wellbeing, We have and resourdng function to attract, conferences across the UK and
been embedding new behaviours following  recruit, develop and retain the members of the Group Leadership
the roll-out of new vaiues in FY 1718 best people at all levels. Team go ‘back to the floor’ 1o

engage with front-line colleagues.

Net Promoter Score (index)

Description

NPS is a measure for gauging the customer’s overall satisfaction with a compary’s
product or service and the customer's ioyaity to the brand.

All injury frequency rate .
(per million rmanhours worked)

Description

®

Safety of our employees is of paramount importance. We have established
systems and governance processes 10 measure our performance. Qur injury rate
is 2 key measure 1o monitor cur progress towards zero harm and includes all

inury severities from first aid to fatality.

FY 18119 +12 FY 1849 309

FY 2118 -0 22P°'“” FY 1718 358 3.5
increase from reducdon from
previous year previous year

How we did it Qutlook How we did it Outlook

In FY 18/19 we reached a wider and deeper  Thisis a core focus for us Over the past year we have changed Continued efforts to further

section of our customer base, capturing and we will be enhancing our reporting system (Q3) and categarisation rechice injuries is at the forefront

90%+ of our revenue, in a more extensive  CRM programme, customer of incidents allowing for increased focus of the LiveSafe programme,

CRM programme. Qur NPS improvedasa  communications and engagement. and analysis of accidents and incidents. striving towards a zero-harm

result of continued investment in customer Through the promotion of our LiveSafe workplace. Addionally we

service and our One Mitie approach. programme and campargn promoting the will continue to develop our

proactive reporting of hazard observations  Occupational Health strategy

and near misses we are seeing a shift from
reactive to proactive safety performance,

Mitie Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019 Is
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Operating review

Our divisional
performance

Engineering

Services

(4,3 EY 18/19 Y 128 Change %
Revenue 905.7 8863 22
Qperating peolit before

other items 58.7 4.1 as
Cperating margin before

other items, % &5 61 04 ppt
Order book 1,802.7 20392 {11.6)

Performance highlights
* Good growth of operating profit before other ems driven by
a strong per formance in the major accounts

* Encouraging improvements in engineer productivity
* Phase | of Engineenng Services transformation under
Praject Helix completed
« Engineering Serwices transformation is moving inte Project Forte

Operational performance
Engineering Services had ancther year of good operating profit

growth driven by a strong performance in the mapr accounts,

The business fecused on reducing layers and increasing spans of
control, whilst continuing to invest in customer service and technology
to enhance the quality and efficiency of the service we provide. We
have also fistened to and acted upon custoener feedbacdk. We are dearly
seeing the impact of our investment into service with our divisional
NP5 up 30 points year-on-year.

Another area of lotus was the productvity of our engineers where we
have seen encouraging i nts in uthsation with a 7% increase in
progluctivity, a 3% (c.£3m) reduction in core subcontractor spend and a
subsequent increase in profitability. This increased productivity has been
partly drven by a 20% reduction in travel time which has in turn allowed
us 1o reduce the backlog in jobs by 20% and therefore provde a better
service to our customers. Additional year-on-year indirect cost reductions
included a 12% (c.£2m) decrease in vehicle costs and a 43 (c.£0.1m)
drop in staff travel expenses. We have created a data hub which
alkws benchmarking, best practice and standardisation to enable
these improvernents.

We also took steps 1o reduce complexity in cur business. On the
customer front we actively focused an revenue quality by serving our top
chents better. We made a decision to no longer pursue smaller and less
profitable opportunities and to proactively exit fow-margin contracts.
With regard 1o the supply chain, we reduced cur supplier base by 25%
by migrating 1o fewer strategi partners, enabling rreaningful economies
of scale. There is further opportunity in these areas,
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Under Project Helix, we have now completed Phase | of the Engineenng

. Services transformation. This incuded the rofi-out of PDAS to our

engineers and related training the introduction of a dashboard enabling
better performance management of all organisationat levels including
engineers, and launching our Click prifot (automated engineer scheduling
and deployment tool). We also introduced incentive schemes for engineers
1o aim for first-time-fix and greater efficiencies.

The next phase of transformation for Engineering Services is grouped

under Project Forte and will indude 10 the cufture, processes and

technology underpinnng the business. This willinchude the scheduling and
system roll-out and a new case management and bilkng

application. The objective is to drive further improvements for our

customers and our staff by using technology to improve productivity

and service delivery.

The programme will also include Group-wide initiatives aimed at
organisational consolidation and further cost reductions by automating
manual and paper-based processes. Project Forte is expected 10 run
for approximately two years with assaciated cost of

of .£30m and estimated exit gross run-rate benefits of ¢.£30m by
March 202I. -

In FY 18/19 Mitie Property Management’s roofling and painting businesses
were integrated into Engineering Services following the sale of the Social
Housing business in Novemnber 2018, incorporating these two business
wnits into the ES projects business broadened the overall offering under
the projects umbrella and boosted cross-selling opportunities across Mitie.
It ako allowed the sales tearms to share leads and be proactive in capturing
opportunitees with customers. Overall, this combination & starting to gain
traction in the market and s helping to make Mitie kngwn as a one-stop
Pprojects business.

From the start of FY 19720 several business units of the current
Professional Services division will be incorporated into an enlarged
Engineering Services division. These nclude Connected Workspace,
International Services, Occupier Services and Sustainability. The logic
behind the mowve is that these services are dosely aligned to our langest
integrated accounts where engineening services are central to our offer.
‘We will therefore be able to improve and broaden our customer product
offering in a manner that more dosely aligns with our austomers needs,
To facilitate these changes we have strengthened the Engineering Services
leadership team with senior appoirtments in mobile engineering, strategic
accounts and critical nfrastructure,

Engineering Services revenue comprises fixed contract work and variable
work. During the year we broadened the capability of our commercial
tearn by setting up a new dedicated sales team focused on winning more
variable and project-based work wath our existing and poterstial clients.
The order book declined 11.6% to £1.802.7m in the year as the urmwanding
of existing contracts exceeded new wins and renewals underpinned by
more disciplined bidding.

WWe extended a number of contracts, including a five-year contract
worth £17m with Gatwick Airport and a two-year extension with
Vodafone. We won new business as part of integrated FM contracts with
a major UK retailer, a major infrastructure company, Connect Group and
Yorkshire Buitding Society Wi also won several single service contracts,
including a contract with construction firm Willmott Dixon to provide
mechanical and eleCtrical services for Bournemouth University.

We also enhanced our focus on the government sector enabling us to
qualify as a supplier of M&E services on the CCS Framework which offers
UK-wide fadilties management opportunities across numerous public
sector entities.



Financial performance

Revenue from continuing operations in the Engineering Services division
was up 2.2% to £905.7m (FY 1/18: £886.3m). with growth in top accounts
and related project work offsetting the impact of cantracts lost during
the prior year and a slower year in terms of contract wins. The top 50
Engineering Services contracts continued to delver good growth in
both volumes and profitability on the back of project and variable work
volumes with revenue growth of 8% and 70 basis points improvement
in gross profit margin. Qur projects business, which includes fire
protection, painting and roofing, as well as project work within top
accounts, grew its revenue by 4% and saw operating profit margin
expansion of B0 basis points.

Operating profit for continuing operations before other items increased
8.5% to £587m (FY 17/18: £54.1rm). This was due to a combination of
strong performance in our largest accounts, exit from low-margin
contracts and cost savings from the transformation programme, partly
offset by the impact of contracts lost in the prior year and inaremental
investments into iImproving service levels.

Qutiook

As we deepen our refationships with our largest customers we are
increasingly seeing the demand for a broader service offering which
ncludes the use of predictive maintenance technology, improved facilities
performance management information and more energy efficiency from
assets and buildings. By combining several existing Mitie businesses from
the Professiona! Services division into one enlarged Engineering Services
division, we will be able to meet these demands better, The market for
Engineering Services remains fragmented but is still showing modest
growth. We are optimsstic about our future performance as we broaden
our offering, particularty focusing on technology. and as we embark on a
transformation of the business through Project Forte that will improve
the customer experience whilst reduding our cost-to-serve.

Security

m FY 1819 FY 1718 Change, %
Revenue 5363 4320 24.2
Operating profit before

other nems 30.7 275 116
Operating margin before

other items, % 57 64 (07)ppt
Qrder book 9718 6408 518
Performance highlights

* Strong year with a good performance across all business
units together with a positive contribution from the acquisition
of V5G

« Significant progress made in integrating V5G following its
acquisition in October 2018

+ Technology solutions playing a greater role in contributing to
the overall profit growth

Operational performance

Security enjoyed ancther strong year with a good performance across
allits major business units, together with a positive contribution from

the acquisthion of VSG in October 2018, The largest part of our security
business is manned guarding where we saw good growth across all regions
as we continue to develop our presence in the retad, logistics and critical
security emvironment sectors.

The VSG acquisition strengthenad the position of Mitie's Security business
as one of the leading providers of integrated and nisk-based securtty
services in the UK, The combination offers opportunities to accelerate
the growth of Mitie’s premium systems and technclogy-enabled and
intelligence-led sacurity solutions.

Significant progress has already been made in integrating VSG, al:gnmg boih
operations and technology capabilities. We have consolidated

into our new global security operations centre (GSOC), a single hub,
located in Narthampton. it will serve as a centre for inteligence and
security industry experts with cutting-edge software tools 1o capture,
trarslate, peolocate and alert to any major global nadents. Ths will
become a hub for development of our intelligence cell and house aur
imeractive customer control centre where we undertake ive CCTV
monitoring. In additon, we are employng innovative and unique methods
of collating actual incidents and crime reports overlaid with national crime
statistics to dynamically risk-rate indvidual locations to drive the efficient
deployment of security resources for our customer sites.

Our industry-leading 24/7 communications and technology ceritre MiTec will
be retained as our primary alarm recening centre (ARC) responsible for
delivering a wide range of remote services including CCTV., intruder, fire,
aceess control and lone worker monitoring and dedicated dient helpdesks,
We are abo creating a ARC location at our Northampton
GSOC to provide MiTec with added resibence. We will continue to focus
on the growth of our Fre & Security Systemns business as one of the leading
providers of e salety solutions and innovative security systems in the UK.
Through the integration of V5G's systems team, we have expanded our
geographical footprint, increased our technical expertise levels and
strengthened our operational model which s enabling us to deliver
larger-scale projects and contracts for cients,

Mitie is a significant Front of House service provider through our

Signature business. There are opportunrties for growth, especially in
major city conurbatrons and in particular the premium and London-centric
corporate market.
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Operating review continued

Mitie's employee vetting business, Procius, contnues to hold a strong
position in the aviation mdustrywhlls'tweareaboseﬂr\gtracnon

within commercial sectors. The focus hera is on developing further
technology-led solutions to automate, facilitate and speed up

vetting processes.

In Document Managamertt we continue to grow our customer

base, attracting high-end law firms and corporate dients by offering
technology-enabled docurnem managernem and dotument processing
expanding to ndude the delivery of cur services to dients’ regional offices.

The divisional NPS score improved by 15 points as we expand and
enhance our offer and embed more technology solutions in cur
services. The secured order book before the impact from the V5G
acquisition was up by 19%, with the unwinding of cortracts more than
offset by significant contract wins and successful retenders. Ve won a
three-year contract with a multinational retall group and extended a
contract with Springfields for a further three years. We also had astrong
year for retaining dients, induding two contract extensions for travel
dients, Strathclyde Partnership for Transport (a further five years) and
Eurostar (for twa years). We successfully extended a contract with Bedfast
City Airport and won 2 high-profile conlract from the CCS Framewori.
The total secured order book benefited from the acquisition of VSG and
grew overall by 51.6% ta £971.5m.

Fi ial perfor

The Security division delivered a strong financial performante, with

good organic growth together with a pasitive contribution from the

VSG acquisition, Organic revenue by 5.8%. and overall revenue,

nndudngVSG grew 24.2% to £536.5m (FY 17/18: £432.0m). Manned
uanding, technology solutions including vetting services, and Document

Managememaﬂdeﬁva'edgoodg-owthfolowmntwsalswns

and hugher volumes of project and variable work. Front of House

performance was impacted by loss of key contracts in the prior year.

Cperating profit before other items increased 11.6% to £30.7m
(FY 1718: £27.5m) driven by comtract wins and jonal efficiency
initiatives as well as a positive contribution from VSG's performance.

V3G enjored a very encouragng start under Mitie's ownership. After taking
over a business which was trading at dlase 10 break-even, we are seeinga
faster improvement n margins than originaly planned at the initial i

stage. VSG‘!gmssmargnnmeasedfmmS%pf&MffOB%Mrns
first trading period under Mitie's ownership.

Technology-sokutions are increasingly contributing 1o the overall revenue
growth of the division and now account for 13% (FY 17/18. 12%) of the
revenue {excluding VSG), driven by growth in Fire B Security systems,
MiTec and vetting. MiTec is benefiting from the Detention & Escorting
Services contract. won by the Care & Custody division in Decernber 2017,
while vetting is moving into the corporate space on top of its strong,
position in aviation.

The division finished the year with good momentum following successful
cormract wins towards the end of FY 1&/15.

Outlook

Theowa'allsemrﬂymarketremfr and manned guarding
rermains competitive and highly commaditised. In this corext. Mitie's
ability to provide a broader range of services gives a competitive
advantage when bidding for and winning business, Retention is then
enhanced through application of technology. We wil continue to derive
benefrts from the V5G acquisition where the performance of major
contracts will continue to benefit from ongoing price renegotiations,
reducing revenue leakage, waking away from substandard

and re-aligning the cost base.
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Professional

Services

£m FY I8/ FY I8 Change. %
Revenue 1314 1312 02
Operating profit before

other items 5.4 56 ao
Operti bk

ather iterns, % 43 43 00 ppx
Order book 7Y 1449 (400)
Performm highlights

* Divisional revenue performance was impacted by the exit
from two loss-making international contracts and renewed
focus on internal projects to support Mitie key accounts

The Waste Management busimess retained two significant
contracts and won the first phase of a significant contract
with NHS tmprovement

Sustamability defivered a stable performance for the year

The International business focused on re-balancing its
portfolio towards higher-margin work

-

+

Operational performance

Whilst the Professional Services division showed a flat trading performance
year-on-year, it recorded a high-profile win with NHS Improvement for
Waste Managemerit and it repositioned several of the other operating
units to focus on driving overall Mitie performance by supporting key
accounts The benefits of these activities fall outside the division.

The Waste Management business retained two signiicant coritracts during
the year with a pharmaceuticals compary and the UK branch of a global
corsumer goods compary, both for a further two years. Contract wins
during FY 18/1% included Bidfood, a commercial real estate services
company and the first phase of a significant contract with NHS
improvement, won from the CCS Framework, which was mobiised
in October 2018,

The Sustainability business. ncluding Energy, had a slow start to the

year but gained momentum on the back of project work. The Water
business was fully integrated during the year into the Sustainability business,
which now encornpasses ali key utilities. enabling it 1o build a broader
proposition {or our customers.

The International business focused on re-balancing its portfolio towards
higher-margin work and, as a consequence, we proactively exited two
loss-malung international cortracts. At the same time, Mitie secured 2
facilitres management and property services contract with Ahlsell — a
hardware retailer - to manage and mamtain all its stores in Norway.
The order book dedined 40% as contract wins and renewals only partly
offset the delivery of comracts.

Financial performance

Professional Services, exciuding the International business, delivered
revenise growth in FY 18/19. However, the overall divisional performance
was impacted by the reduction in revenue as we exited loss-raking
contracts in the International butiness. Overall cevene for the division
was flat at £131.4m (FY 17/18: £131.2m). Waste grew strongly by 14%,
inchding the new NHS improvernent contract. Sustainabifity delivered

a stable performance for the year.

At the operating profit level, we benefited from exiting the loss-making
intemational contracts, good cost discpfine across the division and
re-balancing our activities to target higher-margin work. Profitabikty
was partly held back by a renewed focus on projects to support key
Mitie strategic accounts and investrments into Connected Workspace,
Operating profit before other items was £56m (FY 17/18: £5.6m).



Qutlook

Our Connected Workspace solutions are increasingly being focused

on monitoring the critical erwironments of our largest clients, where

we provide maintenance and engineering solutions. Given the close link
between the dient solutions required within our Engineering business,
and several elements of the Professional Services division, we are
embedding Connected Workspace, Occupier Services, International

and Sustainability under Engineering Services from April 2019. We see
this as an opportunity to enhance and improve our core engineening
offering by using technology 1o monitor critical assets, thereby allowing

us to deliver a proactive servce. We also see the opportunity to improve
the quality of information that customers receve to manage their faclkties
and their assets.

As part of these changes, Waste Management s mowing to Cleaning &
Ervironmental Services, anxd Risk Advisory Services s transferring into

Cleaning &

Environmental

Services

£m FY 18/1% FY 1748 Change, %
Revenue 404.4 3841 53
Operaung profit before

other iterns 175 196 (on
Operatng morgin before

other tems. % 43 5.1 (@8 ppt
Order bock §61.1 6563 10

Performance highlights

= The division delivered good reverwe growthin a
highly-competitive market enviromnment; however, profits
were negatively impacted by the dilutive effect of contracts
won in prior years

On 30 September 2018, we soid the Mitie Pest Control
business unit to Rentokil Initial plc and entered into a
preferred supplier partnership covering a range of services

.

Operational performance

On 30 September 2018, we sckd the Mrie Pest Control business unit
to Rentokil initial plc and entered into a preferred supplier partnership
covering a range of services, These services will be provided as part

of an integrated facilities management offering to Mitie's wide range of
customers. The transaction enables us to continue to provide specialst
services to our dients whilst focusing on our core competencdies.

Cleanng & Erwironmental Services (CES) defivered good revenue growth
from continuing operations in a highly-competitive markat ervironment.
where autsourong remaing a compelling option for dients, Margins stil,
remain low, However, the division was negatively impacted by historical
contracts with low margin. Offsetting this were cost savings arising from
various delayering exercises to remove managerial roles.

In addition to our core Cleaning business, there are two significant
stand-alone business units within the CES division. Our Landscape
business is a speciahst service where we enjoy a balanced mix of fixed

and pay-as-you-go work throughout the year: This ensures a broadly stable
performance with further upside during harsh winters. Mitie Healthcare
provides a multi-service offering looking after a broad portfolio of NHS
chients and has recently introduced a range of technology features to its
offer, including dynamic performance dashboards, electronic meal ordering
and the triafing of an intelligent automated portering system.

The drvision was successful in retaming a number of large cients as well
as winning new clients partly as a consequence of a much improved NPS
score, up 26 points year-on-year. The CES order book for contnung
operations was up 1% to £663.lm. We extended our services with
Epsom & St Helier University Hospital NHS Trust for deaning and with
‘Whitbread for landscaping. We also won a five-year landscaping contract
with NHYSouth Western Ambulance. Towards the end of FY 18/19, the
division was successful in securing an extension to its 10-year partnership
with St George's University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust until 2030,
which is worth £150m and covers a range of services induding cleaning.
patient catering and facilities helpdesk services; the extension wik also
indude waste management duties at one of the sites. At the same time,
we have also taken steps to reduce the margin drag of new contracts by
introducing tighter bidding discipline As a consequence. growth in the near
term wall be slower,
Finandial performance
CES revenues for continuing operations grew by 5.3% 1o £4044m
(FY 17/18: £384.1m) driven by the impact of prior year contract wins.
However, operating profit for continuing operations before other terms
was down 10.7% to £17.5m (FY 17/18; £19.6m) due to unfavourable
contract mix versus last year, only partly offset by savings from Project
Helix. Within the division, Healthcare grew strongly on the back of
the prior year wins, however, first-year mobiksation factors impacted
profitability; this has now been addressed. Landscapes defivered a
strong performance despite a particularty mild winter, with operating
profit protected by a well-balanced portfolio of work, which hedges
pay-as-you-go with fixed-price contracts.

Ouwtlook

QOver the next couple of years we expect steady growth n our Healthcare
and Landscapes businesses. Cleaning is not expected to grow as we work
on improving margins through disciplined bidding and re-balancing of the
contract base.
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Operating review continued

Care &
Custody

£m FY 1819 FY 17/18__ Change, %

Revenue 107.3 599 794

Operating profit before

other items 39 \9 1053

Operating margin befoce

other izems, % 346 32 04 ppt
Order book 596.6 4701 (10
Performance highlights

+ Excellent year foflowing the successful mobihsation and
cornmencement of operations for the Detention & Escorting
Services (D&E) Home Office contract and a strong delivery
from existing contracts

The division contlinues to expand its offering as it diversifies
into adjacent areas to complernent its core capabiities

Operational performance
The Care & division had an excellent year, having almaost

doubled in size on the back of the successful mobiisation and
commencement of operations for the sizeable D&E contract won in
Decamber 2017, In addition, the division benafitad from strong delivery
of existing contracts with police forces. custody support and Forensic
Medical Examiner (FME) services, The D&E contract. the largest ever
gontract for the division, reinforces our role as the largest suppiier of
immigration detention services to the UK Government.
k is also allowing us to expand and gain expertise in areas adiscent to
the core immigration detention and movement services. During the year,
we won an electronic tagging of offenders contract in Northern reland.
Thus opportunity i an entry point into electronic monitoring within the
criminal justice system in other parts of the UK, where we are able to
Mitie Security’s MiTec fadlity. Other wins included the
Nottinghamehire FME services contract
The order book dedined 119 10 £596.6m as the urminding of long-term
contracts was only partially offset by contract wins and renewals,

an announcement in November 2018 the Home Office

unexpectedly tlosed Campshield IRC, which was managed by Mitie.
The contract expired in early 2019,

Financial performance

Care & Custody's revenues grew by 79.1% to £1073m (FY 12/18: £599m)
fallowing the win and successful mobilisation of the D&E comtract and
good growth from existing contracts. Operating profit before other items
increased by 105.3% to £39m (FY 17/18: £1.9m) driven by performance of
the D&E contract and other contracts won in the prior year and includes
the expensing of a net £3.3m of maobilisation costs for the D&E contract.
Amounts related to these mobilisation activities were paid by the customer
and wil be released from deferred income over the term of the comract.

Outlook

As the division grows its core competencies and expands into adjacent
services, the pipeline has expanded to include large opportunities such as
the latest cycle of Prisoner Escort and Court Services contracts (PECS4)
These are fong-term cyclical opportunities with lengthy bidding lead times.
Our chiertts are UK Government departments which are increasingly
evalvating bids against surety of delivery. sustainability and guality of
outcomes, all of which play well 1o Care & Custody's proposition. In a
competrtve market place, Care & Custody « well posthioned to win
contracts because we are growing in scale, enjoy a solid reputation with
our public sector commissioners and clients, and continue to expand our
offering as we diversify into adjacent areas (such as custodial movernents)
to complement our core capabilities.
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Catering

£m FY I8H%  FY 17118 Change.%
Revenue 136.1 137.1 (0.7}
Operating profit before

other items 52 56 7.4}
et e

other iems, % 3.8 41 [@3pt
Order book 265 347 (23¢)

Performance highlights
« The division delivered broadly flat performance at the
revenue level and a decline at the operating profit level

* Growth in Gather & Gather was offset by weaker results
in exlernal events and venyes through Creativevents

* Gather & Gather's differentiated welbeing and sustainabiity-
focused offer continues to gain traction in the market

Oparational performance

Our Gather & Gather brand £ a ruche player in the catering sector

with 2 well-articufated and differentiated offer which continues to gain
traction. During FY 18/19, we saw further increases in the adoption of
our welbeing-led food concepts and consumer technology sohstions.
We also launched The Gathered Table — 2 unique collaboration between
culinary, tachnotogy and sustainability experts 10 héip fue! the continued
development of Gather & Gather's nnovative offer. The Gathered Table
delivers pop-ups, menu content, training and chient appearances to amplify
Gather & Gather's influence on the health, productrvrtyandengagemem
of the customers we serve every day.

Duning the year. Gather & Gather ako qualified onto the London
Uriversity Purchasing Consortium (LUPC), the largest higher education
purchasing consortium in the UK. As a consequence, we won 2 significant
£10m 3+2-year contract with Edinburgh College — our first on the
frarmework and our first in the further and higher education sector.

Thes provides an opportunity to transform the catering experience

for studerts and staff by bringing a conternporary approach to food,
service and consumer tachnology.



Gather & Gather also secured other significant new wins in the year,
inchuding Dropbox. We were also successful in securing the opportunity to
roll out a new café concept across some of Primark’s UK and lreland retail
estate, The division also won work for Yorkshire Building Soaety and a
major UK retailer as part of new or expanded integrated FM contracts.

The secured order book for the division dedined 23.6% to £26.5m.
The secured order book only includes fced contract work, wiile c96%
of the divisional revenue in FY 18/19 came from point-of-sale contracts
and variable work.

Financlal performance

In FY 18/19, the Catering division delivered broadly flat revenye at

L136.1m (FY 17/18: £137.1m) with improved momentum n H2 fargely
offsetting the contraction in Hi. The core Gather & Gather workplace
offering grew revenue and operating profit whilst the overall divisional
performance was held back by weaker results in external events and
verwes through Creativevents, Against an inflationary backdrop, gross
profit was stable as we partially mitigated food price inflation, reduced

the use of consumables and disposables — reducing the overall cost to

the business and improving our erwironmental footprint — and improved
labour management discipiine. Overall, operating profit before other items
dedined by 7.1% to £5.2m (FY 17/18; £5.6m) due to weaker performance
in Creativevents.

Cutlook

Whikt the catering sector remains under pressure from food price

and lzbour inflation, the market offers opportunity for a well-respected
brand such as Gather & Gather. Clients increasingly seek to enhance their
catering facilities as key contributors to their talent attraction and retention
strategies, by improving the customer experience, improving welbeing and
ncrezsing sustamabiity. Gather & Gather has continued 16 demonstrate its
abifity to antrapate and satisfy these demands as the industry changes.

In this context, we expect a good year from Catering in FY 19/20 on the
back of the annualisation of significant recent wins with 90% of revenue
already secured The Gather & Gather brand continues to offer a
distinctive quakty alternative to the large corporate caterers who
dommate the mass market.

Corporate overheads

Corporate overheads represent the costs of running the Group function
and include costs for the commerdial, finandial, marketing, legal and HR
teams. Corporate overheads have increased as we continue to nvest

in the foundations to deliver: "The Excepuonal, Every Day" leadership

in the Connected Workspace; and accelerated growth. We also
reinstated certain staff incentive schemes in FY |8/19 after suspending
them for two years during the early stages of the Mriie turnaround.

The main nvestments were into our commercial capability, upweghting
our marketing, and strengthening owr technology underpin, Corporate
overheads increased by 74% to £33.4m (FY 17/18: £31.im).

Public sector

Given the significant opportunities availzble in the public sector, we
have recently set up a new public sector centre of excellence. This team
will be responsible for assisting in any public sector work across Mitie
as well as owning the overall relationship with the UK Government.
During the year, we qualified as a supplier on Phase | of the Crown
Commercial Service (CCS) FM Marketplace Framework, which will
allow departments, as well as Phase [I. which wik allow us to bid for
defence facilities management as well as for security services and
technical security contracts. Qualification as a supplier on the CCS
Framework has added large opportunities to our pipeline. We have
established a new public sector sales team who will coordinate bids
frorm across the divisions Into these key publi sector accounts.

Discontinued operations

Below are the resutts of discontinued operations up to the date of disposal.

Pest Control

£m FY 1849 FY 17/18  Change, %
Revenue L9 223 nm
Operaung profit before

other items 24 24 nn
Operating margin befora

other items, % 20.2 117 85 ppt

On 30 September 2018, Mitie completed the sale of the entire issued
share capital of Mrtie Pest Control Limited to Rentokil Initial pic.

Mitie separatety entered into a preferred supplier partnership with
Rertokil Initial plc, covering a range of services {including pest services)
to be provided as part of integrated facilities management offerings to
Mitie's wide range of customers.

Pest Control reported revenues of £189m (FY 17/18: £22.3m) and
s operating profit before other items was £2.4m (FY 17/18: £2.6m).
Pest Control was previously part of the Cleaning & Environmental
Services division.

Social Housing

£m FY 18119 FY 1718 Change, %
Revenue 89.1 1508 nm
Operating profit before

cther tems 1.6 38 nm
Operating margin before

other items, % L8 25 (07 pp

In November 2018, the Group sold the Social Housing busness to
Mears Group plc. The Social Housing business was previously part

of the Property Management division, together with the roofing and
panting business units, which have been integrated into the Engineering
Services dmision.

The consideration comprsed an initial payment of £22.5m, which was
paid in cash at completion. No fair value was recognised on the further
comtingent consideration of up 1o £12.5m, payable in cash after two
years post completion which is subject to the adhievement of certain
performance milestones. The Group has retained liabilities for 2 number
of legacy contracts in the Social Housing business.

In FY 18/19 the Social Housing business reported revenues of £8%.lm
(FY 17/18: £150.8m) and operating profit before other items of £1.6m
(FY 17018: £3.8m).
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Finance review

Finance review

Whilst we have accomphshed a great deal during this second year of
our transformation. there remains more to do as we continue dur
journey towards a One Mitie way of delivering our products and
services. the centrafisation of our core support functions fast
year. the majority of the transactional activity for IT and Finance is now
being undertaken cffshore by global process exparts and wa have
introduced new systems across the business, including recruitment
platforms for temporary and permanent staff.

Our revenues and profits are growing, both at a headiine level, and
alwo on an organic basis exduding the impact of M&A. We have started
to focus our business through the acquisition of VSG by our Security
division and the sale of our Pest Cortrot and Social Housing businesses.

We have again made progress in reducing our leverage and
strengthening our balance sheet with further reductions in ofi-batance
sheet finance, improved supplier payment performance and proceeds
from our disposals programme. Going forward, we expect to comtinue
10 reduce leverage.

Fallowing the transfer of qur finance transactional pracessing to Genpact
(a business process outsourcing provider, operating out of Kokata, India)
in April 2018 we have now initiated a broader finance modernisation
programme, The inital Genpact move entailed a lift-and-shift approach
whwch caused issues in the ficst few months due to the multiplicity of
processes used across Mitie. These issues have now been largely
resolved and we have turned our attention 1o ongoing improvernent

in the function through our finance modernisation programme. This is
forused on finance process simplification and standardisation, cleansing
our master data and upgrading finance systems and tools across the
business with a view to paying our suppliers quicker. reducing our
processing costs through automation and further accelerating our
order-to-cash cycle.
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G

We are continuing to
simplify our business and
de-lever our balance sheet.

Paul Woolf
Chief Financial Officer

Reported financial performance
Reported revenue and reported operating profit from continuing
operations are set out below:

Lm FY 18/19 FY 12/i8  Change. %
Revenue 22214 20306 g4
Operating profit before other items 88.2 832 &0
Other items. (38.0) (821) nm
Operating profit 582 L m

revenue from continuing operations was £2.221.4m compared
with £2.030.6m in FY17/18. The Group reported an operating profit
before ather items from cortinuing operations of £88.2m (FY 17/18:
£83.2rm),

Reported balance sheet

£m FY 1819 FY 1708 Charge ém
Goodwill and intangitle assats 3445 3479 (34
Property, plant and equipment 29.0 335 (4.8)
‘Working capital balances .7 {198.2) (18.7)
Net debt 0407y  (1935) 528
Retirement benefit Sabikties 63.5) (S68) 70
Deferred tax 3.8 359 ©
Other et (kabiities)assets ©3) 71 7.4
Tatal net liabilities (12.4) (240) 6

The Group 5 reporting net liabilities at 31 March 2019 of £124m
(FY 17/18: £24,0m), with an improvement in net debt, offset by a
larger negative working capital balance and an increase in retirement
benefit liabilities.



New accounting standards

The Group adopted IFRS 15, '‘Revenue from Contracts with
Customers’ in FY 17/18, as previously described in the Annual
Report and Accounts 2018.

IFRS 9

IFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments’ became effective for the Group

starting | April 2018 and replaced the requirements of IAS 39

‘Finandal instruments: recognition and measurement’. The main changes
introduced by the new standard are new classification and measurement
requirements for certain financiat assets. a new Expected Credit Loss
{ECL) model for the impairment of financial assets, revisions to the
hedge accounting madel, and amendments to disclosures. The Group
elected, from | April 2018, 10 continue to apply the hedge accounting
guidance in |AS 39.

With respect to loss allowances for trade recenvables, IFRS 9 replaced
the ‘incurred joss' model in LAS 39 with an ECL model. The Group.,
from | April 2018, measures loss allowances for trade receivables and
accrued mcome at an amount equal to Wetime expected credt losses
using both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based
on the Group’s historical experience and forward-looking information.
The Group has determined that the transition 10 IFRS 9 resuited in an
additional loss allowance for trade receivables and accrued income as
at | April 2018 of £2.5m and gave rise 10 a tax credit of £04m. The
addmonal loss allowance has been applied as an adjustment to opening
retained earnings at | April 2018 and therefore, the prior year
comparative information is not restated.

Future accounting standards - IFRS 16

{FRS 16 "Leases’ became effective for the Group from | April 2019

and replaces the requirement of IAS 17 ‘Leases’ An asset representing
the Group's right as a lessee 10 use a leased item, and a liabikty for
future lease payments. will be recognised for all leases, subject to limited
exemptions for short-term leases and iow-value lease assets, The costs
of leases will be recogrsed n the consokdated income statement split
between deprecation of the lease asset and a finance charge on the
fease kiabilrty. This is similar to the accounting for finance leases under
LAS 17, but substantively different to the accounting for operating leases
(under which no lease asset or kease liability was recognsed, and rentals
payable were charged 1o the consolidated income statement on a
straight-line basis).

As a result of adopting the new rules, for the year ending 3i March
2020, the Group expects net profit before tax to increase by between
Lnil and £3m. Operating profit is expected to increase by between
£24m and £29m as the cperating lease rentals payabie which were
previously induded in operating prafit are exduded, with this increase
being offset by additional depreciation of between £22m and £24m as the
right-of-use assets are depreciated. In ackdition, operating cash flows are
expected to increase by between £24m and £29m as repayment of the
lease liabilities is redassified as cash used in financing activities and net
debt will increase by between £8)m and £86m.

Alternative Performance Measures (APM)

The Group presents its key financial analysis as the results of continuing
operatons before other items as the Directors beheve thisis most
useful for users of the financial statements in helping to provide a
balanced view of, and relevant information on, the Group's financial
performance. Accordingly, the Group separately reports the
impairment of goodwill, the cost of restructuring prograrmmes,
acquisition and disposal costs (induding the write-off and amortisation
of acquisition related intangible assets) 25 ‘ather temns. Read more on
pages 163 to 165.

Divisional breakdown of financial performance

Revenue, £m FY 18/1% FY 1718 Change, %
Engineering Services 905.7 8863 2.2
Security 536.5 4320 24.2
Professional Services 131.4 1312 02
Cleaning & Environmental Services 404.4 3841 53
Care & Custody 107.3 599 791
Catering 1361 137.1 {0.7)
Total 22204 20306 94

The Group's revenue increased in the year, from £2,030.6m to

£2,221 4m. This was principally due to a significant contract win in

Care & Custody, the acquisition of VSG in Security and good underlying
growth in our Engineering Services strategic accounts and in Security
and Cleaning. Organic revenue growth was 5.5%.

Operating profit befare other items, £m FY 18/1% FY 17/i8  Change %

Engineering Services 58.7 54.1 85
Security 30.7 275 e
Professional Services 5.6 56 414
Clearing & Environmental Services 17.5 196 {10.7)
Care & Custody 19 19 1053
Catering 52 56 7.0
Corporate centre @3.4) 6L 74
Total 88.2 832 6.0

Operating profit before other tems increased by 6.0% in the year from
£83.2m to £88.2m, reflecting good growth in strategic accounts and
projects in Engineering, the significant contract win in Care & Custody,
strong undertying growth in Securtty in addition to the impact of the
acquisition of VSG, partly offset by ongoing investment in customer
service and the reinstatement of staff incentives.

Other items

£m FY 18/1% FY 1718
Restructure <osts (15.1) “70)
Acquisttion and disposal related costs (8.7) (84)
Gain on bargain purchase of V5G as -
Pension scheme Section 75 debt (20.0) -
Impasrment of goodwll - @n
Other (3.0) “0
Total other items before tax (38.0) (821)
Tax credit on other items T4 100
Other items after tax (30.6) {711)

Disappointingly, other items before tax remain high at a charge of
£38.0m. albeit significantiy lower than last year (FY |7/18: £82.1m)
The rmain compaonents are restructure costs and a provision for the
Section 75 debt on the Plumbing & Mechanical Services (LK)
Industry Pension Scheme (the Plumbing Scheme). The tax credit on
these other items was £74m (FY 17/18: £10.0m).

Tax contribution

The Group manages both direct and indirect taxes to ensure that it
pays the appropriate amount of tax in each country whilst respecting
the applicable tax legislation, where appropriate utilising any legislative
reliefs available. The strategy is reviewed regularty and is endorsed by
the Board.
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Finance review continued

Mitie is a significant contributor of revenues to the UK Exchequer,
paying £529.3m in the year ended 3) March 2019 (FY Y218 £48).2m).
This comprised £534.3m (FY (7/18: £492.8m) of indirect taxes inchading
business rates, VAT and payroll taxes paid and collected less a £4.7m

(FY 17/18: £1).6m) refund of UK corporation tax, The tax refund was
due 1o the utilisation of losses resutting from the accounting adjustrnents
in earfier years' accourts. As Mitie's business is primardy based in the UK,
the effactive tax rate should track the UK statutory tax raze.

There was a tax charge of £&6.4m (FY 17/18: £1.im) on the profit before
1ax of £364m {FY 17/18: loss before tax £154m).

Discontinued operations

During the year, Mitie sold its Soaal Housing business to Mears Group pic,

with the sale completing on 30 Novemnber 2018. As a result, the business
is classified as a discontinued operation as at 31 March 2019. This
business formed part of the Property Management division, Following
thiis sale, the roofing and painting businesses of the former Property
Management division were integrated into the projects business of
Engineering Services.

In addition, Mitie disposed of its Pest Comrol business (previously
included in the Cleaning & Ervironmentai Services division) 10 Rentokil
Initial plc, with the sale completing on 30 September 2018. This is also
consequently classified as a discontinued operation as at 31 March 2019,

Discontinued operations contributed a profit after tax before other
tems of £3.0m (FY 1718: £5.6m). Other dems before tax were a charge
of £6.0m (FY 17/18: £15.8m) arxd inchucied a gain on dispasal of Pest
Control of £27.6m, a loss on disposal of the Sodal Housing business of
£11.7m and a £20.5m charge for various remediation and rectification
labikties associated with the Social Housing business. The tax credit on
other iterns was £3.9m (FY 17/18: £0.7m).

Dividends

The fult-year dividend is 4.0p per share (FY 17/18: 4.0p per share),
comprising an interim dividend of 1.33p per share and a final dividend
recormnmended by the Board of 2.67p per share.

Goodwill and intangible assets
Goodwill and intangible assets of £344.5m (FY |7/18: £3475m) were
fekd on the batance sheet at 31 March 2019, The small reduction can
be explained by a reduction in goodwill due to disposals of the Social
Housng and Pest Controf businesses during the year. largely offset by
an mcrease inimangitle assets from the recognition of a customer
intangble asset on the acquisition of VSG and additional
internally generated intangible assets from software development to
enhance customer experience.

Cash flow

The Group corntinued to strengthen its balance sheet during the year,
assisted by two business disposals. Unilisation of non-recourse invoice
discounting was reduced slightly during the year, while supplier payment
performarke was improved.

Overall operating cash inflow, before movernents in working capital
was £39.5m (FY 17/18: £67.2m). This includes defined benefit pension
contributions of £11.6m {FY 17/18: £47m). Cash penerated from
cperations during the year was £47.5m (FY 7/18: £79m used in
operations) induding a working capital inflow of £8.0m (FY 17/i8:
outflow of £75.1m). The working capital movement is explained in
more detail beiow.,
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After paying interest of £124m (FY 17/18: £13.5m) and receiving
corporation tax refunds of £4.7m (FY 1718 £i1.6m), net cash nflow
from operating activities was £39.8m (FY 17/18: autfllow of £3.8m),
Capital expenditure reduced by £).5m compared to the prior yearto
£23.3m (FY 17/18: £24 8rm). while the business generated £43.5m from
the proceeds of disposals net of acquisitions. Dividends of £14.4m were
paid in the year (FY 17/18: £4.8m).

Owverall this resulted in a reduction of the Group's net dett of £52.8m
(FY 17/18: £46.3m increase) to £140.7m (FY 17/18: £193.5my).

Working capital

Working caprtal movements resulted in an inflow for the year of £8.0m.
The complex process of ocutsourcing transactional processing activities
in Apri) 2018 caused trade and other receivable balances 1o increase.
resulting n 2 working capital outfiow of £340m in the first half, The
situation has now been addressed. Working capital reduced by £42.0m
in the second half of the year.

Whilst the Group has been focused on improving its working capital
cycle it has also considered its responsibilities to the supply chain by being
fair in respect of payment performance. Suppher payrient lerms were
reduced by eight days over the full year, with the improvernent taking
place skewed to the second hal. This was partially achieved by unilaterally
reducing payment terms for a number of our supplers mearung that they
have now reduced their need for supply chan finance. Consequently, the
use of the supply chain finance facility reduced by £25.Jm. The working
capital outflow associated with this reduction in payment terms was
offset by an ncrease in provisions of £25.5m. These prcmmns
predominantly relate to the now disposed Socal business.
Along with ather M&A related working capital balances, they are
expected to result in a cash cutflow of ¢. £40m cver the next two years.

The Group also marginally reduced its utiisation of non-recourse
customer invoice discounting by £3.1m to £73.2m (FY I7/1B: £76.3m).
The imvoice distounting faciiities are non-recourse and are theréfore
netted off against trade and other receivables within the balance sheet.

Net debe

Net debt is the aggragation of the Group's borrowings net of cash
in hand. The Group’'s net debt reduced by £52.8m to £140.7m as at

31 March 2019 {FY 17/18; £)93.5m). After a poor start to the year
following the outsaurcing af finarke transactional processing,

Q4 showed positive progress on our journey to reduce the volatility

of working capital. Average daily net debt in Q4 was £3Im lower than
the same period last year with average daily borrowings of £278m

(Q4 (7/18: £309). This impeaved posttion was largely achieved through
a combination of businass disposal proceeds and improved customer
cash coliection performance, at the same time as paying our suppliers
more quickly. The net debt position benefited from disposal proceeds,
net of acquisitions and acquisition and disposal related costs, of £40.9m,

Liquidity and covenants

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had £466.5m of comrmitted funding
arrangements (FY 17/18: £466.5m). The £275m multi-currency Revolving
Credit Facility (RCF) matures in July 2021. The £191.5m of US Private
Placement nates are spread over three maturities December 2019
£40.0rn; December 2022 £121.5m; and December 2024 £30.0m.

Mrtie's two key covenant ratios are teverage (ratio of et debt to
covenant EBITDA to be no more than 3 tinnes) and interest cover
{ratio of covenant EBITDA to net finance costs to be no less than
41imes). As at 31 March 2019, we were operating comfortably within
these ratios at 1.33x for leverage and 8.8x for interest cover.



The principal financial covenant ratios (leverage and interest cover)

far our committed funding arrangements are tested every six months.
Following an amendment agreed on 29 March 2045, all future covenant
calculations will be on an IFRS 15 basis. The covenants continue to
exclude the future impact of IFRS 16.

As is usual for corporate facilities, the definition of key metrics in Mitie's
finance agreements is somewhat different to its reported numbers and
this is outlined inthe table below. This tabie shows that Mitie remains
comfortably within its covenant requirements, In this instance, the prior
year comparatives are not provided, as while Mitie had adopted IFRS 15
in FY 1718, its covenart reporting at that tme remained on a pre-IFRS

15 basis, making comparison unhelpful. :
&m FY 18/19
Operating profit before other items
~ comminuing operations 882
— discontinued oparations 40
Total 1.2
Add: depreciation 8 amortisation 208
Henadline EBITDA 113.0
Deduct: covenant adjustments . .
Consolidated EBITDA {a) 105.9
Full-year effect of acquisitions & disposals (23)
Adjusted consolidated EBITDA ) 103.6
Net finance costs 138
Less: covenant adiustrnents on
Consolidated net finance costs (©) 121
Interest cover (ratio of (a) to ()
must exceed 4.0x) 8.8x
Net debt 1407
Impact of hedpe accounting & upfront fees (30}
Consolidated total net borrowings {d) 137.7
Leverage (ratio of (d) to (b} must
not exceed 3.0x) 1.33x

Mitie's intention is to consistently maintain adequate headroom
within its committed facilities. In addition to its committed funding,
the Group wtilises ancillary fadilities. including irvoice discounting of
£73.2m (FY 17/18: £76.3m). The Group’s trade creditors include
amounts due to UK suppliers which make use of supply chain finance
arranged by Mitie of £20.0m (FY 17/18: £45.1m).

Retirement benefit schemes

The net defined benefit pension hability at 31 March 2019 for the Mitie
Group scheme was £61.4m (FY 17/18: £54.8m). The increase in the
defidt is principally due to a 20bps decrease in the discount rate driven
by reductions in corporate bond rates since 3|1 March 2618, The latest
valuation of the Mitie Group scheme as at 31 March 2017, indicated an
actuarial deficit of £74.0m {31 March 2014: £6.0m), largely due to a fall in
discount rates since 2014. The Group has agreed a deficit recovery plan
with the Trustee for further payments totalling £64.8m in instalments.
unti! 31 March 2025.

The Group aiso makes contributions to customers’ defined benefit
pension schemes under Admitted Bedy arrangements as well as to other
arrangemenis in respect of certain employees who have transferred

to the Group under TUPE. As at 31 March 2019, Mitie's net defined
pension liability in respect of these schemes, which it is committed to
funding, amounted to £2.4m (FY 17/18: £20m),

In addition, the Group also participates in four industry multi-employer
defined benefit pension schemes, including the Plumbing Scheme.
These schemes are accounted for as defined comtribution schemes,
either because the assets and habilities cannot be apportioned among
employers or the amounts involved are not significant. Contributions te
these schemes for FY 19720 are expected to be approximately £0.rm,
The Group is exposed to Section 75 employer debts in respect of two
of these schemes. These liabilities crystallise when the Group ceases

to have any active employees in the schemes. In the last few months,
the Group recerved a Section 75 demand in respect of the Plumbing
Scheme for £20.0m. This has been provided for in full.

Paul Woolf
Chief Financial Officer
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Stakeholder engagement

Building constructive
relationships

Building constructive relationships
with our key stakeholders is
critical to our business. We are
focused on long-term success
and creating sustainable value

in the broadest sense.

Links to policies

Business areas considered to have the highest
risk of bribery and corruption are public
procurement, gifts and hospitality, overseas
operations and oversight of subcontractors.
The risk is managed by several policies and
training courses which are available to
ernpioyees through the process repository
(BMS) and our new HR online Learning Hub.

Tha policies indude:
* One code (code of conduct);
+ Ethical business practice policy;

*» Business expenses &
entertaining procedure;

* Modern slavery;
* Whistleblowing process; and

* Anti-bribery and
anti-corruption
e-learning module.
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Customers

Mitie works with private and public sector (the UK
Govertiment) clients. Through understanding our
customers’ needs we can offer value-added,

innavative and cost effeccive solutions and
bulld enduring retationships.

PO

Shareholders, banks,
noteholders and media

WVe proactively engage with sharchoiders, banks,
noteholders and journalists on an ongoing basis.

BQO®

Employees
Mitie currently employs 52,500 employees.

Our success is underpinned by the way
we {ead and engage with our people.

DOD

Communities
and environment

Qur employees touch the lives
of others every day.

@
Suppliers

We work closely with our suppliers
to ensure a responsible supply chain.




Our strategic pillars

@

Customer: build markec-leading positions in higher
growth segments and increase customer NP5

People: create a ‘Great Place to Work'
for our employees

Cost: strengthen our balance sheet and
maintain cost discipline to remain competitive

@

Technology: embed technology into the heart
of our offering

* Ongomg management of customer relationships

¢« Customer satisfaction;

* §% revenue growth from top accounts

by senior leadership; » finandal positon; in FY 18/19;
* Government s a regulator and often a customer * Reputation and brand; + Customer retention impreved 1o 64%
for Mitie, 50 engagement ensures Mitie can help * Performance and effidency; * 250 customers surveyed in the NPS
in shaping new polices, regulations and standards; « Quality and value for money; survey,
* INPS programme:; + Technology, research and nnovabion; * NP5 improved 22 poinisto +12: and
* Customer experience programmes; * Sustainability performance; *» Feedback from unsuccessiul contract bids
* Participation in industry forums and events; « Governance and transparency; is analysed to improve our win rates.
* Customer commumnications; * Vision and values:
* Website and social media platforms; and « Socal values; and
* Mestings and briefings. * People and cufture.
* Annual Report and Accourtts; » Finandal performance; * Bi-annual roadshows;
* Annwal General Meeting * Transformation and Project Helr; + Corporate govermance and Emvironment,
* Investor and News & Insights sections of the corporate + Governance and transparency; Soxial and Governance (ESG)-focused
website Mitie.com; * Sustainability performance; meatings with institutional investors;
* Results presentabions and post-results roadshows; * People and culture; * CEO and divisonal Managing
* Stock exxhange announcements and press releases; + Contracts, new products, Directnrsrepk{yguyehtemewsm
* Website and sociat media platforms: and technology. innovation. and anumb’erc;f'gru:!mons. o £1.
. i ; i ; . sonal i * Operating improved from £1.1m
Regular and ad hoc enquiries cal, meetings and imerviews. Reputatonalimpact. in FY 17/18 0 £502m in FY (8/19; and

Total dividend of 4.0p for FY 18/15.

HR core standards set the framework for
employes

engagement.
Onboarding and induction training and Learning Hub;

Annual employee engagement survey;
“You Said, We Dwd’ campapn;

Milet, internal communications and social media platforms;

Townhall meetings and annual roadshow by
Serixr :

management;
*‘Gnil Phil’ channel to engapge directly with the CEO:;

« Employee development;

« Talent pipeline and retention;
* Career opportunities;

« Drversity and indusion; and
« Remuneration and reward.

All injury frequency

deareased 13.5%:

Employee engagement increased to

45% from 33% in FY 17118;
Supporting women in STEM roles;

Mitie Exceptionals is a group of volunteers
across the Group who act as ambassadors
for our values and behavicurs; and

= Jennifer Duvakier, Non-Bxacutive Director,

+ ‘Back 10 the floor’ sessions for Group Leadership Team: has been designated to owersee Board
. ition and reward programmes; and engagement with the workforce,
= Annual indridual performance reviews.
+ Employee volunteering: » Future talent pipeiine; = Ready2Work
* The Mrje Foundation; * Lol operational impact: and * Employer engagement days;
* Mitie com and social media platforms; * Health, safety and * Think Differently programme;
* Local community events: and environmert perforrrance. + School, acadermy and college events:
= Eleciric fleet vision. * Reduction in fuel and energy
consumptron;
» Reduction in carbon emissions; and
» Focus on lazy sodial value areas where
we can make a real contribution.
* Suppler conferences and workshops; « Responsible procurement; = Mitie encourages suppliers to work
» Global suppier portal and notices 1o suppliers; ¢ Trust and ethics; collaboratively to ensure continual
+ Mie.com: « Prompt payment code: and |mmminwemﬁmmdw
* Annual Report and Accounts; and + Operational improvemert. deliver mutual benefit
+ The Mttie Foundation. * The trade creditor payment days

decreased from 58 days in FY 17/18
to 50 days in FY 1B/19: and

= We reduced the use of the supply
chain finance facility by £25m compared
w FY 17/18.
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Non-financial information statement

Non-financial
iInformation statement

‘We continually look for ways to make Mitie a responsible business and
we actively engage with our stakeholders to improve our impact. In FY
18/19, we comeussioned a comprehensive summary of our social value
activity and how Mitie aligns with all 17 of the United Nations Sustainable
Development Gaals. We also became the ficst major UK FM prowder

to launch an electric vehide fleet. We introduced a range of initiatrves to
further benefit our employees and made commitments in areas where
we can contribute real benefit to improve social value and environmental
mpact within the communities we work in.

In accordance with Sections 414CA and
414CB of the Companies Act 2006, which
outline requiremerits for non-financial
reporting, the table below is intended to
provide our stakeholders with the content
they need to understand our developmerit,
performance, position and the impact of
our activities with regards to specified
non-financial matters.

We use a variety of tools 1o track and measure our performance
against strategic objectives. Our business model encompasses the
non-financial value created for our stakeholders from our resources,
human capital, expertise and relationships. Through our business
mode! we deliver value for our employees, suppliers, communities,
shareholders and customers.

Reporting requirement Re-levart pal cies? Annual Repart page reference
Environmental Sustainability policy Stakeholder engagement pages 2640 27
matters Procurement policy Social value pages 29 1033
Emp[oyees One code: our code of conduct Chief Executive's strategic review pages |1 to 13
People palicy Stakeholder engagement pages 26 to 27
Inclusion policy Qur people pages 34 to 37
Health and safety policy Soclal value pages 29 1o 33
Ethical business practice policy
Sustainabikty policy
Quality policy
Social matters Sustainabifty policy Chief Executive's strategi review pages | to 13

Social value pages 29 to 33
Stakeholder engagement pages 26to 27

Human rights

One code: our code of conduct

' Ethical business practice policy

Social value pages 29 10 23

Anti-bribery
and anti-corruption

One code: our code of conduct
Ethical business practice policy
E-learning module available for employees

through the process repository {BMS)
2nd Learning Hub .

Social value pages 29 10 33
Our people pages 34 to 37
Stakeholder engagemenrt pages 26 to 27

Business model

Business mode! pages 08 to 09

Non-financial KPls

KPis pages 1410 15

Principal risks

Principal risks and uncertainties pages 38 to 46
Viabikty statement pages 47 to 48

Audit Committee report pages 62 to 67

The Board pages 59 ta 60

| Policies. ststements and codes are available at www.mitie.com

~
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Social value

Delivering
soclal value

People, products and services are integral to
the delivery of long-term sustainable solutions
both within Mitie and for our customers.

We have been reflecting on our sustainabikty performance over
the past decade, as well as looking forward to further reducing
our environmental impact and enhancing social valse activity

in the decade to come.

Key to this is our Sustainability Working Group and nternal
goverrance structure, which was realigned to bettar drive our strategy
and represent our diverse business in FY 16/17. The Sustainabikty
Working Group is headed by Jo Davis, Group HR Director and
executive sponsor for Sustainabikty. Two years on, the group now
includes a cross-functional cohort of subject matter experts, who
specilise n a wide range of areas, including environmental smpact,
supply chain and people management.

In FY 19720 the remnt for the Sustainability Working Group will

be broadened to encompass the Group's social value agenda.

The Sustainability Working Group will report directly 1o the Board
10 ensure that Mitie's social value and sustainability commitments
for 2030 have the appropriate resource and fogus,

Social value in action

As a responsible corporate citizen caring for both people and planet,
we commissioned a comprehensive summary of our social value activity
and how Mitie aligns with all 17 of the Urnited Nations (UN) Sustainable
Development Goals (SDGs).

InFY 19/20 we will set our 2030 targets and focus on some key themes
where we feel Mitie can contribute real benefit 1o improve social value
and erwironmental impact within the communities it works in.

Senior members of the Executive
Leadership Team have individual
responsibility in five significant areas:

I Promoting skills
* and employment;

2 Supporting the growth of
* responsible regional businesses;

Creating healthier, safer and
* more rasilient communities;

4 Protecting and improving
* our environment; and

Promoting
* social innovation.

By FY 19/20, we pledge to...

Increase apprenticeships by over

100

Reduce our emissions intensity by

35+

(from FY 09/10 base)

Increase the number of women
entering STEM roles by

20+

People through our
Ready2VWork programme

450

Mitie's spend under our supplier
management framework to be

20

Electric vehicles within our small
vans and car fleet should be at least

20

Become a Living Wage Foundation
Recognised Service Provider

Remove all consumer single use plastic
from our Gather & Gather business

Launch ‘Mitie Girls Can’, a female-only
technical apprenticeship programmme

to assist with encouraging more women
into STEM roles
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Social value continued

Promoting skills
+ and employment

How we align to 5DGs: Aligning to our strategic pillars:

Apprenticeships

We paid £4.7m into the Apprenticeship Levy scheme inFY (8/19

and currently have 660 apprentices working across our partfolio of
contracts. They are engaged on a range of techrical apprenticeshups

in engineering and catering. as well as professional apprenticeships in IT,
HR and management development. All Mitie apprentices benefit from
permanent employment contracts and are fully embedded n business
activities to maximise learning

Learning Hub
Our Cloud-based Learning Hub is an online portai through which

emplayaes can access online development materal relevant to their role,

mandatory training, induction, a weafth of seif-selected development
material, as well as health and wellbeing modules. it means that al our
people have access 10 qualiy education at a time and place that suits
them.

Springboard

Gather & Gather Managing Director, Alfister Richards, sits on the board
of Springboard UK, 2 subsidiary of the Springboard Charity, which seeks
to refieve poverty and unemployment by developing the poiential of
disadvantaged young people. At our Springboard Takeaver Days we gve
cookery demonstrations and talks about the benefits of working in the
hospitality industry, we also mentor those showing particular promise.

70

of candidates receive a job offer
{following Ready2Work programme

Mitie Foundation

The Miie Foundation has worked on a number of inttiatives during
FY 18119, designed 1o create work experience opportunities to those
wrth barriers to employment.

The Ready2Wark programme consists of a pre-placement week,
followed by seven weeks' work experience. The programme provides
valuable work expenence to the long-term unemployed. On average,
over 70% of candidates receive a job offer at the end. In the past year
our six Ready2Work programmes helped around 60 long-term
unemployed pecple into work

We also supported |12 employer engagement days; these workshops
benefited around 360 disadvantaged people with low seif-confidence,
a disabikty, refugee status, 3 criminal record or mental health issues.
As a rule, these events are attended on average by 16 emplayers and
30 candidates, who face a Dragon's Den/Apprentice-style challenge.

Qur Think Differently’ prograrmme was developed to support
candidates with learning disabilties/neurodiversity and those who have
experienced mental iiness, In FY 18/19 we held six disability awareness
workshops which resulted in 24 candidates being offered four weeks'
work placements with Mitie, our clients or supphiers
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Supporting the growth of
« responsible regional businesses

How we align to SDGs: Aligning to our strategic pillars:

LB

We understand our business irmpacts the planet and its finite resources.
Improving our efficiency is therefore essential to creating a more
sustainable business,

Our transformation strategy was designed 1o improve efficiency, with
an associated reduction in resources, through better technology and
innavation, and smiarter processes. ln FY 18/19 we achieved large paper
savings as we digitised records. The saving continues to increase due

to our investment in [T,

The move 10 regional office hubs and improving our pecple’s ability
to work remotely also support waste reduction. Our use of Skype
for Business and Microsoft Teams has helped improve processes
and reduce business travel and associated emissions,

58.1%

reduction in total waste
generation since FY 09/10
(Mitie estate)

Reduting supply chain impact

It is vital to understand our supply chain impact in order to ensure

a responsible supply thain, In FY 1819 we undertook a resource use
assessment by supplier category and spend. W wall continue o work
to ensure all supphiers adhere to our Code of Conduct. including our
Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking statement. We also vet all
supphers to ensure that our Safety and Sustainability objectives and
our vetting standards are met.

120 suppliers were invited 1o take part in our sodial auditing exercise
int FY 18/19. The programme included collaborating with other

- organisations, training sorme of our preferred suppliers, and writing

a joint case study with the Home Office to demonstrate best practce.

We will cominue to work with preferred suppliers to measure impacts
and understand our Scope 3 (indirect) carbon emissions.

Some achievements on our sustainability journey...
* We completed a Consumer Sngle Use Plastic (CSUP) plan and
will continue 1o work to eliminate our plastic footprint,

Gather & Gather was one of the first major contract caterers in the
UK to announce the removal of plastic straws, in May 2018, we signed
up 10 #thelaststraw campaign and banned single-use plastic straws in
all 276 cutlets. We have eliminated plastic water bottles at our Shard
offices and continue to run ‘keep cup’ promotions. as well as providing
cerarnic cups and plates and metal cutiery.

* Where applicable, our Government contracts support the 25-year
environment plan targes of eliminating all CSUP on their estate by
2020. Care & Custody completed a CSUP elimination plan and has
stopped procurernert of plastic products which couid be easily
eliminated or substituted with non-plastic materiaks,

‘We achieved Gold Medal recognition from Ecovadis, putting our
organisation in the top 5% of those evaluated.

Gather & Gather has retained the maximum three-star award from
the Sustainable Restaurart Assodation in recogniion of achievements
in Society, Environmentt and Sourcing,



Creating healthier, safer
« and more resilient communities

How we align to SDGs: Aligning to our strategic pillors:

W
Wellbeing

Mitie's people are our strength, which is why wellbeing is a vital
component of our emplayee value proposition. In FY 18/19, we launched
a new wellbeing working group to utilise the expertise of our in-house
wellbeing and occupational health specialists.

As part of the annual Mental Health Awareness Week, in May 2018
we focused on stress in the workplace and how best to deal with it.
We have also conducted awareness initiatives on workplace
mindfulness and psychological wellbeing, nutrition and physical activity.
Thirteen mental health first aid workshops were also held across the
UK. As part of our learning and development transformation, we are
in the process of launching e-learning packages on wellbeing and career
development to ensure our people are equipped with the knowledge
and tools to support their luture ambitions.

Through Gather & Gather, we support Public Heafth England's

nutrition initiatives, including childhood obesity and calorie, sugar and salt
reduction programmes. We also back Government recommendations
that free sugars should make up no more than 5% of energy iIntake each
day. and limiting daily sakt intake to no more than 6g. We strive to assist
guests in achieving these heatthy targets through recipe reformulation,
product sourcing and menu development.

Gather & Gather also runs the Live Well scheme, designed to help

"our customers employees and our colleagues make informed food
choices to support wellbemng. Using specialised Saffron software,
detaled nutritional labels can be produced for each recipe, Live
Well-branded leaflets, cards and posters on topics such as portion
control, snacking and eating five-a-day ensure people are updated
with refevant nutrition information.

Protecting and improving
e OUr environment

How we olign to SDGs: Aligning to our strategic pillars:

-
BE
Reducing carbon emissions

{n 2010, we committed to reducing our carbon irtensity by 35% by 2020.
We are proud 1o have achieved this target a year early. We did so by
rationalising our estate, reducing business travel and building occupancy
supported by remote working technology, and improving fleet efficiency.

‘We cortinue to procure [00% renewable energy and are working
towards the implernentation of 150 50001 Energy Management Systern.
In FY 18/19 the Carbon Trust scored Mitie 8% for carbon management,
the highest mark within the UK FM sector.

Mitie also completad a climate change risk assessment based on
guidance from Task Force on Climate-related Finandal Disdlosures
(TCFD). We are working to establish future carbon reduction plans
and objectives, This includes setting a science-based target for carbon
reduction and working with key supply partners on innavations

and reduction technology.
0,
3 7 %

52

reduction in energy consumption  reduction in emissions intensity
across Mitie estate since FY 09/10  since FY 09/10
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Social value continued

Managing fleet impact

13.9% 35+

reduction in fuel reduction in fuel
consumpnion since consumption intensity
FY 09/10 since FY 09/10

Mitie’s vehicle operations account for over 90% of our total carbon
emissions. Through our fleet committee’s low carbon fleet strategy
we have reduced our total emissions foolprint year-on-year.

Low carbon solutions

In FY 18419, we signed up to the Clean Van Commitment and were
accredited as a Go Uhra Low company. Following successful trials
of hydrogen and electric vehicles, we committed to 20% of our
small vans and cars being fully electric by 2020.

Sometimes an EV s not the best commercial or operational

decision. in which case we will source the most efficient diesel vehicle.
Through our great supplier relationships we are kept informed of market
progress, meaning we can {ake advantage of new technology when it
betomes available. An example of this is the new model of the Vauxhail
Vivaro, which brings 15% CO; and fuel savings over the previous model.
Over a seven-year period, the Vivaro's efficiency has improved by 26%,
creating significant environmental and financial savings.

Restricting vehicle selection

Mitie vehicles typicalty operate on a rolling four-year contract

hire agreement from our strategic fleet partner, Lex Autolease.

By ing fleet management, Mitie aims to take advantage

of the most effident technology when it becomes available. All of
our non-commercal vehicies are restricted by a self-imposed vehicles
emissions cap of 130g/km CO,. In 2018, our commercial vehicle models
were on average 10.5% more efficient in terms of carbon emissions
compared ta 2014, and the phasing cut process continues ta yiek
carbon and fuel savings. Our Vauxhall Astra estate modelks generate
10% less amissions, and by changing Vauxhall Vivaro vans from 2.0L
to 1.6L engines, plus Adbiue, stop/start technology to cut iding.

we have restricted carbon emissions by 11% ang NOx ernissions

by 72% on average, ensuring compliance with ELUROE emission
standards and significantly reducing fuel costs,
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Telematics

All pur commercial vehicles are fitted with telematics. Non-conformance
10 our driver expectations, such as speeding, idling or substandard
driving, s escalated accordingly. During 2049 we will continue 10 work

on better telematic information and data for faster real-time reporting,

Permit to Drive

We launched Permit to Drive in August 2018 as part of our
commitment to road safety, driver wellbeing and erwironrmenta!
protection Qur arnual e-learing awareness training and assessment
scheme has seen 3,505 drvers complete Permit to Drive so far.

We bekeve our driver awareness tampaign and fleet sk reduction
plan will bring down the number of road traffic indidents and improve
fuel efficiency. The combined impact of our measures, induding
technology, has seen a 13% reduction in vehidle accidents from

the previous year.

Mitie electric vehicle project

In the face of rising fuel costs, stricter emissions targets and a need

to address cimate change, flaet electrification marks a dramatic step
towards reducing the financial and environmental cost of dong business.
In December 2018, Mitie became the first majar UK FM pravider to
launch an electric vehicie (EV) fleet. By 2020, 20% (717) of aur compact
vans and cars wil be fully electric.

With a total fleet of 5,107 vehicles, Mrie's diesel cars, vans and trucks are
a familiar sight on UK roads. Due to significant developments in battery
technology and driving range, electric vehicles represent an exciting and
viable alternative to traditional cars and vans.

Mitie has ordered vefucles with a long range and fast charging capabifities.
The Volkswagen e-Goif, Hyundai Kona, Renault Zoe and Kia e-Niro wil
win the Mitie fleet m coming months, alongside fully electsic vans lke

the Nissan eNV-200,

Charging infrastructure

Mitie is investing in appropriate charging infrastructure to ensure
operational success of our electric vehicles. We are partnenng with
a renowned charging supplier to install over 800 charging points
across the Mitie estate and at employee homes. We will also build
on relationships with clients who have EVs in their fleet to offer
Mitie colleagues the apportunity to use their charging sites.

We ook forward to supporting current and future customers

who share our passion for innovative and sustainable mobility,

Key benefits

Electric vehicles produce no CO;» when they are being driven.
This is good for the planet and pood for the podket — electric
wehides attract a fraction of the company car tax of their fossit
fuel counterparts, Electric vehicles are also less expensive to run
due to significantly reduced fuel costs, which means we can keep
operational costs to a minimum,

Training and telematics

Mitie has deveioped a suite of training courses for drivers of its electric
vehicles to ensure that they are used safely and with maximum efficiency.
By partnering with the manufacturer, we can guarantee training is
relevant to the velwcle model at hand.

Tapping into clean water

Gather & Gather's supplier is Lifewater, a British brand that partners
with the charity Drop4Drop 16 fund dean water projects around the
globe. So far 14 pumps and wells have been built in needy communities
across India and Africa thanks to UfeWater purchases at Gather &
Gather. The mast recent was in the village of Bejiman, Mzimba Distnict,
Malawi. Water sources funded through Gather & Gather currerly
benehit over 18,000 people and all feature a plaque bearing our catering
arm’s distinctive logo.



Promoting social
« innovation

How we align to SDGs: Alfigning to our strategic piltars:
Supporting women

The Mitie Foundation has supported the build of a mini-retail park
inside HMP Foston Hall, a women's prison in Derbyshire. Mitie
employees have worked in partnership with female prisoners, teaching
the skilis of landscaping. groundworks. building, electrical, solar panels,
rainwater harvesting and work ethics. When the park is complete,
female priscners will be trained to run their own micro-retail business,

supporting them with new skills and experience to build upon on release.

Partnership with Well Grounded

Gather & Gather has been working with social enterprise Well
Grounded to help a broad spectrum of young Londoners into work

as baristas. in FY 17/18, this induded a cahort of nine trainees, who
attended a full-time, four-week course at Well Grounded's East London
acaderny. Upon training completion, they completed four weeks' work
experience with Gather 8& Gather and successfully took up positions

as baristas post graduation.

Mitie continues to work with Well Grounded 10 assist those who
have struggled to find employment. The second cohort of 10 Weil
Grounded baristas began trairing in FY 18/19.

Volunteering days
InFY 18/19, 151 Mitie colleagues volunteered to assist in a range
of education and community events.

We coordinated 4| careers and World of Work days held in schools
and colleges. Mitie colleagues volunteer to assist, providing posttive
business role models and giving students the skills and knowledge to
raise their aspirations and broaden their career horizons. In addition to
this, Mrtie Landscapes teams supported the annual Marine Conservation
Society Great British Beach Clean, volunteering to remove litter and
plastic from the UK shoreline, and working with Keep Britain Tidy.

Mitie volunteers attended Saturday morning ktter picks to remove
rubbish from the countryside.
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Our people

Our promise
to our people

Mitie's people are our strength. As a major
UK employer with 52,500 colleagues, we
take our responsibility towards our pecple
seriously. Improving our Employee Value
Proposition has been a key focus in FY 18/19
as we look to consolidate our position as
one of the UK's most dynamic, forward-
thinking and sustainable FM companies.

We have been busy developing a range
of inftiatives to make Mitie a ‘Great Place
to Work' and an employer of choice.

Upload survey

Listening to our people 1s as important as listening (o our customers.
We launched the Upload survey in Aprii 2018 to ask our people
how they feei about working at Mitie, and what improvements could
be rmade. This was followed by the "You Said, We Did' campaign

to demonstrate actions undertaken in response to feedback.

There were five key priority areas for improvement

* Reward and recognition;

+ Enabling infrastructure;

» Senior leadership;

« Employee brand; and

* Autonomy and ermpowerment

Our 2018 Upload survey proved a vital tool in benchmarking employee
engagernent. We relaunched the survey in March 2019 to measure
progress. Following our improvements and our "Your $aid, We Did*
campaign, we have seen employee engagement rise by 12%. In
addition 10 overall engagemnent increasing we have seen perceptions
of \eader ship improve by +17% and employee brand improve oy +12%,

Although we have made significant progress, the results show
that there are still areas where we can improve. The results will
be foliowed by ancther You Said. We Did’ campaign in 2019.
‘We plan to continue 10 measure engagement annually.

28% 45% +|2x

Upload Engagement ' Improvement in
response rate score engagement score
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‘You Sald, We Did' campaign

Listening to our peopie led to the introduction of the ollowing initiatives
in 2018:

Mitie Stars

The Mitie Stars scheme is owr way to reward and recognise those

who have gone above and beyond for our customers and colleagues

By engaging and thanking our people, we are helping to make Miie

a great place to work. Qur colleagues up and down the country

proudly display their badges on thew fanyards,

Feel Good Fridays

Feel Good Fridays is a new recognition scheme that gives Mitie people
the opportunity 1o thank and recognise colleagues for delivering ‘the
exceptional, every day. Normmations are made via MiNet and thank yous
are published online each Friday.

Long-service awards

‘We launched the long-service award scheme to cefebrate and mark
one, five, 10, 20, 30, 40 and 50 year service milestones with Mitie,

Enhanced maternity policy

in October 2018, we intraduced an anhanced maternity package for all
eligivle salaried employees, with an additional ‘return 1o wark banus’
to encourage mothers back after maternity leave. it demonstrates

our commitment 1o gender equality, our efforts 1o raise the number
of women in the workforce and our intention to become an employer
of choice for women in FM. The package is detailed below.

« {0 weeks pay at full pay inchusive of Statutory Maternity Pay (SMP) ~
increasing from the previous allowance of statutory payments only
(six weeks at 90% of average earnings).

* A further 29 weeks at the applicable SMP cate; and

+ Areturn to work bonus’ equivalent 10 two weeks' full pay.

‘We are also introducing enhanced adoption pay arrangements for
thaose taking adoption leave. An adjustrment to paterity provision
is due to be reviewed.

IT improvements

We have invested £1.5m i new laptops for our people. replaced

a significant number of mobile phones, and rofled out a company-wide
upgrade to Windows 10. This has enhanced our cyber security as well
as increased connectivity and coflaboration.

The Mitie Roadshow

Mitie's Executive Leadership Tearn held nine Roadshows across five
locations in the UK, engaging over 2000 managers to update an our
transformation journey and listen to our people’s views.

Back to the floor

To increase visibiity of cur semor leadership tearn, we have refreshed
the popular "back 1o the floor” initative. This is an opportunity for
members of the Group Leadersivp Team {GLT) to get to grps with
what our front-line people experience every day. Each GLT member
is requirad to complete twa back to the floor wsits each year. Besides
assisting with the work, they provide our colleagues with suppart,
listening events, and recognise and celebrate teams delivening

The Exceptional. Every Day.

These initiatives represertt a huge step forward as we seek to engage,
Teward, retoghise and retain our people.



Vision and values

Embedding our values into our DNA is enabhing a successful
cuhtural transformation.

During 2018, we articulated a new set of behaviours that

bring our values 10 life with help from our Mrie Exceptionals,

a group of values champions from every corner of our business.
They were nominated because they five’ our new vision so we
asked thern to help us articutate how you deliver our new vision
of The Exceptional, Every Day, every day.

These behaviours now form the basis of all our people policies
and processes, from recruitment and onboarding. through 1o
performance reviews. The Upload survey 2019 shows that §9%
of our respondents have a good understanding of our values.

Gender pay gap report

Mite Group is required 1o publish data on two legal entities,

Mitre Limited and Mitie Property Services (UK) Limited, compared
to the |5 legal entities reported in 2017,

As at 5 April 2018, Mitie Group had a mean average gender pay gap of
13.8%, which was lower than the 16.0% gap reported as at 5 April 2017,
The mean bonus gap was 47.3%, which was considerably lower than the
71.0% reported in 2017

We have made a number of significant changes to reduce the gap.
which include introducing a new peaple system to enable better
gender and job level reporting, enhancing our maternity pay offering
and setting the strategic objective to increase the number of women

emtering science, technology, engineering and mathematics (STEM) roles.

While our gap has improved, we still have work to do in FY 19720,

$2.2% $23.7%

pay gap bonus gap

Since June 2017, we have welcomed four women to our Board of
Directors (women: 4; men: 4). Women account for 11% of our
Executive Leadership Team {(woman: |; men: 8) and 24% of our
Group Leadership Team (women 18: men: 57) as at 31 March 2019,
Across Mitie Group female ermployees account for €.32% of our
workforce (women: 16.800; mer: 35,700).

We are One Mitie

We are buitt on integrity and trust

We go the extra mile

Our diversity makes us stronger

Our customer’s business, is our business

*

Living Wage Foundation

We warntt our people to feel valued and engaged and recognise

that wages play an important part in this. Our goal i§ 10 become a
Recognised Service Provider with the Living Wage Foundation by 2020,
and we are already paying employees working n Mitie offices the real
Living Wage.

Diversity and inclusion

At Mitie, we are very proud of our rich and diverse cutture and
backgrounds - it creates ideas and insights. We believe everyone
should have opportunities to progress, whether that is through warking
with amazing customers or individual learning and development.

This year, we were immensety proud to be recognised as |7* on the
inclusive Top 50 UK Employers kst.

Our employee networks help support our agenda by alowing
members to discuss issues affecting them with key dedision makers.
assist in formulating new and reviewing existing policies and procedures,
provide a safe space for members to raise their concerns ina
confidential environment, and provide an opportunity for members

to update each other on local and nationaf policy and developments.
Each network is sporisored by a member of the Executrve Leadership
Team who 15 3 role mode! for dversity and inclusion and champions

the agenda across the Group.
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Our people continued

Diversity networks
Mitie's employee diversity networks are designed to support and
champion the following minority groups:

Enable network, disability awareness and suppart - sponsored by
Simon Venn, Chief Government & Strategy Officer,

Engender network, gender equality ~ sponsored by Carlo Allon,
Managing Director. Engineering Services.

Generations network, age awarenass — sponsored by Peter Dickmson,
General Counsel & Company Secretary.

Kalsidoscope network, ethnic minorities, particularty BAME
(Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic) ~ sporsored by Matthew Thampson,
Managing Director, Cleaning & Environmental Services.

Proud To Be network, LGBTQ awareness — sponsored by
Aliister Richards, Managing Director. Gather & Gather.

A new start for our new starters

First impressions last, and in FY 18/19 we overhauled the onboarding
process. The purpose is not only to provide an exciting introduction
to their new role ar Mitie, but o highlight the opportunitius open to
colleagues in the UK’s leading FM organisation. For the first time. we
have a ‘One Mitie’ approach to induction, providing clear and easity
accessible information on our company structure, what we do, our
values, leadership, benefits, tools and systems, Al new starters are
required to complete a series of learning modules via our e-learming
platform, the Learning Hub,

Temporary resourcing

Every year, Mitie engages with a significant number of suppliecs to find
people required on a temporary basis. The opportunity to reduce cost
and complexity was diear, and to this end in October 2018 we launched
a temporary resourcing team in colaboration with our recrutment
partner, Retinue. Working together, both teams manage the recruitment
of temporary staff across Mitie, The benefits are dear and numerous:

= Simple and fast process via a new platform = it takes
52 seconds 1o raise a job, 64 seconds to book a full-compiant
candidate and I8 seconds o approve a timesheet;

* Mobile app to use on-the-go, providing guick access to manage
requests and approve timesheets;

* Ensures all suppliers are compliant with right to work and
pre-employment screening checks, providing a clear audst trail
for each worker;

+ Consolidated invoicing reduces the time spent on administration,
taking us from 37,000 invoices to one per week per business unit, and

* Reduced costs and consistency of terms,

Permanent resourcing

The next step in our HR transformation is our permanent resourcing
solution, the Talent Hub. launched in early 2019. We are creating an
industry-leading talent and resourcing function 1o attract, recruit,
develop and retain the best people at all levels.

‘We will use the best technology in the market to mine new talent and
fiit opporunities quickly. Our new Tafent Hub platform alse allows us to
grow our employer brand and raise awareness of internal career paths,

Apprenticeships

As 3 major UK employer, Mitie provides a wealth of apprenticeships
taking an ‘apprentice first’ approach to training, We paid £4.7m into
the Apprenticeship Levy scheme in FY 18/19.

660 apprentices are working across our portfolio of contracts.

Our apprenticeship strategy continues to evolve, and we are partnering
with a number of specialist providers to ensure we delver learning that
meets the needs of the individual as well as the business, We have
ambitious plans to increase apprenticestups by over 100% by 2020.

We recognise the Government's target of 2.3% apprentices across

the workforce. a target we are set to exceed.
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Learning Hub

At the core of our Learning and Development transforrnation
is our Learning Hub, an online portal through which employees
can access online development material relevant to their role,
mandatory material, our induction, a weatth of self-selected
development materiai, as well as health and wellbeing modules.
The Learning Hub is Cloud-based and can be accessed on any
device connectad to the intarnet, aliowing cofleagues 1o access
courses and content at a time and place that suits them. in the
five months since launch in October 2018, Mitie colleagues
completed 40,000 Learning Hub courses. There are 2,500
instructor-ed courses as well as 900 Learning Mub activities
available, which range from informative documents and
infographics 1o eght-hour seminars,

40,000 2,500

Learning Hub instructor-led
courses completed  courses

900

Learning Hub
activities avallable

Sales Academy

lanuary 2019 marked the beginning of an exciting new era for Mitie’s
Sales community: the launch of the Mitie Sales Academy. The first
cohort of 12 colleagues began a year-long apprenticeship that cuiminates
in Level Four sales certification from the Association of Professional Sales
{APS). Apprenticeship Levy funding has enabled us to create our first
professional Acaderny which creates an Academy blueprint for ather
professional apprenticeship programmes to be launched in 2013,

LiveSafe

We are constantly striving to develop a zero-harm workplace.
Coordinated by Mrtie's Quality, Health, Safety and Environment (QHSE)
team, our LiveSafe programime launched in December 2018 in order to
constantly improve Quality and HSE performance across the business.
LiveSafe i underpinned by a set of principies and rules that will help us
keep ourselves, our cofleagues and those affected Dy our operations safe.
Extensive supporting material is available on the designated LiveSafe
Intranel page, and a series of workshops has been rolled out across

the country.



People Hub

Launched in October 2018, the People Hyb s a
one-stop-shop for all things related to the employee lifecydle.
It provides colleagues with 24/7 access to ther personal
employee profiles, allowing them to manage everything from
viewng payslips, to requesting and approving leave requests.
The People Hub 15 paperless and all new employees are
onboarded electronically with DocuSign. For the first

time at Mitie, our organisational hierarchies are visible.

24/7

Pecple Hub provides colleagues with
24/7 access to their personal profite

G

Our promise to our people
is to create a place where
they can thrive and be their
best every day.

Jo Davis,
Group HR Director
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Awards

Mitie's far-reaching efiorts to improve our employee value
proposition have not gone unnoticed and we were the
only FM provider to be recognised by two prestigious
awarding bodies:

+ 17th place on the Inclusive Top 50 UK Employers list,
the definitive round-up of UK organisations promoting
diversity and inclusion across disability, gender, age.
LGET and race.

» Certified a 2019 Top Employer by the Top Employer
Institute Certification Programme, The award is made
to employers who lead the way in forward-thinking,
people-first HR practices.  ~

Governance

Financial statements

Employee involvement in Company performance

Mrtie encourages the involvement of employees in the Compary's
performance through the annual bonus scheme and various share
schemes. During the year, invitations to join the Company's Save As
You Earn share option plan were distributed to all eligible employees.
Employees can also particpate in a Share Incentive Plan.

Engaging with our people

As part of our ongoing commitment to improving employee
engagement, we have implemented a new employee communication
channel strategy which includes additional channels promoting direct
engagement between managers and their teams and encouraging regular
employee feedback. These indude the monthty Mitie Download, our
tearn briefing document for managers, and weekly Recap news email.
These are supported by digital engagement channels including Yammer.

Owr aim is to ensure our employees are fully aware of and feel
supported through our transformation jourmey. We provide regular
updates on financial and economic factors affecting our company’s
performance, and the important role each employee plays in Mrie's
future success. Qur spedific focus is on our front-line workforce,
and we will be implementing several new digital channels as we
continue to improve how we engage with our people.
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Effective risk
management

Our risk management approach

Our approach o ngk managemert is Qur risk management framework
regutarly reviewed by the Board and

Executive Leadership Team and continues Top down

to evohve in ine with our business structure Strategic risk management

and risk profile. We recognise that to have

an effective risk management framework, *» Review sxternal environment

we need to develop appropriate risk ‘R

management culture, controls and supporting dwwmﬁmumt

processes, Our ‘One Mitie' Vision and Values . . Board/Audit
and Enerprise Risk Managemend policy have . ff“d“*we“‘e Committer
an important role 1o play in this regard. parameters

Further information can be found in the * Detanmine strategic

Board report on pages 56 1o 6t Aton points

Risk management structure

Our risk management structure is designed o

t0 ensure a consistent approach to the

identification, assessment, monmoring and * Idertify principal risks

managament of risks across the business. . . ;

Thisis set out in more detall below and Direct delivery of srategec Executive
i 9 3 3ppeti

in the Board report on pages 59 and 60, . by risk Ln_r«:mhlv
Areas of focus

Qur focus during the year has been on

standardising and simplifying processes,

procedures and associated [T systems

in the Group, Including: o

» Simplification of the

e * Execute strategic actions
organisational structure, . b ks
* Clarity of reporting lines for Report on key risk indiaators
central functions; Divisions

IT, fimancial and operational systems
improvernents across the business;
= Improvements to cyber security controls
across all systems and infrastructure;
* Deployment of an improved
incident recording. monrtoring and
reporting system;
* Deployment of a new HR resourcing
system across the Group;
Launch of online training and
development hub;
Simplified approach and consistent
process to both temporary and
permanent recrutmant;
Qutsourcing of back-office finance
transactional processes to Genpact; and
Outsourcing of application maintenance
1T processes 1o Wipro.
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Bottom up
Operstional risk management

* Assess effectiveness of
risk management system

* Peport on prinaipal risks
and uncertainties

» Consider completeness of
identified risks and adequacy
of matigating actions

« Consider aggregation of risk
exposure across the business

+ Report current
and emerging risks

+ Idesttify, evahsate and mitigate
operational risks necorded
in risk register



New and emerging risks

We continuously monitor our internal and external erwironment to
ensure that any new or emerging risk is identified in a timefy manner
and responded to appropriately, As a result of the Princspal Risks
assessment. new risks relating to structural complexity. market share
and indident at dlient site have been identified.

Risk management structure

Bowd and Audit Comnuttes

Exccutive Leadership Team [ 3 Internat Audir

mitie
@ = @

Responsibilicy Process

* Vision and Values statement and Code of Conduct approved by the Board and communicated
1o employess — setting tone at the top.
* Review of the Group's strategy by the Board and the setting of rsk appetste for the Company.

* The Board through the Audit Committee reviews the effectiveness of the irtermal control and
risk management framework on a yearly basis.

* The Board set the frequency and scope of its discussion on strategy. business model and risk.

* The Board reviews prinapal risks on a yearly bass.

*» The Audit Committee, which comprises independent Non-Executive Directors, reviews
internal audit reports on a regular basis

Mitie's focus is to operate a ‘three fines of defence’ model for effective risk management

and monitoring.

First line of defence

= Core set of business policies available on the Company’s intranet — setting out
management’s expectations.

* Maintenance of risk registers at business unit and function level. Risk registers are also
maintained for major contracts.

Second line of defence

¢ Enterprise Risk Management policy is in place and available to employees.

= Enterprise Risk function is in place.

» QHSE comphiance funcion operates ta ensure adherence with the Company’s QHSE policies.

* Formation of audit and risk committees operating at business unit levels.

Third line of defence

Internal Audrt acts as a third line of defence.

* The Head of Internal audn reports functionally to the Chair of the Audit Committiee

+ The Internal Audit function targets its work at areas of the bysiness where risk management
and internal controk are suspected of requiring improvement. In addition, the Imernat Audit
plan is inked with the Prindipal Risks to ensure adequate coverage of the risk areas.

* The in-house Internal Audit team uses Grant Thornton 1o support s work. where appropriate
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

s
(D Political -

Impacts

@ Health, safety and environment 4 >
Political and economit uncertainty in the UK Faiiure 1o maintain appropriately high standards
may adversely affect our customers’ approach to in health, safety and environmental managernent
outsourcing decisions and our ability 1o plan and may result in harm to empioyees, client staffor
invest. The fack of clarity of the timing and impact members of the public, and consequential fines
of Brexit adds further uncertainty. and reputational damage.
@) structural complexity New risk (® Incident at client site Mew risk
Mitie has historically operated using complex manual A high-profile inddent or accident occurring at
processes and an organisational mode! with a high an F1 client site, or a location operated by our
and misaligned cost base, rather than leveraging its Care & Custody business, as 2 result of neglgent
technology. if we do not address these issues we stafl actions. incansistent vetting or ineflective
will be unable to exeogte chert contracts efficently, training and communications for staff, could
resylting in sub-optimal customer expenences and have a significant impact on our reputation and
erosion of sustained profitable growth, current and future contracts.
@ Cyber v @ Data management 4 )
Fallure of tritical infrastructure, inciuding through a Ineffective processes and comrols 1o manage our
cyber-attack, could affect chient delivery operations data and qistomers’ data may result in a major
and cause critical delays in internal processes. data breach leading to fines, remediation costs
and reputational damage.
@ Funding 4 ) Employees v
{nabsility to mairtain access to and renew suitable tnability to recrust, retan and reward suitably
sources of funding due to a parceived risk in both our talented employees, as well as fallure to implement
businass and the sector as a whole, may impact our appropriate development plans, simple consistert
abiity to maintain profitable business performance. processes across the busingss and a One Mitie
approach, could negatively impact our operational
and financial performance.
@ Legal 4 @ Market sentiment -
Failure to comply with applicable laws and Negative sentiment towards the outsourding
regulations may lead 10 fines, prosecution sector could lead to fewer opportunities, including
and damage to our reputation. reduced IFM volumes, and challenges to our
business madet and profit grawth.
(&) Market share New risk (12) Contract losses 4 >

A loss of market share through competitors
improving their offering and price, and potentially
targeting some Of our key CONMracts, of from new
entrants deploying new business models, could have
a significant impact on eur revenue and profit

if we do not ensure that we produce bids for
contracts which are competitive, financially viable
and have a balanced approach to risk. and/or fail

to defiver on our contract obligations, we may
damage cur dient relationships, which may lead to
cancellation of contracts resulting in financial losses.
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Our strategic piflars Change In year
Customer: build market-teading positions in higher ¥ Decreased
growth segments and Increase customer NPS
People: create a ‘Great Place 1o Work' 4 P Stayed
for our employees the same
Cost: strengthen our balance sheet and maintatn A Increased
cost discipline to remain competitive
Technology: embed technology into the heart Viability
of our offering statement

Principal risks and uncercainties Centrols and mitigating actions Future plans

® Ppolitical

Political and economic uncertainty in the UK may adversely affect our
customers’ approach to outsourcing decisions and our ability to plan
and invest, The lack of clarity of the uming and impact of Brexit adds
further uncertainty.

impacts on: Change in year:

HODO» 4

As the vast majority of Mitie's client base is within the UK, we are
particularly exposed to uncertainties in the UK's political and economic
landscape. A major aspect of this uncertainty cortinues to be the ongoing
negotiations for the UK to leave the European Union (Brexit). This may
result in changes to the regulatory framework, as well as restrictons in the
supply of labour and materiats.

Political and economic factors ako influence the deasions taken by both public
and private sector clients on which activities should be outsourced and the
amount of discretionary spend available for outsourang activities. This may
result in fewer opportunities for Mitie and have a consequential negative
impact on our finanoal performance.

ht is important that we are able to offer competitive, innovative and high-quakty
solutions to clients, and demonstrate the value we bring to them. We also need
1o ensure that we carefillly monitor and identfy the most appropriate
opportunities in both the public and private sectors.

* Maintain blend of public and * Ensure the focus on strategic
private sactor chents accounts penerates growth

* Appointment to the Crown opportunities
Commerdial Services Framework * Maintain dialogue with key public

* Appointment of Chief and private sector dients o
Government & Strategy demonstrate the value we offer
Officer and team * Leverage the most appropriate

* Regular reviews of sales opportunities through the Crown
opportunities by all business Cormmerdial Services Framework
sales leaders 1o increase pubfic sector contracts

* Dedicated account managers
to focus on integrated
strategic accounts

* Focus on high-margn opportunities
with growth potential

* Drve for greater customer
retention through improvemendts
in the value we delfiver

* Developrent of new and
innovatrve service offerings

@ Structural complexity

Mitle has historically operated using complex manual processes and an
organisational model with a high and misaligned cost base, rather than
leveraging its technology. H we do not address these Issues we will be
unable to execute client contracts efficiently, resulting in sub-optimal |
custemer experiences and erosion of sustained profitable growth.

Impacts on: Change in year:

BD@@ (D rewrse

Mitie's business and orgamsational model has evolved with a large number
of unnecessary complexities, inchuxding multiple and inconsistent processes,
isolated IT systems, and unclear organisational and reporting structures.
These complexities have required a disproportionately high cost base in
onder to maintain them.

The business transformation project (Project Hel), and a number of other
improvernent initiatives over the past two years, have made substarmal
progress, but further work is required to simplify and standardise these
underlying processes and to ensure that we are able to deliver acceptable
margins and growth from our business.

We are continuing to address internal costs by leveraging the opportunities
from outsourding back-office functions, including in Finance and IT. In addrion,
we are investing in IT systems improvements across the business, notably

n Engineering Serwices, HR and Finance. We will ako continue to simplfy
end-to-end processes and the structure of the organisation.

Mitie is now embracing technology to deliver a digital experience to both
internal and external users. if we fail 1o do this we could be unable to deliver
profitable growth, our opportunities to invest in new technology and offerings
coukd be kmitad and our bids coukd be uncompetitrve.

* Successful delivery of Progect * Successfully complete
Helix and other improvement, improvernent projects for IT
and simplification inrtiatrves systems in Engineering Services
¢ [T, financial and operational systems = A comprehensive review of
improvements across the business end-to-end processes across the
* Outsourcing of back-office tusiness to improve effidency
Smotreaton of e bonres ek educe coste A Orgrsl
* 5 r ; Lice Costs.
mgg&lﬂm Tmnsformetion Oﬁ‘rcgr has already
+ Clarification of accountabibties e appointed who i responsible
v this initiative

and resporsibilities, particularly

for strategic accounts . LF’E" entity rztio.naﬁsaﬁon
* Focus on sourcing and * Finance modemnisation programme
procurement processes 1o + Commence a further
simphify supplier base and Wonnaﬁcnal revew
leverage cost opportunities to simplify the business
* Use of digital technologies for
customers ard employess
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

Principal risky and uicertainties

@ cyber

Fallure of critical infrastructure, including through a cyber-actack,
could affect client delivery operations and cause cridcal delays

in internal processes.

impacts on: Change in yaar:

BOD®» v

The reliability and ¢flectiveness of gur technology is vitally important to
ensure that we can meet our contract obligations, deliver improvements
in operational processes, generate meaningfiul management information
and help defiver value for our dients. In many cases clients rely upon us
10 lcok after their critical data and infrasinutture.

We are continuing 1o invest tn technology te simplify our business, as well
as improvwyg resilience and sequrity to protect against systems (alure ora
cyber-attack. During the year we have cormmenced an upgride programme
to ensure we meet the Government’s Cyber Essentiaks Plus requirements.

Controls and mitigating actions Future plans

* Clear strategy toinvest in
technology imprevements, both in
internal systams and dient offering
» Outsourdng of routne T
operations to pariver Organisation
0 improve resivence and controls
Upgradswlegxysyswmto
neduce complexity and improve
rnanagementnfamumn
* Rationalisation of ERP sy
ww«rsmm
* Leveraging new technologies
such as Al and big data
* Maintenance and testing of
effective disaster recovery plans

¢ Dedicated S PMO to ensure

This bas involved a substantial programme 1o upgrade and replace puters
within the organisation. We have also delivered a number of system
improvements in the year including People Hub, a standardised and
imegrated HR sohstson,

We have also outsourced our routing [T Operations 10 a partner which will
help improve efficiency and efectiveness and build in greater resilience to
failures, This also alows us to focus on higher value technology developments
for dients. We will continue to invest in systems and technolegy to replace
the lepacy estate, automate processes and ensure the smooth and efficent
operation of our business, it is also mportant to have eflective business
cominuty and disaster recovery plans, and this s another key focus.

all projects with an IS element
are manzged eflectively and
risks ane minimised

* Upgrade to the Enginesanng
Services ppergtional and financial
systumtmmprmsecunty

effidency
Lookﬁoroppormnmsto
leverage the outsource partners
development capabilities

@ Funding

Inability to maintain access to and renew suitable sources of funding
due to g perceived risk in both our business and the sector as a whole,
may impact our ability to maintain profitable business performance.

impacts on: Change in year:

HOD© 4>

In order to be able to meet our financial commitments, we need to have access
to a number of affordable sources of finance. Our core debt fadfities include
arevolving credit fadlity and private placement loan notes. We need to have
sufficent fixquidity to be able to pay suppliers and staff, whilst also investing in
the business and ensuring that we have endugh options for profitable growth.

In the past few years there has been significant concern about the finandial
strength and viability of companies operating in our sector. This has continued
during the year with a number of high-profile incidents otcurring refating to
our competitors. Any actual or perceived weaknesses in our financial position
could restrict our access to (inance or attract high irterest rates.

We have been focused on maintaining strong financial disopkne in the
management of our working capital and investment decisions and on
minicising our levels of debt. This has included working with our badk-officz
Process outscurte partner 10 improve processes and efficiency.

* Regular forecasting of cash
flow and ret dett

* Tharough focus on working capital
cydes with a dear set of KPls

* Maintenance of strong banking,
debt and equity relationships

* Strong focus on and monioring
of cash collection
* Ragular reviews of payment terms
with austomers and supply chain

» Continue to work with a
range of finandal instituwticns 1o
ensure we can access affordable
finance sources
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Our strategic pillars Change in year

Customer: build market-leading positions In higher ¥ Decreased
growth segments and increase customer NPS

People: create a ‘Great Place to Work' 4 P Suyed
for our employees the same =
Cost: strengthen our balance sheet and maintain A Increased L
cost discipline to remain competitive
Technology: embed technology into the heart Viability

°§ of our offeringour offering statement

Principal risks and uncertainties Controls and mitigating actions Future plans

| 3
@ Legal ntroduction of further mandatory

training courses o relevant
Failure to comply with applicable laws and regulations may lead to fines, Group Functions induding employees via our Learming Hub
prosecution and damage to our reputation. Cornpany Secretariat, Legal * Ongoing review of BMS to update o
] . and Qualty, Health, Safety policies and procedures g
Impacts on: Change in year: and Environment (QHSE} E
@ @ 4 p * Code of Conduct communicated g
. o all employees ]
Qur business is subject to a wide range of laws and regulations. Given ‘ Group-mdeh:sol hcies updated b:nd
the nature of our business, these include, amongst others, heatth & safety. ‘mg_ n: . th:nd p £ Busi
employment, anti-bribery and corruption and statutory wage requirements. v Syt (85
Failure to comply with applicable laws and regulations could result in * Reguitar and thorough external
ion andfor significant fines, and, from a reputational perspectve, regulatory audits
could darnage our relationships with dients and our ability 1o win work. * Trairing and awareness material
We may also face debarment from pubhc sector contracts. communicated 10 employees
We continue 10 ensure that we have effective governance and oversight and monitoring of complevon
of our compliance with appheable Laws and regulations and continuously performed ) )
assess the impact of changes n refevant legistation. It is also important that * Bxternally hosted whistieblowirg 8
we provide appropriate communications and training for our peaple to service avalable g
ensure that they are aware of their obligations. and that regular monitoring g
of compliance is undertaken. g
’ * Continued focus on si i . of ic account g
@ Market share business processes mdmpﬂscmc:mum Dewnmgqﬂor kcymm E
A loss of market share through competitors improving their offering and * Irwvestment in new and innovative » Complete Project Forte iZ
price, and potentially targeting some of our key contracts, or from new technologes — induding launched to improve IT
entrants deploying new business mode!s. could have a significant impact Connected Workspace systems in Engineering Services
on our revenue and profit. * Focus on dient relstionships
Impacts on: Change in year: and Net Promoter Score

@ " New risk ) mmig%

* Replacing and vpgrading

In the recent past, many companies in our sector have experienced finandial operational and financial systems
and operational difficulties, and as a result there has been a strong focus on * Standard processes and tools
strategy, costs, investments and business structure, For those organisations for sales and CRM teams

that have successfully addressed their issyes there may be opportunities
10 increase market share through more competitive or innovative offerings,
which may impact our ability to retain current clients and win future business.

Addrtionally, there is also the possibility of & new entrant disrupting the market
by deploying a new low-cost business mode! for FM, potentially through

a technalogy platform. which would challenge the structure and approach

of the existing organisations, including Mitie. This could also potentially ’
significanitly erode our market share and decrease new opporiunities,

it is important that we cantinue to prioritise the transformation of our
business, particutarly through improving processes and simplifying business
structure, focusing on minimising costs and developing innovative solutions
for chents, such as the Connected Workspace. in this way, we will be able
to deliver genuine value for current and {uture dients.
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

PrintGipal risks and uncertainties Controts and mitipating actions Future plans
4 £

@ Health, safety and environment
Fatlure co mamtaln appropriately high standards in healch, safety and

envir may resuit in harm to employees, cl.‘em staff
er members of the publfc. and ¢ quendal fines and rep 1z
impacts on: Change in year:

@O <«

As a company we are committed 10 maintaining the highest levels of health,
safety and environmental {HSE) standards. The services we deliver coukd
potentialty prasent an increased risk of a health and safety incident imvolving
our employees, dient stafl or even members of the public, Cur activities also
carry a risk of damage 10 the environment. tis essemnlﬂmmnumgethese
risks in a highly difigent and effective manner.

At all levels in the organisation, safety is cur number one priority and we
ensure that all risks are properly assessed and managed, our amployeses
are trained, our expectations of how they perform their work are dearly

exphined, and adherence to health and safety standards is regularty monitored.

{ we do not manage these risks appropriately, it could lead 10 farm 10
indriduals and darmage to the ervironment, and consequently prosecution,
fines and significant damage to cur reputation.

* A comprehensive QHSE
strategy has been developed
* Major cultural HSE

LiveSafe, launched in the year, with

clear rules and training for staff
* Regular training and

communication delvered

throughout the company, in

accordance with LiveSafe principles

* Certified H85

* Buikd an the principies of LiveSafe

and ensure regular cormnmunication

and engagement with staff
* Transition from OHSAS health

programme
. ) . . . f ]
@ Incident at client site thnci‘Whh g”momm g mmm a:u crr:";-'s: '
A high-prafile incident or accident occureing at an FM clent site, Procedures (SOP), bespoke responss plans
or a location operated by our Care & Custody business, as a resulc to each site for Care & = Transition from OHSAS health
of negligent scaff actions, inconsistent vetting or ineffective training business and safety management system
and communications for t1aff, could have a significant impact on * Confingency plans are regularly 1o iSD45001
our reputation and current and future contraces. testad and compliance to
. SOPs reguiarly audited for
tmpacts on: Change in year: Care & Custody sites
New * Health and safety strategy -

@ @ ® risk LrveSafe prograrte unched

this year as part of the strategy

We deliver services \o cients at a number of important and hi ile sites
across the country. These include locations with substantiat historical and
cultural significance and high level of scrutiny by governmental bodées, media
organisations and the general public. if a major incident occurred at one

of these sites, whether through the negligest or delberate act of Mitie
employees, it could attract a large amount of publicity and have a highly
negative impact on our reputation. it would also be kkely to bimit our
chanaes of winning future tomtracts and potentially retaining curcent diems,

in order 1o make sure we marage this risk, it is important that we have
appropriate polices and processes in place, which clearly set out the
expectations of our employees. We also need to communicate these
effectively and deliver regular and relevant training to employees. In addition,
it is important that we ensure our employees have been appropriately
vetted to determine who is eligible to work on particular contracts and sites,
50 that we zre able to meet the spedific requirements of cur clients.

It is ako necassary to have effectrve business continuity plans in glace for
our pperations, so that we can continue tc defiver a high-quality service
to ckents in the event of a disruptive incident. Shoukd an incident oceur, 3
comprehensive and tested crisis response plan is essential to ensure that
we woukd be able to mininwse the impact on our employees and ciients,
the pubic and the environment.

* Certified H&S management
systems to OHSAS 18001
and envronmental
to ISC14001

* Comprehensive training plans
on safety, security and risks

* Regular updates 10 employees.
on new safety and operational
requirements

* Internal and external
compliance audits

+ Effective vetting programime
tailored 1o the indmvidual risks
of each client and site

* Tested business continurty and
crigis response pling.

* Standardised and comprehensive
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Our strategic pillars Change in year

Principal risks and uncertainties

@ Data management

Ineffective processes and controls to manage our data and customers’

data may result in 2 major data breach leading Lo fines, r diation costs
and reputational damage.
Impacts on: Change in year:

®H@HO «»

One of the most important assets we have is the data we hold, which includes
information concerning our business operations, employees, clients, suppliers
and others. This information 1s wital to enable us to run our business efficiently
and profitably. We need 1o maintain adequate controls to mitigate risks
assodiated with loss or theft of data which would damage our reputation
with cfients and potentially expose us to significant fines from regulators.

In order 10 ensure confidential and sensitive data is processed, transmitted
and stored securely, we have implemented formal technical and procedural
controks. These contrals are depioyed across our T systems and are subject
to regular review and testing. Efective information security procedures help
10 prevent or minwmnise the impact of any breaches of security.

‘We have an ongoing programme of work to ensure we are compliant with
the requirements of the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR).

Controls and mitigating actions

Future plans

* Centralised information security * Regular reviews of information

team in place management to ensure

* Information Security Management compliance with GDPR
System (15M5) in place and * Expansion of dedicated data
certified 10 ISOAEC27001:2013 prvacy team
for key information assets * Ensure seamless transition to

* [T security controls in place to IT outsource partner with data
proactively test, monitor, denufy standards maintained
ang respond to cyber threats * Working towards achieving

* Information security cyber essential plus accreditation
requirements established on
all new projects, including
outsourcing of routine operations

* Cyber essertial accreditation
* Cyber insurance policy

Customer: build market-leading positions in higher ¥ Decreased
growth segments and increase customer NPS
People: create a ‘Great Place to Work' 4 P Soayed
for our employees the same
@ Cost: strengthen our balance sheet and maintain A Increased
cost discipline to remain competitive
Technology: embed technology into the heart Viabilicy
'ﬁ of our offering statement

Employees

Inability to recruit, retain and reward suitably talented employees, as
well as failure to implement appropriate development plans, simple
consistent processes across the business and a One Mitie approach,
could negatively impact our operational and financial performance.

Impacts on: Chmge In year:

WO v

It is inportant for the success of our business that we continue to recruit,
develop, motivate and retain talented individuals. if we are unable to do so
there woulkd be an adverse impact on the profitable and successful dekvery
of our comracts, and we would be imited in cur ability to win uture
opportunities and grow the business.

‘We need to have the right level of experience and expertise available and be
abte to develop a culture of high standards of achievement, compliance to the
Mitie values and good governance and control. In order to achieve this, we akso
need to provide development opportunities for our employees to enable them
to reach their full potential.

In addrson, it is important that we maintain a stability and consistency in our
senior leadership team to provide high-quality direction for the business and
delver our strategy.

Animportant element of the cutture is ensuring that we have a One Mitie
way of operating and collaborate effectively across the business, This will
grve greater consistency in progesses and controk and allow for seamless
movement of staff across the Group.

» Deployment of new HR rescurcing  * Further enhance online HR
system across the Group and training systems
* Launch of online training and * Launch of new induction
development hub, People Hub programme, rmandatory for
* Simplified approach ard consistent new starters
process 1o both temporary and » Salary benchmarking
permanent recruitment * New competency framework
* Regular communictions from 10 be developed

* Training and development
programmes for senior leadership

* Regular employee offers

+ Deweloped talent
identification. management
and development plans

* Succession plans are in place
for critical roles, especially for
the senior leadership team

* Clear performance
rnanagement framework
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Principal risks and uncertaintles continued

Principal risks and uncertainties Controls and mitigaling actians Future plans

* Inchusion and mainenance Further improvernert and
@ Market sentiment on Crown Comenercial T.ransforrrnuon opportunities
Negative senciment towards the duesourcing sector could lead to fewer Service Framework to be explored
opportuniges, including reduced IFM vol and challenges to our * Dedicated managementt
businass model and profit growth. of strategc accounts
my on: Ch. in 1 * Regular inancial
pacts ange in year: i
BO@O S A
Promoter Score
In the past two years, the activities and resuits of a number of companies * Strong relationships with
operating in our sector bave generated significant negative publicity, which finanaial institutions
potentiaily affects Mitie's reputation and raises concerns with current and * Process and IT systems
future dhients, This has included the fiquidation of Carilion and the improvement programmes
administration of Interserve. The viatwity of outsounced facilities management * Long-term contract portiolio
companies to deliver operational performance 1o suffioently high standards, and spread of dlient base
whilst 2ls0 managing costs appropriately, has been the subject of much scrutiny.
In particular, the opportuntities for integrated facilities management contracts
may decrease in both the public and private sector. as organisations ook to
spread the risk of these services amongst a greater number of providers.
In arder to address these concerns, it is important that we are able 1o
consistently deliver a high-quality and valued service on our existing corracts
and demonstrate tha to potential new dients. VWe need to ensure that we
develop and maintain a business model and offering which can succassfully
deliver profitable growth and exploit new opportunities as they arse, whilst -
adapting to the needs of the market.
+ Bid Committee approval * Post sales review of loss-malang
@ Contract losses for complex bids contracts to ensure we identify
H we do not ensure that we produce bids for cantracts which are * Detailed contracting guidelines and apply lessons ieamed for
competitive, financially viable and have 3 bajanced approach 1o risk, developed and rolled out our future bids '
and/or fall vo deliver an aur contract abligations, we may damage our + Clear delegatad authorties regster

client refationships, which may lead ro cancellation of contracts resuleing .
in financial losses. " NawSaiudeRM}wfsmphce
* Use of speciaiist mobilisation teams

Impacts on: Change in year: for complex contracts
= Strategic account management
@@@ <« * Risk registers in place for
I order to defiver consistent and profitable growth, it & important that * KPYSLA formal reviews
we continue 1o bid for and secure contracts at acceptable margins. it is also with customars
essertial that we successfully mobilise and deliver our cortracts. In order . CRM e
10 achieve this, we must monktor and control costs, deliver on the contract Impeoved CRM capabilrties with
ohbhigations and meet dient expectations. active reiationship management
* Focus on Net Promoter Score

‘We need to develop competitive bids, which provide a fair balance of risk and * Launch of Sales Acadamy to

reward that is property reflected within the contract terms and conditions, train sales teams

Qur offering neads to be compeling and innovative and provide a balance + Apportment of Chief
betwwen cost and margin pressure, which is a key feature of the sector in Government & Stritegy Officer
which we operate. {tis also important 0 make sure we have the skills and to coordinate all interfaces with
resources availible 10 execute On our contracts successfuly. the Cabinet Offce

Once we have mobilised the contracts. we need to monitor a relevant set

of Key Performance lndicators (KPis) to ensure that we are defivening on

the obligations to whidh we have agreed and communicating with ciems to
understand d they are satisfied with our performance. it is also important to
assess and agree any variations to the contract services and terms and amend
the KPts accordingly.

If we are unable to deliver the services as agreed in our contracts, it could
negatively impact our customer refationships and reputation and lead to
tegal disputes and termination of contracts. This could then lead 1o potentially
failing to retain existing clients and secure new contracts, with a detrirnentat
efiect on our financial performance.
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The Group's strategic report (pages | to 48) contains information on the Group's strategy (pages I 1o 13),
business model (pages 8 and %) and market review (page 10), as well as prinaipal risks and uncertainties
{pages 38 to 46). The key factors affecting the Group's prospects are:

= Mitie is the leading UK FM business with 4% of the market,

* The otrtsourcing market is relatively insensitive to economic cycles;

* The Group has a diverse portfolio of blue-chip and public sector clients, the largest of which
constriutes <{0% of revenue;

= \We have a clear vision for our technology centric growth strategy: and

* We are making good progress in our transformation programme.

The Directors believe that a three-year period is appropriate for their viability assessment as itis

supported by the Group's strategic, budgeting and business planning cycles and is relevant to the duration

of existing contracts with customers which is around three years on average. It therefore represents

a timeframe over which the Directors believe they can reasonably forecast the Group's performance.

Governance

In making this statement, the Directors have carned out a robust assessment of the principal risks facing
the Group, including those that would threaten 1ts business model, future performance, solvency or
liguidity. This inchudes the availability and effectiveness of mitigating actions that could realisticalty be taken
to avoid or reduce the impact or occurrence of the undertying risks. In considering the likely eflectiveness
of such actions, the conclusions of the Board's regular monitoring and review of risk management and
mternal control systems, as described on pages 59 1o 6/, are considered.

In urkdertaking its viability assessment, as a base case, the Board has used the agreed budget for FY 19720,
which includes analysis of the forecast performance of the Group's existing contract base, expectation
for future growth including sales targets and expected wan rates, and overhead cost base. Based on this
budget, further projections for viability purposes have been made using prudent assumptions for:

* Modest revenue and margin growth beyond FY1%/20;

* Na major changes in workaing capitat;

* Invoice discounting cortinuing to decrease over lime;

* Future dividends in line with current policy;

* Settiernent of existing provisions according to best estimates together with funding costs for ongoing
transformation actevrties:

* No changes to group structure; and

» No additicnal capital beyond current committed debt facilities,

The resulting financial model assesses the ability of the Group to reman within the financial covenants and

liquidity headroom of the existing committed debt facilities. During the forecast period, £40m of the US
Private Placement notes mature and the model assumes these are not refinanced. The £275m revalving

Financial statements

credit facility also matures in the forecast period and the Directors consider it reasonable to assume this Ny
will be refinanced on materally similar terms. The Group also utilised £73m of invoice discounting at 3| AT SR
March 2019, which the Group is not dependent upon for liquidity, covenant compliance or \gablllty‘! = T e

purposes in the base case scenario.
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Viability statement continued

A range of scenarios that encompass the principal risks were applied to the base case and are set out
n the table below. The analysis also considered a reverse siress-test scenario 10 iflustrate the working
capital outflow required to cause a breach of leverage cavenant. in combination with the reduced
revenue SCenario.

Scenario Principal risks
1 Loss of major contract —iost revenue and operating profit in all L2302
fusture periods

1 Major chert insolvency — lost revenue, opersting prefM and cash flow,  {
plus ane-of f costs aquivalent to three months' revenue

3 Major worlang capital outflow — £100m 4

4 10% revenue reduction 1L23.56725%1.12
5 Margin erosion . L27.8.10.12

L] Reverse stress test — revenue loss and working capital autflow in N/A

combination to covenant breach

In each of scenanos 1-5, the Group would be abie 10 continue opérating within debt covenants and
liquidity headroom, mdrrumu\dwdendsnmmhmmpd-cy Scenario 6 required such an
extreme set of factors in unison that it is considered to be a very remote likelihood and therefore
does not represent a realistic threat to the viability of the Group.

The Directors considered mitigating factors that could be employed to counter the negative effects
of the crystallisation of each of these risks. The main actions included the short-term scaling down
of capital expenditure, asset disposals, reductions in cash distributions or raising equity.

Based on this assessment, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group will be able
to continue i operation and meet its kabilties as they fall due over the three-year pericd considered.

The strategic report on pages | 16 48 of Mitie Group pk, company registration number SCD19230
wasapprouedbyﬂwe&oardotimmandamhomedfwmonS}uneZOﬂ

ft was signed on its behal

Phil Bentley

Chief Executive Officer
Paul Woolf
Chvef Finarcial Officer
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InFY 18/19 Mitia signed the Clean Van
Commitment which builds on our promise to
ensure 20% of our small van and car fleet is
electric within the next two years. We also
ordered 400 electric vehides to support the
fight against dimate change and air poliution.
Mitie, which has a fleet of 3,500 compact vans
and cars, will run more than 700 electric
wvehicies by the end of 2020.

Mitie has also been accredited as a Go Uhra
Low comparty, under a scheme jointly run
by Government and vehicle manufacturers,
which has 160 signatories. Mitie joms

other companies that have committed to
increase the number of electric vehides

in their fleets.

(® Read more on PG 31-32

52 37
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reduction in energy reduction in
CONSUMPLION aACross emisstons intensicy
Mitie estate since FY 09/10
since FY 09/10
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Board of Directors

An experienced
Board of Directors

Derek Mapp
Non-Executive Chairman

Board Committess
Chairman of the Nomination Committee

Date of appointmant to the Board
S May 2047

Other current appointments

Derek is Chair of Informa plk and private
cormpanies. Imagesound Limtad and Salmon
Developrments Limited. Derek also has several
other private business interests.

Past roles

DOerek was Chair of Huntsworth ple from

December 2014 to March 2019, He was also

previously Chiel Executive Officer of Tom

Cobleigh pk and Chair of Leapfrog Day

Nurseries Lirmited, East Midlands Development

Agency, Sport England and British Amateur

Boxing Assodation Limited.

Skills and experience

* Experienced chairman and entrepreneur,

* Extensive career in ownersiup, managerial,
operational and commencial roles in
service industries;

* Wealth of commercial and governance
experience within various sectors: and

* Promotes robasst debate and an open and
engaged culture

Phil Bentley
Chief Executive Officer

Board Committees
None

Date of appointmant to the Board
| November 2016

Other current appointments
None

Past roles

Phil was Group Chief Executive Officer of Cable
& Wireless Communications plc from January
2014 uril its sale to Liberty Global pic in May
2016. Prior to this he was 3 member of the
board of Centrica pic from 2000 to 2013 whilst
akso Managing Director of British Gas from 2007
1o 2013, Maraging Dwrector, Europe from J04
to 2007 and Group Finance Director from 2000
o 2004. Phil's prior non-executive directorships
include M pic from 2012 to 2014 and Kingfisher
ple from 2002 1o 2010.

Skills and experience

* Executive and non-executive experience with
FT5E 100 companies for over 18 years;

* Significant strategic and commeercial experence
at both national and global level:

» Extensive executive and ieadership experience
from across industry;

* Extensive financal, audit and risk management
systems experience: and

* Accourdant by profession, with a master's
degree from Onxford University and an MBA
from INSEAD, Fontainebleay.
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Paul Woolf
Chief Financial Officer

Board Committees
None

Date of appointment to the Board
13 Novernber 2017

Other current appointments
Norte

PFast roles

Paud was Chief Executive Officer of Virgin Active

Heatth Clubss from September 2013 10 March

2017 and Chief Finandial Officer from January

2013 to September 2013, Priar to that he was.

Chuef Financial Officer of Jade Wills, Group Chief

Financial Officer of Birds Eye iglo Group and

Chief Finandal Officer of the Automobile

Association.

Skills and axperiance

* A highly-regarded leader with experience
across a broad range of industry sectors;

* A proven track record in operational, inancial
and strategic oversight and execution;

= Extensive turnaround experience; and

* Qualified as a chartered atcountant, with a
degree from Oxford University in Philosophy,
Polrics and Economics.



Nivedita
Krishnamurthy Bhagat
Independent
Non-Executive Director

Board Committees
Member of the Audit Commitiee
Member of the Nomination Commitiee

Date of appointment to the Board
1 june 2017

Other current appointments

Nivedrta is Chief Executive, Infrastructure
Services & Cloud Services UK, Europe at
Capgemini SA, a French publicly listed
muttinational corporation. She s also a member
of its UK management board.

Past roles

Nivedita was Head of Enterprise Solutions,
EMEA and Head of Landon Development
Centre at infosys Technologies Ltd from 1998 to
2010. Prior 10 this she was a consultant in the
corporate finance dwvision at KPMG India,

Skills and experience

» Significant international management
experience having worked across the UK,
Europe, US and India;

* Vst experience in advising dients on
technology solutions with a view to enabling
them to increase sharehalder value;

» Several years of IT consutting and IT
outsourcing expenence managing large
complex contracts,

* Strong sales orientation having soki global
technalogy and digital solutions to global
clients;

* Deep PAL management with focus on top and
bottom fine: and

* Qualified as a chartered accountant, with a
degree in Economics.

Jennifer Duvalier
Independent
Non-Executive Director

Board Committees
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
Member of the Nominaton Committee

Date of appointment to the Board
26 July 2017

Other current appointments

Jennifer is Non-Executive Director and Chair of
the Remuneration Committee of Guardian
Meda Group pic, and Non-Executive Director
of NCC Group pic. She 15 also Director of The
Cranemere Group Lirwted and a member of the
Counxil of the Royal College of Art, where she is
ako Chair of the Remuneration Committee.

Past roles

jennifer was Executive Vice President, People, for
ARM Holdings plc, a giobal technology business,
from September 2013 10 March 2017. She was
also an executive committee member with
responsibility for people and internal
communications activity. Prior 10 this, Jennifer
was Group People and Cutture Director at UBM
pic from 2007 to 2013 and Group HR Director at
Emap pk from 2003 to 2007.

Skills and experience

¢ Leadership development, talent acquisition and
management and succession planning;

* Mentoring and coaching;

* People strategy, organsation development and
change management;

+ Employee engagement and internal
communications;

* Corporate social responsibility and
partnerships;

* Executrve remuneration and performance
management;

* Executive team ard Board effectiveness, and

* MA (Hons) from the University of Oxford in
English and French.

Philippa Couttie
Independent
Non-Executive Director

Board Committees
Member of the Audit Committes
Member of the Nomination Commantee

Date of appointment to the Board
15 November 2017

Qther current appointments
Philippa is 2 member of the House of Lords and
party whip

Past roles

Philippa led Westminster City Council from 2012
1o 2017. She joined the Counol in 2006 and has
previously served as Cabinet Member for
Finance, Cabinet Member for Housing and
Deputy Cabinet Member for Children’s Services.
Philippa was aksc a member of the Paliing and
Dignal Media Select Commntee from 2017 to
2018,

Prior to progressing her career in public service,
Philippa was a director at Citigroup following its
1akeover of Schroders, where she headed up its
prncipal finance business. She was akso previously
Chief Executive of Cornerstone
Communications.

Philippa has served as 2 non-executive director
on several boards since 2006, inchuding Royal
Parks and the London Local Enterprise
Partnership. She was also previously Chair of the
West End Partnership and Coundl Member of
Impenal College, where she was also Chair of
the Audit Committee.

Skills and exparience

= Extensive experience in both public and
private sactor at the most senjor levetl:

* Ennobled and joined the House of Lords
n 2016; and

= A degree from the University of 5t Andrews
wn Psychology.
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Board of Directors continued

An experienced
Board of Directors continued

Mary heilly
independent
Non-Executive Director

Board Committeas

Chair of the Audit Committes

Member of the Remuneration Committee
Member of the Nomination Commyttee

‘Date of appointment to the Board
| September 2017

Other current appointments

Mary is Non-Executive Directar and Chair of
the Audit Committee of Essentra pic, an
international supplier of specialist plastic, fibre,
foam and packaging products. She is also
Non-Executive Director and Chair of the Audit
Commintee of Traveizoo. Her currem
Foundation and POSA,

Past roles

Mary was Non-Executive Director and Chair of
the Audit Committee of Ferrexpo plc, an iron
ore mining company, from 2015 10 2019. She was
ako Non-Executive Director and Chair of the
Audit & Risk Comnmittee of the UK Department
of Transport and of Crown Agertts Limited, an
international development company, from 2043
10 2017 Prior to this Mary was Non-Executive
Director of Cape plc, 4 global industral services
compary, from 2016 to 2017. She has served asa
ron-executive director on several other boards
since 2000,

Mary was a partner in Deloitte LLP (and
firms) for over 25 years. Mary was
an Audit Partner in the UK speciafising in
services. She also headed a unit offering
Skills and experience
+ Acoounting, finance and international
management experisnce: Bnd
+ Chartered accountant, with a degree from
University College London in History.

Roger Yates
Senior independent .
Director

Board Committees

Member of the Audit Cormmittes
Member of the Remuneration Committee
Member of the Nomination Commttae

Date of appointmant to the Board
| March 2048

Other current appointments

Roger is Non-Executive Director of jupiter Fund
Management pic and 5enior Independent
Director of St James's Place plc, where be is akso
Chair of the Remuneration Cormmittee,

Past roles

Roger started his career in asset management at
GT Management in 1981 and held positions of
increasing seniority at Morgan Grenfell, LGT and
Irvesco, He served as Chief Executive of
Henderson Group pic from 1999 to 2008 and 2s
Chief Executive of Unicredit’s asset management
arm, Pioneer Invesiments.

Roger’s non-executive roles huve inciuded F&C
Investments, G Group plc. Electra Private Equity
plc and JPMorgan Elect pic.

Skills and experience

+ Substantial board experience;

« Strong business track record; and

« Extensive knowledge of the finance and
irvestmant community.
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Peter Dickinson
General Counsel &
Company Secretary

Board Committees
None

Date of appointment
6 March 2017

Othar current appointments
None

Past roles

Peter was a partner &t giobal taw firm Mayer
Brown International LLP (and s predecessor
firrn) foom [995 1o 2017. During his time at
Mayer Brown, Peter was ako Co-Head of the
Giobal Technology Transactions practice from
2015 & 2017, Co-Head of the Giobal Corporate
practice (with specfic responsibility for strategy)
from 2008 to 2015, and Head of Corporate
practice in London from 2005 to 2015.

Skills and experience

* Substantial expenence in corporate advisory,
margers and acquisitions, ioint ventures and
other significant commerdal transactions
induding large scale mutti-jurisdictional
eutsourdng projects; and

* Qualified solicitar, with a degree from
Southampton University in Law.



Corporate governance

Chairman’s introduction
to Corporate Governance

The Board is continually seekung 1o adapt and respond to meet
its responsibilities to shareholders and wider stakeholders for the
Group's activities and its long-term success.

The Board is kept up to date on all matters of key governance by way of
comprehensive reports prepared by the Company Secretary for each
team are available if required, and the Board has acoess to an electronic
board portal which is kept up 10 date with the latest governance-related
iformation and guidance.

Statement of compliance with the Code

For the year ended 31 March 2019, we are reporting against the

April 2016 edition of the UK Corporate Governance Code (the

Code) and | can confirm on behalf of the Board that the Company

has complied throughout the year with all the principles and the rejevant
provisions The Code can be found on the Financial Reporting Coundil's
website at www.frc.org.uk.

Details of how we have applied the prinaples and complied with
the provisions of the Code are explained throughout the Annual
Report and Accounts. In the following sections, we explain how the
Code is implemented via Mibie’s govirnance framework.

The Financial Reporting Council published an updated Code in July
2018, which applies to the Compary from | April 2019. As a Board,
we have spent time reviewing the Company’s governance processes
in preparation for reporting under the updated Code and we are
_confident we will be able to confirm full compliance for FY 19720,

Stakeholder angagement

The Board acknowledges the importance of forming and retaining
sound relationships with all stakeholder groups. Effective engagement
enables the Board to ensure stakehokder interests are considered
when making strategic dedisions.

Accordingly, the Board has reviewed and discussed the Group's

key stakeholders along with the engagement mecharusms in

place to ensure they support effective, two-way communication.

This information has been collated into a stakeholder engagement
‘map'which will be considered regularly by the Board to ensure it
remains fit for purpose, The map will alsc be used to support the
Board's reporting requirements under Section 172 of the Companies
Act 2006. More details on stakeholder engagement can be found

on pages 26 and 27.

GG

As a Board, we are committed
to delivering and maintaining the
highest levels of governance.

Derek Mapp
Chairman

To further enhance our extensive employee engagement activities,
Jenwufer Duvalier has been appointed 25 the Group's designated
Non-Executive Director to oversee Board engagement with ocur
workforce. Jennifer is committed to understanding the views of
our workiorce and will ensure those views are incorporated into
the Board's decision making processes.

Board composition

In july 2018, Larry Hirst retired from the Board with Roger Yates
succeeding Larry as Senior Independent Director. Mark Reckitt also
stood down from the Board in July 2018, with Mary Reilly assuming
the role of Chair of the Audit Committee.

As announced in August 2018, Jack Boyer stood down from the Board
with eflect from 31 August 2018. jennifer Duvalier succeeded Jack as
Chair of the Remuneration Committee.

Diversity and inclusion

During the year, the Board adopted a Board Inclusion Policy which sets
objectives for the Board i terms of diversty and inclusion See page 69
for further information.

Board effectiveness

The performance of the Board, its Committees and rts individual
Birectors is an essential component of the Compary's success. During
2019, | ied an internal Board evaluation, which involved one-to-one
meetings wrth each of the Directors facilitated by a questionnaire
completed by each Director in advance. As Senior Independent
Director, Roger Yatas led the review of my performance as Chasrman,

Regulatory update

On 26 June 2018, the Company was advised by the Finarcial Conduct
Authority (the FCA) that the investigation into the Company in
connection with the timebness of a profit warning announced by the
Compary on 19 September 2016 and the manner and preparation
and content of the Company's financial information, positicn and
results for the period ending 31 March 2016, which was initiated on
25 Awugust 2017, had been discontinued.

In conclusion

The Board remains dedicated to achieving the highest levels of
corporate governance to underpin the delivery of shareholder
value in the years ahead.

Derek Mapp
Chair:
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Governance at a glance

Overview
of our governance

Governance | Sharshalders
framework ety

_h

The Board provides leadership and direction to management within
a framework of controls enabling risk to be adequately assessed
and managed

(®) Read more on PG 56-61

The Remuneration
Committee

The Nomination
Commirttee

The Audit Committee pravides effective The Nomination Committee evaluates The Remunerastion Committee
ce of the appropriateness of the compasition, diversity, experience, determines the framework or
the Group's financial reporting and the knowledge, skills and independence of the broad policy for remuneraton and sets
performance of both the internal Avdit Board and its Committees. the remuneration for the Charman,
function and the external auditor. the Chief Executive Officer, the Executive
Directors and senior management.
(B Readmore on PG £2-67 ® Read more on PG 68-69 (D Read more on PG 70-81

The Exccutive Leadership Team

The Executive Leadership Team includes members from each
business unit and central group function ensuring accountability
across the business,

Our range of services

Engineering Security Prafessional Cleaning & Catering Care &
Services Services Environmental Custody

Services

Board activities )
Members of the Board attended April 2018
a humber of stakeholder

related events during the year.

ftems dscussed at Board

meetings during the year are
included on pages 56 and 57.
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[ N __J
Gender diversity Roles Director age range
@ Female 4 @ Chairman ] @ 41-50 years
@ Mae 4 @ Executive Directors 2 @ 51-60years 3
@ Non-Executive Directors 5 @ 61-70years 3
Table of meetings
Nomination Audit Remuneration

Position Name Board Committee® Committee Committee
Chairman Derek Mapp 77 2 - -
Board members Phil Bartley 77 7Y _ —
{Executives) Paul Woolf "7 22 - -

Nrvedita Knshnamurthy Bhagat  7/7 42 &7 -

Jack Boyer' 12 oro - i

Philippa Couttie? " 242 6/6 -
Board members Jennifer Duvalier 7 22 - 5/5
{Non-Executives)  Larry Hirst? 272 o0 - 3

Mark Reckitt! 2 00 4/4 -

Mary Railty® . m? 22 n n

Roger Yates* n 22 7y

I. Jack Boyer resigned an 31 August 2018,

2. Phikippa Couttie joined the Audit Comimitiee on 22 May 2018.

3 Larry Hirst retred on 31 july 2018

4 Mark Redkitt resigned on 31 july 2018

5. Mary Reily joined the Remunerauon Commvttes on 31 August 2018.

5. Roger Yates joined the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee on 31 july 2018.

® Phit Bentley and Paul Woolf stood down from the Nomination Committes on 31 March 2019,

December January 2019 February

Finance leadership | Supplier conference | Major shareholder
team forum dinner (offsite)

(The Shard) Client dinner
employees) "} (The Shard)

~ Launch event
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The Board

Board report

Chairman  Derek Mapp
Executive  Phil Bertley
Directors  pyy Waolf
Non- Nivedia Krishnamurthy Bhagat
Executive 5 Bover until 31 Acgust 2018
Directors Philippa Coutti
jennifer Duvalier
Larry Hirst until 31 july 2018
Mark Reckitt until 31 July 2018
Mary Reily
Roger Yates

@ Full biographical detaik can be found on PG 50-52.

Purpase of the Board

The Board is responsible and accountable to shareholders for the
sustainable long-term success of the Company. The Board {eads and
directs management within a framework of controls enabling risk to
be adequately assessed and managed.

The Board reviews and agrees the strategy for the Grouponan
annual basis and reviews aspects of strategy at Board meetings during
the year. When setting Group strategy. the Board considers a wide
range of matters including, but not imited to:

* Finance;

+ Sharehokier returns:

+ Corporate structure;

* Market trends;

+ Competitive environment;

* Private/public sector approach:

* International aspects of the business and opportuntties; and

* Pecple and talem.

56 Mitie Group plc | Anrsal Report and Accounts 2019

Board Committees
The Board has four formal Committees:

» Audit Committee;

« Nomination Committee;

= Remuneration Committee, and
» Disclosure Committee (ad-hoc).

Details of the purpose and activitres of each Committee are set out
on pages 62 to 81.

The Board also has an informal Bid Committee compnsed of the
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Finangial Officer, General Counsel

& Company Secretary, Chief Government & Strategy Officer and
members of the sales team. The Bid Commitiee meets weekly to
consider any material bids being submitted.

Board activities

The Board held seven scheduled meetings during the year. individual
Director attendance at each meeting and a timeline setting out
stakeholder related events attended by members of the Board can
be found on pages 54 and 55. Other Board activities during the year
include those set out below. In undertaking their duties, the Directors
actin a way they corsider, in good faith, wilt be most likely to promote
the success of the Company for its shareholders as a whole, having
regard aiso to other stakeholders.

Activitles

Strategy

All Directors attended the Board's offsite
strategy day in September. On the day.

the Board disasssed the Group's strategic
methodology and recommendations, target
operating mode! and execution risks,

Offsite scrategy day

Chief Executive
Officer's update

At every Board meeting the Chief Executive
Officer presented 1o the Board on topics
such as '

* Financial hughbghts:

Business development;

Sector considerations;

Customers;

Sales; and

Divisional updates.

Corporate transactions  The Board debated and approved the:!
* Acquisition of Vision Security Group Limited;
* Sale of Mitie's Social Housing business; and
* Sale of Mitie Pest Control Livited.

Finante
Chief Financial Al every Board meeting the Chief Financial
Officer’s update Officer presented a paper to the Board
covering topics such as:
* Financial performance of the Group:
* Finance structuring review: and
* Finance modermisation.
Budget The Board reviewed and approved the Group's
annwal budget.
Resuits and dividends The Board reviewed and approved the

half-yearly financial report and Annual Report
and Accounts, and assodiated dividends.




Governance and risk

Share dealing procedures An external review of Mitie's Market Abuse
Regime compliance policy was undertaken
during the year, The Board subsequently
adopted updated documentation.

Company secretarial
and legal updaces

At every Board meeting the General Counsel
& Company Secretary presented a paper
covering topics such as:
= Whistleblowing:
= Matenal iitigation;
* Modern Stavery Act Statement:

GDPR;

July 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code:
Companies Act 2006 Section 172
considerations; and

* Other povermance and regulatory highlights.

People and culture

The Board received and discussed the results
of the annual employee engagement survey,
Upload, and agreed actions to be taken. Actions
included the creation of the "You Said, We Did’
campaign which was launched during the year.

Employee engagement

Cuhure The Board received reguiar updates on:
+ The roll-out of Mitie’s vision and values;
* Mitie Exceptionals, an emplayee champions

network to embed rew company behaviours;

and

* LiveSafe, the safety culture development
prograrmume aligned to Mitie's vision and
values, launched in Decernber 2018.

Stakeholders and society

Stakeholder The Board discussed the results of a formal

engagement ‘map’ review which was undertaken during the
year to identify:

Key stakeholders;

Their ‘owners’ within the business:

Reasons for engagement;

Engagement mechanisms; and

Imnpartant issues for each stakeholder.

L I I

Investor relations,
corporate affairs
and internal
communications

At every Board meeting a report from the
Head of Investor Relations was presented

covering topics such as:

* Share price performance;
* Shareholder engagement;
¢ Share register analys:s;

= Sector news;

* Investor feedback;

* Media coverage; and

* Internal communications.

Net Promoter Score The resutts of 2 Net Promoter Score survey
were presented to the Board in March 2019
along with an action plan to embed more of
the right behaviours going forward. The survey
involved 250 chents being asked how Bkely
they were to recommend Mitie 16 a friend

or colleague. Mitie's Net Promoter Score

improved 22 points from the prior year.

Director induction process and training
On joining the Board, all Directors receive a personally tailored induction
which indudes:

* Meetings with Executive Directors, the General Counsel & Company
Secretary, and other members of senior managernent,

= An overview of the Group's governance policies, corporate structure
and business functions:

* Details of risks and operating issues facing the Group;

* Visits to divisional offices and key client sites; and

* A briefing on key contracts.

Mite is committed 1o the continual professional development of its
Directors. In 2018, alt Directors attended an externally faciktated traning
session on director duties, stakeholder engagement and the july 2018 UK
Corporate Governance Code.

All Directors have access to Mite's Board Handbook which includes;

* Board and Commitiee terms of reference;

¢ The Compary's Articles of Associatior;

« Guidance on directors’ statutory duties:

= An overview of the Group's directors’ and officers’ liability nsurance
arrangements;

¢ Deiegated authorities register:

= Share dealing procedures;

* Corporate governance and regulatory guidelines; and

* Key corporate documents and policies.

‘The Board Handbook s subject to regular review and was last updated
in earty 2049,

Briefing notes on changes in the regulatory and governance environment
are creulated to Directors on an ad hoc basis.

Onine training & also available to all Directors on topics such as the
Bribery Act. GDPR. Crinunal Finance Act 2017 and ant-slavery.

Visits to different business sites and offices are arranged for Directors
1o facitate a deeper understanding of the business.

Re-slection of Directors

In accordance with the Code and the Company's Articles of Association,
all Directors are subject to elect:on or re-election by shareholders.

At the 2018 AGM each Director in post at the time {except for Larry
Hirst and Mark Reckitt) stood for election or re-election and was
appointed or re-appointed by shareholders, Larry Hirst and Mark
Reckitt departed the Board following the 2018 AGM. All Directors

will stand for re-election at the 2019 AGM.

Terms of appointment for Non-Executive Directors and service
contracts for Executive Directors are available for i ion at the
Company's registered office and head office. and will be available at
the 2019 AGM.
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The Board continued

Responsibilities of the Board

Mitie maintains a formal schedule of matters reserved for the

Board which can be viewed at www.mitie.com/investors/
corporate-governance. The schedule was last reviewed and
updated in March 2019 following the introduction of the July 2018
UK Corporate Governance Code. The schedute details key matters
and responsibilities that ace to be dealt with exdlusively by the Board,

These include to:

Approve the Group's long-term objectives and commercial strategy:
Establish the Group's purpose and values and be satisfied that these,
its strategy and culture are aligned:

Review performance in light of the Group's strategy, objectives,
business plans and budgets;

Approve the half-yearly financial report and the Annual Report

and Accounts; |

Review the effectiveness of the Group’s risk and control processes;
Approve all material acquisitions, material disposals, material
cortractual and other operatonal matters;

Ensure adequate succession planning for the Board and

senior Mmanagement;

Undertake a formal and rigorous review annually of its own
performance and that of its Committees and individua! Directors; and
Make arrangements for dialogue with shareholders, canvassing
shareholder opinion and engagement with shareholders in relation
to any shareholder resolution which is opposed by more than 20%
of the votes cast.

Division of responsibilities

Directors have certain respansibilities in line with their role, incuding
those set out below.

The Board continues to support separation of the roles of the

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. A more detailed dooumert
setting out their responsibilities is available at www.mitie.com/investors!
carparate-governance.

Chairman

-

»

Chair the Board, Nomination Committee and shareholde

general meetings; :

Ensure effectiveness of the Board in all aspects of its role, including
the regularity and frequency of meetings;

Set Board agendas, taking into account the issues and concerns of
all Board members;

Ensyre appropriate delegation of authortty from the Board to
exacutive management;

Manage the Board 1o ensure sufficient time is allotated to promote
healthy discussion and open debate, supported by the right level and
quality of information 1o assist the Board in reaching its dacisions:
Facilitate the effective cantribution of Non-Executive Directors
and encourage active engagement by all members of the Board:
Ensure canstructive relations between the Executive Directors
and Non-Executive Directors;

Hold meetings with the Non-Executive Directors without the
Executive Directors present;

Ensure that new Directors participate in a full, format and tailored
induction programme;

Ensure that the performance of the Board, its Commitiees and
individuat Directors is evaluated at least once a year and act an
the results of such evakiation;

Maintain sufficient contact with major shareholders to

understand their issues and concerns; and

Ensure that the views of shareholders are communicated to

the Board.
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Senior Independent Director

Act as a sounding board for the Chairman,

Serve as an imtermediary to other Directors when necessary:

* Conduct the Chairman's annual performance avaluation and

lead the appointment process for any new Chairman;

Act as chairman of the Board in the absence of the Chairman; and
Be availabie as an alternative point of contact for shareholders if they
have concerns which have not been resoived through the normal
channels, or for which such contact is inappropriate in the
circumstances.

Non-Executive Directors

* Exercise independent skifl and judgement;

* Constructively challenge proposals based on relevant
individual experience, knowledge and skils:

= Contribute to the formulation and development of strategy,

Monitor corporate reporting to ensure integrity of

financial information;

Oversee the Group's principal risks and assurance in place relating

to those risks, induding internal audit programmes;

* Play a key role in determining the remuneration pohcy for the
Chairman, Executive Directors, General Counsel & Company
Secretary and members of serior management; and

* Hold a primary role in Board succession planning.

Chief Executive Officer

* Ali aspects of the operation and management of the Group within
the authorities delegated by the Board;

¢ Develop Group objectives and strategy, having regard to the

Group's responsibilities 1o its shareholders, customers, emnplayses

and other stakeholders;

Successhidl achievement of chijectives and execution of strategy

following presentation to, and approval by, the Board:

¢ Recommend to the Board an annual budget and long-term business

plan and ensure their achievement following Board approval;

Optimise the use and adequacy of the Group's resources;

Recommend to the Board acquisitions and drsposals, and ensure

their execution following Board approval;

Manage the Group’s risk profile, including the health and safety

performance of the business; and

+ Make recommendations 1o the Remuneration Committee on
remuneration policy, exequtive remuneration and teems of
employment of the senior executive team.

Chief Financial Officer

* Lead. direct and oversee all aspects of the finance and accounting
functions of the Group;

» Evaluate, approve and adhnse on the financial and commercial impact

of material contracts and transactions (including mergers and

acquisitions), technology investments, long-range planning assumptions,

investment return metrics, risks and opportunities and the impact of

changes in accounting standards;

Oversee and direct the Group's Risk, Insurance, Pensions and Internal

Audit functions. -

* Manage relaticnships with the external auditor and key financial

institutions and advisors;

Ensure effective internal controls are in place angd compliance with

appropriate accounting regulations for financial, regulatory and tax

reporting: and

* Provide an underpin 1o all aspects of the Group's governance
framework. the applicatron of its delegated authorities and its
investmert activities.

n



Board effectiveness

In accordance with the Code, the Board carries out annual performance
evaluations, These are externally led every three years and internally

led in other years. In FY 18/19, the Board evaluation was nternally led by
the Chairman for the Non-Executive Directors and Executive Directors,
and facilitated by the Senior Independent Director for the Chairman.
The Board's evaluation of its own perfermance provides an opportunsty
1o enhance its effectveness and identify any areas for improvement.

The Board evaluation process followed in FY 18/19 is set out below.

Identify areas of focus

Circulate questionnaire

One-to-one meetings

Anonymise meeting notes

Produce findings and actions

Board discussion

The Chairman discussed the outcomes of the evaluation with the
Board at its meeting in june 2019, Detaits will be set out in the next
anrual report.

Board accountability and assurance

Risk management approach

During the year, the Board has continured to oversee the improvements
being implemented by the management team to reflect the more
structured approach to governance, risk management and internal
control first adopted following the FY 16/17 comprehensive review of
the Group's balance sheet. These have incduded simplification of the
organisational structure, darity of reporting lines for the cerntral ;
functions, notably HR, Legal and Finance, cessation of the ‘Mitie Mode!'
arrangements, owtsourcng of the back-office finance transactional
processes to Genpact, the outsourcing of application maintenance IT
processes to Wipro and continued standardisation and simplification
of processes and procedures in the Group. In FY 17/t8, a Group-wide
delegated authority register (DAR) was deployed which darifies the
accountabilities and authority to take decisions on specific matters
within defined financial limits, at levels from the Board to divisional
leadership. This helps to disseminate the Board's risk appetite. At the
same time, authority registers were also mplemented in each division,
which follow the same principles as the DAR. This structure should
ensure a consistent approach 1o acceptance and management of rik
across the business.

The whistleblowing line. provided by an external party, was launched
in FY 17/18, with all reports being reviewed and investigated. This also
enhances the identification of risks. Improvements in IT systems

have continued to bring the business onto consistent platforms, with *
improving management information and visibility of common risks and
effectiveness of controls. Tha Internal Audit function has targeted its
waork at areas of the business where risk management and internal
controls are suspected of requiring improvement. which has helped
to improve the risk and control frameworks.

In addition, a new Bid Committee has baen established, the key
members of which comprise the Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Financial Officer, General Counsel & Company Secretary and

Chief Government & Strategy Officer. The role of the Committee

is to consider all bids the aggregate value of which exceeds £3m p.a.,

to determine whether such bids meet the Group's financial. commercial
and legal objectives.

The Group's approach to risk is set out in more detail below. The
approach to risk management is regularly reviewed by the Board and
Executive Leadership Team and continues to evolve in line with the
business structure and risk profile. The Board understands that effective
risk management and a sound system of internal control are essential

to the achievement of the Group's strategy and supporting cbjectives.
The Audit Committee has continued 1o focus on its review of the risk
management framework to increase its understanding of the nature

of the risks faced by the Group and how they are addressed.

Risk culture

It is recognised that the risk management culture within the business
is equally as important as an effective nsk management framework.

in support of this, the ‘One Mrtie’ Vision and Values have an important
role to play. As well as helping to achieve common ways of working
and darity of approach for customers and employees, they akso

help set out, together with the code of conduct {One Code), the
framework upon which Mitie’s risk cutture is buitt. Emphasis is placed
on the importance of embedding sk management into all key
dedisions, such that opporturities to grow the Group are effectively
balanced with effective risk management decision making. This means
that opportunities may continue to be exploted, provided risks have
been properly identified and the right comtrols established or; in some
cases, potential opportunities are declined if they sit outside the
Group's risk appetite.
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The Board continued

One Code sets out the expected behaviours for all employees and
supply chan partners and establishes 2ero tolerance n specific areas as
part of an established ethical business framewark. The Group continues
1o review and reaffirm its code of conduct with employees and supply
¢hain partners to ensure awareness of the vision, values and expected
behaviours s maintained.

Risk management processes

The Group's risk management framework provides a flexible and
adaptable approach to the identification of risk across all areas of

the business, to meet the dernands of the dynamic and fast evolving
environment in which the Group continues to operate. Ultimate
responsibility for risk management lies with the Board, delegated to
the Chief Exeartive Officer, who further delegates it to the Executive
Leadership Team, with agcountability and responsibikty assigned to
specific risk owners. The Group risk profile is reviewed by the Chief
Exeantive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and General Counsel &
Company Secretary in advance of formal review and approval by the
Board. This information is captured in risk registers at business and
functional tevel, as well as for large contracts, which are subsequently
consolidated into strategic. operational, financial and regulatory risk
categories within the overall Group risk register maintained by the
Group Risk function.

Risk identification and assessment

When considering the risks that pose 2 threat to the achievernent,

of the Group's strategy. the Board takes both internal and external
perspectives into account 10 ensure a thorough identification process
occurs. The internal view takes into account factors such as the changing
and developing business profile, operational processes, technology and
people, while the external view includes the economic environment,
political factors and sector and geographical risks. A top-down and
bottom-up approach ensures the systematic identification of significant
risks 1o the business. Once identiflied, risks are assessed using standard
impact and likelihood ratings to quantily the risk to the achievement of
business objectives. The Group employs risk management software to
help deliver its enterprise risk managemens agenda as well as erhancing
risk reporting and oversight. Risk registers ane formally reviewed twice a
year and approved by busmess unit Managing Directors.

Risk assessments are based on a ‘5 x 5’ scale ranging from minimat to
catastrophic, with any risks falling into the Group's upper kmits having
rmandatory mitigation plans with the expectation that these risks are
managed down to acceptable levels.

Risk mitigation

Each identified risk has a defimed control owner wha is responsible for
developing and implernanting a risk mitigation plan. As part of the risk
review process, #ach controf is required to be reviewed and formally
assessed for its effectiveness in mitigating risk. In order to strengthen
the oversight of risk managernert and internal control, audit and risk
governance meetings occur at a business unit level,

The terms of reference for the operation of these maetings are

aligned with the Audit Committee'’s objectives. The agenda requires
business units to review their top-level risks and the progress of
associated mitigation plans as well as assess any changes 1o the external
environment and their cansequent impact on business units’ risk profile.
In addition, reports firom the Internal Audit function and other internal
or external assurance providers are discussed, with the cbiectives ta
share best practice and identify common or emerging rsk themes.

Assessment of the effectiveness of the control environment is
undertaken at both business and Group leved. with the Audit Committee
formally reviewing performance throughout the year and advising on the
effectrveness of the risk management system in place,
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Risk monitoring and review

Principal risks to the business and assoaated mitigation plans
are presented 10 the Audit Cormittee and are monitored on
an ongoing basis.

The risk management framework is designed io manage, rather than
eliminate, the nisk of failing to achieve the objectives and strategies

of the Group and can therefore only provide reasonable, andd not.
absolute, assurance against material risk and loss. The Board, through
the Audit Committee, considers the nature and extent of significant
rigks in setting the Group's strategy. Detals of the principal risks of

the Group are set out on pages 38 to 46. ht should be noted that other
risks are identified as part of the risk management process, but these
do not have a material impact on the Group's overall ability to achieve
business objectives. These risks are managed via the existing risk
management process.

The Audit Committee confirms that this risk management process has
baen in place throughout the reporting year and remams in place up 10
the date of approval of the Annual Report and Accounts. However, as
described, the process 1s continuing to evolve and will be subject to
review and improvement.

Whistleblowing

Since September 2017, Mitie has operated an independent.
whistleblowing service to enable employees, suppliers and third parties
to report any concerns or wrongdoing anonymously without any fear of
retaliztion. The service, which is managed by an independent service
provider, can be accessed via a freephone number. a free online app or
through the service provider’s website.

Details of the service are made available to employees via Mitie's Code
of Conduct and are displayed on Mitie's intranet and workplace posters,
Details of the service are also communicated to suppliers via Mitie's
sourcing portal and to other third parties via www.mitie.com.

The service and related internal procedures are structured 1o ensure
that all reports are reviewed and irvestigated independently from the
area of the business to which they relate, thereby minimising the risk of
conflicts arsing,

All reports are copied 10 the Group Legal function, which is intended to
ensure transparency and emable any trends across different divisions and
functions to be identified and addressed. An update on whistleblowing
activity is provided 1o the Executive Leadership Team as appropriate
and to the Board at each Board meeting.

Internal controls

The Board is respocsible for maintaining an effective internal contral
framework. Mitie’s system of internal control consists of financial.
operational and complance comrols.

The system covers both entity level and monitoring and oversight
cortrok, comprising business leadership review and direction, and
detafled process controls and control activities, which are embedded
in business processes. During FY 18/19. a comprehensive exercise was
commenced 10 review, improve and docurnent iniernal controls across
the Group.

Mitie’s policies and procedures are documented in the Business
Maragement Systern (BMS) and are available to management and
employees through an intranet portal. Divisional and functional
leadership teams ensure that controls are operating within the processes
and procedures, and that risks are being appropriately managed.



The Audit Committee conducts a review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control annually. This review is supported by a report
from the Head of Internal Audit and indudes a control assessment
exercise undertaken by Internal Audit in conjunction with the business
leadership teams. The review focuses on the key imernal comtrols which
manage the risks faced by the business. The Committee also considers
the results of the work completed by Internal Audit, which are reported
to it in regular updates, There has continued to be a significant number
of internal control weaknesses reported to the Audit Committee in
reports produced by the Internat Audit team. This is because the internal
audnt work plan is targeted at areas known, or suspected to have, weak
or ineflective internal controls, Remedial action plans developed by
ranagement to address any control weaknesses found are monitored
by the Audit Comrmittee to ensure timely closure of the actions.

Further detail on this can be found in the Audit Committee Report

on page 66,

Internal Audit

The Internal Audit function's authority and responsibilities are defined

in its charter, which is reviewed regularly by the Audit Commntee.

The Internal Audit function operates independently and reports directly
to the Audit Committee (administratively to the Chief Financial Officer).
This reporting line offers independence from audited activities and allows
the Internal Audit function to achieve objectivity.

The work of the Internal Audit function helps to prowide assurance

over the effectiveness of the Group's governance, risk and control
frameworks. The Charr of the Audit Committee oversees the
appeintment and removat of the Head of Internal Audit and assesses
the function’s performance against internal audit objectves. The annual
internal audit plan is approved by the Audit Committee All amendmerts
1o the approved annual internal awdit plan are communicated to the
Audnt Committee through pericdic update reports. The results of

each internal audit are documented in an audit report for internal
distribution and action.

The Chair of the Audit Committee and the Company's external auditor,
BDO LLP, have access to all internal audit reports issued during the year.
The Audit Committee also receives a quarterly report on internal audrts
completed in the peried, and reports from BDO LLP arising from its
audn work. These provide an independent perspective on the Group’s
internal financial control systems,
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Audit Committee report

Report from the

Audit Committee Chair

Audit Committee members

Mark Reckitt was the Chairman of the Audit Committee from

July 2015 until July 2018. Mary Reilly succeeded Mark as Chair of

the Audit Commvttee on 31 July 2018, having been a member of the
Comimitiee since | September 2017 Mary has a wealth of experience
as a non-executive dwectar and charing audit and risk committees.

She has extensve relevant and recent accounting. finance and
managenient experience. Mary's full biography can be found on page 52.

At the date of this report the Audit Committee comprises independent
Non-Executive Directors who are all considered appropriately

experienced to fulfil their duties,

Chair Mary Reilly from 3! july 2018
Mark Reckitt until 31 July 2018

Committee Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat

members  Phiippa Couttie from 22 May 2018
Roger Yates from 31 july 2018

Frequency of Audit Comimittee meetings

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Audit Committee met seven
times For the Directors’ attendance, see table on page 55. lnvitations 1o
attend meetings are normally extended to the Group’s external audntor,
the Chairman, the Senior independent Director, the Chief Executive
Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, the Director of Group Finance, the
Group Financial Controfier, and the Head of Imernal Audit.

The Audit Committee akko meets with the external auditor and the
Head of internal Audit without the Executwve Directors present,
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The current financial year has
seen further improvement in the
internal control and financial
reporting environment.

Mary Reilly
Chair of the Audit Committee

As Char of the Audit Cormemittes | am pleased 1o present my first
report to shareholders. { was appointed Chair of the Audit Cormittee
in July 2018, having been a member of the Committee since September
2017. | would like to thank my predecessor; Mark Reckitt, for his
leadership of the Committee and work with the Group during what
bad been a difficutt period with 3 number of complex and chalienging
matters being presented for the Committee’s consideration.

It is gratifying to report that continued further improvements have been
made by the Group to strengthen the internal control erwvironment,
improve the accuracy of financal reporting. and ensure consistency of
apphcation of accounting policy across the Group, incuding: N

+ An appropriate risk managememt and internal control culture is
being successfully embedded in each division through divisional audit
committees which are attended by the division's Managing Director
and Finance Director, the Head of Internal Audit, the Group Financial
Controiler, and other representatives or specialists as required. Gong
forward each divsion will present its key risks and mitigations along
with the status of any folow-up actions to the Audit Committee for
review at least once each financial year and more frequently should
circumstances require;
* The strengthening of the Group finance function is now largely
cornplete; this has become 3 funclion which is tapable of setting and
monitoring financial and accounting palicy as wel as supporting the
commercial and financial objectives of each dwision and the Group
as a whole: and
The size of the internai Audit team has been increased through
external recruitment bringing new external perspectives alongside
additional capacity. A comprehensive risk focused programme of
work has been successfully delivered in FY 18/19, and a similar
detailed plan for FY 19720 has been developed by the Head of Internal
Audit in consultation with management and the Audit Committee,
The outsourcing of the finance back office to Genpact was completed
during 2018; a second phase of work is now underway to rationalise,
simplfy and standardise processes across the Group to promote
efficiency and improved financial control. A key enabler of this phase
will be 10 move the Engineering Services daasion from a legacy finance
systermn oo the Group's SAP platform as well as more general
improvements to accounting and control processes.

-



Having joined the Board in September 2017, | saw the scope and impact
of many of the issues identified during FY 18/17. It is encouraging 10 see

the substantial progress that has been made since then and in particular
to note that in the main the matters preserited for consideration by the
Audit Committee, while often stilt complex and judgemental, are more
in the nature of those which would typically arse in a group of this scale
and with this mix of businesses and contracts.

Strategic report

tn addition to fulfilling its normal programme of activities this year the
areas of focus for the Audit Cornmittee have been:

* Ensuring the continued development of the Internal Audit function
by supporting recruitment and challenging the audit plan to ensure
maximum impact through alignment of audits with the risks faced by
each division and the Group more generally;
Assessing the judgements made by management in respect of
the acquisition and disposals made by the Group. In particular the
Audit Committee has assessed management's approach to and
assumptions made in respect of the valuation of intangible assets
assocated with Vision Security Group as well as the associated gain
on purchase, the gains and losses on disposals included in the income
staterment in respect of the disposal of Mitie Pest Control Limited
and the Sodial Housing business, and the provisions made for legacy
liabilities retained by the Group as part of the disposal of the Social
Housing business;
+ Evaluating the approach taken by management to support the

going concern and viability statements set out on pages 86, 87

and 47 respectively; )
* Considering whether the Annual Report and Accounts provide
sufficient information to understand the financial position and
prospects of the Group; and
Folowing the successful earty adoption of IFRS 15 'Revenue from
contracts with customers', considering the process foliowed by
management to assess the impact of [FRS 9 *Financial Instruments’
and to embed the accounting requirements of this standard and
IFRS 15 into the Group's monthly accounting processes.
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@ Further detail regarding the Audit Committee and its work can be
found on PG 64-67.

In conclusion, the Audit Committee can provide positive assurance to
the Board, that the Annual Report and Accounts, when taken as a whole,
is faw: balanced and understandable, and provides shareholders with
sufficient and appropriate information to enable an assessment of the
Group's position and performance, business model and strategy.

As Chair of the Audt Committee, | will be available at the 2019 AGM
to answer any questions about the work of the Audit Committee.

Financial statements

Mary Reilly
Chair of the Audit Committee

oy 258
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Audit Committee report continued

Key purpose of the Audit Committae

The Audrt Comrnttee provdes effective govarnance of the
appropriateness of the Group’s financial reporting and the
performance of both the Internal Audit function and the external
audntor: The Audit Cermmittee also supports the Board in meeting its
responsibilivies in respect of overseeing the Group's internal control
systems, business risk management. and related compliance activities.

@ The Audit Committee’s Terms of Reference are available at
www.mitie.comilnvestorsicorporate-governance,

The role of the Audit Commiittee in relation

to financial reporting

The prirmary role of the Audit Committee in relation to finandial
reporting is to review with both management and the external audror
the appropriateness of the half-yearly financial report and Annual Report
and Accounts, concentrating on, amongst other matters.

» The consistency of, and any changes to, significant accounting policies
and practices both on a year-on-year basis and across the Group;

* The dlarity and completeness of disclosures and the context in which
Staternents are made;

* The methods used to account for significant or unusual trarsactions
where different approaches are possible; and

* Whether the Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, is fair,
balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary
for shareholders to assess the Group's position and performance,
business model and strategy.

To aid the review, the Audit Committee considers reports from the
Chief Financial Officer and also reports from the exdternal auditor on
the outcomes of the half-year review and year-end audit.

Significant issves considered by the

Audit Committes during the yaar

The Audit Committee gives attention to matters it considers to be
important by virtue of their size. complexity. level of judgement required,
or potential impact on the financial statements and wider business
model, and rmatters pertaining to governance. idenification of the issves
deemed to be significant takes place following open, frank and challenging
discussion between the Audit Committee members, with input from the
Chief Financial Officer; the external auditor, the Head of internal Audit,
the Group Financial Controller, and other relevant Mitie employees.

The Audit Committee considered the significant matters set out
below during the course of the financial year. In all cases, papers were
preserted 10 the Audit Commities by management, setting out the
relevant facts, matertal accounting estimates, and the judgements
associated with each item, The external auditor provided a paper
setting out its views on each area of udgement

The Audit Committee discussed the papers with management and
sought the views of the external suditor on each matter. For each
area of judgement, the Audit Committee concurred with the
treatment adopted and any relevant disclosure presented inthe
Annual Repart and Accounts.

64 Mitie Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019

Revanue recognition

The Graup adopted IFRS {5 'Revenue from contracts with custacners’
from | April 2017. While this standard has in general reduced the level
of judgernent required in respect of revenue and profit recognition,

the Audit Committee has considered papers prepared by management
setting out the ongoing activity 10 embed this standard into monthly
reporting and contract performance measurement processes as well as
the approach taken to judgemental areas such as contract modifications,
mobilisation costs, pre-contract costs, and the recognition of revenue as
performance obligations are achieved,

Provisioning for legacy contractual Habilities

Under the terms of the disposal of the Social Housing business the
Group retained kabifity for certain contractual ssues for completed
contracts. Managemertt has made judgemends to arcive at the provisions.
recorded in the financial statements. The Audit Committee has
considered papers prepared by management setting out the basis

for these judgemerts.

Fair value of assets and liabilities acquired

During November 2018 the Group concluded the acquisition of Vision
Security Group Limited and its subsidiary companies. As required by
{FRS 3 ‘Business Combinations' the Group has carried out work to
assess the fair valus of the consideration paid, and the assets and labiities
acquired, Such an assessment includes the evaluation of intangible assets
whith were not previously recogrised by the acquired entities,

The Audit Committea has considered papers prepared by management
detalling the process, assumptions, and methodology applied 1o assess
the farr value of those intangible assets, the value of the corsideration
and the resulting income statement credit of £8.8m representing a gain
on bargain purchase.

The Audit Cormmitiee conaurs with the assessment made by
management in respect of these matters,

Assessment of the outcome of completion settiements
During the year the Group has completed the disposal of Mrtie Pest
Corttrol Limited and the Social Housing business and the acquisition

of Vision Security Group Limited. All these transactions indude a
completion accounts process for the final determination of the
consideration due.

These processes are ongoing and so the Audit Committee has
considered papers prepared by management detaling the current status
of each negotiation and management's assessment of the likely outcome.



Adoption of IFRS 9 and the potential impact of IFRS (6
The Group adopted IFRS 9 ‘Financia! instruments’ from | April 2018
and will be required 1o adopt IFRS 16 'Leases’ for the year ending

31 March 2020.

The Auwdit Committee has considered papers prepared by management
in respect of the impact of the adoption of IFRS 9, the potential impact
of IFRS 1€, and the disclosures made in Note | to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Audit Committee is satislied that the disclosures made within the
financial statements in respect of:

* IFRS 9 are sufficient to gain a proper understanding of the impact
on the Group of the changes in the measurement and disclosure
of financal instruments brought about by the adoption of this
standard; and

* IFRS 16 are sufficient to gain a proper understanding of the substanitial
change in the presentation of the Group's income statement and
balance sheet which will arise when this standard is adopted for the
year ending 31 March 2020.

Valuation of goodwill

The Group has made a number of acquisitions in previous periods
and carries goodwill as an intangible asset on its balance sheet in
respect of the businesses acquired (see Note 12) to the consolidated
fimancial statements.

The Group considers the carrying value of all goodwill on at least

2nh annual basis, or when an indicator of impairment has occurred.

The valuation and impairment review of goodwill is assessed for each
individual cash-generating unit (CGU) and considers the balance sheet
value of the gaodwill compared to the net presert value of the post-tax
tash flows that are expecied 1o be generated by that CGU. The
approach involves an estimation of the future cash flows expected to be
derived from each CGU and the selection of appropriate discount rates,
which are then applied to the cash flows to calculate a net present value

The assumptions underpinning the review of the carrying value of
poodwill were considered by the Audit Committee. The cash flow
forecasts used in the review were derived from the most recent CGU
budgets which have been reviewed and approved by the Board and the
long-term business plans of the Group.

The Audt Committee has considered papers prepared by management
detailing the assumptions and methodotogy applied to assess the carrying
value of goodwill. The Audit Committee concurs with the assessment
made by management in respect of this matter.

Other material accounting judgements

Management has continued to operate the structured process, first
introduced in September 2017, for the identification of material
accounting judgements made in arriving at the results. The judgements
with a significant actual or potential impact upon Group results are
presented to the Audit Committee for consideration

The Audit Commitiee has considered papers prepared by management
in respect of the following matters:

* The recoverabifity of trade receivabdes and accrued income;

* Disclosure of contingentt liabilities related to the Group's participation
in mutti-employer pension schemes:

Disclosures in respect of other contingent labifities;

Provisioning for commercial sattlements, disputes and other
contratctual habifties;

Provisions related to the indemnity provided as part of the disposal
of the Healthcare business during FY 16/17; and

* The need far provisions in respect of potentialty onerous contracts

*

The Audit Committee has reviewed the information provided by
management as well as the views expressed by the external auditor.
The Audit Committee concurs with the judgements made by
rmanagement in respect of the accounting for and disclosure of
these matters.

Use of Alternative Performance Measures (APMs)
The Company's performance measures contmue to include some
measures which are not defined or specified under IFRS.

. The Audit Committee has considered presentation of these additional

measures in the context of the guidance issued by the FRC in relatron
to the use of APMs, challenge from the external auditor, and the
requirernent that such measures provide meaningful insight for
shareholders into the results and financial position of the Group.

The Audit Committee concurs with the judgements made by
rnanagement in respect of the presentation of the APMs. Furthermore,
the Audnt Committee concludes that dear and mearungful descriptions
have been provided for the APMs used, that the relationship between
these measures and the IFRS measures is clearly explained, that the
IFRS measures are afforded equal prommnence 10 the APMs, and that
the APMs support understanding of the financial statements,

A reconaifiation of the APMs to the IFRS measures is provided n the
Appendix — Alternative Performance Measures on pages 163 1o 165.

Review of the Group's going concern and

viability statements

The Audit Committee has considered the evidence that supports the
Directors’ conclusion that the Group has adequate finandial resources
to continue in operation for the foreseeable future and can therefore
prepare its financial statements on a going concern basss.

The Audit Committee considered papers detaifing management's
assessment of the praspeacts and performance of the Group induding:

* The future business plans of the Group;

= The potential mpact of acquisition or disposal activity and possible

changes to the composition of the Group;

The projected future cash flows of the Group;

* The availability of core and ancillary financing facilities and compliance
with the related covenants:

* The projected drawn positions and headroom available on the core
committed financing facilities; and

* Those matters reviewed in connection with the Viability Staterment.

The Audit Committee also reviewed and considered the disclosures

retated o going concern and viability in the Annual Report and Accounts
and considered them 1o be appropriate.

Details of the conclusions arrived at by the Directors in relation to
preparng the finandal statements on a going concern basis can be found
nthe Directors’ report: other disclosures on pages 86 to 87, as can the
detais of the conclusions arrived at by the Directors in assessing the
viability of the Group.

The more detailed assessment of the Group's long-term viability is set
out in the Viability Statement on page 47.
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Audit Committee report conrtinued

Internal audit davelopment and review of findings

During FY 17/18, the Audit Committee requested that Internal Audit
expand its scope of work to indude greater coverage of the commencial
risks and issues faced by the Group and the assotiatad mitigating
processes and controls. Additionally, a focus on the effectiveness and
consistency of controls contaned within Group-wide processes was
agreed. Following this request the size of the Internal Audit team was
increased. The Group continued to make use of Grant Thormton to
support the delivery of the [nternal Audit plan, utilising specialist
resource 10 assist in certan areas, notably IT audits.

The Irternal Audit programene during £Y 18/19 has induded:

* A review of the programme by the 15 and Legal funcuons 1o ensure
that the Company is compliant with the new data privacy (GDPR}
regulations, and how this has been embedded into the ongoing
activities and bugingss units; ’

* A comprehensive audit of the processes and procedures to bring

new employees into the Company, induding the relevast security

and vetting assessrmertts and induction processes; ’

An audit of the effectiveness of the controls and risk management

processes in the mobilisation of the new Detantion & Escorting

Services Home Office contract within the Care & Custody

division and

* A review of the projects business within the Engineering Services
division, which has undergone significant change during the year,
having absorbed the roofing and painting businesses from the former
Property Management division,

The Head of internal Audit reviews the content and focus of the Interna)
Audit plan throughout the year to ensure it reflects the risk profile of
the business, resulting in a number of amendments to the plan originally
presented to the Audit Committee in March 2018, This has, in part, been
due to the sale of the Social Housing and Pest Control businesses and
acquisition of VSG, as well as the significant amount of process and
organisational transformation affecting both the risk and control
processes. Al of the changes to the Internal Audit plan were
communicated to and approved by the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committae reviewed the updates provided by the Head
of Internal Audit at meetings throughout the year, which included
developmernts in the internal control enwironment, highlighting
improvements and areas requirng greater focus. During the year,
there continued to be a number of audits rated as unsatisfactory or
requiring improvement. which is refiective of the targeting of internal
audit activity 10 processes and areas whene internal controk are
suspected 1o require improvement.

The Audit Committee also monitored the status of the actons
undertaken by management to address the findings from internal audit
reports. Whilst the number of actions completed after the original
planned ciosure dates has not increased, there is still ore work to
be done to ensure that sufficient time and resource is assigned to
ompleting actions. The Audit Commitiee continues to menrtor the
closure of actions closely and challenge management to ensure they
are addressed on a timely basis.

Y
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Tax strategy

The Chief Financial Officer presented a paper to the Audit Committee
detailing the Group’s tax strategy and associated governance, planning
and attrtude Yo risk. The Audit Committee considered this paper and
was satsfied with the approach being taken by the Geoup.

External audit

Each year the Audit Committee reviews the performance of the
external auditor in respect of audit related services and non-audit
services and is committed to ensuring the independance, effectveness
and objectivity of the external audrtor.

External auditor effectiveness
The Audit Commitiee monitored the conduct and effectiveness of
the external auditor through its assessment of.

= The experiente, expertise and perceptiveness of the auditor;

* The planning and execution of the agreed audit plan and quality
of audit reports: and

* The conduct of the auditor induding the Audit Cormmittee’s
experience of interaction with the auditor.

In addition to receiving written reports from the auditor and

from management, the Audit Committee also conducted private
meetings with the external auditor and separately with managernent.
These meetings provide the opportunity for open discussion and
feedback on the audit process, the responsiveness of management,
and the eflactiveness of both internal and external audit teams.

Non-audit services provided by the external auditor
The Audit Committee has approved a non-audit services policy that
ensures the external auditor remains independent and objective
thraughaut the provision of its independent audr services and
when formulating its audit opinion, In order 1o retain the flexdbility
of utilising the extarnal auditor to provide non-audit services, the
Tollowing criteria must also be met,

These are such that the axternal audrtor does not:

* Audit its own work:

* Make management decisions for the Group;

» Create a conflict of interest; or

+ Find itself in the role of advocate for the Group.

The non-audit services policy identifies the varicus types of

non-audit services which might be required and determines the
analysis to be undertaken along with the level of 2utharity required
before the external audior ¢an be considered for such work. Further,
the pokicy is consistent with the Financial Reporting Councif's ethical
standards policy.

‘When considering the appointment of the external audror for
non-audit services, the followmng factors are taken inte account:

* The quality of work provided by the external auditor:

* Represertations provided by the external auditor regarding
independerce and objectivity, along with imernal controls
implemented when providing non-audit services;

* The level of the external auditor's understanding of the Group;

¢ The nature of the work being performed; and

* The commerciat and practical circumstances of particular types of
waork required.



A summary of the fees paid to the external auditor is gven in Note 6 to
the financial statements. The only other service provided to the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2019 was the review of the interim financial
statements. The Audit Committee considered reports from beth
managerent and the external auditor, none cf which raised concerns
about auditor independence. The Audit Committee confirms that the
requirements of the non-audit services policy have been met throughout
the year.

Appointment and reappointment of the external auditor
The Group undertook a competitive external audit tendering process in

2017 and BDO LLP was selected as the Group's auditor with effect from

19 September 2017, replacing Deloitte LLP.

Scott McNaughton is the lead partner on the audit for the year ended
31 March 2019 and was the lead partner in the previous year,

The Audit Committee considers annually the need to tender the audit
for audit quality or independence reasons. There are no contractual
obligations in place that restrict the Group's choice of statutory auditor.

The Audit Committee confirms that the Group is in compliance with
the Statutory Audit Services for Large Companies Market Investigation
{Mandatory Use of Competitive Tender Processes and Audit Committee
Responsibilities} Order 2014,

Assurance

In accordance with Internal Control' Guidance for Directors and section
C.23 of the Code, the Board performs a formal annual assessment

of the operation and effectiveness of the system of internal control,
covering all rmaterial controls including financial, operational and
compliance controts, and updates this assessment prior 10 the signing

of the Annual Report and Accounts.

These activities are monitored at executive level to ensure that control
changes are implemented appropriately and that they are effective.
The Head of Internal Audit oversees the application of control
environment improvements and attends Audit Committee meetings
to provide regular updates on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
tontrols and the results of the internal audit process.

Features of the internal control and risk management systems that
ensure accuracy and refiability of financial reporting inchude.

= A culture of good governance, integrity. competence. fairness
and responsibility;

* Group policies and procedures 1o support the business by
prowviding an operational internal control framework; and

* Clearly defined responsibikties, delegated in accordance with the
Group's delegated authorities and authorisation registers.

Accountability for internal controt and risk managerent systems is
devolved into each division and any control weaknesses within divisions
are investigated and resolved. Managernent and the Committee seek to
ensure that their cause is understood, and mitigating actions are taken
to imt the potentiat for recurrence. In view of the work of the Internal
Awudit function, management and the external auditor, it is considered
unlikely that a weakness within a particular division would have a
significant impact on the Group.

Review of whistleblowing processes

Part of the Audit Committee’s role is 10 ensure that appropriate
procedures are in place in relation 10 whistleblowing and to review
on an annual basis the Group's whistieblowing policy. The Group

has continued 10 operate its "Speak up’ service via an independent
third-party provider. Reporting of matters raised through this service
is to the Board of Directors.
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Nomination Committee report

Report from the Nomination

Committee Chairman

Nomination Committee members
At the date of this report the Nornination Cornmittee comprises:

Chairman _ Derek Mapp

Committee Phi Bentley unt# 31 March 2019
members  pyl Wool untdl 31 March 2019
Nivedita Krishnamurihy Bhagat
Jack Boyer until 31 August 2018
Philippa Couttie
Jeandfer Duvalier
Larry Hirst until 31 July 2018
Mark Reckitt untit 31 July 2008
Mary Reilly
Roger Yates

Frequency of Nomination Committee meetings
During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Nomination Commitiee
met twice. For the Directors’ attendance. see table on page 55.

In accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code (the Code),
membership of the Committee comprises a majority of independent
Nor-Executive Directors, all of whom are considered 1o be
appropriaiety experienced 1o fulil their duties. Phil Bentley and Paul
Wooll stood down from the Committee on 3! March 2019,

Key purpose of the Nomination Committee

The Nomination Comunittee evaluates the composition, diversity,
experience, knowledge, skills and independence of the Board and its
Comnmittees. This allows appropriate balance 1o be mantained and
ensures the continued effectveness of the Board.

The Committee considers the length of service of the Board as a whole
so that the membership of the Board is regularty refreshed, taking into
account the challenges and opportunrties facing the Group, and the skills,
expertise and diversity required for the future.
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Key responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
The key responsibilites of the Nomination Commttee include:

* To identily and nominate candidates to fill board vacances as and
when they arise;

T ensure plans are in place for an orderty succession to Board and
senior management positions and oversee the development of a
diverse pipeline for succession;

To keep under review the number of external directorships held by
each MNorrExeautive Director;

To review the results of the Board performance evaluaton process
that relste 10 the composition of the Board; and

To keep the Board Indlusion Policy under review to ensure its
eflectiveness and alignment with best practice.

@ The Nomination Committee’s Terms of Reference are available at
www.mitie.com/investors/corporate-governance.

Key activities during the year

Composition

As indicated in last year's report, Mark Reckitt and Larry Hirst stood
down from the Board on 31 July 2018. As announced in August 2018,
Jack Boyer stood down from the Board with effect from 31 August 2018,

As t does annually, and in light of the above changes, the Nomination
Commitiee reviewed the composition and leadership of the Board and
each of its Committees, The Nomination Comimittea is satisfied that the
Board's composition and diversity has been appropriate throughout the
year, having regard in particular {o the integrity, skills, knowledge and
experience of its Directors and the size and nature of the business.

A, skills matrix can be found on page £9.

In accordance with the Code, al Directors will stand for re-election at
the 2019 AGM.

Succession planning and taleat development

The Board recognises the importance of planning for the future and
the succession planning process. During the year, the Nomination
Committee considered the ongoing succession planning and refreshing
of the Board.

The Committee also reviewed the work undertaken within the business
during the year to identify, develop, engage and nurture talent across the
Group and in particular at the level immediately below the Executive
Leadership Teamn, the Group Leadership Team.

During the year, a full talent review was conducted, and work corntinues
10 wentify personalised developmant plans for those recognisedas
having the highest potential, The Committee also considered the work
underway 1o increase the performance and capability of the Group's
senior leaders. Firm foundations are now established within Mitie 10
build 2 more visible talent and succession process.



Director time commitments

During the year, the Committee reviewed the tme commitments for
each Non-Executive Director to ensure there are no conterns regarding
overcommitment. The review considered the number and scope of
appointments, as well as the size and type of company in which roles are
heid, the views of rajor shareholders and current published guidelines:
and recommendations.

The Committee noted the significant vote against the re-election of
Mary Reily at the 2018 AGM and the Company’s update statement
published on 31 January 2019 which can be found at
www.mitie.com/investors/corporate-governance.

The majority of the votes received against Mary's re-election were
attributable to one of the Company's major shareholders whose poticy
is Not 1o support non-executives with more than two other equivalent
positions with other companies or organisations. Non-executive
directors holding a posttion of chair of an audit committee are also

not expected to hold more than ane other position. '

Members of the Board have met with the major shareholder and have
sought to provide reassurance that Mary has sufficient time to dedicate
to ber duties. Director time commitments also formed part of the
discussion held with major shareholders at a shareholder dinner held

in March 2019,

The Board remains confident that all Board members have sufficient
tirme to dedicate to their duties.

Board diversity and inclusion

Mitie has a Group-wide Equality, Diversity and Indlusion Policy that
clearly states its commument 1o the inclusion and diversity of all
employees at all levels,

As an extersion to the Group-wide policy, during the year the Board
adopted a Board inclusion Policy, which recognises the importance of
Board mambership reflecting diversity in its broadest sense and sets
abjectives for diversity at Board level.

The Board, through the Nomination Committee, is committed to:

* Ensuring its membership reflects a combination of demographics,
skills, experience, race, age, gender, educational and professional
backgrounds which provides a range of perspectrves, insights and
challenges needed to support good decision making and reflects the
diverse workforce at Mitie;

* With regard to gender diversity, the Board maintains a balance so that,
as a minirmum, 30% of the Directors are women provided that ths
remains consistent with the skills and diversity requirements when
seeking a new appointment to the Board; and

* Supporting and monitoring activities to increase the percentage of
senior management roles held by women and other
under-represented groups across Mrtie.

The Committee is pleased to report that as at 31 March 2019,

509 of the Board is female. 1t is the Board's intention that female
representation on the Board will be maintained at a level higher than
that recommended by the Hampton-Alexander review, although it 15
recognised that there may be periods of time when the balance falls
below during the search and recruitment process.

Across the Group female employees account for ¢.32% of the
workforce. 11% of the Executive Leadership Team, and 24% of the
Group Leadership Team are female.

During the year, Phil Bentley set a strategic objective to increase the
number of women in science. technology. engineering and mathematics
{STEM) roles across the Group. Ta support this objective, the Group
has joined the WISE carmnpaign which enables and energises people in
business to increase the participation, contribution and success of
wornen in STEM. The partnership will help us to generate and share
fresh insight and about the causes of and solutions to gender
imbalance in STEM = from dassroom to boardroom. It also cements
our comimitment to making Mitie a great place to work, demonstrating
our value of ‘our diversity makes us stronger”.

Further details of the Group's commitment to diversity and the diversity
of Mitie's people can be found in the sustainability section of cur website
at www.mitie.com.

Derek Mapp

Chairrnan of the Nominatign Committee

Disclosure Committee

Overview and purpose

The Disclosure Comwmitiee assists and informs the decisions of
the Board concerning the identification of inside information and
makes recommendations about how and when the Company
should disclose that information in accordance with the
Company’s discicsure policy.

The Chairman of the Disclosure Commyttee s the Chief
Executive Officer and the other members of the Committee
are the Charman of the Board, the Chief Financial Officer,
the General Counsel & Company Secretary and the Group
Legal Director.

The Committee met once during the year 10 approve the
announcement relating to the sale of Mitie Pest Control Lirnited.

Skl Mepp  Bentey  Wooll  Kbigw  Coun Dl My Yew
Leadership and business operations & & & < @ & & &
Strategy development & <3 < & <9 =
Corporate governance & & & & < & <] 1<
Audit/risk management and assurance & & <9 ] “
Remuneration/HR & &
Commercial @ & & & & & &
Technology/digital < <

Finance & ] & 11 & 1<
Investment community © 4
Public sector experience & &

Mitie Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019 69

Strategic report

[
i
C
=
=
c

Covs

Financial statements



Directors’ remuneration report

Statement from the

Remuneration Committee Chair

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased ta present the Directors’
remuneration report for the year ended 3| March 2019,

| was pleased to be appointed as Chair of the Remuneration Committee
from 31 August 2018. My thanks go 10 jack Boyer, who served as Chair of
the Committee from October 2014, for his support when | took over
the role.

The report is split into three main parts:
= Executive s ation at a gl This sets out 2 surmmary of

our approach, including how we intend to operate under our policy
and remuneration outcomes during the year:

+ The Annhual Report on Remuneration. This provides more detail
on the above, as well as setting out other remuneration-refated
disclosures;

Summary of our policy. Our existing policy was approved by 99.7% of
sharehalders at the 2018 AGM and { would like to thank shareholders
for therr continued support. No changes are proposed 1o our policy
this year and a summary of the policy has been included on pages 71
10 73. The full Policy approved at the 2018 AGM is available on our
website (www.mitle 1l s/corporate-governance) and in
the Annual Report and Accounts 2018.

The Remuneration Committee has addressed a number of issues during

the year. | have described below the approach the Committee has taken,
together with the context in which key decisions were made.
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We are committed to
providing remuneration that
is both fair and reflective
of Company performance.

Jennifer Duvalier

Chair of the Remuneration Committee
Remuneration decisi and out

Salary

With regard to fixed pay. it has been agreed that salaries for the
Executive Directors will not be increased for FY 19720 and s¢ wikk remain
£900.000 for Phil Bentley (since appairtment in November 2016) and
£430,000 for Paul Woolf (since appsintment i November 2017).

FY 18/19 bonus

The Committee assessed outcomes over the period with respect to
operating profit, organic revenue, Net Promoter Score (NPS), employee
engagement and individual performance and determined that bonuses
of 79.4% and 78.4% of the maximum were appropriate for Phil Bentley
and Paul Woolf respectively. Achievement against these measures is
described in more detail in the Annual Report on Remuneration.
furthermore, the Commitiee challenged itself 1o ensure that these
bonus outcomes were appropriate in the round and was comfortable
that these bonus levels are commensurate with strong organisationat
and individual performance.

2006 LTIP awards

Following his appointment, Phil Bentiey received a Long Term Incentive
Plan (LTIPY award in November 2016. This award vests subject to the
extent to which the annual bonus targets that apply for FY 17/18, FY
18/19 and FY 19720 are met and a bonus paid. In the event Phil earns a
bonus in one of these years, 25% of the award vests, with 67% vesting if
2 bonus is earned in two of the years and full vesting if a bonws s earned
in all three years. In any event, no vesting will actually ocour unitil 2020.
The bonus targets that applied for FY 17/18 and FY 18/19 are deemed to
have been met and therefore a bonus in two of the three years has been
achieved 1o date

Incentives approach for FY 19/20
For FY 19/20, incertive opportunities witl remain the same for Phil
Bentiey and Paul Woolf. For bonus, this will be 160% and 120% of salary
wely. For LTI, this will be 200% and 150% of salary respectively.
For the FY 19720 bonus, we will have the same spiit of financial and
strategic targets. The mix of measures will be as follows: 35% organic
revenue growth; 35% operating profit; 10% on receivables; 10% on
individual objectives; and 10% on other strategic targets. For the LTIF. we
will continue 10 use 50% adjusted EPS and 50% cash conwersion targets.




The Remuneration Committee

The members of the Remuneration Committee are all Non-Executive
Directors. During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Committee met
five times. For the Directors’ attendance, see table on page 55.

The Committee has responsibility for determining the remuneration

of Mitie's Executive Directors and the Chairman, taking into account the
need to ensure Executive Directors are properly incentivised to perform
in the interests of the Company and its shareholders. The Committee is
also responsibie for setting the remuneration for other senior execautives,
induding at least, the Executive Leadership Team.

@D The Committee’s terms of reference are available at
www,mitie.com/finvestors/corporate-governance.

The Committee regularly consufts with the Chief Executive Officer
and the Group HR Director on various matters relating to the
appropriateness of rewards for the Executive Directors.

However, the Chief Executrve Officer and other Executive Directors are
not presertt when matters relating directly ta ther own remuneration
are discussed. This is also the case for other executives attendmg
Commitiee meetings.

The Company Secretary attended the meetings as Secretary to the
Committee. The Chief Executive Officer and Group HR Director
attended the meetings by invitation only.

Corporate governance developments

The Committee noted with nterest corporate governance
develcprments during the year. In particular. the updated July 2018 UK
Corporate Governance Code introduced a number of requirements
which apply 1o the Company from { April 2019. We are very mindful of
these developments and will report to shareholders in our 2020 Annual
Report on Remuneration on our approach and polidies (e.g, pension
provision and post-cessation shareholding requirements).

Conclusion

We will be seeking approval for the Directors’ remuneration report
(advisory vote) at the 2019 AGM. | welcome your views and feedback
on the report.

Jennifer Duvalier
Chair of the Remuneration Commitiee
Jenniferduvaler@mitie.com

Key features of our remuneration policy

(46

Our philosophy — The Committee believes in an approach to executive pay
which is commensurate with value creation for shareholders

The table below highlights the key features of our policy and our approach which aligns the Executive Directors’ remuneration
arrangements with the shareholder experience. The full policy can be found on our website at www.mitie.com.

@ Track record @ Shareholding
in taking a guideline of
responsible 200% of salary

and appropriate
approach to pay
(e.g. exercise

of negative
discretion)

(N conjunction
with enhanced
malus and
clawback
provisions

(3 Bonus deferral (%) LTIP holding
— 50% of the period of two
bonus deferred years after
into shares vesting —
for at least five-year
two years time horizon
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Executive remuneration

at a glance

Key principles of the

policy

Mitie's remuneration policy is based on a number of principles:

@ Reward should

aligned with the
shareholder experience

The performance-related incentive
arrangements are designed to align the
interests of Executive Directors with
those of shareholders and to promote
the Group's long-term success.

_ @ The majority of the
package should be
performance-related

The majority of reward opportunity
Jor Executive Directors is provided
through performance-related
incentives linked to the Group's
strategic goals and taking account

of the Group's attitude 10 risk; reward
under these incentives is finked to both
individual 2nd Group performance.

@ The policy should
be comprehensive
and simple

The overall remuneration policy

is designed to be comprehensive
without becoming overcomplicated
and to encourage Executive Directors
10 concentrate on profitable growth.

Summary of remuneration policy

Executive Directors' remuneration is made up of the following elements:

90090

Executive incentives and link to

The following table sets out how the intended measures across the incentive plans for FY 19220 support the Group's strategy and KPls:

Sustained and Stwrong cash.
renewed praflt growth Qualicy cient base generative b ndi b Other stratagic targets
& 35% operstirg & 35% organic & 0% reduction in & 10% individua! & 10% other srategic
Annual bonus e ¥ \
[TIP & 50% adsted EPS & 50% cash comversion
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All employee incentive arrangements

The Company also aperates SAYE share option and Share Incentive Plan arrangemems. allowing employees to participate in share ownership and
10 share in corporate success over the medium term.

Summary of how we intend to operate our policy for FY 19720

This table summarises the approach for remuneration arrarn

for Executve Directors (Phil Bentley as CEO and Paul Woolf as CFO) for

FY 18/19 under the policy approved by shareholders at the 2018 AGM. alongside how we intend to apply our policy in FY 19720,

At a gtance FY 18/1% FY 1920
Bas ary CEO: £300.000 CEC: £900,000
e sal CFO: £430,000 CFO: £430,000

Maximum bonus
opportunity

CEC: 160% of salary
CFO: 120% of salary

CEQ: |60% of salary
CFQ: 120% of salary

Bonus deferral

50% of bonus deferred into shares which
vest after at least two years

50% of borws deferred into shares which
vest after at least two years

Bonus performance
measures — mix

70% financial, 30% strategic

70% financial. 30% strategic

Bonus performance
measures — metrics

Financial, organic revenue growth, cperating profit
Strategic: Net Promoter Score (NPS), employee
engagement, indridual

Mixc 35% organic revenue growth, 35% operating
profit. and 10% each on customer NPS. employee
engagernent and individual strategic objectives

Financial. organic revenue growth, operating profit
Strategic: reduction in recewvables, indnidual, other
strategic

Mix: 35% organic revenue growth, 35% operating

profit. 10% reduction in receivables and 10% each
on individual objectives and other strategic targets

! CEQ 200% of salary CEO: 200% of salary
?;;énr:\tl:::itl;TlP CFO. 150% of salary CFO: 150% of sabary
LTIP performarice 50% adjusted EPS and 50% cash conversion 50% adjusted EPS and 50% cash conversion
measures
LTIP holding period of ~ Shaces released after at least five years Shares released after at least five years
two vears after vest {vestmg after three years plus two-year (vesting after three years plus two-year
ye holding period) holding period)

Share ownership
requirements

200% of salary

200% of salary

Malus and clawback
provisions

As per policy approved by shareholders at 2018 AGM  As per policy approved by shareholders at 2018 AGM
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Executive remuneration
at a glance continued

Summary of remuneration outcomes for the year ended 31 March 2019
The following prowides a surnmary of incenteve outcomes and the single total figure of remuneration for Executive Directors. Full details can be found
fater in our Annual Report on Remuneration,

Annual bonus in respect of FY 18/19

The Committee assessed outcomies over the period with respect to operating profit, organic revenue, Net Promoter Score (NPS), employee
engagement and individual performance and desermined that bonuses of 79:4% and 78:4% of the maximum were appropriate for Phil Bertley and Paul
Woolf respectively. Achievement aganst these measures is described in more detall in the Annwal Report on Remuneration. Furthermore, the
Committee challenged itseif to ensure that these bonus outcomes were appropriate in Lhe round and was comfortable that these bonus levels are
commensurate with strong organisatronal and indwvidual performance. Please see table on page 74 for further detail.

2018 LTIP awards

Following his appomtment, Phil Bentiey received an LTIP award in Novemnber 2016, This award vests subject 1o the extent to which the annual bonus
targets that apply lor FY 17/18, FY 18/1% and FY 19720 are met and a bonus paid. In the event Phil earns a bonus in one of these years, 25% of the award
vests, with 679 vesting if a bonus is earned in two of the years and full vesting if a bonus is earned in all three years. in ary event, no vesting will actually
occur untl 2020, Paul Woolf does not hold any 2016 LTIP awards. The bonus 1argets that applied for FY 17718 and FY 18/19 are deemed to have been
met and therefore a bonus in two of the three years has been achieved 1o date,

Single figure for FY 18/19
The table below reports a single figure of total remuneration for each of the Executive Directors for the financial year ended 31 March 2019 and their
" comparative figures for the finandial year ended 31 March 2018.

Phil Bentley
[ 01 £ 208
@ Salary 900,000 @ Salary 500,000
@ Benefits 25,406 @ Benefits 254%
@ Persion 180,000 @ Pension 180,000
@ Bonus 1,143,542 @ Bonus -
Total 2,248,948 Total 1,102.54%

Paul Woolf
L o1y 4 018
@ Salary 430,000 @ Salary 166,136
@ Benefits 1L,T1é @ Benefits 686
@ Pension 43,000 @ Pension 16614
@ Bonus 404,609 @ Bonus -~
Total 879,315 Total 183436

None: Paul Woolf joined the Conpan;:nd Board as Chief Financial Officer on 13 November 2017 and the information above for 2018 comprises his earmings from that date to
31 March 2018. Both Phit Bentiey and Paul Wooll waived their FY 12/18 bonws and there were no LTIP pay-outs for them in 2018 and 2019,

Further information on the above is provided in the Annual Report an Remuneration,
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Annual Report
on Remuneration

Strategic report

Executive Director remuneration (subject to audit)
The table below reports a smngle figure of total remuneration for each of the Executive Directors for the financial year ended 31 March 2019 and their
comparate figures for the financial year ended 3t March 2018.

Year Salary B fi Pentl A I b LTIP Total
Phil Bertiey 019 €900000  £25406  £180,000 (1,143,542 = €2,248,948 .
018 £900000 £2549 £180,000 - - £1102549 g
Paud Woolf 019 £430,000 T1.716 4,000 (404609 = 11908 €
018 €166136 €686 £16614 - - 18343 S
Total 2019 G.128273
018 £1533216

Notes: )

Paul Woolf joined the Board as Chief Financal Officer on 13 Novernber 2017 The information in the 1able for 2018 above confirms he earmings as an Executive Dwettor from that date.
The diﬁ:ren_:g !;thewuls for 2018 s attributable to earrings for former Executive Director, Sandip Mahajan, between | April 2017 and his resgration from the Board on 13
November 20i

Benefits refate to the cost 10 the Group of private medical cover. car allowance and financaltax planning advice.
ﬂnpmbmdndsdmdamcowmﬂwmsinﬁeudpensimcomﬁbmionsforPhiBquochf:alarymdfchWndra 10%. of salary.

Bonus rsgu:mf fmmdyurr\dudswdefen'eddmmmfuevﬂuealﬂndaeofmdFurt)\erunfm;onabomhowmel:vdofﬂ»emrdforthemr
ended 3| Mardh 2019 was determined & provided on pages 76 and 77.

For any new Executive Director appomntments, the Remuneration Committee will consider the alignment of pension arrangements with the
wider workforce.
Non-Executive Director remuneration (subject to audit)

The fees for the Non-Bacutve Directors for the financal year ended 3| March 2019 and their comparative figures for the financial year ended 3| March 2018 are set
ount below:

:
i
3
:

201y 2018

£800 £000

Derek Mapp' 215 201
Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat 52 43
Jack Bayer? 25 &0
Phiippa Couttic 52 20
Jennifer Duvaker? 57 35
Larry Hirst 20 59
Mark Reckrtt* 0 [21]
Mary Reiily* 57 30
Roger Yates' 59 5
Total’ 567 575

Notes:

* All amounts were paid in cash and no other benefits were received in the year. The difierence in the total for 2018 is attributable 1o fees for former Non-Executve Director,
Roger Matthews, between | April 2017 and his stepping down from the Board on 26 pdy 2017,

I. Derek Mapp joined the Board on 9 May 2017 ag Chairrnan-elect and took over as Chairman and Chairman of the Nomination Committee at the AGM on 26 July 2017,

2 Jack Boyer resigned from the Board on 31 August 2018,

3. Jennifer Duvaker assumed the role of Chair of the Remuneration Committes upon jack Boyer's resignation.

4 Larry Hirst retired from the Board on 31 july 2018.

5. Mark Reckett resigned from the Board on 31 july 2018

6. Mary Reilly assumed the role of Chair of the Audit Committee upon Mark Reckitt's resignation.

7. Roger Yates assumed the role of Senior Independent Director upon Larry Hirst's retirernent.
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Directors' remuneration report continued

Annual Report
on Remuneration continued

Base salary and benefits
Commencing | November 2016, and to be first raviewed in April 2020, the annual base salary for Phil Bentley is £900,000.

Commencing 13 November 2017, and reviewed in April 2018, the annual base salary for Paul Wool was £430,000. The review of Paul Woolf's base
salary n April 2019 resuited in no change in base salary.

Benefits are as described in the nates to the Executive Director remyneration table on page 75. Na changes in benefits are planned for the year ending
31 March 2020.

A review of Non-Executive Director fees was undertaken by the Board in March 2019 which resulted in no change to fees.

2019 2018
£'000 £000
Chairman fees? 215 25
Non-Executive Director core fees® 52 52
Additional fees:
Senior independent Director 7 7
Chair of a Commitiee .3 8
Notes:

{ The core fees of £52,000 per annunn paid 10 each Non-Exscutive Divecwor (inciuding the Charman) will total £312.000 for the ending 31 March 2020 Total fees moluding
mmnm-esmmmmmmmmohmngmasMarc'b"%ozo(zssmo&mmuorwmwfmm%m

2 The Chairman's fee is inclusive of the Non-Exacutive Director core fee and no additional fees are pad to the Chairman where be i chairman or a member of other Cornmittees
3. for Non-E Directons. individhal fees comprise the tore fee and aditional supplemnental feas for the Senior independem Divector and for chaining Committees to reflect
the greater responsibility and time commitment required.

Annua! Bonus Plan
Annual Bonus Plan awards were made in respect of the year ended 31 March 2019 Phil Bentley was eligible for a maximum bonus opportunity of 160%
of base satary and Paul Woolf was eligible for a maximum borws opportunity of 120% of base satary.

The awards were structured by referénce to performance against a blend of finanoal (70% of the bonus opportunity) and strategic targets

(the remaining 30%). At the threshold level of performance for financial targets, 25% of the maximum bonus opportunity 15 due, 50% of the maximurm
bonus opportunity 1s due at the target level and 100% at the maximum level, Between these points the out-tum is determmed on a linear shiding scale
basis.

As the financial performance ranges excluded the impact of iIFRS 15 and acquisitions and disposals during the year, the performance ranges have been
adjusted for these impacts and the out-turn has been assessed by comparing the reported FY 18/19 results after the impact of IFRS 15, acquisitions and
disposals with the adjusted performance ranges:

Parformance Ad)wsted
maasure Weighting performance range Out-turn
Operating profit’ 35% of the gward €79 5m threshold The out-turn was £88.2m resulting in an outcome of 100% of the maximum
€83.7m target for this element, being 35% of the maximum bonus Opportunity.
£879m maximum .
Revenue? 35% of the award £2.15bn threshold The out-turn was £2.22bn resulting in an outcome of 41.2% of the maximum
£2.26bn target. for this efement, baing 14.4% of the maxinmumm bonus opportunity.
£2.37bn maximum
Customer Net 10% of the award + Ipts threshold The aut-turn was +22pts resulting in an outcome of t00% of the maximum
PFromoter Score + 3pts target for this element, being 10% of the maximum bonus opportunity.
+ 5pts sasionuen
Employee engagement 10% of the award + |ppts threshold The out-turn was +i2ppts cesulting in an autcome of 100% of the maximum
+ 3ppts target for this elernent, being 0% of the maximum bonus opportunity.
+ Sppts maximum
Individual strategic 10% of the award na The Committee considered performance against the strategic objectives set
objectives ourt below and deterrnined that the out-turn was [00% and 90% of the
maximum for the CEO and CFO respectively, being 10% and 9% of the
maximum bonus opportunity.
Notes.

1. Operating profit before other dems from continuing operations.
1. Revenue from continuing operstions
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The individual strategic objectives set for the CEO and CFO were as follows.

o

CEO g
Strategic objectives E
Strategy Drive business development agenda, with a focus on exiting non-core businesses and adding technology capability:

Strengthen batance sheet 10 reduce average net debit; and

Hezd external messaging for Connected Workspace demonstrating its value to dients.
Customers Champion the embedkling of unitary account management; and

Retention of top accounts,
Peopie Ensure leadership team stability and upgrade talent: and

Increase women recruited into Science, Technology, Engineering and Maths (STEM) roles.
Shareholder relations Maintain core shareholder support.

CFO

Stratagic objectives

Costs Increase cash from the ‘order to cash’ working capital cyce and reduce finance costs from the organisation as part of finance
transformation.

People Upgrade finance talent measured by an mcrease in the number of GLT/high-potential employees.

Customer/Technology Implement standard chart of accounts and unitary accourt management for Mitie's top 50 integrated accounts.

The bonus structure and assessment was as follows:

Financial performance Non-financial performance Total bonus payable
% of % of % of %of %ol % of
salary salary salary %of salary salary salary % of Total Deferred
at  payableat  payable at salary payable at payable st  payable at salary borus Cash shares
threshold warget  maxinmum payable threshokd target  maximum payable £000 £000 {000
Phil Bentley 28% 56% 1126 79% 0% 29% 48% 48% 1143542 521,771 571.771
Paul Woolf 1% 41% 4% 59% 0% 18% 36% 35% 404.609 202305 202304

The Annual Borvus Plan will be operated on similar terms for the year ending 31 March 2020. Phil Bentley's maximum bonus opporturity for FY 19720 will
remain at 160% of base salary and Paul Wioolf's at 120% of base salary. Awards will be payable by reference to performance against a blend of financial
{70% of the bonus opportunity) and strategic targets (the remaining 30%). However. if none of the financial targets have been achieved. no bonus will be
payable by reference only to the stratagic targets. 50% of any bonus entitlement will be deferred. The targets are at present commercialty sensrtive and
s0 are not disclosed n this report. However, as above, details of the targets will be disclosed n next year's report.

LTIP awards granted in 2018 (subject to audit)
On 2 August 2018, the following conditional LTIP awards were granted 1o the Executive Directors:

2
£
g
3
5

Number  Face value Performance Performance % vesting
Award Type of shares' (£'000) % of salry conditions period at threshold
Phil Bentley Performance Nilcost 1180327 1,800 20096 Performance X
LTIP Aug 18 options conditions are Three ﬁmnoali 5%
Paul Woelf Performance Nilcost 422950 éas 150% setoutinthe 31 March 2021
LTIP Aug 18 optons table below

Notes

1. Number of shares was calqulated based on the average dosing share price for up to five business days preceding the date of grant ghng a share price of 152.50p

LTIP awards granted in 2018 were simplified to two performance measures, adjusted EPS and cash conversion. These awards will vest in 2021
condrtional on performance against the following measures:

Performance Vesting of portion of the sward

measure Weighting Performance range (performance period three years ending 31 March 2021}

Earnings Per 50% of 5% - 12% pa Zero vesting if EPS growth, as adjusted by the Committee as appropriate, is less than 5%
Share (EPS) the award pa. If EPS growth is equal to 5% pa, 25% of the award will vest. If Mitie achieves EPS
growth growth of 8.5% pa, 70% of the awerd will vest. if EPS growth of 12% pa or more is

achieved, all the awards will vest. Between 5% and 8.5% and B.5% and 12%, the proportion
of awards vesting will be determined on a inear skding scale basis.

Cashconversion  50% of 75% — B5% pa Zero vesting if cash conversion is less than 75% pa. At 75% pa cash conversion, 25% of the
the award award will vest. 709 of the award will vest if Mitie achieves B0% pa cash corwersion. Full
vesting for this portion will occur sf B5% pa cash conversion is achieved. Between 75% and
80% and 80% and 85%, the proportion of awards vesting will be determined on a linear
shiding scale bass.

To reflect the impact of any changes in or adoption of new IFRS accounting standards, the Committee will consider adjusting financial targets
appropriately for subsisting LTIP awards, ensuring that they are not materially easier or harder to satisfy than the orginal targets. Any amended targets
determined by the Committee will be disclosed to shareholders in the next Directors’ Remuneration Report.
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Annual Report
on Remuneration continued

The grant of 2019 LTIP awards 1o the Executive Directors will be made in due course. The performance conditions that apply to the awards follow
the sarne construct as in 2048 with two measures: {i) EPS; and () cash conversion, each atcounting for 50% of the award with tha following
performance conditions:

Performance Vesting of portion of the award
Mmeasure Weighting Performance range (performance period three years ending 31 March 2021)

Per 50% of 5% - (0% pa Zero vesting if EPS growth, as adjusted by the Cormrnittee as appropriate. is less than 5%
Share (EPS) the award pa. If EPS growth is equal to 5% pa, 25% of the award will vest. if Mitie acheves EPS
growth growth of 7.5% pa, 70% of the award will vest. ¥ EPS prowth of 10% pa or more is

achieved, all the awards will vest. Between 5% and 7.5% and 7.5% and’ 10%, the proportion
of awards vesting will be determined on a finear sliding scale basis

Cash conversion  50% of BOX ~ 90% pa Zero vesting if cash conversion is less than 80% pa. At BO% pa cash conversion, 25% of the
the award award will vest. 70% of the award will vest If Mitie achieves B5% pa cash conversion, Full
vesting for this poriion will occur if 90% pa cash conversion is achieved. Between B0% and
85% and 85% and 90%, the proportion of swards vesung wif be determined of a inear
sliding scale basis.

Details of July 2616 LTIP awards vesting in juty 2019
The Committee assessed the outcome of the July 2046 LTIP awards (based on FY 18/19 results before the impact of IFRS 15} granted under the plan
against a basket of performance measures:

Performance Vesting of portion of the award

measure ‘Waighting Performance range (parformance period three years ending 31 March 2019)

Earnings Per 25% of 3% ~ B% pa Zero vesting if EPS growth, as adusted by the Committee as appropriate, is less than 3%

Share (EPS) the award paﬁperforrnancerseqmlto3%pa.25%afmemrdmlvesLImeeuhwEPS

growth growth of 8% pa. all the awards will vest. Between these two points the proportion of

awards vesting will be determined on a linear siding scale basis.

Rielatrve Total 0% of Outperformance Zero vesting if Mitie's TSR growth is less than the madian of the index. If Mitie's TSR

Shareholder the award against the Business growth is equal to the median of the index, 25% of the award will vest and if it exceeds

Return (TSR) Support Services subsector  the index median TSR by (0% pa or more, all the awards will vest. Between these two
of the FTSE 330 points the proportion of awards vesting will be determined on a linear skding scaie basis.
Support Services index An underpin condition for undertying financial performance also apphies.

Stratagic 25% of Zera vesting if the strategic objectives are not met. Straight ine vesting between zero

qbjectives the award and maximusm based on Remuneration Committee assessmeat of performance against

o
Cash conversion  30% of 75% ~ 85% pa Zero vesting if cash conversion is less than 75% pa. At cash conversion of 75% pa, 25% of
the award the award will vest. 70% of the award will vest if Mitie achieves cash corversion of BO% pa

Full vesting for this portion will occur if cash conversion of BS% pa s achieved. Between
75% and 80% and 80% and 85%, thepmporbonoh«ardsvs«ngwuubedemmuedona
linear sliding scale basis.

Following a review of actual performance, under a formulaic outcome, there would have been no vesting under the EPS, TSR and strategic elements, and
sofme vesting under the cash conversion element. However, the Commitiee exarcised negative discretion and determined that these awards granted to
senior management should lapse in their entirety. No current Executive Director has July 2016 LTIP awards.

Details of November 2015 LTIP award vesting in 2020

Following his appointment, Phil Bentiey received an LTIP award in Novernber 2016, This award vests subject to the exten to which the annual bonus
tarpets that apply for FY 17/1B, FY 18/19 and FY 19/20 are met and a bonus paid, In the event Phil earns a bonus in one of these years, 25% of the award
vests, with 67% vesting if a bonus is earmed in two of the years and full vesting if a bonus is earned i all three years. In any event, no vesting will actualy
occur until 2020. The bonus targets that applied for FY 178 and £Y 18/19 are deemed 1o have been met and therefore a bonus in two of the three
years has been achieved to date.

Loss of office payments (subject to audit)

As set out in the Annual Report and Accounts 2018, Sandip Mahajan ceased to be a Director of Mitie Group pic and took up the role of Chief Financial
Transformation Officar on |3 Navember 2017, Full details of Sandip's departure terms were disclosed in the 2018 Annual Report and Accounts and 2
summary made available on the Company's website in the retevant Section 430(28) Companies Act 2006 statement.

Sandip left the employment of the Company on {2 November 2018 as indicated.
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Payments to past Directors (subject to audit)
There have been no payments to past Directors during FY 18/19 that relate to their period of employment as a Director.

Change in CEQ pay for the year compared to UK salaried employees
The table below sets out the change in remuneration of the Chef Executive Officer and Mitie's UK salared non-contract papulation, wihich is considered
the most appropriate group for comparison purposes.

fud Satary Benefits Boaus

Chief Executive Officer 00% 4.25% nm?

Awerage pay based on Mitie’s UK salaried non-comract employees' 783% 17.87% 194.26%

Notes:

|. Reflects the change in average annwal pay for salaried non-contract UK employees employed the two financal years ended 31 March 2019. Salaried non-contract
emplryees are those who are employed directly by Mitie Group and whose roles are nat dedicated to the pravision of dient services.

2 Indudes carfcar allowance, private medical benefit and private fuel.
3. Phil Bentley voluntarily warved the bonus payablke in FY 17/18

Relative spend on pay
The table below shows the total cost of remuneration in the Graup, compared with dividends distributed.

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
m im Change
Aggregate employee remuneration 1,244 1Lhig 112%
Equity dividends 4 5 180.0%

Assessing pay and performance
The table below provides a summary of the Chief Executive Officer’s single figure remuneration over the past ten years, as well as the pay-out and

vesting levels of variable pay plans in relation to the maximurn opporturuty. The chart below shows the historical TSR performance over the same period,

These indices {(FTSE 250, FTSE 350 Support Services and FTSE 350} have been chosen as they are widely recognised and Mitie has been a member of
these indrces during the period:

TSR {Rebased tc 100}
400 (—
350 —
0 [—
50 [—
200 [—
150 —
100 r . . M L N . L L . = N
March 0% March 10 March {1 Harch 12 March 13 March 14 March (5 March 16 March |7 Mareh |8 March |19
o Mite = FTSE 150 = = FTSE35055 -~ ~ FTSE350
2017
Rubyy 2017
' McGregor- Phil
w10 200 2012 013 2014 0I5 016 Smith' Bentley' 8 1009
Single figure

remuneration £1,703030 £2324443 £2431773 £2105031 £1447.266 £1525824 (2448161 £530428 £479073 £),102549 12248948

Annuat bonus
element (actual
a5 a % of max) 100% 100% 100% 85% 90% 50% 3% 0% warved waved 79X

LTIP element
(actual vesting
asa % of max) 100% 100% 872% 572% 0% 5% 695% 0% na nfa nfa

MNote:

I. Ruby McGregor-Smith stepped dawn a5 Chief Executive Officer on 12 Decernber 2016, Phil Benlley joined the Board on | November 2016 and assuned the positon of
Chief Executive Officer on |2 Decernber 2016. The figures above indude Phil Bentley's remuneration from | November 2016,
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Directors’ remuneration report continved

Annual Report
on Remuneration continued

Share ownership (subject to audit)

Number of Percentage Pei
shares Value of salary of target
owned as st ofta Target heldasat  acheevedasat Compfiance with share
3 March 2019 sharehokiwg 31 March 2019 3) March 201% ownership guidefines
Phil Bentley® 1,959,749 £1,800,000 926328 2% 216% Achieved
Paul Woolf 48967 £860,000 552,841 18% 9% Not achitved tut complant
Notes:
L Inchudes shares owned by connected persoas.
1. Value of target holding is 200% of base salary for Phil Bentley. In accordance Phit Bertley's service contract, he ired shares worth 400% of salary on 21 November 2016,
swmﬁsmwmedmw%hd&gmadbymemwudIkaonZl Nmmberzmé.m of =iy

3. InamordamewnhtheCompar\ysMMppdq Paul Wootf is required to budd and maintain, 1 the retention of wested share options, a sharehoidi

through of 200% of
base salery. His tarpet shareholdig is calculated using the average closing share price of 155.6p for the five business days prior L0 the start of the financal year ended 31 March 2019,

Directors' outstanding share interests (subject to sudit)
The foliowing tables provide the outstanding share interests for the Executive Directors:

Directors’ interests granted under the LTIP

Options QOgtions
outstanding Exerciced outstanding
Year of asat 3t March Granted in Lapsed inyeawr asat3I M Exercise  Earfiest nocmal
grant 018 yeart " year 0y price  exercise date®
Phil Bentley Nov 2016 879077 - - - &79,077 Nil-cost May 2020
M 20172 669,393 - - - 669,393 Nikcost 1 2020
Aug 2018 - 1180327 - - 1,180,327 Nij-cost Aug 2021
Paul Woolf Nov 2017* 143,269 - - - 143,269 INik-cost Nov 2020
Aug2018 - 422950 - - 412,950 Nil-cost Auvg 2021
Noates.
1. The cmer'n“_ tmhe‘ lrer J0L6 award run dre Wked 10 the adwevernent of 2 borws the three fimanciat 31 March 1020,
|rmmmmm of thesa of the mward vests. 67!veﬂsd'nbom.nsmﬁmm;mm&mhbmwﬁw%IMews

The bonus targets that applied for FY17/1 EandFYiBIWaredeunedwrwebemmmdmfmabmnmdmmmn has been achieved to date.
The performance criteria applicable to the 2017 awards were disclased in the previous Directors' Remuneration Report.

The performance criteria applicable to the 2018 awards are provided on page 77.

The market price of the Company's shares as at 31 March 2019 was 149.2p. The highest and lowest prices during the year were 196.8p and 105.8p respecuvaly.
Awrards are subject to an additionsl twa-year hokding period,

oW

Directors’ share ownership

Number of ordinary shares beuﬂcla.lz owned Number of ordrary shares beneficially owned
as st 31 March 1019 {or date of cessation H earlier) asat 31 March 2018 (nr&tedlppommemn'm:r)

Executive Directors

Phil Bartiey 1,999,749 1,852,656
Paul Woolf 48,987 48967
Non-Executive Directors

Derek Mapp 140,000 140000
Nivedita Keishnamurthy Bhagat ] 0
Jack Bayer! 5,000 5000
Philippa Couttie 0 o]
Jennifer Cuvabier 18,459 18469
Larry Hirst? 25,000 25,000
Mark Reckin? 4,000 4000
Mary Reilly 10,708 [
Roger Yates 50,000 [+
Notes,

I. ek Boyer resigned from the Board on 31 August 2018,
2. Larry Hirst retired from the Board on 31 july 2018,
3. Mark Reckitt resgned from the Board on 33 july 1048,
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Share dilution

The Company manages dilution rates within the standard guidelines of 10% of issued ordinary share capital in respect of al employee schemes and 5% in
respect of discretionary schemes. In cakulating compliance with these guidelines the Company alocates available headroom on a ten-year flat-line basis,
making adjustments for projected lapse rates and projected increases in issued share capital.

LTIP and deferred bonus awards are satisfied through the market purchase of shares held by the Mitie Group plc Employee Benefit Trusi. The potential
dilution of the Compary's issued share capral is set out below in respect of all awards granted in the last ten years under the Company’s equity-based
incentive schemes which are being satisfied through the allotment of new shares or treasury shares.

Share dilution at 31 March 2019

. Diutron
All share plans {maxsmum 10%) 57%
Discretionary share plans {maximum 5%) 23%

Shareholder voting

Mitie remains committed 1o ongong sharehalder dialogue and takes an active interest in voting outcomes. Where there are substantial votes against
resolutions in relztion to Executive Directors’ remuneration, the Group seeks to understand the reasons for any such vote, and will detail here any
actions in responsa to 1t

A resolution to approve the Directors’ reh'\uneration' policy as set out in the Annual Report and Accounts 2018 was passed at the Company’s 2018 AGM.
At the Comparny's 2018 AGM, a resolution was passed 1o approve the 2018 Directors remuneration report {excluding the summary of the Directors’
remuneration poficy). The results of the votes on these resolutions were as follows:

Viores in Vores
Number of votes favour againgt Withheld'
2018 Directors’ remuneration polcy — 2018 AGM 276.8m 08m Olm
9.7% 03% -
2018 Cirectors’ remuneration report — 2018 AGM 245 8m 310m 0%m
88.8% 2% -

Note
I, Votes withheld are nol counted in the caleultion of the proportion of votes lor or against a resolution.

Remuneration Committee and its advisors
The Remunerauon Committee seeks and considers advice from independent remuneration advisors where appropriate,

In September 2017, foliowing a retender process and the resignation of Deloitte LLP as Mitie's auditor, the Committee appointed Deloitte LLP as
independent remuneration advisors, The adwisors attended Committee meetings and provided advice and analysis of executive remuneration. Durng
their tenure, the advisors provide no other services 1o the Company (save in relation to services connected to executive remuneration and share plans)
and also comply with the Code of Conduct for Remuneration Consuttants. The advisors” total cost of advice to the Committee for the year was £57.950
(such faes being charged in accordance with their standard terms of business).

The Committee specifically considered the position of the adwvisors and was satisfied that the advice the Committee received from them was objective
and independent, given that they provided nc other services to the Company.
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Directors’ report: other disclosures

Directors’
report

The Drectors present ther Annual Report, together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and the Group. for the year ended
31 March 2019,

The Drrectors’ report required under the Companies Act 2006
comprises the corporate governance statemert on pages 53 to 69,
with both the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 70 to 81
and Strategic report on pages | 10 48 incorporated by reference,
The corporate governance statement on pages 53 to 6% fulfils the
requirement under Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules of
the Financial Conduct Authority (DTR) 7.2.1

For the purposes of DTR 4.1.8R, the management report for the year
ended 31 March 2019 comprises the Strategic report and this Directors’
report.

Listing Rule (LR} 9.8.4
The information required to be dsclosed by LR 9.8.4 can be found in the
following locations:

Page raference

Detalls of any long-term
Incentive schemes

Directors’ remuneration report on
pages 70 to Bl and Note 31 tothe
consolidated financial statements

Shareholder waiver Direciors’ report: other disdosures
of dividends and on page 86
future dividends i

No shareholder is considered a controliing shareholder as defined in
the Financial Conduct Authority Handbook

The remaining ¢isclosures required by LR 9.8.4 are not appicable to
the Compary.

Principal Group activities

The Company is the holding company of the Group and its principal
actvity s 1o provide management services to the Group. The Group's
activities are focused on the provision of strategic outscurcing

services, further details of which ¢an be found on pages 4 and 5 of

the Strategic report.

The Company does not have any branches registered overseas, but

the Company’s subsidiaries have regi ches across the United
Kingdom, Repubiic of lreland, Guernsey. Jersey, Beigium, Finfand, France,
Germany, Ghana, Kenya, the Netherlands, Nigeriz, Norway, Poland,
Singapore, Spain, Sweden, Switzerland and the Unrted Arab Emirates.
Details of the Compary's subsiiiaries are set out in Note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Given the nature of its activities, no material research and develapment
work is carried out by the Group.

The Board's view on the ikely future development of the Group is set
out in the Strategic report on pages | 1o 48, '
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Board of Directors

The names of all persons who served as Erectors of the Company at
any time during the year are set out on page 56.

Full biographical details, inchuding Committee membership and external
appointments, are set out on pages 50to 57.

- The Board considered the independence of all Non-Executive

Directors during the year and determined that. as at 31 March 2015,
all Non-Executive Directors continued to be independent in mind and
judgement. and free from any material relationship that coutd interfere
with their ability to discharge their duties effectively.

Director appointments

The rules governing the appointrent and replacement of Directors are
set out in the Company's Articles of Association {the Articies), the Code,
the Compames Act 2006 and other refated legislation.

Directors’ conflicts of interest

In accordance with the Artides, the Board has a policy on the declaration
and management of Directors’ conflicts of interests. Any potential
situanion or transactional conflict must be reported as soon as possible
to the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and General Counsel &
Comparny Secretary. Where a potential conflict is authorised under
statutory powers and powers granted under the Articles, such conflict

is kept under ongoing review,

Executive Direciors are permitted to accept appointments outside

the Group provided that permission is sought from the Chairman

ang Chief Executive Officer and that the additional responsibilities

do not interfere with the Director's ability to discharge hisher duties
effectively. Exetutive Directors are entitled to retain fees earned from
any external appointments. Neithar Phit Berrtley nor Paul Woolf held
any external positions during FY 18/19. Bxternal positions held by the
Chairman and Non-Executive Directors are detailed in their biographies
on pages S0to 52.

Indemnification of Directors and insurance

The Directors and the Company Secretary benefit from an indemnity
provision under the Articles. In addition, alt Directors and the General
Counsel & Company Secretary have been granted a qualifying
thirg-party indemnity provision as defined by Section 234 of the
Companies Act 2006, which has been in force throughout the year
and remains in force as at the date of this report.

Certain subsidary directors have also been granted a qualfying
third-party indennity provision which has been in force throughout
the year and remains in force as at the date of this report.

The Group maintains directors’ and officers’ kabikty insurance which

provides appropeiate cover for any legal action brought against the
Group's directors and/or officers.



Articles of Association

The Artides were adopted at the 2017 AGM. Any future amendment
to the Articfes must be made in accordance with their provisions, the

Companies Act 2006 and related legisiation. The Articles are available
at www.mitie.com/investors/corporate-governance.

Share capital

The Group is financed through equity share capital and debt instruments.
Details of the Camparnyy's share capital are given in Note 28 to the
consolidated finandal statements. Details of the Group’s debt instruments
are set out in Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company has a single class of shares divided intc ordinary shares
of 2.5 pence each (Ordinary Shares). The Ordinary Shares are entitled
to one vote each per share at general meetings and have no right to any
fixed income.

In accordance with the Articles, holders of Ordinary Shares are entitled
to partidpate in any dividends pro-rata to their holding. The Board may
propose and pay interim dvidends and recommend a final dividend to
shareholders for approval at an AGM. A final dividend may be declared
by the sharehalders at an AGM by ordinary resolution, but such dividend
cannot exceed the amourt recommended by the Board.

Powers of the Company to issue or buy back

its own shares

The Company did not allot any Crdinary Shares during the year,
undertake any market purchases of rts own shares or dstribute arny
shares from treasury. Exercisable awards under the Mite Group pic 201}
Save As You Earn Scheme and Mitie Group plc 2001 and 2011 Executive
Share Option Schemes were underwater during the year, and no awards
were exercised. The total number of Ordinary Shares held by the
Company in treasury as at 31 March 2019 remained unchanged at
7,748,108 {representing 2.1% of the issued share capital of the Company).

At the 2018 AGM, shareholders authorised.

¢ The Directors 1o allot Ordinary Shares up to an aggregate nominal
" amount of £914,842.64, representing 10% of the issued share capital
{excluding treasury shares) as at 12 June 2018;
The dis-application of pre-emption rights over allotted shares up to an
aggregate nominal value equal to £457.421.31 equating to 5% of Mitie's
issued share capital (excluding treasury shares) and 4.90% of the issued
share capital indluding treasury shares, each as at 12 June 2018;
The dis-application of pre-emption rights over allotted shares up to
an aggregate norinal value of £457421.32, equating to 5% of Mitie's
1ssued share caprtal {excluding treasury shares) and 4.90% of the issued
share capital including treasury shares, each as at 12 june 2018, in
connection with the financing (or refinancing, if the authority is to be
used within s months of the original transaction) of an acquisition or
specified capital ivestment; and
» The Comparny to make market purchases of its own shares up 1o
atotal of 36,593,706 Ordinary Shares (representing 10% of the ssued
share capital as at 12 June 2018 (exduding treasury shares)).

These authorities will expire on the earfier of 30 September 2019 or
the condusion of the 2019 AGM. A renewal of these authorities will
be put to shareholders at the 2019 AGM. Further details can be found
in the notes to the relevant meeting notice which can be found on
Mrtie's websiie.

Restrictions on the transfer of shares

The Company is not aware of any agreements between holders of its
securities which may result in restrictions on the transfer of securities
or voting rights. No person has any special rights of control over the
Company's share capital.

There are no specific restrictions on the size of any shareholding or
on the transfer of shares, which are both governed by the provisions
of the Articles.

Certain Ordinary Shares previously issued 1n consideration for the
acquisition by the Company of shares held by minority shareholders

in subsidraries of the Group under the Mitie Model have contrachual
restrictions placed upon them. These restrictions prevent recipients
from sefling those Crdinary Shares andfor attach clawback provisions,
which typically apply for a maximum period of two years from allotment,

Under Mitie's Rules on Share Dealing, persons with access to certain
confidential comparry information or inside information are required

to follow a clearance to deal procedure and may be restricted from
dealing in the Company’s shares. Persons subject to these requirements
are natfied indwvidually and appropriately informed of the rules,

Significant interests in the Company’s share capital
As at 31 March 2019 the Company had been notified of significant
holdings of voting rights m its Ordinary Shares under the Disclosure
Guidance and Transparency Rutes as set out below.

% of share

capleal ac the

Number of date of

Ordinary Shares notification

Silchester International Investors LLP 62210738 1700%
Aggregate of Standard Life Aberdeen plc 53532509 14.63%
FMR LLC 19717936 538%
Harris Associates LP. 18393003 5.12%
Brandes Investment Partners LP 18,117,242 505%
Heronbridge 18366728 500%

that occurred between the end of the period under review and
5 June 2019 the latest practicable date prior 1o the date of this report,
are set out below.

% of share

capital ax the

Number of date of

Ordinary Shares notification

Agpregate of Standard Life Aberdeen pic 56,214,197 1536%

Directors’ interests in the Compary's share capital are set out in the
Directors’ remuneration report on page 80,

Mitie Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019 83

Strategic report

=
c
e
[

i

Financial statements



Directors’ report: other disclosures continued

Dialogue with shareholders

The Board is committed tc ongoing and proactive dialogue with
shareholders. A full programme of formal and informal events,
nstitutional investor meetings and presentations is held throughout the
year. This programme of sharehoider engagement airns to ensure that
the performance, strategies and objectives of the Group are clearly
communicated 1o the investment community and provide a forum for
institutional shareholders 1o address any corporate governance issues.
The programme is led by the Executive Directors with support from the
Investor Relations team. The Chairman is responsible for ensuring that
the Board is made aware of any issues and concerns of major shareholders.

The Cornpary acknowledges that there was a significart minority vote
against one resolution at the 2018 AGM which related to the election

of Mary Reilly as 2 Non-Exeantive Director, 76.26% of votes cast were in
favour of this resolution. The majority of the votes received against were
attributable to one of the Company's major sharehoiders whose policy
is ngt to support non-executives with more than two other equivalent
positions with other companies or organisations. Non-executive
directors holding a position of chair of an audit committee are also not
expected to hold more than one other position. Mary Reilly currently
holds external appottmertts as set out in her biography on page 52.
Members of the Board met with the major shareholder and have sought
1o provide reassurance that Mary has sufficient time to dedicate to her
duties. The Board, through the Nomination Committee, regularty
reviews and considers the time commitments for each Director to
ensure there are no concerns regarding overcommitment. The Board
remains confident that Mary has sufficient time 1o dedicate to her duties.

The Board is regularty kept informed of any irvestor feedback,
swckbroker vpdates and detailed analyst reports, The Head of investor
Relatiors alsc updates the Board at every Board meeting as set out
under Board activities on page 57.

The Chairman and Senior independent Direclor are available 1o meet

with sharehclders upon request. All Directors were present at the 2018
AGM and wil attend the 2C17 AGM.

Mitie has a specfic area dedicated to investor relations on its

website (www.mitie.com) where the iterms below are made availabie
to sharehoiders:

* Latest Group information;

= Finandal reports;

* Corporate governance and sustainabiiity matters;

= Half-year and full-year resufts presentations;

* Major shareholder information, and

* All regulatory anncuncements.

Annual General Meeting

Shareholders are invited 1o attend Mitie's 2019 AGM, which will be held
on 30 July 2019 at 11.30 am at Linktaters LLP, One Silk Street, London
EC2Y 8HQ.

Employee involvement
Details of how Mitie encourages employee involvenent can be found in

the Strategic report on pages 34 1o 37
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Diversity and inclusion

The Board is responsible for drving the diversity agenda throughout

the Graup. During the year the Board adopted the Board Indusion Policy
as an extension to its existing Group-wide Inclusion Policy. The Board
Inclusion Policy indludes a commitment to mairdaining a minimum of

30% female representation on the Board as recommended by the
Hampton-Alexander review, provided that this remains consistent with
the skills and diversity requirements when seeking a new appoirtment to
the Board. Femnale representation on the Board increased from 36% at
the start of the year to 50% as at 31 March 2019.

The Group's approach to business is underpinned by a belief that

all indviduals should be treated fairly and have access to equal

opportunities. To attract, recruit. develop and retain the very best

people at sil levels, Mitie rs committed to respecting and embracing walent
and working 1o support a culture that is indusive and reflective of Mitie's
visions and values. Objectives of Mitie's Group-wide Indusion Policy
include that:

* No job applicant or employee will recerve less favourable treatment
on the grounds of sex, race, age, ethnic ongin. martal status,
pregnancy and maternity. civil partnership status, any gender
re-assignment, Feligion of bekef, sexual orentation, disabikty or
part-timeffixed-term work; .

* Inclusion, equality and diversity will be promoted within the
workplace; and

* An environment will be created where anyone believing they have
been subjected to discrirination, victimisation, bullying or harassment
in the workplace, is entitled and feels safe to rase such concerns.

in implementing the policy, Mitie:

* Ensures that all policies, processes, procedures and practices underpin
delivery of the Inclusion Policy:

= Cascades lessons learned and shares best practice throughout the
business; and

« \derufies key issues and recommends any changes.

During FY 8/19 five diversity networks were established. The networks

host a variety of face-to-face and virtual events and contribute 1o onlne
platforms designed to mteract and share ideas.

Diversity networks

Enable Raises awareness of disabdity-related topics across
the business, while offering support and guidance to
colieagues and bne managers

Engender ‘Works to engender equality for men and women
at Mitie

Generations Supports Mitie’s age-diverse workforce

Kaleidoscape  Ensures an indhusive working enviconment for people of
aHl ethrucities, and above all, ing Mitie's BAME
{Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic) talent acrass the
business 1o sucteed

Proud To Be 15 all about educating, informing and inspiring Mitie

employees to be themselves by promaoting an indusive
culture in the workplace, particularty around LGBTQ

In connection with the Group's wader diversity inttiatives and Inclusion
Policy, Mitie is committed 1o

+ Giving full and fair consideration to apphcations for employment
by disabled persens, having regard te their particular aptitudes
and abilities:
» Continuing the employment of, and arranging appropriate training for,
employees who have become disabled during their employment; and
+ The traning of, caneer development and promotion of
disabled employees.
in recognition of Mitie's diversity-related initiatives, Mitie was named
17th in the Excellence in Diversity Awards Inclusive Top 50 UK
Employers in Novernber 2018.



Culture

The "Mitie Way' of doing business and ‘One Mitie’ unniary approach of
working with clients cantinues to be advanced. The Mrhie Way has many
elements to it including purpose. vision, cutture, values and branding, and
covers all aspects of the business, from ‘who we are’ 1o ‘what we do' and
‘how we do it

Greenhouse gas emissions

Mitie is committed to reducing its carbon emissions and environmental
impact and has been actively recording and managing greenhouse gas
emissions (GHG) since 2010, when an ambitious target to reduce
Scope | and Scope 2 carbon footprint intensity by 35% was set.

Absolute emissions

The Group continues to report total GHG emissions annually using the
finandial control approach. The methodology used aligns with Defra’s
Environmental reporting guidelines and uses the Government's GHG
reporting conversion factors to quantify emissions.

For the ysar ended 31 March 2019, Mitie had reduced its ermssions
intensity by 374% against its FY 09/10 baseline and 4.1% against FY 17/18.

Absolute emissions have also decreased by 19.5% against the FY 09/10
baseline and 3.8% against FY 17/18.

Chanrge Change

FY 0910 apainst
Emssons {basekne) FY 12118 FY 1B/ baseline % FY 1I718%
Total Scope | (tCO,e)* 41,343 35,974 35,230 -14.8% -1.1%
Emissions from fuel combustion across fleet 49377 35272 T 34688 -139% -1.7%
Emissions from gas combustion at occupied buildings {excluding landlord sites) 1,066 702 512 “492% -128%
Total Scope 2 (tCO,e) ) 3,490 1524 8sT 75.4% 43.8%
Emissions from the purchase of electriity across occupied buildings
{excluding landlord sites) 3490 1524 857 -754% “A38%
Total Scope | & 2 (tCO,¢) 44,831 17,498 36,087 -19.5% -3.8%
Intensity

FY 09710 kA aﬁainst!
Ernssions ravo {bassdine) FY 17/i8 FY 1819 basebne % FY17h8 %
tCO,e/tm revenue (Scope | & 2) 26.07 17.02 16.32 -37.4% -4.1%

* Refrgeram data has been exchyded due to dificulties obtarning accurate data on landiord managed sites: however. this data is not considered material

Mitie's efforts to reduce its carbon ermissions focus on reducing the impact of 1ts fleet, which contributes 96% of s total Scope | and Scope 2 footprint.
Mitie has pledged to run at least 20% of its company small van and car fleet using electric vehicies by 2020. A fleet transformation project is underway to
standardise current vehides with newer, more efficient vehicles. Part of this project has been to ensure that all commercial vehicles are installed with

telematics to improve driver behaviour.

Further information on these cakulations can be found in the GHG methodology statement available on our website www.mitie.com.

Environmental data

Further details on the Group's environmental performance can be found in the table below:

Change Charge
2009/10 s:F:mst . aganst
(baselinz) 00718 01819 baseline %  previous year %
Energy
Electricity consumed across occupied buildings (kWh) 9.091.14) 5540091 3417254 -624% -383%
Gas consumed across occupied buildings (kwh) 7980537 4949461 3,261,106 -59.1% -34.1%
Fuel used by fleet for business travel (kWh) 184088382  154.681.158 148488776 -193% -4.0%
Total organisational energy c nption (kWh) 204,140,060 145,170,710 155,167,138 -22.9% -6.1%
Water
Water consumed across occupied buddings (m?) 29306 40012 28,106 -4.19% -298%
Waste
Total waste 1o landfill {tonnes) 989 336 23) -T766% -31.2%
Total waste recycled (tonnes) 447 54| 3n -170% -31.4%
Total waste generated across occupied buildings (tonnes) 1,436 a77 02 -S8.1% ~31.4%
Recyding rate 31% 62% 62% +31 ppts -
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Directors’ report: other disclosures continued

Political donations

Mitie has a long-standing policy of not making any politcal donations.
Howvever, it is possible that certain routine activities (incuding charitable
donations) undertaken by Mitie might unintentionally fall within the wide
definition of payments constituting political donations and expenditure
as set out in the Companies Act 2006. At the 2018 AGM shargholders
grarted the Campany and its subsidiaries authormy to make political
donations up 10 a total aggregate cap of £50,000 unti! the 2019 AGM.

A renewal of this authority will be put to shareholders at the 2019 AGM.

Significant agreements — change of control

There are a nurnber of agreements with provisions that take effect, alter
or terminate upon a change of control of the Company. such as bank
facility agreements and other financial arrangements and employee share
scheme rules. None of these are considered to be significant in terms of
their lkely impact on the normal course of business of the Group. The
Directors are not aware of any agreemerts between the Comparny and
its Directors or employees that provide for compensation for loss of
office or employment that occurs solely because of a change of control,

Financiat results

A detailed commentary on the operational and financial resuts of the
Group for the year is contained within the Strategic report, including
the Finance review on pagas 22 10 25.

The Group's profit before tax from continuing operations for the
finaccial year was £36.4m 2018: £15.4m loss).

Dividends

Aninterim dividend of |.33p per Ordinary Share (2018: 1.33p} with
a total value of €4.8m (2018; £4.8m) was paid to shareholders on
12 February 2019.

The Directors recommend a final dwvidend of 2.67p per Ordinary Share
(2018: 2.67p) with a total vakre of £9.6m (20(8: £9.6m) based upon the
number of shares in issue as at 5 June 2019. Subject to approval at the
2019 AGM, the final dividend will be paid on 9 August 2019 to
shareholders on the register as 21 tlose of business on 28 june 2015.

The final dividend of 2.67p per share recornmended by the Directors for
the year ended 31 March 2018 was replaced by an interim dividend of
2.67p declared by the Directors on 31 july 2018 as the Notice of 2018
AGM omitted a resolution seeking sharehoider approval of the final
dividend.

The ioial daderd per Ordinary Share for the year ended 31 March 2019
will be 4.0p (2018: 4.0p).

As at 31 March 2019, the Company had dsstributable reserves of £64.6m
(2018: £117.5m).

Mitie operates a Dividend Re-Investment Plan (DRIF) which allows
shareholders to usa their cash dividend to purchase additional Ordinary
Shares. Further detail on the operation of the DRIP and howe to apply
can be found on page 166 and are available from Mitie’s Registrar, Link
Assat Services,

The trustees of the Company's Employee Benefit Trust waived dividends
payable during the year and have agreed to waive future dividends.

In accordance with Section 726 of the Companies Act 2006, ne
dwidends are paid on shares held in treasury.
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Financial instruments

The Group's financial instruments include bank borrowing faciities,
finance leases, overdrafts, US private placement loan notes and
derivatives which are used to manage interest, currency and other
risks when necessary or material.

The principal objective of these instruments s 1o ratse funds for general
corporate purposes and to manage financial risk. Further detalls of these
instruments are given in Note 23 to the consolidated financial staterents.

Statement of the Directors in respect of the

Annual Report and Accounts

In accordance with the Code, the Directors confirm that they consider

the Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, to be fair, balanced

and understandable and that it provides the information necessary for

shareholders 10 assess the Group's posttion and performance, business

mode! and strategy. When arriving at this position the Board was assisted

by various processes inchuding the {ollowing:

* The Annual Report and Accourits is drafted by senior management
with overall coordination by the General Counsel & Company
Secretary 1o ensure consistency across the relevant sections;

¢ A review is undertaken to assess whather the Annual Report and

Accounts is fair, balanced and understandable using a set of
pre-defined indicators (such as consistency with internally reported
informatian, irwestor communications and relative performance n the
ndustry).

« Comprehensive reviews of drafts of the Annual Report and Accounts
are undertaken by the Executive Directors and other senior
rmanagement; . .

= An advanced draft is reviewed by the General Counsel & Compary

Secretary and external advisors, and

The final draft is reviewed by the Audit Committee prior to

consideration by the Board,

Details of the basis on which the Company generates and preserves
vahse over the longer term and the strategy for defivering the Company's
objectives are set out in the Strategic report

Going concern

The Directors acknowledge the Financial Reporting Coundil's ‘Gudance
on Risk Management, Internal Control and Related Financial and Business
Reporting' issued in September 2014. The Directors have considered
principal risks and uncertaintes affecting the Group which are described
on pages 38 to 46.

The Directors have considered the Group's finandal position which
incorporates the Parent Cormnpary with reference 1o latest forecasts and
the actual performance for the periad. The Group benefits from a
well-diversified portfolio of service offerings and has a broad, dverse
customer dase,

The Group currently operates well within the financial covenants
associated with its committed fundmg bnes. These include £191.5m of
US Private Placernent debt maturing in December 2019, December
2022 and December 2024. The Group alsc benefits from a committed
ruhi-ourrency revoiving credit faclity of £275.0m. which will mature in
July 2021, Together with the US Private Placements, this gives the Group
total committed fundmg of £466.5m, of which £221 9m was undrawn at
3i March 2015,



The Group’s US Private Placement and bank debt contain certan
financial covenants. The primary ratios are net debt 1o EBITDA and
EBITDA 1o net finance costs. These covenants are tested on a rolling
12-month basis as at the March and September reporting dates.

At 31 March 2019, both covenant tests were passed. The Group is
forecasting to remain within its banking covenants over the next
twelve months and has stress-tested these calculations for reasonable
possible adverse variances in trading and cash performance.

After making enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that
the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for a period of at least twehve months from the date of approval of the
financial statements. Accordingly, the Group and Parent Company
continues to adopt the gong concern basis of accounting in preparing

the consoldated financial statements.

Viability statement
This statement is detaited in full on pages 47 and 48.

In accordance with the Code, the Direciors have assessed the viability
of the Group over a three-year period to 31 March 2022 talung into
account the Group's current position and the potential impact of the
principal risks set out in the Strategic report. Based on this assessment
the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group is and will
continue to be viable.

Disclosure of information to the auditor
Each Director n office as at the date of this Directors' report
confirms that

* So far as hefshe is aware, there is no relevant audit information
of which the Company’s auditor is unaware: and - RG
» He/she has taken all the steps that hefshe gught to have.taken as'a
Director 1o make himselfherse)f aware ofarfy rélevant. =~ 1
audit information and to establish that the Company's audrtor 1s aware
of that information.

This statement is given, and should be interpreted in accordance with,
Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006,

By order of the Board

Peter Dickinson
General Counsel & Company Secretary
5 June 2019

s Y S
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Directors’ report: statement of Directors’ responsibilities

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect

of the Annual Report, the remuneration report and

the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for
each finandal year. Under that law the Directors are required to prepare
the Group financial statements in accordance with International Finandal
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and
applicable law and have elected to prepare the Company financial
statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Ko Accounting Standards and
applicable law} including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework.

Under company law, the Directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that these give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and Cornpany and of their profit or
loss for the period.

in preparing these finandal staternents, the Directors are required to:

Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
Make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable,
celevant, refiable and poudent:

For the Group financial staternents, state whether they have been

prepared in accordance with IFRSs as agopted by the European Union,

subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements; :

For the Company financial statements, state whether applicable

United Kingdom Accounting Standards have been folowed,

subject to ary material departures disdosed and explained in the

financial statements;

* Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless
1t is inappropriate to presume that the Group or Compary will
continue in business;

* Prepare a Directors’ repon, a Strategic report and Directors’

remuneration report which comply with the requirements of the

Companies Act 2006.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records
that are suffident to show and explain the Company’s transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Company and enable them ta ensure that its financial statecnents comply
with the Companias Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevermion and detection of fraud and other irregularies.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Annual Repert and
Accounts, taken as 3 whole, are far, balanced and understandable and
provide the information necessary for shareholders to assess the Group's
position and performance, business model and strategy.
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Website publication

The Directors are respensible for ensurng the Annual Report and
the finandial statements are made available on a website. Financial
statements are published on the Compary's website in accordance
with legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissernination of financial statements, which may vary from legislation
in other urisdictions, The mawntenance and integrity of the Company’s
website is the responsibility of the Directors. The Directors'
responsibiity also extends to the ongomg integrity of the financiat
statements contained therein.

Directors' responsibilities pursuant to DTR4.1
The Directors confirm that to the best of their knowiedge:

+ The Group financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (iFRS) as adopted by
the European Union and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation and give a
true and Tair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit
and toss of the Group; and

* The management report includes a fair review of the development
and performance of the business and the financal position of the
Group and the Company, together with a description of the principal

risks arxd uncertanties that they face.
By order of the Board
Phil Bentley Paul Woolf
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
5 june 2019 5 June 2019
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employees

Mitie’s people are our most critcal asset.
As a major UK employer with 52,500
’ colleagues, we take our responsibility
towards our people seriously.

Improving our employment offer 10 our
colleagues has been a key focus of the
past year as we look to consohdate our
position as one of the UK’s most dynamic,
forward-thinking and sustanable facities
management companies. In FY 18/19 we
launched Pecple Hub ~ a single source for
ail people-related matters - and Learning
Hub to further our colleagues’ careers.
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independent auditor's report

Independent auditor’s report
to the members of Mitie Group pic

Opinion

We have audited the finandial statements of Mitie Group plc (the Paremt Compary) and its subsidiaries {the Group}} for the year ended 31 March 2019
which comprise the Consolidated income Statement. the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated and Parent Company
Balance Sheets, the Consolidated and Parertt Company Statements of Changes in Equity, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the Notes

o the finandial staternents, including a summary of sgndicant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the
demfmmMswmmwmwwwm)amwm&m
Union. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Parent Company finandial staternents is

United Kingdorn Generally Accepted Practice, inchuding Financial Reporting Standard 101 "Reduced Disclosure Framework’ (United KingdomGenu'clly
Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the financial statements:

= give atrue and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Parent Company’s affars as at 3 | March 2019 and of the Group's profit for the:
year then ended;

» the Group financial statements have been property prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union;

* the Parent Company finandal statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

= the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Comparnies Act 2006; and, as regards the Group financia)
statements, Artide 4 of the |AS Regulation.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International SmnchrdsonAudmrg(UK) (15As (UK)) and applmblelaw Our responsibiliies under- those
standards are further described n the Auditor's responsibilties for the audit of the financal staternerts section of our report. We are independert of

the Group and the Parent Company in accordance with the ethical requinements that are relevant to our audit of the finandial statements in the UK,
indluding the FRC’s Ethical Standard as applied to listed public interest entities, and we have fulfilled cur other ethical responsibiities in accordance with
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Conclusions relating to principal risks, going concern and viability stateiment

We have nothing 10 report in respect of the following information in the annual neport, in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you
whether we have arything materia 1o add or draw attention to

+ the disdosures in the annual report set out on pages 38 te 46 that describe the principal risks and explain how they are being managed or mitigated:

¢ the Directors’ tmfmmnsamnonpageﬂmﬂ\emwﬁmﬂ\eymwmammmofﬁmeprmpalrdcfaangme
Group. including those that would threaten its business model, future performarce, solvency or liquidity;

¢ the Directory’ statemert set out on page 88 in the financial statements abotust whether the Directors conskiered it appropriate to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements and the Directors’ identification of any material uncertainties to the Group and
the Parent Comnpany's ability to continue to do so ever a period of at least twelve months from the date of approvai of the financial statements;

» whether the Directors’ statement relating te going concern required under the Listing Rutles in accordance with Listing Rule 98.6R(3) s materially
inconsistent with our knowledge obtained in the audit; or

» the Directors’ explanation set out on pages 47 and 48 in the annual report as to how they have assessed the prospexts of the Group, over what
period they have done so and why they consider that period to be appropriate, and their statement as to whether they have a reasonabie
expectation that the Group will be able to continue in operation ard meet its liabslities as they fall due over the period of their assessrment, induding
any related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary qualifications or assumptions.

Key audit matters

A suminary of our key audit matters and the assessment against prior year is as follows:

Appropriateness of revenue recognition Yes — incorporates comphiance with IFRS 15 in current year
Contractual matters and provisions Yes — with spedfic cortractual matters being considered in each year
Recoverability of trade receivables and accrued income Yes

Acquisition of Vision Security Group New risk following current year acquisition
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The prior year key audit matters ako induded the transition to IFRS 15, presentation of other items in the consolidated financial statements and

impainment of goodwill in the Property Management division.

Whikst compliance with IFRS I5remamsariskinrespectofrwemehcowiﬁaxfdbwingadopﬁoninﬂmpriorywﬂwekeyauditmztterinrespect
of transition is no iorger applicable. In addition, the Social Housing business within the Property Managernent division has been disposed of in the year
and therefore impairment of goodwill relating to the division is no longer considered 1o be a key audit matter.

With the exception of a £200m provision being required in respect of a Section 75 pension liability (see Notes 4 and 32), the quantum of amounts
recorded as cther iterns and the level of judgement reduced, this is therefore no longer corsidered to be a key audit matter.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current
period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) that we identified induding those which
had the greatest effect o the overall audit strategy; the akocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These
matters were addressed in the contest of our audtt of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide

a separate opinion on these matters.

Appropriateness of revenue recognition
Key Audic Matter

Hew we addressed the Key Audit Matter in the Audit’

Following the adoption of IFRS 15 in the prior year, the level of

Wappliedl;ymmﬁhrﬁpeﬁofmmeandpmm

recogrition has significantly reduced.

There rermains however an assessment of new and modified comtracts to

ensure comphiance with IFRS |5 as well as the cut-off risk in respect of

recognition of accrued income. Unbilled accrued income at the year-end

totalled £132.6m (see Note 15).

The accounting poliaes and erthal judgements applied are disclosed in

Nates | and 2.

judgements include:

* Interpretation of contract terms;

* Assessment of revenue recogrised in respect of projects with an
over time revenue recognition requirerent;

. Mobﬂlsamandprecontractcmtscapabledbelngcapmlsed;and

We completed the following audit procedures:

* Reviewed the basis of revernie recognised agairst the
requirernents of IFRS 15 and challenged and where necessary
corroborated to underlying audit evidence the key jdgements
made by management;

= Tested a sample of new and maodified contracts in the year to
confirm revenue ition in accordance with FRS 1S;

¢ Obtained a sample of cortracts to confirm that fixed revenue
had been appropriately recognised induding recalculating the
expected revenue for the year;

* Tested a sample of contract refated assets to
documentation to ensure revenue had been recognised in hne
with IFRS 15;

+ For specific dvisonal revenue streams we tested the operating
effectiveness of contrals induding the testing of IT controls over
key operating systems, and

* Tested a sample of accrued income balances to supporting
documenitation, which incuded procedures such as: assessing
proof of works; confirming customer acoeptance: reviewing
customer correspondence; and ensuring cut-off had been
appropriately applied.

Recoverability of trade receivables and accrued income
Key Audit Matter

How we addressed the Key Audit Matter in the Audit

Material amounts of the biled and unbied work remain outstanding for
more than three months as reschution of open issues remains ongoing on
various contracts,

The aged nature of these balances increases the risk of recoverability,
particularly where there 15 disagreement or dispute.

Trade receivables and accrued income are disclosed in Note |5 to the
financial staterments. Credit risk associated with trade receivables is disclosed
in Note 23 10 the financial statements,

In addition, in the current year, the Group has adopted IFRS 9 ‘Financial
Instruments’, which includes the requirements to determine the provision
for expected credit losses. This has resulted in a pre-tax adjustment to
opening reserves and recetvables of £2.5m.

There is significart management judgement involved in assessing the
recoverability of these balances, taking into consideration the Group's
contractual rights, available evidence of work performed, as well as the
status of ongoing commerdal negotiations.

This judgementt is compounded by system limitations within the Engineering
division which require a manual ageing of unbilled acarued income balances,
increasing the risk of error.

For a sample of these balances we have challenged the validity
of the recorded debtors and accrued income as well as the
completeness of provisians and expected credtt losses by a
number methods induding

* Where pessible, confirming aged balances to
post year-end ash receipts;

» Examining dient approva! of works orders or
contractual commitments;

* Reviewing evidence of work performed and status
of negotiations;

» Testing the acauracy of ageing of trade receivable and
accrued income (induding the manual ageing requirerment
in the Engineering division);

» Reviewing in-house legal counsel reports for any
material disputes;

* Scrutinising the methodology and assumptions used in
claulating the expected credit loss provision; and

* Analytical procedures to consider consistency inthe
provisioning methodology to the prior year.
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Independent auditor’s report continued

Contractual matters and provisions
Key Audk Matter

How we addressed the Key Audi Matter i the Audit

Under the terms for the disposal of the Sodial Housing business the
Group retained spedific contractual liabilities and provided certain
indemnities to the buyers relating to closed contracts.

Whilst certain liabilities have now been settled in full there remain
contractual matters that require significant judgernent in estimating the
quantum of provisions required.

There is a risk that the provisions included as contract specific costs and
disposal indemnities in Note 19 and also disdosed within other items in
Note 4 are not complete.

We examined the Social Housing disposal docurnentation and hekd
discussions with in-house legal counsel to confirm the contractual
liabilities retained and indermnities given.
Wehavereadlntemalandenemaldomwnaﬁonme\aluateﬂwe
recordedtomwreﬂ\eyarenmerulb/mpleteard
correr.ﬂymlcu
For all matters we have reviewed the disclosures included inthe
financial staterents 10 ensyre that they are complete and akso fair,
balanced and understandable.

Acquisition of Vision Security Group
Key Auxkh Matter

Hows we adidressed the Key Audit Matter in the Audit

During the year, the Group acquired Vision Security Group Lirnited for net
corsideration of £82m.

There are several judgemental areas in the accounting for the acquisition

induding

* Fair value of consideration, specifically related to an adjustrent of
£5.28m being recorded pricr to reaching a final agreement of the
completion accounts with the sellers;

» Farr value of the opening acquisition balance sheet assets and lisbiiies;
* Adoption of RS 9 and 15 into the opening acquisition balance
sheet and

+ Valuation and the useful economic life of the separately identifiable
customer relationship intangible asset

In determining the completion accounts adiustments and armiving at.

their best estimate, managernert have obtained third-party accounting

and legal support.

The transaction resulted in a gain in bargain purchase of £8.8m which has

been recorded as a credit within the income statement.

MGrmpsammgpohcyforbtmwnbmammsdsdosedm

Note |, the judgements made in Note 2 and further detail concerming the

transaction within Note 30.

Our audit procedures included:

« Wih the support of our internal specialists we assessed
the fair value of consideration, specifically in respect of the
completion accounts adjustments made by managemernt.
This inchuded reviewing managernent papers and judgements,
the sale and purchase agreements, nce with the
vendors and third-party reports obtained by managernent to
support their assessment;

* Substantively audited acquisition net book values of assets
and kiabilities and resulting fair value adjustrments including the
adoption of IFRS 9 and | 5; and

= With the support of our internal valuation specialists we
chaflengex the key inputs, assumptions and
used by management in determining the fair values of
intangible assets acquired.

In light of the assessed gain on bargain purchase we challenged
rmanagement on its recognition.

We have also reviewed the relevant disdosure in the financial
statererts to assess compliance with the requirements of IFRS 3
and ako the disdosure in Note 2 of the significant estirnates and

Judgements made.

Our application of materiallty

We apply the concept of materiality bath in planning and performing our audit and in evaluating the effect of misstatements. We consider mateniality
10 be the magnitude by which misstatements, induding omissions, could influence the economic dedisions of reasonabile Users that are taken on the
basks of the finandial statements. Importantly, misstatements below these levels will not necessarily be evaluated as immaterial as we also take account
of the nature of identified misstaternentts and the particular drcumstances of their accurrence, when evaluating their effect on the finandial statements

as a whole.

Based on cur professional judgement, we determined materiality for the Group financial statements to be £3.8m and for the Parert Company to
be £2.9m, Performance rrateriality, based on our assessment of past misstatements and the comtrol environment was caloulated based on 7086 of

our raateriality.

The materislity we applied in respect of the Group financial statements equates to 5% of corttinuing profit before ather items and tax. Parent Compary
materiality,

riateriality was set at 196 of net assets, and capped at 75% of Group

We consider the use of 5% of continuing profit before other items to be the most appropriste
iterns impacting the underlying profit of the Group and is also a key measure for staleholders. Other iterns are

impact of certain one-off or
detailed in Nate 4 to the Group financial statements,

performance measure for the basis as it removes the

We set component rateriafity between £0.9m and £2.6m based on the overall size and respective risk of each component.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to the Committee all audit differences in excess of £190,000 as well as differences below
that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds. We also reported to the Audit Committee on disdosure matters that we
ierified when assessing the overalt presertation of the financial statements.
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An overview of the scope of our audit

The Group operates through a number of legal entities, which form reporting components — the reporting components are consistent with the
segmentalanalysisasdisdcsedinNoteBtoﬁ\eﬁnancialmnentmﬁhmexcepﬁonofVﬁmSewﬁtmeupkahiswenedasaseparate
componert for audit purposes but formns part of the Security division within the segmental analysis. All components were subject to full scope
audnsvwmﬂ\ea@eptnmofcertamMrmmmmwed&gegudfmﬂmdmonyﬁwewmdtodddopmewmm
All audits and desltop review procedures were completed by BDO LLP.

The audit procedures were carmied out over 95% of Group revenue, profit before cther items and total assets.

@ Full audit
@ Deskiop reviews

2019 2019 2019

Total revenue Profit before Total assets
other items

The Group audt team set component materiality levels as detailed above with work on all components being performed by the Group auditors under
the direction and supervision of the Group engagement partner. With the exception of the non-significant componerits, the Group engagement partner
visited ali component locations and attended various telephone corference meetings through the planning, fieldwork and completion stages of the aucit.

We akso gained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework applicable to the Group and the industry in which it operates, and considered
the risk of acts by the Group that were contrary to applicable laws and regulations, including fraud. We designed audit procedures at Group and
significant component level to respond to the risk, recognising that the risk of nat detecting a material misstaternent due to fraud is higher than the risk
of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberzte concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations,

or through collusion. We foaused on laws and regulations that could give rise to a material misstaternent in the fimancial statemertts, including, but not
limited to, the Companies Act 2006, the UK Listing Rules and tax legislation.

Qur tests induded agreeing the financial statement discosures to undertying supporting docurmentation, enquinies with management and enquines of in-
house legal counsel There are inherent limitations in the audt procedures described above and, the further removed non-compliance with laws and
regulations is from the events and transaciions reflected in the financial statermenits, the less likely we would become aware of it. We dd not identify any
key audit matters relating to irregularives, intuding fraud. As in all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management override of internal controks,
induding testing journals and evaluating whether there was evidence of bias by the Directors that represented a risk of matenal mmsstatement due

to fraud.

Other information

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the inforration included in the annual report, other than the
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the finandal staternents does not cover the other information and, except to the
extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance condusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the
finandial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge cbtained in the audit or ctherwise appears to be materially risstated. i we iderttify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstaternents, we are required to determine whether there is 2 material misstaternent in the financial statements
or a material misstaternent of the other information. if, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstaternent of the
other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

In this context, we also have: nothing to report in regard to our responsibiiity to specifically address the following items in the other information and to
report as urcorrected material misstaternents of the other information where we conclude that those items meet the following conditions:

* Fair, balanced and understandable set out on page 86 — the statement by the Directors that they consider the annual report and financial staternents
taken as a whole are fair, balanced and understandable and provide the information necessary for sharehoiders to assess the Group's performance,
business model and strategy, is materially inconsistent with our knowledge obtained in the audit; or

» Audit Committee reporting set out on pages 62 to 67 — the section describing the work of the Audit Committee does not appropriately address
matters communicated by us to the Audit Committee; or

* Directors’ staternent of compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code set out on page 53 — — the parts of the Directors’ statement required
under the Listing Rules relating to the Company's compliance with the LK Corporate Governance Code containing provisions specified for review by

the audttor in accordance with Listing Rule 9.8.10R(2) do not property disdose a departure from a relevant provision of the UK Corporate
Governance Code.
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independent auditor’s report continued

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, the part of the Directors’ remuneration report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006,

In our opmion, based on the work urclertaken in the course of the audit: .

« the information given in the strategic report and the Directors’ repart for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is
consistert with the finandial statements; and

= the strategic report and the Directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with appiicable legal requiremertts.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Parent Company and its environment obtzined in the course of the audit, we

have not idertified material misstaternernts in the strategic report or the Directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in

* adequate accourting records have nat been kept by the Parent Company, or returms adequate for our audit have not been reoeived from branches
ot visited by us; or ]

» the Parertt Company financial staternents and the part of the Directors’ remuneration report to be audited are not in agreement with the accounting
records and returns: or

s certain disdosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

= we have not received 2l the information and explanations we require for our aucdit.

Responsibilites of Directors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ responsibilities staternent set aut on page B8, the Directors are responsitie for the preparation of the financial

staternents and for being satisfied that they give a true and fai View, and for such intermal control as the Directors determine is necessary 10 enable the

preparation of financial staternents that are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the Parent Company's abiity to cortinue as a gong
concerm, disckosing, as applicable. matters related to going concem and using the gong concem basis of accounting unless the Dinectors either intend to
liquidate the Group or the Farent Cormpany or to cease operations, or have no reafistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Onr abjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whather due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarartee that
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will aiways detect a material misstaterment when it exdsts. Misstatements ¢an arise from fraud or error
and are considerad material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic dedisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial staternents.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial staternents & located on the Financial Reporting Council's website at:
www.frcorguk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report,

Other matters which we are required to address i

Following the recommendation of the Audit Committee, we were appointed by the Audit Committee on 19 September 2017 to audit the financiat
staternents for the year ending 31 March 2018 and subsequent finanaal periods. The period of total uninterrupted engagernent is two years, covering
the years ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2019.

The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided to the Group or the Farent Company and we remain independent
of the Group and the Parent Company in conducting our audit.

Our auxdit opinion 15 consistertt with the additional report to the Audit Commitee.

Use of our repart

This report is made solely to the Parent Company's members, as a body. in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006.
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Parent Company’s rembers those matters we are required to state to them
in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assurme responsibility to anyone other
than the Parent Company and the Parent 's members as a body, for our audnt work, for this repert, or for the opinions we have formed.

2/.

Scott Mc ghton (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of BDO LLP, Statutory Auditor
London

S une 2019

BDO LLP is 2 fimited liability partnership registered i England and Wales {with registered number OC305127).
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Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 3| March 2019

p-11) w182 t
Before Other Before Other E.
other ikems [ Tomal other iterms iterns? Total
Nates im &m & m om m o
Continuing operations g
Revenue . 3 12214 - 2,221.4 20306 - 20306 -
Cost of sdles (1,923.9) - (1.521.9) (17628) - (1.762.8)
Gross profit 2975 - 19715 2678 - 20678
Advrinistrative expenses (209.3) (38.0) (241.3) (184.6) L1 (2667
Operating profiti(loss) 36 8.2 (38.0) 50.2 832 (82.1) L
Finarce income 9.2 - 0.2 0l - 0l "
Fnance costs 8 (14.0) - (14.0) (166) - (166) -9
Net finance costs (13.8) - {13.8) (185} - (165) g
Profit/(loss) before tax 3 74.4 (38.0) 3.4 66.7 (BL1) (154)
Tax 9 (133) 74 (8-4) (. 100 (Ln
Profit/(loss) from continuing operations after tax 60.6 (30.6) 300 556 ) (165)
Discontinued eperations a
Profitloss} from discontinued operations 5 3.1 @) 09 55 (15.1) ©5) &
Profit/(loss) for the year €17 G29) 309 612 872 Q60) £
Attrioutable to: E
Equity holders of the perent 3.7 (32.8) 309 60.! (87.2) @y *
Nor-conirofing interests - - - 1 - bl
3.7 (31.8) 30.9 612 ®72) 260)
Eamningui(loss) per share (EPS) attributable to
equity holders of the parent
From continuing operations:
Basc i 16.8p 8.3p 15.2p “9%)p
Dilutad 1 16.7p 8.3p 15.1p “49)p
From continuing and discontinued operations.
Basic 1 17.7p s.6p 168p . @sp
Dirtad I 17.5p 8.5p 167p aep
Notes
I. The Group has FRS % starting | Apri 2018 using the transition option svaiisble in the standard by disciosing the impact 2 an adjustment 10 opening retanex] ssmings £t the date of nital
application. Under this opben, the cormparative information & not

2 Re-presented to casuly the Pest Control and Socal Houing businesses 25 disoontinued operations. See Note |
3. Other terma are as desarbed in Noke 4,
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 March 2019

20019 2018
. Notes m im
Profiti(loss) for the year 309 @60y
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Re-measurement of net defined benefit pension liablity 32 (13.9) 19.7
Income tax credit(charge) refating to ftems not rectassified g 2.4 G4
' (1S 163
items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on transtation of foreign operations (0.3) 0.l
Gains on hedge of a net investrent taken to equity 0.1 04
Net gains on cash flow heciges arsing during the year 27 2.2 [+1]
incorne tax (thargeoredin relning 1o iterms that may be recassified 9 {0.3) [»1]
[ 07
Other prehensive (exp } for the fi ial yoar 9.8 170
Total prehensive b ef{exp ) for the fi al year 2i.) [22v)]
Attributable to;
Equrty holders of the parent b {M] (o)
Non-controliing nterests - K]
ke

I'.TluGru.pMaﬁnadFRS9mlApﬂDI8 ing the transition option avaidable in tw standard by disciasing the impact as an adustment to opening retainad eamings at the date of initial
applaation. Under 'mnmm&:&hmm o -
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Cansolidated balance sheet
As at 31 March 2019

2019 018
Notes im im
Non.current assats
Goodwill 12 2938 3096
Other intangible assets 13 50.7 383
Property, plant and equipment 14 29.0 336
Intterest in joint vertures and associates - 08
Derivative finarcial instruments. px] 164 6.1
Comract assets 16 4.5 18
Deferred tax assets 0 18.7 367
Total non=current assets 4331 4269
Current assets
Irverdories 5.6 69
Trade and other recevables 15 435.2 3860
Contract assets 16 6 04
Current tax assets I \;Ai;‘,‘ B 63
Cash and cash equivalents Ry -f?ms:-g*3 ‘e 59
Total current assets 7 . 550.8 4594
Total assets 981.% 8863
Current iabilities
Trade and other payables 1”7 (533.9) {496.5)
Deferred income 18 (54.9) (462)
Current tax liabiities (0.3) -
Financing liabiliies 2 (“on ©8)
Provisions 19 (50.6) 5.2)
Total current liabilities (680.4) (569.0)
Net current liabilities (129.6) (109.6)
Non-current Labilities
Deferred income 8 (18.4) (188)
Financing iabiliges 22 (224.9) (258.6)
Provisors 19 (6.0) 63)
Retirement beneft iabiities 32 (83.8) (568)
Deferred tax liabilities 20 9 {08)
Yotal non-current liabilites (315.9) (3413)
Total Habilities (996.3) (103)
Net liabitities (12.4) (240)
Nate:

§ The Group has adoptad IFRS 9 sarting | Ap-imlsmuwmhmwwmmmummmmmmaMde
comparative informnation i not 5
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Consolidated balance sheet continued
Asat 31 March 2019

-
Equity
Share capita) 28 93 3
Share premium account 29 130.6 1306
Merger reserve 29 104.2 1042
Own shares reserve 29 (@8.1) (434)
Other reserves 29 103 1.3
Hedging and trandation reserve sl (5.6) 73)
Retsined losses @z2n1) @an -
Equity attributable ta equity holders of the parent (124) (240)
Note
1 mcmer:k ‘a;msk:‘m|Ag-i;ommq:wmhnmmmmmammnwmmnmmdm

ThecbhsolichtedﬁmnchlmmdﬂﬂieGmmmccanpawmQWathnmmbeSCOIgBOmappmmdbyﬂmBoardofD'mectorsm

authorised for issue on 5 June 2019. They were signed on its behalf by:

4

Chief Executive Cfficer

98 Mitie Group pic | Annual Report and Accounts 2019

. Chief Financial Officer



Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 3| March 2019

Share Cwn g and MNorr
o ommm wE ST 2T mm W . wa Tw f
[1),] £fm 1] &mn £&m ém m tm fra im g

Adjusted balance at | April 2017 92 1306 918 (422) 103 {80) R124) (20.7) 23 (18.4) §
Loss for the year - - - - - - 27.0 ar1.1) 1.l (26.0) g
Other comprehensive income - - - - - 07 163 17.0 - 17.0
Total comprehensive expense - - - - - o7 (108) (10.1) I (9.0)
Dividends paid - - - - - - (4.8) {4.9) - {4.8)
Share-based payments - - - 69 10 - 03 8.2 - B2
Acquigitions and other movements
in non-controfing interests 0. - 124 8.1) - - (1O) 34 (G4 -
At 3| March 2018 9.3 1306 1042 434) 163 @3) (228.7) (24.9) - (24.9)
At ) Apri 2018 93 1306 1042 4349 143 73) @B7) (249) - (24.0) g
Impact of change in accounting pohcy® - - - - - - @n @n - n g
Adpusted batance at | Aprd 2018 93 1306 1042 (43.4) 13 73) (2308) {26.13 - (26.1) o
Profit for the year - - - - - - 309 309 - e
COther comprehensive {expense)income - - - - - 1.7 (i15) 9.8) - (7.8)
Total comprehensive Income R — - - - 87 19.4 2.0 - 210
Dividends paid - - - - - - (144)  (14.4) - (14.4)
Share-based payments - - - 53 (10) - 09 54 - 54
Other movements - - - - - - 18 1.8 - 1.8
At 31 March 2019 93 1306 a2 (381) 103 56 @uny (124 - (12.49)
Naotex

1 Other resarves inchude the share-based ppments reserve. the revaluation reserve and the capital redemption reserve. See Note 29

2 The Group has adopted IFR5 9 sarting | Aprd 2018 the transition available i the standard by disdosing the impacts as an adustment to opering retained earnings at the date of nitial
Wmhmhmﬁtﬁ\sm'&jm i -
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 March 2019

e 2018

ot m €m
Contiuhgnpemﬁom-oper_athgpmfnbefmwum' 5.2 832
Continuing operations — other items’ X 4 (as.0) B2
Discontinued operations — operating loss after other terms* a0 ®4)
Adjustments (or;
Share-based payments expense - 3l 50 45
Defined benefit pension costs 32 ¥ 3t
Past service costs and curtalments 2 14 L9
Defined benefit pension contributions . 3 (11.6) 4.7)
Deprediation of property, plant and equipmert 14 1.6 128
Ameortisation of intangible assets 13 2.0 135
Amcrtisation of contract assets 16 0.8 ol
Share of profit of joint vertures and assodates 5 (0.5) ©8)
tenpaurment af goodwil ' 12 - 346
Impairment of intangible assets 13 I 104
Gain on bargain purchase 30 {8.8) -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment °3) ©n
(Gain)Aoss on disposal of subsidiaries 5 (17.9) 02
Chher - 0.1
Operating cash flows béfore movements in working capital 395 &72
Decrease/{increase) in inventories 0.4 ©.n
Increase in receivables LY “32)
Increase in contract assets (4.7) 23)
Increase/(decrease) in deferred income L 4] (128)
Increase/{decrense) n payables 334 (21.2)
Increase in provisions ' 5.5 45
Cazh generated from/(used in) operations 27 s 9
Income taxes neceived 47 11L&
Ivterest paid (12.4) {135
Met cash genevatod from(used in) operating activities 198 98)
Investing activities
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acqured? 30 "3 -
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed” 5 523 e
Dividends received from jomt ventures and assoaates - 0é
Inerest receved 0.2 02
Purchase of property, plant and equipment - 4 (12.1) !5.8)
Purchase of other intangible assets 13 (14.2) ©0)
Disposal of property, plant and equipment a7 16
Net cash genersted fromi(used in) investing activities 25.) @
Nates:

I. Ra-presented 10 chssify the Pest Control and Social Housing businesses #s disoontinued operations. See Note |,
2 Dispasal of subsidianies, net of cxsh ditposed of £52.8m for the year ended 31 March 2019 is statad net of £5.3m of transaction casts (see Note 5). The net cash inflow from acquisition and disposal
of subsickaries was £40%m (A1 8 £3.7m outliow) indluding casts of £24m relatad to the V5G aoqusition: (sae Note 4).
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Consolidated statement of cash flows continued
For the year ended 3| March 2019

201 2018
Notes €m £m ‘é
Financing activities g
Increase/{repayments) of obligations under finance leases 7 0.2 (5 5’
Private placement notes repaid and associated hedges setted - (602) 5
{Repayments of)/proceeds from bank loans 27 @.1) 383
Proceeds from re-issue of treasury shares o) - 34
Purchase of non-controlling interests 30 - (3.0}
Equity dividends pakd 10 (14.4) (45)
Net cash uzed in financing actividlas T (163) (278
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 48.6 {69.7)
Net cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 59.6 125.1 3
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes - 04 g
Nat cash and cash squivalents at end of the year 21 108.4 598 §

The above statement of consolidated cash flows includes cash flows from both continuing and discontinued operations. Further details of the cash flows
relating to discontinued operations are shown in Nete 5,

Reconcillation of net cash flow to movements in net debt Notes m‘: 20&3

Cash drivers

Net increase/(decraase) in cash and cash equuvalents “ns 7
Decrease/(ncrease) in bank loars 27 2.1 @83

Private placerment notes repaid and associated hedges settied - 502 £
{Increase)/repayments of obligations under finance leases 27 ©.2) 15 3
Non-cash drivers 2
Non<sh movement in bank loans 27 0.2) 07 E"
Non-cash movement in private placerment notes and assodated hedges 27 22 03 Z
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 27 0.3 04
Decrease/(increase) in net debt during the year 528 {463)

Opering ret debt (193.5) (147.2)

Closing net debt 2% (140.7) (1935)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 3| March 2019

I. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies

(a) Basis of preparation
The Group's finandial staternerts for the year ended 3{ March 2019 have been prepared in accordance with international Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) adopted for use in the European Union and therefore the Group's financial staternents comply with Artide 4 of the EU IAS Regulation.

The Group's finandal statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain finandial instruments which are required to be
measured at fair value,

Going concern

The Directors acknowledge the Financial Reporting Council's 'Guidance on Risk Management, Internal Corttrol and Related Financial and Business
aepmigg'MhMMi«.mwmmmmmwmmﬂmmmmem
pages 38 10 46.

The Group currently operates well within the: financial covenarts assodated with its committed funding fines. These indude £191.5m (being the
repayment amount based on the original dollar exchange rates when issued) of US Private Placement debt maturing in December 2019, December
2022 and Decermber 2024 and 2 cormmitted multi-currency revolving credit facility of £275.0m which wik expire in July 2021. These fadlities give the
Group total committed funding of £466.5m, of which £221.9m was undrawn at 3} March 2019.

The key ratios in these financial covenants are net debt to covenant EBITDA and covenart EBITDA 10 net finance costs. These covenants are tested on
a roling | 2-month basis as at the September and March reporting dates. At 3| March 2019, both covenant tests were passed. The Group is forccasting
10 refmain within its banking covenants over the next tweve months and has stress-tested these calaulations for reasonable possible adverse variances
i trading and cash performance.

Supported by the liquidity provided by committed banking facilities, natwithstanding the Group is in a net current liability position, the Directors
haveam&wwmmmmmwmmmﬂmfuhfmmﬂefmmw
the Group continues to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the condensed consolidated finandial statements.

Discontinued operations

On 30 Septernber 2018, the Group completed the sale of Mitie Pest Cortrol Limited (Pest Control) which previously formed a separate major fine
of business of the Group as part of the Cleaning & Envirorvnenital Services division. As a resutt of the disposal, the results of the Pest Cortrol business
have been dassified as discontinued operations and comparative information has been restated,

©n 19 November 2018, the Group entered imto an agreement 1o sell Mitie Property Management Limited and MPS Housing Limited, together

the: Sodal Housing business, which previously formed a separate major line of business of the Group as part of the Praperty Management division.
As a result of the disposal, which was completed on 30 November 2018, the results of the Social FHousing business have been dassified as discontinued
operations and comparatve information has been restated. The remaining roofing and painting activities of the former Property Management division
Accounting standards that are newly effective in the current year

With the exception of the adoption of IFRS 9 which is discussed below, none of the new standards and amendments that are effective for the first time
this year have had a material effect on the Group.

IFRS 9 *Financial instrumnents’ became effective for the Group starting | April 2018 and replaces the requirements of LAS 39 *Financial instruments:
recognition and measurement’. The main changes introduced by the new standard are new dassification and measurerment requirements for certain
financial assets, a new Expected Credit Loss {ECL) mode! for the impairment of financial assets, revisions to the hexdge accounting model, and
Wmdmmme&ted.fmlAprﬂlGla.m(mﬁmxmappWﬂuMgeao:mmigwidmehNﬁ‘ﬁmm
With respect to loss allowances for trade receivables, IFRS 9 replaces the ncurred loss’ model in IAS 39 with an ECL model. The Group, from | April
2018, measures loss alkowances for trade receivables and accrued income at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit osses using both

and qualitative information and analysis based on the Group's historical experience ang forwand-looking information. The Group has determined that
the transition to [FRS 9 resulted in an additional loss allowarce for trade recedvables and accrued income as at | Aprnil 2018 of 25mand gave riseto a
tax credit of £0.4m. The additional loss allowance has been applied as an adjustment to opening retained eamnings at | April 2018 and therefore, the
prior year comparative information is not restated.

Other than as stated above. the accounting policies and methods of caloulation adopted in the preparation of these Group consolidated financial
staternents are consistent with those followed in the preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018,
which were prepared in accordance with IFRS as issued by the International Accounting Standards Baard and as adopted by the EU,
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Accounting standards that are not yet mandatory and have not been applied by the Group

With the exception of IFRS 16 which is discussed below, none of the new standands and amendments that are not yet effective are expected to have
a material effect onthe Group.

IFRS 16 Leases’ became effective for the Group from 1 April 2019 and replaces the requirerments of IAS |7 ‘Leases’. An asset representing the Group's
right as a lessee to use a leased item, and a lability for future lease payments, will be recognised for all leases, subject to limited exemptions for short-
term leases and low-value lease assets. The costs of leases will be recognised in the consolidated income statement spiit between deprediation of the
lease asset and a finance charge on the lease liability. This is similar to the accounting for finance leases under LAS 17, but substantively different to the
accounting for operating leases {under which no lease asset or lease liability was recognised and rertaks payable were charged to the consolidated
income staternent on a straight-fine basis).

During the year, management set up a project team to review the Group’s leasing arrangements in Iight of the new lease accounting rules in IFRS 16,
At 31 March 2019, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease commitrmernits of £72.0m (see Note 25). Of these commitments, £1.4m relates to
short-term leases and £0.1m to low-value leases which will be recognised on a straight-ine basis as an expense inthe consalidated income statement.
For the remaining lease commitments, the Group expects to recognise, at | April 2019, right-of-use assets m the range of £82.0m to £87.0rm, and lease
liabilities inthe range of £81.0mto £86.0m (after adjustments for prepayments and accrued lease payments recognised as at 31 March 2019). Overall
net assets will be in the range of £4.0m lower to £6.0m higher and net current Iabilities will be higher by between £21.0m and £260m due to the
presentation of a portion of lease liabilities as a currertt kability.

As a result of adopting the new nules, for the year ending 31 March 2020, the Group expects net profit before tax to increase by between £nil and
£3.0m. Operating profit is expected to increase by between £24.0m and £29.0m as the operating lease rentals payable which were previously induded
in operating profit are exchuded, with this increase being offset by additional depreciation of between £220m and £24.0m as the right-of-use assets are
depreciated. in addition, operating cash flows are expected to ingrease by between £24.0m and £29.0m as repayment of the lease fiabilities is reclassified
s cash used in financing activities.

The Group's activities as a lessor are not material and therefore, there is no significart impact from these activities on the consolidated finandal
statements as a result of adopting IFRS 16. However, certain additional disclosure may be required in the notes to the consolidated finandal statements.

{b) Significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Group's IFRS financial information are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated finanaal statements comprise the financial staternents of Mibe Group pic and all its subsidiaries. The Parert Company has applied
FRS 101 ‘Rethuced discdosure framework’ in the preparation of its individua! finandial statements. FRS 101 applies IFRS as adopted by the European
Union with certain dsclosure exemptions.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and cease to be consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred out of the Group. The results, assets and liabilibes of joint vertures and associates are accounted for under the equity method of

accounting. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries, joint ventures and assodates to bring the accounting
policies used into line with those used by the Group.

Al inter-company balances and transactions, :ncuding unrealised profits arising from inter-group transactions, have been eliminated in full

interests of non-controliing interest shareholders are measured at the non-controlling interest's proportion of the net fair value of the assets and
liabifities recogrused. Changes in a parent's cwnership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for within shareholders’
equity. No gain or loss is recognised on such transactions and goodwill is not re-measured. Any difference between the change in the non-controlting
interest and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to the equity holders of the parent.
Statutory and non-statutory measures of performance

The finandial statements contain all the information and disclosures required by the relevant accounting standards and regulatory obligations that apply
to the Group.

In the finandial staternents, the Group has elected to provide some further disclosures and performance measures, reported as ‘before other items’,
in order to present its finandal results in a way that demonstrates the performance of continuing cperations.

Cther tems are items of financal performance which the Group believes should be separately identified on the face of the income statement to assist
mundemandlrgﬂ\e underinng financial performance achieved by the Group. The Group separately reports the impairment of goodwill, the cost of
restructuring acquisition and disposal costs inchuding the write-off and amontisation of acquisition related intangible assets, the results of
and costs assodated with disposaks, and other exceptional itenmns and thesr related tax effect as other itemns. Should these items be reversed, disclosure of
this would also be as other items.

Separate presentation of these iterns is imtended to enhance understanding of the financial performance of the Group inthe period and the extent
to which results are influenced by material unusual and/or non-recurring items. Further detail of cther iems is st out in Note 4.

In addition, following the guidelines on Alternative Performance Measures (APMs) issued by the European Securities and Markets Authorities (ESMA),
the Group has induded an APM appendx to the finandal statements on pages 163 to | 65.

Revenue recognition policy

The Group operates contracts with a varying degree of complexdty across its service lines, so a range of methods is used for the recognition of revenue
based on the principles set outin IFRS | 5. Revenue represents income recognised in respect of services provided during the period based on the
delvery of performance obligations and an assessment of when comtrol is transferred to the customer.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019

I. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

IFRS 15 provides a single, prinaipkes based five-step model to be applied to afl sales contracts as outlined below. It is based on the transfer of control
of goods and services to customers and replaces the separate models for goods, senvices and construction contracts

Step | ~ Identify the controct(s) withi a customer
For all contracts with customers, the Group determines if the arrangement creates enforceable rights and obligations. This assessment results in
certain Frarmework arrangernents or Master Service Agreements (MSAs) not meeting the definition of contracts under IFRS 15 uniess they specify
ﬁ:-\;sm?mmqmmtobeord&ed Usially the work order and any change orders together with the Framework or MSA will constitute the

15 contract
Duyration of cantract
The Group frequently enters info contracts with customers which contain extension periods at the end of the initial term, automatic annual renewals,
and/or termination for convenience and break clauses that coukd impact the actual duration of the contract. As the term of the contract impacts the
period over which amortisation of contract assets and revenue from performance obligations may berecogmsed.theGru:pappim;udgenmvtto
assess the impact that such clauses have in determining the relevant corrtract term, In forming this judgement, managemernt considers certain influencing
factors induding the amourt of discount provided, the presence of significant termination penalties in the contract, and the relatorship, experience
and performance of contract defivery with the custorner and/or the wider industry, in understanding the likefihood of extension or termination of the
contract.

¢ t modificat
The Group's contracts are froquently amenchad for changes 10 customer requirerments such as change orders and variations. A contract modification
takes place when the amendment creates new enforveable rights and obligations or changes the exdsting price or scope {or both) of the contract, and
the modification has been: approved. Contract modifications can be approved in writing, by oral agreement, or implied by customary business practices.
if the parties to the cortract have not approved a contract modification, revenue is recognised in accondance with the exdsting contractual terms.
ﬁadwmgenwopehxbemapptwedhﬂhemspaﬂmdwmgempmesmlbargnegommdﬂleGroupesnnmﬁ\ed\angetoﬂ'\etoul
transaction price.

Contract modifications are accounted for as a separate contract if the contract scope changes due to the addition of distinct goods or services and

the change in contract price reflects the standakone selfing price of the distinet goods or services. The facts and circumistances of any modification are
considered in isplation #s these are spedific to each contract and may result in different accourting outcornes.

Step 2 — identify the performance obligotions in the contract

Perfonmance obkgations are the contractual promises by the Group to trarsfer distinct goods or services 10 a customer. For armangemerts with multiple
components to be defivered to custorners such as in the Group's integrated facifties management contracts, the Group applies judgement to consider
whether those promised goods or services are:

i.  distinct and accounted for as separate performance obligations;

ii. combined with other promised goods or services until a bundle is identified that is distinct; or

iil.  part of a series of distinct goods or senvices that are substantially the same and have the ame pattern of transfer over time ie. where the customer
is deerned 1o have simultanecusly received and consurmed the benefits of the goods or services over the ie of the contract, the Group treats the
series as a single performance obligation.

Step 3 — Determine the tronsaction price

At contract. inception, the total transaction price is determined, being the amount to which the Group expects to be entitied and has rights under the

contract. This includes the fixed price stated in the contract and an assessment of any variable consideration, up or down, resulting from eg discounts,

rebates, service penalties. Variable consideration is typically estimated based on the expected value method and i only recognised to the extent it is

highly probable that a subsequent change in its estimate woukd not result in a significant revenue reversal,

Step 4 — Allocate the transaction price 1 the performance obligations i the contract

The Group aliocates the total transaction price to the identified performance obligations based on their relative stand-alone selfing prices. This is

predominarily based on an observable price or a ost s margin arrangerment,

Step 5 — Recognise revenue when or os the entity satisfies its performance abligations

For each performance obligation, the Group determines if revenue will be recognised over time or at a point in time. Where revenue is recognised

wmmempwsmmmwummmmnmmhmmmmmﬂacmupspefm

in transferring control of the goods or services 1o the customer.

wmm&mmmmwdmmmmwdmmw or milestones reached
which allow the Group to recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the value to the customer of the goods or services transferved
to date relative to the remaining goods or services under the cortract.

Under the input method, measured progress and revenue are recognised in direct proportion to costs incurred where the transfer of control is most
dosely afigned to the Group's efforts in delivering the service.

‘Where deemed appropriate, the Group will utilise the practical expedient within IFRS |5, aliowing revenue to be recogrised at the amourt which

the Group has the right to invoice, where that amount cormesponds directly with the vahue to the customer of the Group's performance obligations
completed to date.

i performance obligations do not meet the aiteria to recognise revenue over time, revenue i recognised at the point in time when ¢ontrol of the
poods or services passes 1o the customer. This may be at the point of physical delivery of goods and acceptance by a customer or when the customer
obtains control of an asset or service in a contract with customer-specified acceptance criteria. Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delfivered
andt corrol has passed to the custorner.
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Long-term complex contracts

The Group has a number of long-term complex contracts which are predominantly imtegrated fadiities managernent arrangements. Typically, these
contracts involve the provision of multiple service lines, with a single management tearmn providing an integrated service. Such contracts tend to be
transformational in nature where the business works with the customer to identify and implement cost saving initiatives across the life of the contract.
The Group considers the majority of services provided within integrated faciiiies management contracts meet the definition of a series of distinct goods
or services that are substantially the same and have the same pattern of transfer over time. The series constitutes services provided in distinct time
increments (eg. monthly or quarterly) and therefore the Group treats the series of such services as one performance obligation.

The Group also delivers major project-based services under long-term complex ontracts that indude performance cbligations under which revenue
is recognised over time as value from the servce s transferred to the customer. This may be where the Group has a legally enforceable right to
remuneration for the work completed to date, and therefore revenue will be recognised in fine with the associated transfer of control

Repeat service-based contracts (single and bundled contracts)

The Group operates a number of single ar joint-service hne arrangernents where repeat services meet the definition of a series of distinct services that
are substanitialy the same (e.g. the provision of deaning, security, catering, waste, and landscaping services). They have the same pattern of transfer of
value to the customer as the series constitutes core services prowded in distinct tirne increments (e.g. monthly or quarterly). The Group therefore treats
the series of such services as one performance obligation.

Short-term service-based arrangements

The Group delivers a range of other short-term service based performance obligations and professional services work across certain reporting
segrenits for which revenue is recognised at the point in time when control of the service has transferred to the customer. This may be at the poirt
when the customer obtains contral of the service in a contract with customer-specified acceptance critena eg the delivery of a strategic operating
model or report.

Other revenue
Interest income i accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which s the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the finandial asset to that asset's net carrying amount.

Contract costs

The Group incurs pre-contract expenses (e.g. legal costs) when it s expected to enter into a new contract. The incremental costs to obtain a contract
with a customer are recognised within contract assets if it is expected that those costs will be recoverable. Costs to obtain a contract that would have
been incurred regardless of whether the contract was obtained are recognised as an expense in the period.

Contract fulfilment costs .

Casts incurred to ensure that the project or programme has appropriate organsational, operational and techrical infrastructures, and mechanisms in
place to enable the delivery of full services under the contract target operating model, are defined as contract fulfilment costs. Only costs which meet
all three of the criteria below are induded within contract assets on the balance sheet

i.  the costs directly relate to the contract (eg. direct labour, materals, subcontractors);

il. the Group is bulding an asset that wall subsequently be used to deliver contract outcomes; and

fil. the costs are expected to be recoverable ie. the contract is expected to be profitable after amortising the capitalised costs.

Contract fulfilment costs covened within the scope of another accounting standard, such as invertories, intangible assets, or property, plant and
equipment are not capitalised as contract fulfilment assets but are treated in accordance with the other standard.

Amortisation and impairment of contract assets
The Group amorbses contract assets (pre-contract costs and contract fulfilrent costs) on a systematic basis that is consistent with the entity's transfer
of the related goods or services to the custorner. The expense is recognised in the income staterment in the period.

A aapialised pre-contract cost or contract fulfilment cost is derecognised either when it is disposed of or when no further economic benefits are
expected to flow from its use.

The Group is required to determine the recoverabilty of contract related assets at each reporting date. An impairment exdsts if the carrying amount
of any asset exceeds the amount of consideration the entity expects to receive in exchange for providing the associated goods and services, less the
remaining costs that relate directly to providing those goods and services under the relevant contract. In determining the estimated amount of
corsideration, the Group uses the same principles as # does 1o determine the contract transaction price which indudes estimates around variable
consideration. An impairment s recognised immediately where such losses are forecast.

Accrued income and deferred income

The Group's customer contracts include a diverse range of payment schedules which are often agreed at the inception of long-term contracts
under which it receives payments throughout the term of the arrangement. Payments for goods and services transferred at a point in tirme may

be at the delivery date, in arrears or part payment in advance.

Where revenue recognised at the pericd end date is more than amounts irvoiced, the Group records acerued income for the difference.
Where revenue recognised at the period end date is less than amounts invoiced, the Group recognises deferred income for the difference.

Certain arrangements with customers indude a contractual obligation to make redundandes for which the Group is reimbursed for the costs
incurred, Revenue is not recognised on these transactions. Instead, the Group expenses afl redundanicy costs in the period they are incurred and
any reimbursement credit is matched against the associated cost inchded in the income staterment up to the value of the redundancy cost incurred.
Aryczshpawmisrecewedfromﬁ\ecustmmexcessofﬂweasocﬁedcostofmdundamyaredefwedwememwmandumnd
in line with the cther services being delvered.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019

I. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

Where price step-downs are required in a contract and output is not decreasing, revenue is deferred from initial periods to subsequent periods
in order for reverue to be recognised on a consistent basis.

Providing the option for a customer to cbtain extension periods or other services at a significant discount may lead 10 a separate performance cbiligation
where a material right exists. Wherne this is the case, the Group allocates part of the transaction price from the original contract to deferred income
which is then amortised over the discounted extension period or recognised immexdiately when the extersion right expires.

Forelgn currency

The financial statements of each of the Group's businesses are prepared in the functional cumency applicable to that business. Transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency are recorded at the rate of exchange at the date of transaction. Monetary assets and hiabilibes denominated in foreign
currencies at the balance sheet date are reported at the rates of exchange prevafling at that date.

items carried at fair vafue that are denominated in foreign currendies are transkted at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value
was determined, Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settiement of monetary fterns, and on the retranslation of monetary itervs, are included in the income staterment
for the period. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary iterns carried at fair value are induded in profit or foss for the
period except for differences arising on the retranstation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity.
For such non-monetary items, any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised directly in equity.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations, induding goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on their acquisition, are
translated into sterfing at exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Income and expenses are transiated into sterfing at average exchange rates
for the period. Exchange differences arising are recogrised directly in equity in the Group’s hedging and translation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the deferred currulatve amount recognised in equity relating to that particular foreign operation is recognisad in the income statement.

Finance costs
Finance costs consist of interest and other costs that are incurred in connection with the borrowing of fiunds. Finance ¢sts are recogrised in the income
statement in the penod in which they are incurred, with the finance charges relating to the dinect cost of debt issue spread over the period to

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income statemernt because
it exdudes iterns of incomé or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further exdudes fterns that are never taxable or dedudtible.
The Group's liabity for current tax is caiculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amourtts of assets and fiabiities in the finandal
statements and the cormesponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accoxnted for using the balance sheet liabiity method.
Deferred tax kabilities are generally recognised for alf taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill o from the initial recognition {other than in 2 business combination) of other assets and kabilities

in a trarsaction that affects neither the 1axable profit nor the accourting profit,

Tre carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced 1o the extent that ¢ is no longes probable that sufficent
taxable profits will be available to aflow all or part of the asset 1o be recovered, .

Deferred tax i calcuiated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settied or the asset i realised, based upon tax
rates and legislation that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the baance sheet date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income:
statement, except when it relates to items charged or ¢redited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is ako dealt with in equity.
Deferred tax assets and labiftties are offset when there i a legally enforceable right to set off curment tax assets against current tax liabilities; or when
they refate to income taxes tevied by the same taation authority and the Group intends 1o settie its current Tax assets and liabiities on a net basis.

Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the acquisition method, The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at
the date of exchange, of assets given, kabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for contral of the acquiree.
Acquisition costs incurred are expensed. The acquiree identifiable assets, liabilities and conttingent iabilities that meet the conditions for recognition are
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date, except for non-current assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for resale in accordance
with IFRS 5 *Non-curment assets hekd for sale and discontinued operations’, which are recognised and measured at fair value less costs to sell

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the business combination aver the
Group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent iabiities recogrised, Negative goodwill representing a gain from

a bargain purchase, is recognised directly in the income statement. :

Where applicable, the consideration for an acquisition indudes any assets or labilities resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, measured
at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes in such fair values are adjusted against the cost of acquisition where they result from additional
infarmation, obtained within Gne year from the acquisition date, about facts and circurmstances that exasted at the acquisition date. Al other subsequent
changes in the fair value of contingent consideration dassified as an asset or Kabifity are recognised in the income statermnent, in accordance with IFRS 9.
Changes in the fair value of contingent consideration classified as equity are nat recognised.
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Any business combinations prior to | April 2010 were accounted for using the standards in place prior to the adoption of IFRS 3 (revised 2008) which
differ in the following respects: transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition formed part of the acquisition costs; contingent consideration was
recognised if, and only if, the Group had a present obligation, the economic outfiow was more likely than not and a reliable estimate was determinable;
and subsequent adjustments to the contingent consideration were recognised as part of goodwill

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that do nat result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for

as equity transactions, The: carrying arounts of the Group's interests and the: non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
refative interests in the subsidiaries. Ay difference between the amountt by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair vakse of the
consideration paid or received is recogrised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Compary.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and s cakculated as the difference between: (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest; and (ii) the previous carrying amountt of the assets {including
goodwill) and liabrittes of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All amaunts previously necognised in other comprehensive income in relation
1o that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilibes of the subsidiary ie. redassified to profit or
loss or transferred 1o another category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable IFRSs. The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidfiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under IFRS 9, when applicable,
of an investrment in an associate or a joirt venture.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on corsolidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's interest in the fair vakse of the identifiable assets,
Iiabiliuesar\dcmﬁrvgemlhbwsofambsidiaryatﬂxedaeofacquwon

Goodwill is initially recogrsed as an asset at cost and is subsequently measured at cost less accumnulated impairment losses. It s reviewed for impairment
at least anmually. Any impairment is recognised immediately in the income statement for the period and is not subsequently reversed

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwall is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units (CGUS) expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination. CGls to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that
the unit may be impaired if the recoverable amount of the CGL s less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss 15 allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwall allacated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount

of each asset in the unit. On dispesal of a subsidiary the attributable amount of goodwill is induded in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Other Intangible assets

Other intangible assets identified in a business acquesition are capitalised at fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Customer relationships are amortised over their useful lives based on the period of time over which they are anticipated to generate benefits.
Other acquisition related intangibles include acquired software and technology which are amortised over their useful ives.

Software and development expenditure is capitalised as an intangible asset if the asset created can be identified, if it is probable that the asset created
will generate future economic benefits and if the development cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Software and development expenditure
indudes internally generated intangible assets and is amortised over its useful life once it has been brought into use.

Following initial recogrution, the crrying amount of an intangible asset is its cost less any accumulated amortisation and any acaumulated impairment
losses. Intangible assets are reviewed for impairment annwually, or more frequently when there i an indication that they may be impaired.
Amortisation expense is charged to administrative expenses in the income statemert on a straight-line basis over its useful iife.

Property, piant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumutated deprediation and any impairment in value. Depreciation is charged 5o as 1o write off
the cost less expected residual value of the assets over their estimated useful Iives and is calculated on a straight-hne basis as follows:

Freehold buikdings and fong leasehold property 50 years
Leasshold improvements period of the lease
Plart and vehides 3-10years

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impaimment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of any impainment loss.
Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to
which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amourtt & the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discourted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessmenits of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset {or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is reduced
1o its recoverable amourt. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequentty reverses, the carrying amourit of the asset (or CGU) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
arnount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment koss s recognised as income immediately.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019

I. Basis of preparation and significant accounting palicies continued

Joint ventures and associates

The Group has an interest i joint ventures which are entities in winch the Group has jomt control, The Group also has an interest in associates which
are entities in which the Group has significart influence.

The Group accounts for ks interest in joint ventures and associates using the equity method, Under the equity method the Group's share of the post-tax
resut of joint ventures and associates s reported 25 a single line item in the consolidated income statement.

ﬂeG;q;psmterstnmmmwmmmnﬂecasdschtedbahmesfwetatcpstpluspost«qﬂmdwgsmﬂxe&wps
share of net assets.

Inventories
Irvertories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs represent materiaks, direct labour and overheads incurred in bringing the inventories 1o their presertt condition and location,
Net realisable value is based on estimated sellng price fess further costs expected 1o be incurred to completion and estimated selling costs. Provision
s made for obsolete, skow moving or defective tems where appropriate.

Financial instruments
Financia) assets and financia! liabilities are recognised on the Group's balince sheet when the Group becomes 2 party to the contraciual provisions of the
instrument. The Group derecagnises financial assets and liabilities only when the contractual rights and obligations are transferved, discharged or expire,

Financial assets comprise trade and cther receivables and cash and cash equivalents. The dassification of financial assets under IFRS 9 is generally based
on the business mode! in which a financial asset & managed and ifs cortractual cash flow characteristiss. All of the Group's cash flows from customers are
solely payments of principal and interest, and do nat cortain a significarnt financing componen. Financial assets generated from all of the Group's revenue
streamns are therefore initially measured at their transaction price (as defined in IFRS 15) and are subsequently remeasured at amortised cost. Cash and
cash equivalents cornprise cash in hand, demand deposits and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to 2 known amount
of cash and are subject 1o an insignificant risk of changes in value.
The assessment of impairment of trade neceivables and accrued income fromn | Apr! 2018 is in accordance with IFRS 9. The Group recognises a loss
albmnceforexpectadcraditlosss(ECL)mall receivable balances from customers subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the ‘simplified
approach’ permitted under IFRS 9. in the prior year under LAS 39, appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts were recognised
mdudingwherettnrevmobgwwemdmmmeassetmmpand

The Group uses a non-recourse qustomer invoice discournting faciity (CID fadility) under which certain trade receivable balances are sold to the Group's
relationship banks. The arrangement with the barks is such that the customers remit cash directly to the Group and the Group transfers the coftected
amounts to the banks. The trade receivables are sold without recourse 10 the Group, and therefore the trade receivable balance is derecognised.
Firancial labilites comprise trade payables, financing liabilities, bank and other borrowings, deferred consideration and contingent consideration. These
are meastred at initial recognition at fair vakue and subsequently at amortised cost with the exception of contingent consideration which i rmeasured at
fair value through profit or loss. Bank and other borrowings are stated at the amount of the netl proceeds after deduction of transaction costs. Finance
charges, induding pretmiums payable on settiement or redemption and direct issue costs, are accounted for on an accruals basis in the: income statement.

included within the Group's trade creditors balance are amounts relating to payments due t0 UK supphiers which make use of bank provided supply
chain finance arrangements to allow suppler early payment by the bark. Amounts are settied by the Group in accordance with each supplier's nonmal
payment terme and payments continue 1o be dassified within cash generated by operations. The Group does not receive any additional puarantees and
does not pay any irerest in relation to these amournts,

Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group uses derivative finandal instruments, including cross-currency inkerest rate swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts, to manage the
Group's exposure to finandal risks associated with interest rates and foreign exchange. Derfvative financial instruments are initiatly recognised at fair
value at the date the derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value, determined by reference 1o market rates,
at each balance sheet date and included as financial assets or fiabiities as appropriate. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in the income statemert
immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in the income
statemertt depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.

The Group may designate certain hedging instruments including derfvatives as either fair value hedges, cash flow hedges, or hedges of net investments
in foreign operations. Hedges of foreign exchange rsk on firm commitments are accounted for as cash flow hedges.

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the Group documents the relationship between the hedgng instrument and the hedged item, along with its
risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking vanous hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing
basis, the Group documents whether the hedging instrument that is used in a hedging relationship is highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values
or cash flows of the hedged item.

Fair value hedges

Hedges are dassified as fair value hedges when they hedge the exposure 10 changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability. Changes in the fair
value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the income staterment immediately, together with any changes
in the fair value of the hedged item that are attributable to the hedged risk The change in the fair value of the hedging instrument and the change in
the hedged itemn attributable 10 the hedged risk are recognised in the line of the income statement relating to the hedged ftem. Hedge accounting s
discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relationship, the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, exerdised, or no longer qualifies

for hedge accounting. The fair value adjustment 1o the carrying amount of the hedged item arising from the hedged risk is amortised to the income
statement from that date.

Cash flow hedges

Hediges are dassified as cash flow hedges when they hedge the exposure to changes in cash flows that are attributable to a particular risk associated

with either a recognised asset or Bability or a forecast transaction. The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are desi

and qualify as cash flow hedges are recogrused In other comprehensive iIncome and accumutated in equity within the Group’s translation and hedging

reserve. The gain or loss reiating to any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income statement.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and acourmulated in equity are redassified to the income statement in the periods when

ﬂuehedgedhanisreoognsedhmeimomestatawminﬂ\emlheasmemcognisedhedgedhanm.whenﬂmeforecasttmsactionﬂ\atis

hedged results in the recognition of a non-finandal asset or a non-finandal liability, the gains and losses previously accumulated in equity are transferred

from equity and induded in the initial measurerment of the cost of the non-finandial asset or non-finandial liabikty, Hedge accounting i discontinued when

the Group revokes the hedging relationship, the: hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, exerdsed, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting.

Any gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income at that time is acournulated in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is
ultimately recognised in the income statement. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in equity is

recognised immediately in the income staterment.

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations

edges are dassified as net investrnent hedges when they hedge the foreign currency exposure to changes in the Group's share inthe net assets of

a foreign operation. Hedges of net investrents in foreign operations are accounted for simitarly to cash flow hedges. Any gain or loss on the hedging

nstrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge is recognised in other comprehensive income and accurnulated in the Group's transiation and
hedging reserve. The gain or loss refating to any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income statement. Gains or losses on the hedging

instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge accumulated in equity are reclassified 1o the income statemment in the same way as exchange

differences relating to the foreign operation as described above.

Leasing

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits inddental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalised at the
inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased tem or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are

apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as 1o achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the Kability. Finance charges are charged directly to the income statement.

Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated life of the asset or the lease term.

Leases where the lessor retains substantially alt the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Operating
lease payments are recognised as an expense in the income statement on a straight-fine basis over the lease tenm. Any lease incentives are amortised
on a straight-line basis over the non-cancellable period for which the Group has contracted to lease the asset, together with any further terms for which
the Group has the option o continue to lease the asset if, at the inception of the lease, it is judged to be reasonably certain that the Group will exerdse
the option,

Provisions

Prondsions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and it 15 probable that an outfiow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settie the obligation and a refiable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation
Where the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised

as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the ncome statement
net of any reimbursement If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current rmarket assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks spedific to the ability.
Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a borrowing cost
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019

t. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policles continued

Onerous contract provisians (OCPs) arise when the unavoidable costs of meeting cortractual obligations exceed the remuneration expected to

be received. Unavoidable costs include total contract costs together with a rational akocation of shared costs that can be directly linked to fulfiling
comtractual obiigations which have been systernatically aliocated to OCPs on the basis of key cost drivers, except where this is impracticable and contract
revenue is used as a proxy for activity. The provision is calaulated as the lower of the termination costs payable for an early exit and the expected net
cost to fulfll the Group's umavoidable contract obligations. Where a austomer has an option to extend a corttract and it is likely that such an extension
will be made, the expected net cost arising during the extension period is included within the cakoulation. However, where a profit can be reasonably
expected in the extension penod, no credit is taken an the basis that such profits are uncertain given the patentia! for the customer to either not extend
or offer an extension under lower pricing terms.

Share-based payments

The Group opergtes a number of executive and employee share option schemes. Equity-settied share-based payments 1o empioyees are measured at
the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. The fair value exdudes the effact of non-rnarket basad vesting condrtions, For grants of share
options and awards, the fair vakse as at the date of grant is calulated using the Black-Scholes model, Morntte Carlo model or the share price at grant date,
and the corresponding expense is recognised on a straight-iine basis over the vesting peniod based on the Group's estimate of shares that will eventually
vest. At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimate of the niurmber of equity instruments expected to vest as a result of the effect of nor-
market based vesting conditions. Save As You Earmn (SAYE} options are treated as carwelled when employees cease 10 contribute to the scheme.
resulting in an acceleration of the remainder of the refated expense.

Restricted snares are issued as part of the ronsideration for acquisitions made by the Cumpany artached with a condition that the relevant recipient
continues their employment with the Group for a fixed vesting period of time: Restrictions will remain attached to the shares if the recipient leaves
ermployment with the Group prior $o completion of the vesting period of the shares. The fair value of the restricted shares is the share price at the
date the acquisition agreement was signed.

The credits in respect of the amounts charged are incuded within the share-based payrnent reserve in equity until such time as the vesting periods

or share restrictions expire.

The own shares reserve in equity indudes the shares owned by the Employee Trust, treasury shares and restricted shares issued as part of the
consideration for acquisitions. VWhen shares are transferred 1o employees upon exerdse of options and awards or when restricted shares held

by employees are released from their restrictions, the own shares reserve is reduced by the relevant tost or value.

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a number of defined contribution retirement benefit schemes for all qualifying emplayees. Payrmerts to the defined cortribution
and stakehokdes pension schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due.

In adidition, the Group operates and participates in a number of defined benefit schemes. In respect of the scheres in which the Group makes
contributions under Admitted Body status to dients defined benefit schemes in respect of certain employees who transferred to the Group under
TUPE, the Group accounts for its legal and constructive obigatiors over the period of its participation which is for a fixed period only.

For the defined benefit persion schemes, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations
being carried out a1 each balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses on obligations, the return on scheme assets (excuding interest) and the effect
of the asset celing (if applicable) are recognised in full inthe period in which they occur. They are recognised in the statement of comprebensive incorre.

Definedbeneﬁtmm(Mmmm)nmnmmmmnnwmmmwmm
whilst the net irterest cost is recognised in finance costs.

The retirement benefit kabiiity recogrised in the balance sheet represents the present vakue of the defined benefit obligation, as reduced by the fair
va!ueofschemeassctsArvasxetresuhrgfrunﬂusdahumsluwtedtomeprmnvaluecfmhblereﬁmdsandreductnonsmfub.:recormhmom
to the plan.
MGmupparbcpatanfmrM—qmbyerdefu\edw\empermnmForﬂ'weeofmmw(impsdweofﬂemm
liabilities is rmirémal. The fourth scherme is the Plurnbing & Mechanical Services (LK) Industry Persion Scheme {the Plumbing Scheme), a funded mult-
employer defined benefit scheme. The Plumbing Scheme was faunded in (975 and to date has had over 4,000 emplayers, with drca 400 reraining.
Historically, the size and complexity of the Plumbing Scheme has meant the trustee is unable at this time 1o idertify the assets and liabifities of the scheme
which are attributable to the Group. The Group has recently receved a Section 75 emplayer debt notice in cespect of the participation of Robert
Prettie & Co Limited in the Plumbing Scheme (refer to Note 19 and Nete 32). One Group company. Mitie Property Services (UK) Limited, continues

0 partiipate in the Plumbing Scheme, however no apportionment of the assets and liabilities attributable to this comparty is available and consequently,
the Group accounts for its contributions as if they were paid to a defined contribution scheme.

For schemes where sufficiert information is not available to use defined benefit accounting, no liability s recognised on the balance sheet, however,
the obligations are disciosed as contingent fiabilities in Note 33,
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2. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Critical judgements in applying the Group's accounting policies
The preparation of consolidated financial statementts under IFRS requires management 10 make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect

amounts recognised for assets and liabilities at the reporting date and the amounts of reverue and expenses incurred during the reporting period.
Actual results may differ from these judgements, estimates and assumptions.

The judgernents and estimates which have the most significant effect on the reported resutt for the year ended 3| March 2019 and upon the carying
vahue of assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31 March 2019 are described below.

Revenue recognition
The Group's revenue recognition policies, which are set out under Revenue recognition in Note |, are central to how the Group measures the work
it has performed in each financial year,

For certan contracts, key judgements were made concerning contract extensions and amendments which, for example, directly impact the timing
of revenue recognition in addition to the phasing of upfront payments to, or from austomers which are deferred to the balance sheet and urwound
over the expected contract term. The Group has defermed pre-cortract costs of £2.2m to the balance sheet within contract assets following its
assessrmernt of contract modifications during the year (refer to Note | 6). Management considers this to be an area of judgerment due tothe
determination of whether a modification represents a separate contract based on its assessment of the stand-alone selling price, rather than a
termination of the existing contract and establishrment of a new contract for which the revised contract price would be recognised from the date
of modification.

Profit before other itemns

‘Other items’ are items of financial performance which the Group believes should be separately identified on the face of the income statement to assist
in understanding the underlying financial performance achieved by the Group. Determining whether an itemn should be dassified within ather iterms
requires jucigement as to whether an term is or is nat part of the undertying perforrance of the Group.

Other iterns after tax of £32.8m (201 8: £87.2m) were charged to the income statement for the year ended 31 March 2019, An analysts of the amounts
included in other items is detailed in Note 4.

Recoverabifity of aged debtors and accrued income

The Group has material amourtts of billed and unbiled work cutstanding at year end as outiined in Note 23. Where balances become subject to dispute,
the risk of recoverability increases. As a consequence, there is significant management judgemert ywolved in assessing whether these balances have been
earmed and in assessing the recoverability of these balances which involves consideration of the Group's contractual rights and work performed as well
as the status of ongoing commercial negotiations. The judgement as to whether an amount has became irecoverable i an assessment made by the
Directors in the determination of the total expected aredit loss recognised by the Group under IFRS 9. The Group has recognised a total loss allowance
of £19.2m (2018: £17.3m) in respect of both aged and disputed trade and cther receivable balances at 31 March 2019.

ey sources of estimation uncertainty

Due to the size and complexity of the Group's contracts, management is required to form a number of key gudgements and estimates in the
determination of the amount of revenue and profits to record, and refated balance sheet items such as contract assets, accrued income and deferred
income to recognise {refer to Note 1). This indudes an assessment of the costs the Group incurs to deliver the contractual commitments and whether
such costs should be expensed as incurred or capitalised. These judigernents are inherently subjective and may cover future events such as the
actvevement of contractual performance targets and planned cost savings or discourts. The Directors do not consider that any reasonably foreseeable
change in this source of estimation would have a material impact on the Group's finandial staterments.

Provisions and contingent assets and kiabilites

The Company and various of its subsidiares are, from time to time, party to legal proceedings and claims that are in the ordinary course of business.
Judgernents are required in order to assess whether these legal proceedings and claims are probable and the liability can be reasonably estimated,
resulting in a prowision or, alternatively, whether the items meet the definition of contingent liabilities.

Prowisions are liabilities of uncertain timing or amount and therefore in making a reliable estimate of the quantum and timing of liabilities judgement
smymmwnmmmmmewpmwmmmm March 2019 of £56.6m (2018: £31.5m). Further details
arei in Note 9.

The Directors are working to ensure that, through a combination of insurance daims and recourse to suppliers a proportion of the £16.1m costs
(refer to Note 4) incurred in respect of rectification works for the Sodal Housing property maintenance contracts, inciuding the £12.1m recorded
in provisions {refer to Note 19), are recovered. The amount and timing of any recovertes is yet to be determined.

Measurement of defined benefit pension obligations
The net pension liability 2t 31 March 2019 was £63.8m (2018; £568m).

The measurement of defined benefit obligations requires judgement It is dependent on material key assumptions inducng discount rates,
life expectancy rates, and future contribution rates. See Note 32 for further details and a sensitivity analysis for the key assumptions.

The Group also participates in four multi-employer defined benefit pension schemes, induding the Plurnbing & Mechanical Services (UK) Industry
Pension Scheme (the Plumbing Scheme). A provision of £20.0m has been made for Section 75 employer debts in respect of the participation of
Rebert Prettie & Co. Limited in the Plumbing Scheme. The Group has a further potential exposure to Section 75 employer debts in respect of the
partcipaton of Mitie Property Services (UK) Limited in the Plumbing Scheme, which has been discdosed as a contingent liability due to the inherert
uncertainty regarding the amount of any hability.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019

2. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty continued

Gain on bargain purchase

The Group has recognised an £8.8m gain on the purchase of Vision Security Group Limited. The vakue of this gain is subject to the assessment of the fair
value of the acquired assets and liabilibes and the finalisation of the consideration to be paid through agreement of the compietion accounts with the
sefler of the business. See Note 30 for further detaiks.

The fair value of the acquired assets includes £14.9m representing the value of ntangible assets associated with customer refationships acquired.
This valuation is based upon forecast cash flows which are subject to significant management judgernent and estimation.

Allocation of goodwill to discontinued operations

The Directors have made a judgernert to detenmine the allocation of goodwill 1o the discontinued operations to artive at the gainfioss on disposal
‘H\salocmonmwnedmnwmMmewﬂnfuemwfmdﬂmmmbhmmwmmdmw
generating units the activities were previously part of

Goinf{loss) on disposal of discontinued operations

The Group hat recognised a gain of £26.7m on the disposal of Mitie Pest Control Limited and 2 loss of £11.7m on the disposal of the Social Housing
business, refer to Note 5.

The value of these gains and losses is subject to finafisation of the consideration to be paid through agreement of the completion accounts with
the purchasers of these businesses. The Directors have made a judgement as to the likely outcomne of each completion accourts settiement.

Deferred tax asscts

The Group has recognised deferred tax assets of £38.7m (2018: £36.7m), refer to Note 20. The Directors have assessed recovery of these assets
with reference to the Group’s medium-term forecasts. Recovery of these assets is subject to the Group generating taxable profits in future years.
impoirment of goodwill

In assessing the key sources of estimation uncertainty. the Directors no longer consider impairment of goodwill as a key source of estimation.

The Directors do not consider that any reasonably foreseeable change in this source of estirmation would have a material impact on the Group's
financial statements,
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3. Business segment information

The Group manages its business on a service division basis. At 31 March 2019, the Group has six strategic divisions which are its reportable segments
and the information, as reported, is consistent with information presenited to the Board. Revenue, operating profit before other iterms and operating
profit margin before other items are the primary measures of performance that are reported to and reviewed by the Board, which is the Group’s
chief operating decision maker.

The information preserted for the year ended 31 March 2018 has been restated to reflect the changes in management reporting, implemented in the
year ended 3| March 2019, of certain business unit actmvities transferring between Engineering Services, Professional Services and Corporate centre,
the integration into Engineering Services of the roofing and painting activities which previously formed part of Property Management, and the
classification of Pest Cortrol and Sodal Housing as discontinued operations.

201y 018’
B e B o
Revenue  other tems’  other iterns® Revere ioerms? other tems’
m &m % €m m %
Engineenng Senices 905.7 58.7 6.5 8863 54.1 6.4
Security .536.5 307 57 4320 75 64
Professional Services 1314 5.6 4.3 131.2 56 43
Cleaning 8 Environmental Services 404.4 175 4.3 384.1 196 5.1
Care & Custody 107.3 3.9 3.5 599 19 32
Caterng 136.1 5.2 38 137.1 56 41
Corporate centre - {33.4) - - a31.0) -
Total from continuing operations 2,221.4 88.2 4.0 20306 832 4.1
Pest Control 11.9 2.4 102 23 26 "7
Sodal Housing 89.1 1.6 1.8 1508 g 25
Total from discontinued operations 101.0 4.0 4.0 173.1 b4 37
Total 23224 2.2 4.0 22037 8946 41

Notes:

1. The Group has adopted IFRS ¥ starung | April 2018 usng the transtion option available in the standard by discloang the imnpact a5 an adustment (o openng retained samings at the date of iutial
applicaton, Under this option, the comparative information is not restated. ’

2 Other items are as desarbed in Note 4.

3. No sngle customer accounted for more than 10% of external revenue in 2019 or 2018,

A reconciiation of segmertt operating profit/(loss) before other items to total profit/(loss) before tax is provided below:

1019 018
m &m
Operating profit before other items 882 832
Other items? ’ (38.0) @2,
Net firance costs . ) (13.8) (165)
Total from continuing operations 354 (154)
Operating profit before other items 0 64
Other items? (6.0} (i58)
Net finance incorme 0.1 0.1
Total from discontinued operations (1.9) (33)
Profit/(loss) before tax 4.5 247)

Notes:

1. The Group has adopted IFRS % startirg | Aprd 2018 using the vransition option available: in the standand by disclosing the impact as an adustment 1o opening retained earmings at the date of ntial
applicauon. Under this option, the comparative infornation & not restated,

2 Cther terms are as desabed in Mote 4.

IFRS 8 requires that a measure of segment assets should be disclosed only if that amount is regularty provided to the chief operating decision maker and
consequently no segment assets are disclosed.

Mitie Group ple | Annual Report and Accounts 2019 13
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3| March 2019

3. Business segment information continued

Geographical segments
20ty 218
gy e oy e
e D i heme wiBd il
m £m x £m £m %
United Kingdom 2,1222 5.4 40 19206 829 43
Other countries 99.2 14 2.6 1100 03 03
Continuing operations 1,211.4 882 40 20306 832 EY]
United Kingdom 1010 4.0 0 1731 1] 17
Other countries - - - - - -
Discontinued operations 1010 40 40 1731 64 37
Total 13224 911 40 22037 946 4\
Notes:

1. The Group has sdopuad FRS 9 saning § Aprl 2018 wsng the vareitun option analabie in the ftandard by disttsing the smpact 26 art adustminit 10 Dpening retanes sarmings 2t the dae of el
application. Under this option, the gomparative information i not restated
2 Other iterms are #s desorbed in Note 4.

Supplementary Information
1 18
m Arvorti; A d m Amortication Amortiszion
St e Cemmi gee fmnd e Cdem o
m km m m £m £m £m [
Engineering Services 09 0s - 62 12 25 - 17
Securmy . 5 02 - 16 18 DS - 04
Professional Services 0.2 0.) i 02 02 3 07 - 6
Cleaning & Emironmental 4.1 1.0 - 2.0 . 40 03 - (R}
Services
Care & Custody 0.4 ~ 0.8 0.1 03 - ol [+X}
Catering .0 Y - 'Y 15 02 - -
Corporate tentre 32 10 - 172 32 856 - 762
Continuing aperations "na e 08 38.0 123 2 o1 gt
Healthcare - - - (2.0 "o - - -
Pest Control 0. - - (27.6) 02 ol - -
Social Housing 01 ol - 354 Q3 Q2 - 158
Di tinued operath 3 0.1 - 6.0 05 03 - 158
Total 1.6 20 08 44.0 128 135 o 979
Note:
1. Other items are 2 described in Note 4
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Disaggregated revenue

The Group disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by sector (government and non-government) and by contract duration (contracts
with a duration from inception of less than two years, and contracts with a duration from inception of more than two years). The Group believes this
best depicts how the nature, timing and amount of revenue and cash flows are affected by economic factors. The following table indudes a
recondiation of disaggregated revenue with the Group's reportable segments.

Strategic report

201y

Contract duration for timing of revenue

Sector! recognidon

Non- Less than More than

Gwenm;:rmn mnrnznlt Tﬁ 1 yunhn 2 "ﬂ To‘::ll

Engineerng Services 3603 5374 205.7 1224 7833 05.7

Security 88.3 448.2 5365 80.1 456.4 534.5

Professional Services 21.5 109.9 1314 54 126.0 1314
Cleaning & Ervironmentta! Services 109.2 1952 404.4 - 404.4 404.4 g

Care & Custody 1073 - 107.3 - 1073 107.3
Catering 5.7 130.4 136.0 17.4 118.7 138.1 Lg

Continuing operations 7003 1,521.1 22214 225.3 1,996.1 22214

Pest Control - e 1LY - 1.9 L9

Sodial Housing [ 1 2] - 89.1 54.1 5.0 89.1

Diseontinued operations 9.1 e 101.0 54.1 46.9 1010

Fotal T89.4 1,533.0 13124 1794 2,043.0 23114

PNt

I, Sector is defined by the end austomer on any contract &g, i the (roup s 2 SUKGDMTRCION 10 & CoNStUCLIoN tompary For the bulking of 8 pubiic hospaal, then the contract would be dassified
6 government.

K18 &

Secter’ Contract duraton for trming of revenue recognition :E_

oSt T TS o P

€m £m £m on m om 2

Engneenng Services 3684 5179 8863 1374 7489 8863 £
Security 839 3481 4320 55.7 3763 4320
Professional Services 138 1174 1312 89 1223 1312
Cleaning & Ervironmenta) Services 898 2943 3841 - g4 384.1
Care 8 Custody 599 - 599 - 599 599
Catering 46 1325 137.1 1.6 1355 137.1
Continulng operations 6204 14102 20306 2036 18270 20306
Pest Control - 223 23 - 223 23
Social Housing 1508 - 1508 916 592 1508
Discontinued operations 1508 223 173.1 9.6 BIS 173.1
Tortal 7712 14325 22037 295.2 15085 22037

Note:
I. Sector i defined by the end austomer on any contract eg, if the Group | 3 subtontractor 1o 4 tonstruction company for the buitding of 3 public hospral, then the contract would be dassfied
a govertment.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 3| March 2019

3. Business segment information continued

Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations
The table betow shows the forward order book for each segment at the reperting date with the time bands of when the Group expects to recognise
secured revenue on its contracts with customers. Secured revenue cormesponds 1o fixed work contracted with customers and exdudes the impact of

any anticipated contract extersions, and new contracts with customers,

01 0i8

1 year 1 year reVenue 1 year 1 year revenise

m £m im £m £m £m

Engineening Services 3404 1,440.3 1,800.7 3907 1.648.5 20392
Security 478.3 493.2 7S 300.1 3407 6408
Professional Services 9.7 57.2 8.9 458 99.1 1449
Cleaning & Ervironmental Services 27155 e 683.} 2760 3803 6563
Care & Custady 1008 495.8 5946 10038 5693 6701
Catering 12 193 26.5 82 265 347
Continuing operations 1,251y 21,8954 4,147.) 11218 30644 4,1850
Pest Control - - - 30 W0 50
Socig Housirg - - - 763 2280 3043
Discontiimied operations - - - 793 300 83
Total 12509 2,895.4 4,147.3 12009 32944 44953

4. Otheritems

Ohahmumﬁmdﬁmﬂwfm%khmwwmmumwwedmﬁwfmofﬁ\emrcstatmnttom
in understanding the underdying financial performance achieved by the Group.

The Group separately reports the impairment of goodwill, the cost of restructuring programmes,
and amartisation of acquisition related intangibke assets, the resuits of and ¢osts associated with disposals, and other exceptional itermns and their related

acquisition and disposal costs incduding the write-off

tax effect as other iterms:
019
Acquisition & Other
W Restruczure disposal Gain on Gain/(Joss) axceptionsl
— R e B e TR
Adrmiristrative expenses - (15.1) .0 8.8 - (23.0) (38.0)
Other items before tax - (15.1) o.n e.8 - {21.0) (30.0)
Tax - 18 (2] - - 40 T4
Other items after tax - (12.3) @.0) a8 ~ (19.0) (30.8)
Discortiued operatons
Other ltams before tax - (0.8) - - 179 (23.1) (8.0)
Tax - 0.2 - - {0.9) 45 38
Other items after tax - (0.6) - - 17.0 (18.6) 2.9
Total - {12.9) @.1) a8 17.0 (37.8) (32.8)
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2018 é
on t oo
related Tetal
— R Tw e =OTR wm
Administrative experses ) @27 (470) ) - (40) ®2.1) v
Other items before tax @27 {470 89 - 0 ®2.1)
Tax - 87 04 - 09 100
Other itemns after tax @n G83) (80 - o ez )
Other iterns before tax {1.9 (0.3) - - (3.6) (158)
Tax - 1] - - 06 07 @
Other items after tax , (119) ©2) - - felv) (15.1) g
Total (G46) (38.5) 8o - % (872) v
Impairment of goodwill

No charges in respect of the impairment of goodwill have been made in the year ended 31 March 2019,

During the year ended 3| March 2018, the Directors assessed the recoverability of the goodwill allocated to the former Property Management CGU
and recorded an impairment charge of £34.6m. Following the disposal of the Social Housing business, the remaining goodwill of the roofing and painting
activities previousty reported in Property Management, has been integrated into the Engineering Services CGU. See Note 12

Restructure costs
WmmmmwmdmmmﬁmwmsmHebm-arﬁommonpmg'ammemdudmgﬁwe

transibon costs associated with the outsourding of certain back-office transactional processes. E
201 2008 =
:perdm‘ L openﬂﬂu" . Tetal! opu'mls- o .cpemtn\sl ; Tow!' E
im &m m im £m &m

Redundancy payments (4.2) (0.5) “.n (45) ©3) (4.8)

Cost of change team’ on - (0.7 ©n - ©7)

Expenditure and prowisions in respect of property dosure? {0.2) - {0.2) {4.8) - (4.8)

Expenditure in respect of Project Helix transformation activities* (10.0) - {10.0) 26.6) - (26.6)

Expenditure in respect of other transformation projects - 0.3) {v.3) - - -

impairmertt of intangible assets® - - - (104) - (104}

Restructuring costs (15.1) (0.8) (15.9) (470) ©3) 473)

Taation 18 a2 1.0 a7 04 88

Restructuring costs net of taxation (12.3) {0.8) (129 (383) ©2) (385)

Notes

1 Inchudes £135m (2018 £348m) n respect of the Project Helbx: transformation activibes.

2 Casts in respect of rokes made redundant as a result of the Project Helix transformation and other projects to restructure the Group's actvibes. .

3. ncremental costs of teams mvolved in the management of Project Helix transformation actvities.

4, ﬁnwdmwumwmmmuwrmmmmaﬁ-dhaummumdmmm%

5 andﬁm%wﬂmmm £03m (wlamm)ofmm“mpmdm

operating cnodel, £ &m (2018: £82m)
refated to cual running and lnowledge: transfer aosts of the transii transactional actiities 1o 8 provder ﬂ\ng &ﬁ‘l.em duasfmwm
ddﬂrmclhnnmnd&mne;bht:!paalﬁ @md(riﬂblﬂ.ﬁl:!.&n)dprufm'::ﬂfeﬂnrupn and conmuttancy actiities ) with the design and

exacumion of the Project Helx transfortration activities.

-8 ws:e(mmﬁsl'ehutoMNMM“M“&MWW“WSWMMMdMM&mm
processes.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019

4. Other items continued

Gain/(loss) on disposal
During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group completed the sale of the Pest Control and Social Housing businesses. See Note 5 for further details.

Acquisition and disposal related costs

Aequisition and disposal related costs from continuing operations indude the impairment and amortisation charge for acquisition related intangibles
£1 5m (2018; £2.6m), the charge for restricted shares issued per Nate 31 of £39m (2018: £3.4m), costs of £2.6m (201 8: £nil) related to the V5G
acquisition, costs of £0:4m (2018: £nil) related to the settlernent of daims associated with previous acquisitions, costs of £0.3m (2018: £2.2m) relating
to the aborted disposal of the former Property Management division, and £nil (2018: £0.2m) relfated to the disposal of the Heattheare division.

Gain on bargain purchase

A credit of £8.8m (201 8: £ri]) representing a gain on bargain purchase in respect of the acquisition of Vision Security Group Limited (VSG) has baen
recognised from continuing operations. See Note 30.

Other exceptional items

Other exceptional items are analysed below:

Wiy 018
', i Sl peruti Toral ooeﬁﬁu'u' s 'opuunm‘ j Toul
fm ém &m m im im
Regulatory rwestigation' [(H)) - 1.1y 23 - @3)
¥FRS 9/15/16 adoption project? 0.7y - won 08 - 08)
Costs incurred and provision lor settlement of contractual disputes’ - (205) (20.5) - a3) [ek))
Provision for indemnified costs* - 8 (2.6) - - -
Contract termination receipt® - - - 20 - 20
Pension scheme past service costs (induding curtaliments)* - - - 9 - (19)
Cost of equalising Guararteed Minimum Pensions’ i 1.8) - (1.8) - - -
Pension scheme Sadtion 75 debt” (20.0) - (20.0) - - -
Gain on closure of Mitie Reirsurance’ X1 - (X} - - -
Property diapidations'® - - - 10 03) (13}
Other exceptional ttams (23.0) 'eEXT (46.1) a0 [e15) @8
Tasation 4.0 45 s o9 06 15
Other exceptional items net of taxation (19.0) {16.6) (31.6) Fe)) G0 ©
Notes:
e b e e S e e
investigation into the s¥Te Matters, facts and Groumitances which were s:.bject 10 FCA and FRC investigation.

2 Profesional fees and interim stalf costs of £07rm (2018; 08 have breen incurred in respect of the projects 1o adopt RS 9 Tnancet instrurments’, IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from tontyacds with
antomers. and FRS |6 Leset, @

3 Mm&nd?l’orhpruﬂedllMml9mlaﬂ3m)mwhwmmmmﬂh n respect of the settiernent of a contract dispute. €1 &.4m for the
estimated eaticn wirks andd legal adhice associmed wah of the Group's roperty rraintenance aontradts. of which £1 21m is inchaded in grovisions ¢t 31 March 2015, and
€1.0m for other gontractual disputes. This amount is disckased separately due 10 the size of the potential cost and the fact that they arise from dased contracts.

4. The Dé&mdrge for the year ended 31 March 2019 represents the extimated costs arising from certain indennyities provided in reition to the doposal of the Socal Housing business.

This amount i induded in provisans. at 31 March 2019,

S, The lois of two rrofor cCoritracts in the yaar ended 31 March 2018 resulted n 2 one-off tenmination recsipt amounting 16 £2.0m. These anounts are discosed separately due to the size of the
pRyrnents received and the Gt that the: loss of aamracs of the sae & an urusual evert for the Gooun,

6. Asa result of the dosure of the Mitie Pension Scherne to future aorusl from October 2017, a past service cost aur yof £19mwas d in the encled
O e s e 03 Tor T SE pas Gnchdrg yesr

7. Following! mmumm.-zmummmanuum Ligytk Beriang Group relabrg (0. mmdwr«m (G‘IP)NGWPM

mm hbiiisord\tmmdﬁrwﬂwmd nﬂmh&mmTMdh-.td equalisanion has been recogrised in the ncome
statement 3 a phan armendment; the charge has been, bchsded within other ame due 1o the size and nanreaurving ratuce of the anount. See Note 32 for (ucther detailc

8. Extirated Sedtion 75 deixt i relation 10 the participation of Robert Prete & Co Limited in the Phumbng & Mechanical Servces (LX) Industry Pansion Schame. See Note 32 for further detals

9. Dr"‘uuyurmdedﬂ March 2019 the Group fquikiated its captive insurance compary Mitie Reinsurance Cornpanyy Limited resulting i & nét incorne of 04m after setting al

10 Asprtofﬂaeraumuhtm the Group's property portfolio & review of the potential fabilities for leasehold property dilapidiation 0osts was cred out a7 resulted in 8 one-off £1 3m charge
n the year endad 31 March 2018
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5. Discontinued operations and disposal of subsidiaries

On 30 Septernber 2018, the Group compieted the sale of Mitie Pest Control Limited {Pest Control) for cash consideration of £400m before tax
and transaction costs. The results of the Pest Control business have been dassified as discontinued operations and comparative information has been
restated. The Group recognised a net gain on disposal of £26.7m, reported in profit from discontinued operations and recognised in other itemns
(see Note 4).

On 19 Novermber 2018, the Company signed an agreement for the sale of Mitie Property Management Limited and MPS Housing Limited (together
the Social Housing business) and this transaction was subsequently completed on 30 November 2018. The results of the Sodial Housing business have
been dassified as discontinued operations and comparative information has been restated, The Group has retained liability, and made: provisions where
appropriate, for certain lagacy corracts of the Social Housing business so these are not incuded within liabdlities held for sale. The Group recognised

a net 1oss on disposal of £11.7m, reported in profit from discortinued operations and recognised in other tems (see Note 4).

The Group has determined that the Healthcare Indeminity provision should be partly refeased by £2.0m. This has been recorded as a gain on disposal
The results of these discontinued operations are detailed below. '
There were no disposak in the financial year ended 31 March 2018.

Income statement of discontinued operations

Strategic report

E

019
Pest Cnnm Social Hﬂldl‘:"‘ Tﬁ
Reverue ne 8. 1010
Cost of sales ®.n e (19.6)
Gross profit 51 162 214
Administrative expenses @) {1s.n (e
Share of profit of joint ventures and associates - o5 05
Operating profit before other items’ 24 1.6 4.0
Other tems’ - (13.9) 232.9) 2
Net finance income o.f - 0.1 5
Profit/(loss) before tax 25 3) (19.8) [
Tax ©.3) 4.0 37 b
Profiti(loss) from discontinued operations 232 (1e3) (6.1) f
018
Ps:m‘: Soudkhﬁ Tﬁ
Revenue 213 1508 173.1
Cost of sales {I¥)] {1158) (1320)
Gross profit 6l 50 41,1
Admiristrative expenses (35) (320) (355)
Share of profit of joint vertures and assocates - 08 08
Operating profit before other items® 6 38 64
Other items’ ; ©.1) {157) (158)
et finance ncome 0.1 - [+1]
Profit/{loss) before tax 26 (119) ©3)
Tax 05) 03 ©2
Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations 1 (11.6) (%5)

Notex

I. The £1.6m operating profit before other items in Sodal Housing for the year ended 31 March 2015 indudes a £1 4m loss in respext of a contract which has been tarminated and £2 ém
of recharpes in respact of Group centa services.

2 The £3 B operating profi before other tems in Socisl Housing for the year ended 31 March 2018 indudes an increased deit provision of £1.2m in addibon 1o £2.3m of rechanges in respet
of Group cenmral services.

3 Onheriterms are as desaribed n Note 4,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3| March 2019

5. Discontinued operations and disposal of subsidiaries continued
Gain/(loss) on disposal of discominued operations

219 018
Healthcare  Pest Control' Social Houting Toual Heakthcare?
£ £m £m £m im
Total corsideration . - 384 225 409 ©2)
Net assets disposed - ®.6) Gy ae.n -
Release of indemnity provision 20 - - 2.0 -
Transaction costs - x2) 3.1 -3 -
Total garv(ioss) on disposal before tax ) 20 1.6 oL 7.9 ©2
Taxation - (0.9 - (0.9) -
Net gaini(less) on disposal of discontinued operations 20 26.7 anLn 17.0 ©2)
Noe:
1. Tenal coruideration of £3%2m has been rectived in cash, but £08m & expedted to be: returned through agreement of the completion accourts with the pundhaser of the business
1 Deferred contriution of €02m in the year to 31 March 2018 was payable to the punchaser
3 Indudes goodwill of £3.3m relating 1 Pest Control and £12.5m rolating to 500l Housing and cash balances of (3.6m.
Profit for the year from discontinued operations
201¢ 2018
m m
Loss for the year from dscontinued operations (16.1) (9.5)
Gain on despasal of discontinued operations 170 -
Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued operstions o (95)
Total comprehensive income/{expense) for the year from discontinued operations
2019 2018
m m
Equity holders | Hexy ) 0.9 (95)
Cash flows from discontinued operations
1019 8
£&m m
Net cash used in operating activities {9.4) {9.0)
Net cash generated from investing activities $1.6 02
Net cash generated from financing aciviies - 13
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash aquivalents q1.2 @5)
Earnings/(loss) per share from discontinued operations
w04y 2018
p P
Basic eamings before other itlems per share’ 09 ¥
Basic earnings/(Joss) per share 0.2 @n
Diuted eamings before other items per share! 0.9 16
Diluted earmings/foss) per share 0.2 @n

Note:
1. Crther itens are as described in Noie 4
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Joint ventures and associates of discontinued operations

The Social Housing disposal group induded a 30% interest in an associate, Pyramid Plus South LLP, a limited liabiity partnership registered in the
United Kingdom. The Group's imerest in the assodiate was accounted for in the consolidated financial statemertts using the equity method.
The surmmarised finandal information set out below for the year ended 3 | March 2019 has been taken from unaudited management accounts
of the associate.

Strategic report

2019 018
&m m
Revenoe 23 122
Operating profit 1.8 2%
Group's share of profit of associate in discontinued operations 0.5 [41:]
201y 2018
£m m ¢
Current assets - 38 E
Current kabifties - (12) H
Net assets - 26 hd
Group’s share of interest in assoclate - 08

During the 2049 financial year the Group received dividends from Pyramid Plus South LLP of énil (2018: £0.6m).

-
£
2
=

=
v}
(=
by
=

&
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Nates to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3! March 2019

6. Operating profit/(loss)
Operating profit/(loss) has been arrived at after charging

2009 018
Continuing and discortinuee operations m im
Depreciztion of property, plant and equipment (Note 14) 1.6 128
Amortisation of other intangible assets (Note [3) 220 135
Arnoriisxion of corract assets 0.8 [+A]
Impairment of goodwil (Note 12) - 346
Impairment of other intangible assets (Note 13} Il 104
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 0.8) -
Gain on disposa of subsiciaries (Note 5) (17.9) -
Impairmext losses recognised on trade rectivables (Note 23) i 23
Impairment (gairs)losses necognised on actrued income (Note 23) {1.6) 20
Operating lease rentals 265 25.1
Notez

1. The Group has adopted IFRS.9 starting | April 2018 using the trarsibon option sveisble: 1 the starviard by ciackosing the inpact 2 31 adhstment to pening retaned earrings &t the dete of vl
o e e cron e coroarsie Florresian s ot resned 4 w=

A detailed analysis of auditor's remuneration is provided below.

2009 2018
£000 £000
Fees paysable to the Compary's auditor for the aud?t of the Company's annual accounts - BDO LLP 40 0
Fees payable to the Company's auditor and its assadiates for the audit of the Company’s
subsiciaries pursuant 1o legistation - BDO LLP 1520 1.161
Fees payable to the Company's auditor and its associates for the audit of the Compary’s
subsidiaries pursuant 10 legislation — Deloitte LLP - 87
Total aadic feas 1,360 1288
Orther audit retted serwoes 1o the Group — BOO LLP 127 93
Tax services - BDO LLP - 6
Total non-audit fees 127 9
Total L 687 1387
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1. Staffcosts

The average number of people employed during the financal year was:

Nurnber of people 2019 2018
Engineering Services a7 8900
Security 15,011 14,804
Professional Services 1,059 1029
Cleaning & Emvironmental Services 20,301 21706
Care & Custody 1,976 1051
Catering 2,384 2505
Corporate centre h i ] 37
Continuing operations 49,480 50032
Pest Control 190 198
Social Housing 737 831
Discontinued operations 27 1,029
Total Group 50,407 51061
Nm.-'_

dmwmramnrqmzlmmlﬂmmmmrd\mhm@mm
transier of certan ' Engineering Servces m

part of Property Management and the
The number of people employed at 3| March was:

 of the roofing and pairting actvities which previously formed

1019 2018

Continuing operations 52,492 47394

Discontinued operations - 1.632

Total Group 52,492 49026

. Zﬂ‘:: 2018 .

Wages and salaries 1,125.4 10207

Socal securty costs “#98 721

Other persion costs e 170

Share-based payments {Note 31) L 12

Share-based payments acquisition related costs (Notes 4 and 31) 39 34

Total 1,243.8 1,194
Detaits of Directors’ remuneration s provided below:

201% 018

im m

Directors”emoluments 3.7 21

Share-based payments 0.8 06

Total 45 27

None of the Directors accrued benefits under the defined benefit scheme, or were members of the defined contribution schemes for the years ended
31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018. Detaiks of loss of office payments (subject to audit) are disdosed in the remuneration report on page 78,

The total amount payable to the highest paid Director in respect of emoluments was £2.2m 2017. £1.1m).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019

8. Finance costs

Wi Wi
Contruwing operations m &m
Interest on bank faciities - 4.2 32
Interest on private placement koan notes 7.8 9.
Bank fees .5 290
Interest on oblgations under finance leases ol -
Unwwinding of discounts on provsions ot 02
Loss arising on s vahue hedges - Lol
Net interest on defined benefit persion scherne assets an Eabities 13 20
Total 140 166
9. Tax
— w o w
Curren tax' 34 (5.6}
Deferred tax (Note 20) 01 X
Tax charge lor the year 3.6 13
Continuing operations b4 1y
Discontinued aperations } ) 02
Tax charge for the year 3.6 13
MNote:

L m&mmmm9m‘| 2018 u avalable i the standand by dackosing the impac as Wuwmmmmmdm
apphcation. Under W:g&' - w acurgﬂnuut of £04m on transition

Corporation tax is calculated at 19% (201 8 | 9%) of the estmated taxable profit for the year. A recondliation of the tax charge to the elements of profit
before tax per the consolidated income statement elements is as follows:

20019 208

i BE e el T
Cantirwing and discontirued operstions m tm £m m om £m
Profit/(loss) before tax 785 (44.0) 345 732 979) Q47)
Tax at UK cate of 19% (2018: 19%) 149 (B4 &5 139 (185) @n
Reconciing tax charges for: .
Non-tax deductitie charges 0.9 - a.? 05 Li 1.6
Share-based payments 03 07 10 Q. - o
Gain on disposal of businesses - (4.0) 4.0) - - -
Impairmment of gaodwill - - - - 73 &6
Overseastaxrates - (%) - 0.2 o3 - ©3).
impact of change in statutory tax rates .4 05 0.1 ol 02 03
Prior year adpusimests .0 - 0.7 @b - an
Tax charge/(credic) for the year 148 oLy 24 120 (107) 13
Effective tax cate for the year 18.9% 25.8% 10.4% 164% 109% GN%
Noges

1. The has FRS Y garting | 2018 using the transition option avaable in the standard ing the i © ing retaned earnings at the date of nidal
Group ldﬂud i “‘?1" April 2018 using ’smlmrm n by discicosing the impact 23 an adiustiment to opening amings
T Qither ihrog are s dessribed in Note 4,

In addition to the amounts charged to the consolidated income statement, tax relating to retirement benefit costs amcunting to a £2.4m credit
(2018: £3.4m charge) has been taken directly to the statement of comprehensive income together with a £03m charge relating to share-based
payments and hedged iterrs (2018: £0: 1 credit).

The UK corporation tax rate will reduce from 19% to 7% from | Aprit 2020, This will reduce the Group's future aurrent tax charge accordingly.
The UK deferred tax assets and liabilities at 31 March 2019 reflect this change. A current tax provision is recognised when the Group has a present
obiigation as a result of a past evertt and it is probabie that the Group will be required to settle that obligation.
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10. Dividends

t
19 018
o 8
" Amaunts recognised as distributions in the year: 5:
Second interim dividend for the year ended 31 Hard\lOlSofM?p(ZOl?fmald’Mdend:ni)perm' 2.6 - g
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2019 of 133p (2018: £33p) per share 4.8 48 “
Amourts paid in 2019 and 2018 144 48
Propaosed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2019 of 2.67p (2018: 267p) per share 9.6 26

Note:

L m?mml&wmmmftﬂrsjﬂnrhyuru\ddﬂFh:h!ﬂlﬂﬂemmrdxhdamﬂbmbyhﬂouddafmwdlﬂpwm
pawemsmzolammmminhmmmmmdmlem&nmummm)mmm a resokamon sharehcider approval
of the {inal dividend. In order for the: dividend to be paad 10 shareholders on 6 August 2018 in accordance with published timetable, on 31 july 2018 the dechired a second
interim dividend of 2.67p per share in place of the proposed final dividend.

Govermance
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 3| March 2019

11. Earnings per share

Basic and dilted earings per share have been calculated in accordance with 1AS 33 ‘Earnings per share’.
The calculation of the basic and dikted EPS is based on the following data:

2019 2018
From contrwing operztions £m £m
Net profit before other tems attributable to aquity hokders of the parent  * 0.6 545
Other iterns net of to . (30.6) oL
Net profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the parent 30.0 (176}

2019 ne
From conewing snd discontinued operat m £m
Net profit before other items attributable to equity holders of the parent 63.7 &0.1
Other tams net of @ (328 (872)
Net profit/(loss) attribatable 10 equity hoiders of the parent - 30 7.y
y—— L
‘Weighted averzge number of ardinary shares (or the purpose of basic EPS 3608 3879
Effect of diutive potential ordirary shares: share bptions 22 19
‘Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of diiuted EPS 3830 3598

2019 2018

P »

From continuing operstions:
Basic earnings before ather items per share? 168 152
Basic sarnings/(loss) per share 83 {49
Diuted eamwngs before other items per share? 167 15.)
Diuted earnings/{koss) per share a3 9
From continuing and dt tinued operati
Basic garmings before other items per share? 177 68
Basic £arnings/(lots) per share ab 8
Dauted earnings before other items per share® 1.5 167
Diluted earnings/{loss) per share [ 11 (76}

l The FRS 9

G-mphadtd shm‘lﬁp-ilolﬂmilhe m:una&hnh“dhﬁkrgﬂmmmﬁmbmmﬁwaﬂmdw
5 Othrhm\s“sdsutnan&A!
The weighted average number of ondinary shares in issue during the year exdudes those accounted for in the own shares reserve {see Note 29).

The dilutive potential ordirary shares relate to instruments that could potentially dilute basic eamings per share in the future, such as share options.
The loss for the year ended 3) March 2018 means that the identified potentially difutive shares are anti-diutive for the purposes of alculating diluted
carnings per share.
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12. Goodwill

e &
Cont 5
At 1 Aprl 2017 3589 ?
tmpact of foreign exchange i 03 §
At 31 March 2018 3592
Disposal of subsidiaries (329}
At 31 March 2019 3263
Accumulated impairment losses
At | April 2017 150
impairment of property goodwil 346 ®
At31 March 2018 495 E
Disposal of subsidiaries arny E
At 31 March 2019 s L]
Carrying amount
At 31 March 2019 1918
At 3] March 2018 3096
At ) Aprl 2017 ’ 3439

Acquisition of Vision Security Group

On 26 October 2018, the Group acquired Vision Security Group Limited (VSG). There is no goodwill recognised on acquisition as the consideration
paid was less than V5G's net assets at the acquisition date, gving rise to a gain on bargain purchase, see Note 30.

Disposal of Social Housing

On 19 November 2018, the Company signed an agreement for the sale of Mitie Property Management Limited and MPS Housing Limited (1
the Social Housing business). This transaction completed on 30 Novemnber 2018 and the associated carrying amount of goodwill of £12.5m has been
included in net assets disposed, See Niote 5.

Disposal of Pest Control

On 30 September 2018, the Group completed the sale of Mitie Pest Controt Lmtted(PstControl) and the associated goodwill of £3.3m has been
induded in net assets disposed. See Note 5.

Goodwill impairment testing
Goodwill acquired in a besiness combination is allocated, at acquisition, to the cash-generating units (CGUSs} that are expected to benefit from that
_ business combination.

Goodwill has been aliocated to CGUS, which align with the business segments, as thrs is how goodwill is monitored by the Group internally. The £23.1m
net carrying value of goodwill associated with the roofing and painting activities which previously formed part of Property Managernent has been
transferred into the Engineenng Services CGU.

w
o
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The Group tests goodwill at least anrually for impairment or more frequently if there are indicators that goodwill may be impaired.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3| March 2019

12. Goodwill continued
A surnimary of the goodwill balances and the discount rates used 1o assess the forecast cash flows from eadh CGU are as follows:

Pre-tax Post-tax Goodwin Goodwit

discount cate  discount rate 201 018

x x m m

Engneering Services' 0.0 23 130 1309
Seaurity 0.t *3 1807 1017
Professional Services 133 19.3 I5.7 157
Cleaning & Emvironmental Services .y "3 29.8 331
Catering 12! 1.8 15.7 157
Socal Housing - 125
Total 2018 96

Noor:
1. The miorvation pressnted for the year ended 31 March 2018 has bess restatedd 10 ceflect the ivegrabon into Engineering Services of the: roofig and paintag itivikies preacusly reported
n Property Management.

Key assumptions

The recoverable amounts for each CGU are determined by the value in use which is derived from discounted cash flow calculations. The key
assunnptions for the value in use caloulations are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected changes to revenue and direct costs
during the forecast period. Management estinates discourt rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessmerts of the time value of money
and the risks spexific to the CGUSs. The long-tenm growth rates are based on forecast inflation. Changes in revenue and dinect costs are based on past
performance and expectations of future changes in the market, operating model, and cost base,

Growth rates and terminal values
For all CGUs the Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent budgets for the year ending 31 March 2020 and the Group
medium-term plan to 31 March 2024 which have been approved by the Board, and a terminal value using a long-term growth assurnption of 1.5%

Discount rates

The pre-tax discount rates used 1 assess the forecast cash flows from CGUs are derived frorn the Cormpany’s post-tax Weighted Average Cost of
Capital, which was 8.8% at 3| March 2019 (2018 7.7%), and is adjusted for the Fisis specific to the business being assessed and the market in which
the CGL) operates. A3 CGLJs have the same access 1o the Group's treasury functions and borrowing Ines to fund their operations,

Sensitivity analysis

A sersitivity analysis has been performed and the Directors have concluded that no reasonably foreseeabie change in the key assumptions would result
in an impairment of the goodwill of any of the Group's CGUs.
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13. Other intangible assets

s g
Ctorrer Total Software and . o
rertorsipe Coer 'num expenditre 'Em Tout E’
Cost
At | Apri 2017 B84 109 9.3 973 1968
Additions - - - 90 20
At 3| March 2018 B84 109 .3 1063 2054
Additions - - - n2 1.2
Acquistion of subsickaries 149 - 14.9 - 149
Disposals - - - G13) 313)
Disposal of subsidiaries - - - (60 (6.9 g
At 31 March 2019 1033 109 1142 802 194.4 E
Amortisation §
At | April 2017 B34 9.6 3.0 50.4 143.4
Charpe for the year 22 04 24 109 135
Impairment of software and development expenditure - - - 104 10.4
At 31 March 2018 856 100 95.6 7.7 167.3
Charge for the year 12 03 15 75 2.0
Imparment of software and development expenditure - - - N (A
Disposak - - - G13) aLy z
Disposal of subsdianes - - - 24) 29 §
At 31 March 201% 868 103 97.1 46,6 143.7 ':
;
Carrying amount =
At 31 March 2019 t16S 06 17.1 336 50.7 -
At 3] March 2018 28 09 3.7 346 383
At | Aprd 2017 50 13 4.3 1469 $3a2

Customer relationships are amor—tised over their useful lives based on the period of time over which they are anticipated to generate benefits.

These currently range from four to eight years. Other acquisition related intangibles indude acquired software and technology which are amortised
over their useful lves which currertly range from three o ten years. Software and development costs are amortised over their useful lives of between
five and ten years, once they have been brought into use.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group impaired £10.4m of software and development expenditure related to intangible assets with the
impairment recognised within restructuring costs in other items (see Note 4).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3! March 2019

14. Property, pfant and equipment

e R
&n [2,.) m m

Cost
At | April 2017 13 168 715 89.6
Additions ) 02 49 107 158
Redassificatons within property, plant and equipment - 02 .2} -
Disposats 12 ©8) 24) (4.4)
AL3E March 2018 03 244 6 101.0
Additions - 41 BO 12
Radassfications within property, plant and equipment - ©3) 03 -
Disposals - 65) 173 (23.8)
Acouisition of subsidiaries - - 02 02
Disporsal of subsscaries ©3) o7 @4 (e 1))
At 31 March 2019 - 127 884 8.1
Accumulated depreciation and imnpairment
At | April 2017 04 106 463 57.3
Charge for the year - 17 [N} 128
Rediassifications within property, plant and equiprment - 4y} ©3 -
Disposals 03) 03) ) @n
At 2| March 2018 ol 122 551 674
Charge for the year - 08 lo8 1.6
Redassifications within property, plant and equipment - ©n ol -
Disposals ' - @n 7 (199)
Disposal of subsidiaries ©n o) un (v 1))
At 31 March 2019 B - 100 47.1 (3 X}
Carrying smount
AL 31 March 2019 - 77 213 290
At 31 March 2018 02 8% 245 334
At | Aped 2017 09 62 252 323

The net book value of plant and vehicles heid under finance leases included above was £07m (2018: £0.7m).
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15, Trade and other receivables

019 2018
m m
Trade receivables 133.6 2050
Acaued incorme 132.6 1314
Prepayments ' 27.1 213
Other receivables? 419 283
Total 435.2 3860
Indudad in current assets 435.2 3860
Induded in non-current assets - -
Total 4352 3860
Notes
1. m&apmmlm9mlmmlamnwmmm iable in the by d g the impact as an adfustrnent to opening retained eamngs at the date of iritsa!
appication. Under this option, the compargtive sformation s not restatext

A anmodu-retumbrhparmdedll Marduml‘isﬁ.&nrehtrgmﬂ\emdm Memﬂnhhuwmmmmlob:medfm
ofthe ¢ o be paid, and s subject (o agreement of the complebon acoouts Sn

The Group makes use of a non-recourse customer invoice discounting fadility under which certain trade receivable balances are sold 16 the Group's
relationship banks. As these trade receivables are sold without recourse, the Group has derecognised them., and so they are not induded within trade
receivables. The Group has reduced the amount of invoice discounting from £763m as at 31 March 2018 to £73.2m as at 31 March 2019,

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates their fair value.

Information about the Group's exposure to credit risk and its loss allowance against the balance of trade receivables and accrued income, is provided
in Note 23.

18. Contract assets

Contract
Pre-corwract fulfirment
A
At t Apri 2017 - - -
Additions - 23 1.3
Amortised in the period - ©.n (0.1
At 3t March 2018 - 22 2.2
Additors 22 25 4.7
Amortised in the period - ©8) {0.8)
At 3] March 2019 22 39 6.1
Inciuded in curremnt assets 07 09 1.6
Induded i non-current assets (13 30 4.5
Total 22 39 6l

Corttract assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the contract life which is consistent with the transfer of services to the customer to which
the asset relates. Managernent has determined that no impairrnent of contract assets is required as at 3| March 2019,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3| March 2019

17. Trade and other payables
2019 018

m &m
Payments received on accoum ' 0.e 02
Trade creditors 160.3 1913
Other taxes and sodal securtty 7.1 9
Other creditors 45.0 92
Accruals 2309 1962
Total 5339 4968
Induded in turrent fabilities 5339 4968
Induded in non-current habiities - -
Total 5339 4968

Trade creditors at 31 March 2019 represents 50 days credit on trade purchases (2018 restatedt 58 days).

Included within the Group's trade: greditors balance is £20.0m (2018: £45.1m) refating to payments due to UK suppliers which rake use of bank
provided supply chain finance arrangernents. During the year ended 31 March 2019 these arrangemnents were used by <200 suppliers, with a maxirum
facility avaitable of £50.0m. The Group setties these amounts in acrordance with each supplier's agreed payment terms.

The Directors corsider that the carmying amount of trade and other payables approsdrnates ther fair value.

18. Deferred income from contracts with customers

The significant changes in deferved income are as follows:

20019 018

tm m

Al Aprl 5.0 304
Reverue recognised that was induded in the deferred incomne balance at the beginning of the year id49) (159}
increase due 1o cash received, exduding amounts recognised as revenue during the year 50.0 508
Acquisition of subsidiaries 49 -
Disposal of subsikaries a.n -
At 3} March .3 650
2019 2019

irn m

Induded within current fabiities 549 462
Inctuded within non-current labiliites 184 188
Total 73 50

Deferred income relating to customer contracts mabilising in the year amounted to £5.8m (2018: £2.6m). For any amounts which do not relate
to specific contractual performance obligations. the income is deferred to the balance sheet and amortised over the period to which the contracted
services are delivered %o the customer.
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19. Provisions

Strategic report

costs  indemnities corgiderabon  reserve costs Persion  Oiacucations Total
m £mn £m £m m im m m im
At | April 2017 20 60 - 03 125 5B - - 24.6
Amounts recognised in the balance sheet - - - - - - - 34 34
Amounts recognised in the income staternent 32 - 12 - 40 13) - - 7.1
Utilised within captive msurance subsidiary - - - - ©.1) - - - (©.')
Unwinding of discount - - - - - - - 02 0.2
Utised in the year (.1 (L - ©3) ) @n - - 6.7
At 31 March 2018 4. 49 1.2 - I53 24 - 36 s
Amounts recognised 1n the income staternent 02 06 - - 25 (] 200 - 348 é
Utiised within captrve insurance subsiciary - - - - ©.)) - - - ©.1 g
Urnwinding of discount - - - - - - - ol 0.4 It}
Utlised in the year (R10)] 02 2 - 23) ©8) - 04 .7
Reclassfication - - - - 06 ©8) - - -
At 31 March 2019 03 53 - - 150 127 200 33 56.6
200
Included in current habdities a3 53 - - 90 127 33 506
Induded in non-current Labilities - - - - 60 - - - 6.0
Total 03 53 - - 150 127 200 3 56.4

The provisions balance indudes the following items:

The legal costs prowision relates to professional fees payable and the potential cost of settiement of outstanding daims against the Group.
The utilisation of the provision represents the setlement of a contractual claim related to a contract of the now discontinued Social Housing business.

The disposal indernnities provision relates to indemnities provided following the disposal by the Group of the Healthcare and Social Housing
businesses. The amount recognised in the income staternert represents a £2.6m charge in respect of Sodal Housing net of a £2.0m release in
respect of Healthcare.

The restructuring provision relates to costs of organisational change associated with the Group's Project Helix transformation programme induding
the transition costs assocated with the outsourdng of certain back-office transactional processes.

The insurance reserve provides for the self-insured element of fleet and liability daims that will typically settle over three to five years. This indudes

a provision for claims that are expected but have not yet been reported.

The contract specific cost provisions rekte to various obligations arising in the ordinary course of providing services in line with commercial contracts.
The £11.5m charge for the year ended 3| March 2019 indudes the £12.1m estimated costs of rectification works assocated with certain property
mainw\moeca-uramgfﬁ\enwdiscmthuedSodalstingbusinss.allofuhidwareindudedvﬁthinctherihemsRefa’tohbte4forfuﬂﬂ'erdetails -

The pension provision relates to the Section 75 employer debt liabilities of Robert Prettie 8 Co Limited as a result of that company's participation in the
Plumbing Scheme. This liability is expected to be settled during the year ended 31 March 2020, See Notes 32 and 33,

The provision for dilapidations relates to the legal obligation for leased propertes to be returned to the landiord in the contracted condition at the end
of the lease period. This cost would include repairs of any damage and wear and tear.

Contingent asset

The Directors are working to ensure that, through a combinaton of insurance daims and recourse to suppliers a proportion of the £16.Im costs
incurred in respect of rectification works for the Sodial Housing property maintenance contracts, induding the £12.1m recorded in provisions above,
are recovered. The amount and timing of any recoveries & yet to be determined.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3! March 2019

20. Deferred tax
The following are the major deferred tax assets and fabikties recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the current and prioc reporting
periad:

Retirement Intargible Short-term
oss Gepecatin M s i R R | Tora
£m ém 1)) im m £m €m

At April 2017 it ] &5 126 €. 07 L& 4.1
{Chargelforedh to income 79 03 03 03 ©. [UX)] .9
{Charge)/oredit to equity and the
staterment of - - (34) - [*1} - (e}
At 3] March 2018 188 62 95 {0.8) 07 15 359
Acquisition of subsidiaries - 03 - (15) - 02 (2.0}
Disposal of subsickaries - ©x - 05 - ©2) -
(Chargej/credit to income (1.5} {12) 23 . 04 on {0.2)
Credit/(charge) te equity and
statement of comprehensive - - 24 - ©3) - .1
At 31 March 2019 173 SQ 142 a9 a8 14 358

Certain deferred tax assets and liabifities have been offset. The following & the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset) for financial reporting

pUrpOses.
2019 X8
£ om
Deferred tax assets 1.7 387
Deferred tax kabiities (2.9) {0.8)
Nat deferred tax asset 158 359

The Group has unutilsed income tax tosses of £1023m (2018: £1 {28m) that are available for offset against future profits. In addtion, the Group has
£0.8m (2018; £0.8m) of capital losses. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of £52.8m (2018: €102.7en) of tosses 10 the exdent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be generated in the future and be available for utilisztion. Deferred tax has beers calculated using the corporation
tax rate disclosed n Note 9.

21. Cash and cash equivalents

»ie 2008
&m m
Cash and cash equivalents 108.4 59.8

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits with an ariginal maturity of three months or iess.
The carrying amount of the assets approximates their fair value.

Inchuded in cash and cash equivalents are deposits totalling £nil (2018: £04m) held by the Group's insurance subsidiary, which are not readily available
for the general prrposes of the Group. The Group's insurance subsidiary was kquidated during the year.
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22. Financing liabilities

9 2018

&m £m

Bank loars — under committad faciities L ¥R ] 543
Private plcement notes 2119 2038
Obligations under finance leases (Nate 24) 1.5 13
Total 2655 2594
Included in current kabiities 40.7 08
Included in non-current liabifities 224.8 25856
Total 2655 2594

The £275.0m bank facility and the private placerment notes are ursecured but have financial and non-finandal covenants and obligations commonly
associated with these The final maturity dates of all facilities remained unchanged. The Group was in compliance with these covenants
as at 31 March 2019 and herce all amounts are dassified in line with repayrent dates.

Included in curent financing liabilites are £0.7m (2018: £0.8m) of obligations under finance leases (see Note 24).

With the exception of derivative finandial instrurnents, all financing liabilities are held at amortised cost. Derivative financial instruments are initially
recognised at fair value at the date the cortract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured 1o their fair value through profit or loss unless they
are designated as hedges for which hedge accounting can be apphed (see Note 23).

At 31 March 2019, the Group had available £221.9m (2018: £219.3m) of undrawn committed borrowing fadilities in respect of which all conditions
precedent had been met. The faclities have an expiry date of July 202 1. The loars carry interest rates which are currentty determined at |.0% over
the applicable UBOR.

Details of the Group's corttingent habilities are provided in Note 33.
The wesghted average interest rates paid during the year on overdrafts and loans outstanding were as follows:

1009 2018

x %

Overdrafts 2.7 20
Bank loans 16 5
Private placement notes 4.9 39

Private placement notes

Following the issue on |6 December 2010 of US$%60m and £40.0m of private placement (PP} notes in the United States Private Placement market,
the Group issued a further LUS$153.0m and £55.0m of PP notes on |3 December 2012 The PP notes are unsecured and rank pan passu with
cther senior unsecured indebtedness of the Group. In order to manage the risk of foreign curmency fluctuations and to manage the Group’s finance
costs through a mex of fced and variable rate debt, the Group has entered into cross-currency interest rate swaps. The swap contracts have the
same duration and other critical terms as the borrowings and are considered to be highly effective. US$96.0m of these PP notes were settled in
December 2017 upon maturity, along with the assodiated swaps which had been designated as fair value hedges. The amount. maturtty and interest
terms of the remaining PP notes are shown belfow.

Tranche Moturity date Amount Irtarest tarms Swap interest
9 year 16 December 2019 £400m £ fixed at 438% na
10 year 16 December 2022 US$760m LSS {iced at 3.85% £ fixed at 402%
10 year 16 Decernber 2022 US$77.0m USS foced at 3.85% £ fixed at 402%
10 year 16 December 2022 £250m £ fixed at 3.87% na
12 year 16 December 2024 £300m £ fixed at 4.00% nfa
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019

23. Financial instrurnents

Classification

The Group's principal financial assets are cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and derivative finandial instruments, With the exception
of dertvative financial instruments, all finaricial assets are held and measured at amortised cost.

The Group's principal financial iiabikties are trade and other payables and financing liabilities. All finandial kiabikties are held and measured
at arnortised cost.

Derivative financial instruments are measured initiafly at fai- vake at the date the contract s entered into and are subsequently remeasured
to their fair value through the income staternent uniess they are designated as hedges for which hedge accounting can be applied.

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted (induding the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the bases
for recognition of income and expense) for each class of financial asset. financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in Note |

Risk management objectives

The Group’s treasury department monitors and manages the finanaal risks relating to the operations of the Group. These risks indude those arising
from interest rates, foreign currendies, liquidity, credit and capital managernent. The Group seeks to minimise the effects of these risks by using effective
controt measures and, where appropriate, derivative finandial instruments to hedge certain risk exposures. The use of finandal derivatives s governed
by Group policies and reviewed regutarty. Group policy is to not trade in financial instruments. The nsk ranagement polices remain unchanged from
the previous year.

Interest rate risk

The Group's activities expose it to the financial risks of interest rates. The Group's treasury function reviews its risk management strategy on a negular
basis and will, as appropriate, enter into derivative financial instruments in order to manage interest rate nsk.

intarest rate sensitivity

The interest rate sensitivity has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for both derivative and non-derivative instruments at the
balance sheet date. All financial kabilities, other than finandng kabilities, are interest free.

if undertyirg interest rates had been 0.5% higherfower and all other variabies were held corstant, the Group's profit after tax for the year ended

31 March 2019 and reserves would decreasefincrease by £0.8m (2018: £0.7m),

Foreign currency risk

The Group has limited exposure to transactional foreign currency risk from trading transactions in currencies other than the functional curency of
individual group entities and sorne exposure to transkational foreipn currency risk from the trarslation of its foreign operations. The Group considers
the need to hedge its exposures as appropriate and will enter into forward foresgn exchange contracts to mitigate arry significant risks.

' addition, the Group has fully hedged the US dollar exposure on its private placennent notes imto sterling using cross-currency interest rate swaps
(see Hedging activities beiow).

At 31 March 2019 €9.2m (2018: £9 3m) of cash and cash equivalents were held in foregn aurrences. Incuded in bank loans were £{3.1m

(2018 £157m) of loans denominated in foreign currency.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its liquidity risk using a cash flow projection model which considers the maturity of the Group's assets and kabifities and the
projected cash flows from operations. Bank loars under committed facllites, which allow for appropriate headroom in the Group's daily cash
movements, are then arranged. Details of the Group's bank fadiities can be found in Note 22,
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The tables below summarise the maturity profile (mduding both undiscounted interest and principal cash flows) of the Group's finandal Babilities:

t
Within  In the second Alter §‘
oneyear  to fifth years fve yeurs Total
Finandal kabiities at 31 March 2019 m im i im a
Trade creditors 1600 - - 180.1 E
Cther creditors 40.% - - 40.9 e
Financing fiabiities 102.0 162.6 309 2955
Financial fabdities' 302.0 142.6 30y 496.5
Within In the second Aher
one year to fifth years five years Total
Financiat liabilities at 31 March 2018 m om fm &
Trade creditors 1913 - - 1913
Other credtors 292 - - 292 #
Finanong fabilttes 656 1989 315 2960 s
Firancial Eabilities' 286.1 1989 315 5i65 E
Note: Q

1. pmc_iﬂﬁ:ﬁi_urrw:rprdiekmdﬂ\e£I64rnmla‘ﬁlm)MMmmmwmummahmmmphnamnotah
nancing Gabfties.

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis and formally reported quarterly. The vatue of business placed with financial institutions

is reviewed on a daily basis.

The Group's credit risk on lquid funds and derivative financial instruments is limited because the external courterparties are banks with high credit

ratings assigned by international creditt rating agencies and are managed through regular review.

The Group's credit risk s primarily attributable to its receivable balances from customers, Before accepting a new customer, the Group uses external credit

scoring systems to assess the potential customer's credit quality and define an appropriate credit imit which is reviewed regularty.

The maxdmum exposure 1o credit risk in relation to trade receivables and accrued incomne at the balance sheet date i the fair value of trade receivables

and accrued income, The Group's custorner base is large and unrelated and, accordingly, the Group does nat have a significant concentration of credit

risk with any one counterparty or group of courtterparties.

The amountts presented in the balance sheet in relation to the Group's trade receivables and accrued income balances are presented net of loss

allowances. The Group measures boss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses (ECLs) using both quantitative and qualitative

information and aralysis based on the Group's historical expenence, and forward-looking information.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019
23. Financial instruments continued

The following table provides information about the Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs against customer balances as at 31 March 2019
under IFRS 9

2019

Gron Met

Trade receivables at 31 March 2015 Pl vk vt pro i
Current (not overdue) 2103 (11.9) 198.4
130 days overdue 26.4 0.9 245
3160 days overdue s (©.5) 60
61-90 days overdue , Ly ©.3) 14
More than 90 days overdue 19 4.8 33
Toeal 2528 e 233.6

Trade receivables at 3| March 2019 represerits 2% days revenve (2018 restated: 26 days).
The folawing table provides information zbout the ageing of trade receivables as at 31 March 2018 under IAS 3%:

2018

im

Neither inpaired nor past due 1636
Mot impaired and less than three months overdue 374
Not impared and more than three moriths overdue U3
Provision for doubtiu depts (07
Total 2050

L mmm:ﬁ;ﬁm*ﬁmnmmwmuwmwuuwwwgumnmmwwwmnwmum

The following table provides the movernent in the allowance for impainment in respect of trade receivables and accrued income:

2019 018"

&m £m

Trde  Acrued T Arued

noome

At April . . 173 45 162 45
Irnpact of change in accounting policy (K1 to - -
Impairment losses/(gairs) recogrised (B ] (1.8} 13 1w
Amounts written off as unccilectable {1.5) - L3} -
Acquisition of subsidiaries 19 0.1 - -
Disposal of subsiciaries (1.1) 0.4) - -
At 31 March 19.2 54 173 65

MNote:
I. The has IFRS @ starting | 2018 using the trangition option avalable in the standerd ing the » © g retained eamings at the date of initial
Growp ndnad ! qrnr' Aprl 2018 uring Emw in by dincloaing the Fnpact a8 an aduatment to apening eamings

Capital management risk

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able 1o contimse a5 going concerns while maximismg the retum

to stakeholders through the optimisation of debt and equity. The capital structure of the Growup consists of net dabt per Note 26 and equity
per the consolidated staternertt of changes in equity.

The Group is not subject to externally imposed regulatory capital requirements.
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Hedging activities

Cash flow hedges

The Group holds a number of crosscurrency interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges on US$153.0m of PP notes. Biannual fixed interest
cash flows denominated in US dallars arising over the periods to December 2022 from the US Private Placement market are excharged for fixed
interest cash flows denominated in stering. All cash flow hedges were assessed as being highly effective as at 31 March 2019,

Hedge of net investment In foreign operations

Indluded in bank loars at 31 March 2019 was a borrowing of €9.5m (2018: €9.5m) which has been designated as a hedge of the net investment in the
Republic of ireland business of Dalkia FM, and is being used to hedge the Group's exposure to foreign exchange risk on thrs investment. Gains or losses
on the translation of the borrowing are transferred to equity to offset gains or losses on the transtation of the net investment.

Derivative financial instruments

The carrying values of derivative financial iInstruments at the balance sheet date were as follows:

Ao “ioie

tm m

Derivative financial instrumentts hedging private placernemt notes' 164 6l

Total 164 [N

Inchuded in current assets - -

Included i nom-cument assets 164 &1

Total 16.4 6.1
Nate:

1 Derivatve financial wstnaments hedgng private placemant NOUES Gomprise Cross-Cunency intecest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges.

Dernative financal instruments are measured at far value.
Fair value measurements are classified into three levels, depending on the degree to which the fair value s observable:

* Level | fair value measurements are those derved from quoted prices in arctive markets for identical assets or fabilties;
* Level 2 fair value measuremnents are those derived from other observable inputs for the asset or liability; and
¢ Level 3 far value measurements are those derved from valuation techniques using inputs that are not based on observable market data.

The Directors consider that the Group's derivative finandal instruments fall into Leve! 2. There were no transfers between leveks during the year. Farr
values of these instruments are caloulated based on a discounted cash flow analysis using appropriate market information for the duration of the
instruments. All contracts are gross settled.

24. Obligations under finance leases

Minirurn fease payments
2019 A8
im im

Amounts payable under finance leases: )
Within one year 0.7 08
In the second to fifth years mdusive 0.8 05
1.5 13
Present value of lease obligations LS 13
Less. amourit due for settlement within |2 months 0.7) ©8)
Amount due for settlernent after 12 months . 0.8 - 05

The average remaining lease term is 18 rmonths (2018: 20 months). For the year ended 3| March 2019, the average effective borrowing rate was 3.8%
(2018: 1.45%). Interest rates are fixed at the contract date. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangemerts have been entered into for
contingent rental payments. All lease obligations are denominated in sterfing.

The fair value of the Group's lease obligations approximates their carrying amount. The Group's obligations under finance leases are protected by the
lessors' rights over the leased assets.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3| March 2019
25. Operating lease commitments

At the balarce sheet date, the Group had total outstanding apgregate commitrnents for future minimum lezse paymerts under non~cancetiable
operating leases, which fall due as follows:

1019 w8

£m £m
Within one year 25.3 37
In the second 10 fifth years inchusive 404 392
After fvm years 53 132
Total . 7.0 76.

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain of its office properties and hire of vehicles and other equpment.
These leases have average durations ranging from three 1o ten years. No arrangsments have been entered nito for contingent rental payments.

26. Analysis of net debt

201y 2018

m tm

Cash and cash equivalerts (Note 24) 1084 598

Bank loans {fote 21) (s21) (543)

Private placement rotes (Note 12) @y 2038)
Derivative finandial instrumerts hedging private placement rotes (Mote 23) 164 4l
Met debt before obligations under finance leases (1192 (1922)
Obligations under firance Ieases (Note 24) (15 (13}
Net debt (140.7) (1915)

Net debt exdudes amounts in respect of customer invoice discounting referred to in Note 15 and arourts in respect of supply chain financng
referred to in Note |7,
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27. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows

01y 20i8 é_
e T e BT
Cash conversion uE»
Operating profit/{ioss) . 50.2 9) 48.2 11 94 (83)
Depredation 11.3 0.3 e 123 05 128
Arncrhzmn .7 0.1 928 132 03 135
Impairment of poodwill and intangible assets (A - Ll 331 119 450
Earnings before interest, tax, depredation and amortisation T2.3 (f.8) 70.7 597 33 630
(EBITDA)
Cash generated from/{used in} operations 56.9 1.4) as 1.1 ©0) @3 g
Free cash flow g
Cash generated from/{used in) operations . as @9 3
Purchase of property. plant and equipmert azn {158) o
Purchase of other intangble assets 0Ly 60
Desposal of property, plant and equipment 4.7 . 16
Income taxes received ’ 4.7 16
Interest recetved 0.2 02
Interest paid ({2.4) (135)
Free cash flow 114 (328) )
019 §
Other non- 5
Chnet  movements oiteriardebt | changes  movemens  Mmovements  halncs z
m &m tm im ém £m €m =
Cash flows MNon-cash changes £
Long-term borrowings — bank loars (543) 21 - - 0.3 (©.2) 52.1)
Long-term borrowings — private placerment (201.8) - 40.0 .0 - - 719
loan nates
Short-term borrowings - private placerent - - (40.0) - - - (40.0)
loan notes
Firance lease obigations .3 0.2) - - - - (1.5
Finanding iabiities (259.4) 19 - .1 0.3 0.2 (265.5)
Derivative: financial instrurments 6.1 - - 10.3 - - 16.4
Net financing liabilities (253.3) L9 - 22 03 0.2) (249.1)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3! March 2019

18. Share capital

Mumber
Ordinary shares of 25p million im
Allotted and fully paid
At | Aprit 2007 3691 92
tesued for acquisivors 46 Q.
At3t March 2018 nz 93

Issued for acquisitions i - -
At 31 March 2019 ny *3

During the year ended 31 March 2018, 4.6m ordinary shares of 15p were aiotied in respect of the acqusition of non-controling mterests at an issue
price between 266.3p and 278.8p giving rise ta share prernium of £nil and merger reserve of £124m.

29. Reserves

Share premium account
The share premiurn account represertts the premium arising on the issue of equity shares.

Merger reserve
The merger reserve represents amounts relating to premiums ansing on shares issued subject 10 the provisions of Section 612 of the Companies Act

The merger reserve increased by £124min the year ended 31 MZO*B&ar&hdhmdﬁ&nu&wymdBpformeacqm
of noncordroliing irterests.

Own shares reserve

The Group uses shares held in the Employee Benefit Trust to satisfy conditional awards under the Group's LTIP, CSP and DBP share schemes and
shares held in the SIP Trust to provide matching shares under the SIP scheme. During the year the trust distributed 0.3m {2018: 0.7m) shares at a cost
of £0.8m (2018: £].6m) to satisfy awards under those schemes.

The Compary uses Treasury shares to satisfy share options under the Group's ESOS and SAYE share schernes. SNo Treasury shares have been ssued
o satify options under the Group’s share schemes in the year. During the year ended 31 March 2018, proceeds from the issue of |.5m Treasury
shares to satisfy options under these share schemes were £3.4m at a cost of £4.3m, with the loss of £0.9m being recogrised in retained earnings.

The own shares reserve at 3| March 2019 represerts the cost of [27m 2018 130m) ordinary shares in Mitie Group ple hekd for the purpases of
the share schemes, with 2 weighted average of 13.6m (2018: |3.8m) shares during the year, as well as the £2.6m (2018 £7.im) vaiue of the remaining
restricted shares issued as consideration to acquire non-controlling interests that is required to be treated as remuneration.

In the year ended 31 March 2019, the £53m (2018: £6.9m) movement indudes £4.5m (2018; £1.0m) which has been refeased aginst the share-based
payments reserve: following the expiration of the nequired continuing empicyment period in relation to restricted shares and £0.8m (2018: £5.9m) for
the cost of shares distributed to satisfy awards under the Group's share schermes. The: £B, | credit to own shares reserve in the year ended 31 March
2018 represented the restricted shares issued as part of the acquisition of non-controiing interests,

Other reserves
Other reserves are comprised of the share-based payments reserve of £9:4m (2018: £104m), the revaluation reserve of £(0.2)m (2018: £(0.2)m),
the capital redemption reserve of £0.9m (2018: £09m) and cther reserves of £0.2m (2018; £0:2m).

The share-based payments reservie represents credits in respect of the vesting penicd of equity-settied share-based payment transactions (see Note 31)
WMMMJNWWJWMM&MMMMMJWQMM

Hedging and translation reserve

The hedging and translation reserve of £(5.6)m (2018: £(7 3m) inchudes balances in respect of the Group's cash flow hedges (see Note 23). A net cash
flow hedge credit during the year of £2.2m (2018: £0.1m credit} i induded within other comprehensive income. The hedging and translation reserve
also indkudes batances arsing on translation of the Group's foreign operations and in respect of net investment hedges of which the combined
movernent was a charge of £0.2m during the year (2018: £0.5m credit). An income tax charge of £03m (2018: £0.Vrn credit) has been recognised
on these mavernerts.

Other movements in reserves
A movement of £1.8m {2018: £nil} has been reflected in retained earnings representing the recovery of consideration for the purchase of certain
non-controliing interests in the year ended 31 March 2017,
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30. Acquisitions

Current year acquisitions — purchase of Vision Security Group

On 26 October 2018, the Group acquired a 100% shareholding in Vision Security Group Limited (VSG). VSG s a leading security services provider

offering integrated security systems, manned guarding and key holding services, with a team of approximately 6,000 employees servicing more than

1,400 guarding locations and over 5,000 systems locations across the UK and Irefand.

The acquisition of VSG further strengthens the position of Mitie's Total Security Management business (Mitie TSM) a5 one of the leading prowiders of
and risk-based securtty services in the UK. In particular, the combination will offer opportunities 1o accelerate the growth of Mitie’s premium

technology-enabled and inteligence-led security solutions.

Corsideration of £12.7m (on a debt free, cash free basis) was pad in cash at completion, and funded through Mitie's own cash resources. £4.5m of the
cashca\sida?tionmﬁbmwhmmmm&wwdﬂemﬁmmmwmmdﬂmm

The Group's provisional assessment of the fair values of the assets and liabilities recogrised as a result of the acquisition has been based on total
consideration of £8.2m following expected adjustments 1o the completion accounts. The purchase price allocation is as follows:

Provisional fas

Bookvalue  value adstment Fair value

£m im m

Software and development expenditure 0l ) -
Property. plant and equipment 05 (03) 0.2
Customer relationships - 149 149
Current 1ax assets 05 - 0.5
Invertories 07 ©2) 05
Trade and other recenvabies 415 (4.2) 7.3
Cash and cash equivalents . 16 - 1.4
Trade and other payables (298) {1.2) (31.0)
Deferred income from contracts with ausiomers (40) -9 4.9)
Current tax kabifves ©.13 - (0.1)
Deferred tax fiabiities - @o {2.0)
Net identifiable assets acquired HO &0 170
Less bargain purchase in other iters (8.8)
Consideration 8.2

The Group conduded that the value of the order baddog and the customer relationships to drive renewal of the contracts held by VSG was

an inangible asset which has been valued at £ (4.9m at acquisition and has been recorded as a non-current intangible asset under the caption
‘Customer relationships’. The asset will amortise to the income statement in line with the forecast expiry of the underlying customer relationships
over a | 0-year period,

The Group has recorded a bargain purchase gain of £8.8m in the consolidated income statement within other tems. This represents the excess of net
identifiable assets acquired of £17.0m over the consideration of £82m.

Acquired receivables

The fair value of acquired trade and ather receivables was £37.3m. The gross contractual amount for trade and other receivables due was £39.3m,
against which £20m is the expected credit loss.

Revenue and profit contribution

The acquired business contributed revenues of £79.6m and net profit of £1.4m to the Group for the period from 26 October 2018 to 31 March 2019.
If the acquisition had ocaurred on | April 2018, consolidated pro-forma revenue and profit before tax for continuing operations for the year ended

31 March 2019 wouid have been £2,332.Im and £31.9m respectively. These amounts have been caloulated using the subsidiary's results and adjusting
them for:

» Differences inthe accounting policies between the Group and the subsidiary; and
¢ The additional depredation and amortisation that would have been charged assuming the fair value adjustments to property, plart and equipment
and intangible assats had applied from | April 2018, together with the consequential tax effects.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3| March 2019

30. Acquisitions continued

Purchase consideration ~ cash outflow
Ounflow of cash to acquire subsidiaries, net of cash acquired:

019
&m

Cash consideration 127
Less cash balance acquired {1.4)
Less recovery of corsideration’ {1.8)
Net outflow of Gsh — investing activities 91
Nore:
1. Recovery of considaration armountng to €| B was i respect of the purchase of certain non-comtroling ererests in the year eded 31 March 2017. See Note 28
Acquisition related costs

Acquisition related costs of £2.6m are induded in administrative expenses and recogrised in ather items (see Nate 4) in the income staterment and
1" operating cash flows in the staternent of cash flows.

Prior year acquisitions — purchase of non-controlling interests

On 19 July 2017, the Company purchased thé minority 49% shareholding in Source Eight Limited. The consideration paid was £4.0m, satisfied with

£3.0m in gash and £1.0m in unrestricted shares. A further £5.im of shares were issued which were subject to sale restrictions related to continuing
employment Regarding shares issued, 2,196,708 ordinary shares were issued, with a nominal value of 2.5p per share in Mitie Group plc (Mitie shares)

at a fair value of 278 8p, of which 1,838,028 Mrtie shares were subject to sale restrictions related 1o continuing empioyment.

In addrtion, on 20 October 2017 the Company purchased the remaining mincinty shareholdings in five Mitie Mode! companies. The consideration paid
was £3.4m, satisfied through the issue of unrestricted shares. A further £3.0m of shares were issued which were subject to sale restrictions related to
continuing employment Regarding shares issued, 2.396,38) Mnie shares were issued at a fair value of 266.3p. of which 1,139,657 Mite shares were
subject to sale restrictions related to continuing employrent. The shareholkdings purchased, primarty held by certain of the employees and senior
management of the relevart subsidiary companies, are detalled below:

s Mitie Care and Custody Limited (MCCL) ~ 6.86% of the issued share capital, comprising 42,565 B ordinary shares of £0.01 each, for a consideration
of £0:4m satisfied by the issue of 169328 Mitie shares:

* Mitie Events & Leisure Services Lirnited (MELSL) — 24.08% of the issued share capital, cormprising 205000 B ordinary shares of €001 each,
for a consideration of £0.4m satisfied by the issue of (44,555 Mitie shares;

» Mitie Facities Management Limited (Jreland) (MFML) — 5.63% of the issued share capital, comprising 146,000 B ordinary shares of €00 each,
for a consideration of £0.2m satisfied by the issue of 72,228 Mitie shares;

» Mitie Catering Seraces Limited (MCSL) - 18.55% of the ssued share capital, comprsing 333,677 D ordinary shares of £001 each, for a consideration
of £2.9mn satisfied by the issue of 1,072,416 Mitie shares; and

» Mitie Waste & Environmerttal Services Limited (MWESL) ~ 27.7 % of the issued share capital, comprising 332.500 B ordinary shares of £0.0! each,
for a consideration of £2.5m satisfied by the issue of 937,854 Mitie shares;

The above acquisitions have been completed based on transfer of consideration of the fair value of the sharehokdings of the respective entities. As part
of the above transactions Mitie Group issued unnestricted and restricted shares. The restricted shares are attached with a condition that the refevant
recipient continues in employment with the Group for a fixed vesting period of time. Restrictions will remain attached to the shares if the recipient
leaves employment with the Group prior to completion of the vesting period of the shares.

As a result of the acquisitions outined above Mitie Group owns 100% of the issued share capital of all of the above erflities.
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31. Share-based payments

The Company has six equity-settied share schemes. The Group has also awarded performance-related bonuses for Executive Directors which are
deferred in conditional shares under the Mitie Group pic 2010 Deferred Bonus Plan (DBF) and are accounted for as a share-based payment charge.

Discretionary share plans:

The Mitie Group pic Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)

The LTIP was introduced in 2007 and renewed in 2015. The conditional awards of shares or rights to dcquire shares (the awards) are offeredtoa
small number of key senior management. Where offered as options the exercise price is £nil. The vesting period is three years, although for awards
granted in 2015 and subsequentty some are subjert to a holding period of up to a further two years. if the awards remain unexercised after a period
of twelve months from the date of vesting the awards expire. The awards may be forfeited if the employee leaves the Group. Before the awards
@n be exerased, performance conditions must be satisfied which are based on movements in a range of market and non-market measures over

a three-year period.

The Mitie Group pic 200) Executive Share Option scheme {ESOS)

The ESOS exercise price is equal to the average market value of the shares over the five-day period immediately preceding the date of grant.
The vesting period is three years. If the options remain unexercised after a period of ten years from the date of grant the options expire.
Options may be forfeited if the employee leaves the Group.

The Mitie Group plic 2011 Executive Share Option scheme (ESOS)

The ESOS exencise price is equal to the average market value of the shares on the business day preceding grant or, if the Remuneration Committee
decides, the average market value of shares over a number of preceding business days (not to exceed 20). The vesting period & three years. If the
options remain unexercised after a period of ten years fromthe date of grant the options expire Options may be forfeited if the employee leaves
the Group. Before aptions can be exerdised, a performance condition must be satisfied; the performance condition is linked 1o the percentage growth
in earnings per share over a three-year period.

The Conditional Share Plan (CSP)

The CSP was introduced in 2014. The conditional awards of shares or the rights 1o acquire shares (the award) are cffered to a small number of key
senior managernent. Where offered as options the exercise price is £nil. The vesting period i determined at the discretion of the Remuneration
Comméttee and is generally two or three years. If the awards remain unexerdised after a period of ten years from the date of grant the awards expire.
The awards may be forfeited if the employee leaves the Group.

Non-discretionary share plans:

The Mitie Group pic 201 | SAYE scheme

The SAYE scherne s open to eligible UK resident employees. The exendse price is not less than 80% of the market value of the shares determined using
either: the share price preceding the date on which invitations to participate in the scheme are issued or an average share price over five days preceding
the invitation date. The vesting period is three years. if the options remain unexerdsed after a period of six months from the date of vesting, the options
expire. Options may be forfetted if the employee leaves the Group.

The Share Incentive Plan (SIP) '

The SIP was introduced in 201 | and is open to all eligible UK residert empioyees. Under the scherme, eligible employees are invited to invest in
partnership shares which are purchased in the market on their behalf and held in a separate UK trust. One conditiona matching share is awarded

for every ten partnership shares purchased and has a holding period of three years. Matching shares are funded by way of market purchases,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3] March 2019

31. Share-based payments continued

Restricted Shares N

In addition, in certain cases restricted shares are issued to indiackaals. The restricted shares are attached with a condition that the relevant reaipiert
continues their employment with the Group for a fixed vesting periad of time. Restrictions will rerain attached to the shares if the recipient leaves
ernplayrnent with the Group prior to completion of the vesting period of the shares.

Details of the awards and share options outstanding are as follows:

b= 71 ) 2018 019 2018

Number of Numbser of " o wqm:d Nrrber of Weighted

share awards sharezwards  shave options  exerdse price shart agiiors m\:;.m

{mftion) (rrelor) {mifion) ) {mifion) )

Qutstandhing a1 | Aprit 8] 90 8.2 247 19 58
Granted during the year 78 43 43 137 27 29
Lapsad during the year (3 (45) {4.0) 243 (49) 287
BExerdsed during the year {0.3) o7 - - 0% 3%
Qutstanding at 3! March 2.8 al as 190 82 247
Exercisable at the end of the year 290 249 32 240

The Group recognesed the following expenses refated to share-based payments:

b1 4 x18

im &m

Discretionary share plans 0.2 02
MNon-discretionary share plans 09 0
Share-based payments acquisition related costs 3.9 34

5.0 44

The movement on the share-based payrents reserve, which is part of other reserves, relates to the charge to the income statement for the year of
£50m (2018; £4.6m). This comprises: 1) £3.9m in respect of the vesting period of restricted shares issued as part of the acquisition of minorty interests;
and i) £1.1m of equity-settied share-based payment transactions. The share-based payments charpe for the year is net of income staternent credits of
£2 Im relating to changes in assumptions relating to the likefihood of apticns vesting,

I addition, there has been: i} a release of £4.5m against the own shares reserve on the expiry of restrictions attached to restricted shares issued; and i)
a release of £0.8m 1o retained eamings regarding share options that were previously exerdised, lapsed, forfeited or cancelled.

The weighted average share price at the date of exerdse for awards and share options exercised during the year was (3% (018: 252p).

The conditional share awards and share options outstanding at 31 March 2019 had exercise prices (other than nil in the case of the LTIP, CSP, OBP
and the matching shares under the SIP} ranging from [37p — 256p (2018: 212p — 256p) and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 3.4 years
(2018 36years)lntheyearmded3lb1ard'\20l9opnonswegnnted respect of the SAYE, LTIP, CSP and matching shares urdler the SIP.
The aggregate of the estimated fair values of thase options granted was £140m (2018; £106m).
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The fair value of options is measured by use of the Black-Scholes and Morte Carlo models.
The inputs into the Black-Scholes mode! are as follows:

p 1} 018

Share price (p) ' 258-318 258318
Exercise price {p) 0 - 240 0- 260
Expected volatiity (%) 23-29 3-2
Expected e (years) . 31-4 3-4
Risk-free rate (%) ©.N=1. O3t
Expected dividends (%) 1.6-47 1647

The inputs irto the Monte Carlo model are as follows:

01y 2018
Share price (p) 180 — 267 180267
Average correlation with TSR benchmark (%) 13-27 23-27
Expected volatifty () ’ 34-17 34-37
Expected ffe (years) 3 3
Resk-free rate (%) 0.22-0.68  022-058

Expected volatility was based upon the historical volatility over the expected life of the schemes. The expected life is based upon historical data and has
been adjusted based on management's best estimates for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

32. Retirement benefit schemes

The Group has a number of pension arrangements for employees:

¢ Defined contribution schemes for the majority of its employees; and
¢ Defined benefit schermes which indude a group scheme and other smaller schemes.

The: Group operates a number of defined contribution pension schemnes for qualifying employees. The Group has a defined benefit pension scherme
called the Mttie Group plc Pension Scherne (Group scheme) where Mitie Group pke is the: principal employer, The Group participates in a number:
of other defined benefit schermes (Other schemnes) in respect of certain emplayess who joined the Group under the Transfer of Undertakings
(Protection of Employment) Regulations 2006 (TUPE) or through the acquisition of subsidiary companies.

Defined contribution schemes

A, defined contribution scheme s a pension scheme under which the Group pays contribubons to an independently administered fund; such
contributions are based upon a fixed percentage of employess’ pay. The Group has no legal or constructive cbligabions to pay further contributions

1o the fund once these contributions have been paid. Mernbers' benefits are determined by the amaount of contributions paid, together with investment
retums eamed on the contributions arising from the performance of each individual's chosen investments and the type of pension the member chooses
to take at retirement. As a result, actuarial risk {that pension will be lower than expected) and investment risk (that the assets invested in do not perform
in ine with expectations) are borne by the employee.

The Group's contritartions are recognised as an amployes benefit expense when they are due.

The Group operates three separate schemes: a stakeholder defined contribution plan, which is closed to new members; a self-invested personal

pensmphnwhldwdosedtomwmnbm:andagmppeeraaon(GPP) plan. Employer contributions are payable to each on a matched

basnrequrgertﬂoyeecotﬂrib\morstobepand Employees have the option to pay their share via a salary sacrifice arrangement. The scherne used
10 satisfy auto-enrolment compliance is a master trust, The People’s Pension,

During the year, the Group made a total contribution to the defined contribution schemes of £80m (2018: £9.0m) and contributions to the auto-
enrdment scheme of £8.6m (2018: £4.3m), which are induded in the income statement charge. The Group expects to make contributions of a similar
amount in the year encing 31 March 2020.

Defined benefit schemes

Group scheme

The Group scheme provides benefits to members in the form of a guaranteed leve! of pension payable for life. The level of benefits provided depends
on members’ iength of service and their final pensionable pay.

The Group scheme closed to new members in 2006, with new employees able to join one of the defined contribution schemes, The main Group
scherme was closed with effect from October 2017,

Pensions in payment are generally increased in line with RFY inflation, subject to certain caps and floors. Benefits are payable on death and other events
such as withdrawal from active service.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3! March 2019

31. Share-based payments continued

The Group scheme is operated under the UK regulatory framework. Benefits are paid 1o members from the trust-adoinistered fund, where the
Trustee is responsibie for ensuring that the scheme is sufficently funded 1o meet current and future benefit payments. Plan assets are held in trust and
are governed by pension legslation. f investment experiance is worse than expected or the actuarial assessment of the scherne's liabilities increases,
the Group's financial obligations to the scheme rise.

The nature of the relationship between the Group and the Trustee is alio governed by regutations and practice. The Trustee must agree a funding plan
with the sporsoring comparny such that any funding shortfall is expected 1o be met by additional contributions and investment outperformance. In order
to assess the level of contributions required, triennial valuations are carried out with the scheme's obligations measured using prudent assumptions
(which are determined by the Trustee with advice from the scheme actuary). The mast recent triennial vahsation was carried cut as at 3| March 2017
and was conduded in March 2019.

The Trustee's cther duties indude managing the invesiment of the scherne’s assets, administration of plan benefits and exerdsing of discretionary
powers. The Group works dosely with the Trustee to rnanage the scheme.

Other defined benefit schemes

Grouped together under Other schermes are a number of schermes to which the Group makes contributions under Admitted Body status to dients’
{generally local government or entdties) defined benefit schemes in respect of certain employees who transferred to Mitie under TUPE.
The valuations of the Other schermes are updated by an actuary at each balance sheet date.

For the Admitted Body schemes, which are largely sections of the Local Government Pension Scheme, the Group will only participate for a finite period

up to the end of the refevant contract. The Group is required to pay regular contributions, as decided by the relevant scheme actuaries and detailed

in each scheme’s Contributions Certificate, which are calculated every three years as part of a triennial vakuation. In a number of cases contributions

payable by the employer are capped and any excess is recovered from the entity that the employees transferred from. In addition, in certain cases,

;tfihemdofﬂneconvaaﬁ\eGrO\.leberewiedtopaywddicﬂ(asdeﬁmniwdbyﬂ\exhamacunry)#unsaswedforitnaﬁomlsecﬁon
the scheme.

Multi-employer schemes

As a result of historic acquisition activity and staff transfers foliowing contract wins, the Group participates in four multi-enployer pension schemes.
The total contritastions to these schemes for the financial year ending 3| March 2020 are anticipated to be £0.1m. For three of these schemes,

the Group's share of the assets and liabilities is rinirmal.

The fourth scheme is the Plurnbing & Mechanical Services (LK) Industry Pension Scheme (the Plumbing Scheme) a funded multi-employer defined
benefit scheme. The Plumbing Scheme was founded in 1975 and 1o date has had over 4,000 employers, with dirca 400 remaining. Historically, the size
and complexity of the Flumbing Scheme has meant the trustee is unable at this time to identify the assets and labilities of the scheme which are
attributabie to the Group. The Group has recenttly recerved a Section 75 employer debt notice in respect of the participation of Robert Prettie & Co
Limited in the Plumbing Scheme (refer to Note 19 and Note 33). One Group comparty, Mitie Property Services (UK) Limited, continues to particpate
in the Plumbing Scheme, however no apportionment of the assets and liabilities attributable to this comparny is available and consequently, the Group
accounts for its contributions as if they were paid to a defined contribution scherme,

The April 201 4 valuation of the Plurbing Scheme indicated a surplus on technical provisions besis of £19.0m, on liabilities of £1.47bn. The Annual Member
update ssued by the Plumbing Stherne in October 201 stated that the draft iriennial valuation as at 5 April 2017 showed a surplus on a technical
provisions basis.

As set out in Note 19, a provision of £20.0r has been made for Section 75 employer debts in respect of the participation of Robert Prettie & Co.
Uirnited in the Plurnbing Scherme.

As set out in Note 33 the Group has a further potential exposure 1o Section 75 employer debis in respect of the participation of Mitie Property
Services (UG Lirnited in the Plurnbing Scherne, which has been disclosed as a contingent kabiity.

Further information in respect of the Group scheme and Other schemes
The table below sets out the details of the latest funding vaksation of the Group scheme as at 31 March 2017,

Following the £3.0m paid in November 2017, the Group paid additional contributions of £105m to the Group scheme during the year ended 31 March
2013, induding amounts of £3.8m and £1.Bm in respect of the disposals of the Pest Control business and Social Housing business.

Under the conciuded schedule far payments, a further £64.8m is payable in instalments by 31 Mard\ZOZS.M\id\i{theassumﬁmsabwearet;ome
out in practice, should efiminate the defict by 31 Manch 2025,
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The Group made cortributions 1o the Other schemes of £03m in the year (2018: £0.3m). The Group expects to make contributions of around £03m
to the Other schemes in the year ending 31 March 2020,

Detalls of latest funding valuation

Group scheme
Date of latest funding valuation : 31 March 2017
Assets at valuation date L1787m
Funding liabilities at vakuation date £2527m
Delicit at valuation date £740m

The total contribution rate was set at between 40.1% and 45.0% of annual pay for the remaining active members. The employer contribution rate is the
balance of the total cost after the deducting the employee rate, which ranges depending on status and earnings. The total contribution exdudes any
allowances for expenses met by the scheme.

The following table sets out details of the membership of the Group scheme at 31 March 2017

Group scheme
Active rembers — by number 182
Active members — by proportion of funding Eabllity . 19.8%
Total persionable salary roll pa. - £8.4m
Defermed members = by number 853
Deferred members - by proportion of funding labilty 539%
Total delerred pensions pa. (3t date of leaving scheme) £4.6m
Pensioner members — by number €40
Pensioner members — by proportion of funding labiity 263%
Total pensions in payment pa. 2.7m

Accounting assumptions

The assumptions used in calculating the accounting costs and obligations of the Group's defined benefit pension schemes, as detailed below, are set after
consultation with independent, professionally qualified actuaries.

The discount rate used to determine the present value of the obligations is set by reference to market yields on high-quality corporate bonds.
The assumptions for price inflabon are set by reference to the difference between yiekds on longer-term conventional government bonds and index-

linked bonds, The assumption for increases in pensionable pay takes into account expected salary inflabon, the cap at CPY, and how often the cap is likely
to be exceeded.

A UK High Court judgment wes issued on 26 October 2018 relating to Guararteed Minimum Persions (GMP). Although the ruling refates to

Uoyds Banking Group pension schemes, it s expected to create a precedertt for other UK defined benefit pension schemes. The ruling requires the
equaksation of member benefits eamed between 1990 and 1997 to address gender inequality in instances where GMP benefits are currently unequal.
Whilst there remains some uncertainty, the Group has made a provision for the estimated financial impact of this ruling on the Group scheme, based
on a comparison of the cumulative value of members’ benefits with the benefits of a notional rrember of the opposite gender (rethod C2 under the
terminology of the High Court Judgment). A past service cost of £1.6m based on the broad profile of the fund (i.e. age profile, service profile and
GMP proportion) has been recogrused within other items in the year ended 31 March 2019.

The assumptions for life expectancy have been set with reference to the actuarial tables used in the latest funding valuabions, with a lower ‘best-estimate’
allowance for future improvements to mortality.

Principal accounting assumptions at balance sheet dates

Group scheme Other schermes
0 I; 20[: b I; 201 ;

Key assumptions used Tor IAS 19 valuabon:
Discourt rate 2.40 260 240 260
Expected rate of pensionable pay increases 3120 3.10 120 3.10
Retaf price inflation 3.20 ilo .20 310
Consumer price inflation 220 210 1.20 210
Future pension increases .50 340 150 340
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019

32. Retirement benefit schemes continued

Group scheme
2019 poll-]
Yoars Years
Post retirement fife expecancy.
Current persioners at 5 — male a8.0 880
Currerg pansioners at 65 — female . . 890 830
Future pensioners a1 65 — male a0 830
Future pensioners at 65 ~ female LX) %00
Life expectancy for the other schemes is that used by the relevant schemne actuary.
The sensitivity of defined benefit obligations to changes in principal actuarial assumptions is shown below.
Sensitivity of defined benefit obligations to key assumptions
Frpact on defined beneft obligations
Crongein T s it vt
AFAITIPAION * im
Increase in discount rate 0.1% (2.0)% (49)
Incremse in RPyinflation® Q% 08% 20
Increase in CPl inflation {exduding pay) 0.1% 0.7% i7
Increase in salary growth 01% 00% .=
Increase in e expectancy \ year 40% 104

¢ Inchuding ather inflation-inked assumptions (CPY inflation, persion increases and saliry growth)

The sensitivity information shown above has been prepared using the same method as adopted when adjusting the resuhs of the latest funding valuation
10 the balance sheet date.

Some of the above changes in assumptions may have an impact on the value of the scherme’s nvestrnent haldings. For example, the Group scheme holds
apmpm:mofnsassetsmUKcorporatebomkAfaInﬂ\edmmrateasarujtofbquKmrporaebudynldswwldleadtommeasemme
value of these assets, thus mitigating the inarease in the defined benefit obligation to some extert.

The duration, or average term to payment for the benefits due., weighted by fability, is around 22 years for the Group scheme.

Amounts recognised in financial statements
The table below outlines where the Group's post-employment amounts are induded in the financial statements.

b-.11 ] ot

Group Other Total Growp Orher o

&m o tm i m &n

Current servite cost (0.4) 0.3) (0.7) N ©3) 20)
Total adminstration expense . [{N}] - .1 {1 - [{A)]
Amounts recopnised in operating profit (1.5) {0.3) (+.9) 28 {03) (3n
Past service cost {incuding curtaiments) (1.6) - (1.8) {19 - (9
et interest cost , {1.2) ®.14) +3) {9 o8 (20)
Amounts recognisad in profit/(loss) before tax (4.3) (0.4) 4.7) (6.6) ©4) 7.0}

The past service cost {including curtailments) in the year ended 31 March 2019 was the cost of equalising Guaranteed Minimum Pensions and in the year
ended 31 March 2018 was a result of an increase in liabilfties driven by the dlosure of the main Group scheme.
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Armounts recognised in the consclidated staternent of comprehensive income are as follows:

2019 218
- - T - T~
Actuarial (iosses)/gains arising due to changes in
finandial assumptions (12.8) .9 (14.5) 86 08 94
Actuarial (Josses)Vgains artsing from iabity expenence .3 - k) ') 08 (03)
Actuarial gains due to changes in demographic assumptions - 01 0.1 59 02 6.
Movement in asset celing - - - - (05) (05}
Return on scheme assets, excluding imerest income 1.3 0.5 .8 46 04 50
(13.6) (0.3) (13.9) 180 17 197
The amounts induded in the consolidated balance sheet in respect of the Group's defined benefit retirement benefit schemes are as follows:
019 ’ 2018
- B - B B
Fair value of schermne assets 190.5 11 201.6 1823 121 1944
Present vakse of defined benefit obligations (251.9) (15.5) (267.4) (237.1) (14 2512)
Net pension iability {61.9) (2.4) (63.8) {548) 0 (568)
All figures above are shown before deferred tax
Mmﬁsinﬂ\epmmofdeﬁnedmmobﬁgaﬁomhﬂ\eyearinrspectofboﬂ\ﬂweGmupandothersd'\emawere
x :
2019 2018
shame achomon Toul s T
im im &m &m m &m
Ax | Apnl 237.1 14.1 2512 2485 148 %33
Current service cost 04 03 0.7 V7 03 20
Interest cost 6.0 0.4 64 65 04 69
Contrbutions from scherne members - [ R] 0.1 - Gl cl
Actuarial losses/(gains) arising due 1o changes in financial
assumptions 13.6 0.9 14.5 (8.6) {0.8) 94
Actuarial losses/(gains) arising from experience 13 - 13 | ©8) 03
Actuarial gains due to changes in demographic assumptions - .1y ©.n (59) 02 6.1y
Movement in asset ceiling R - - - - 05 [+1
Benefts paid 1) 0.2) (0.3) ®1 02 83)
Past service cost {induding curtaiments) 1.6 - .6 19 - 19
At 31 March 1519 5.5 267.4 TN 14.1 512
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3} March 2019

32. Retirement benefit schemes continued
The defined benefit obligations of the Group scheme are analysed by participant status as at 31 March 2017 below:

2019 pall:}
m &m
Active 514 433 -
Deferred 310 1233
Fersioners 455 655
At 31 March 2509 T A
Movemertts in the fair value of scheme assets were as follows:
2019 w018
Smm S e SR O e
im tm im &m £m im
At I Apri 182.3 121 194.4 1778 13 189.¢
(nterest income LE 3 3 [ ] 46 03 49
Actuarial gains on assets L3 0.5 1.8 456 O4 50
Contributions from the spensoring companies 11.3 0.3 1n.é 44 03 47
Contributions from scheme members - 0.} 0.4 ~ ~ -
Expenses paid .y - () o - (0
Benefits paid (.1) 0.2) (8.3) ®.1) 0.2) (83)
At 31 March 1905 134 103.6 1823 124 1944
The history of experience adjustments i as follows:
’ Group scheme
019 108 2017 2015 015
tm im £m o m
Fair valve of scheme assets 190.5 1823 1778 1569 1622
Present value of deflined benefit obligations (a51.9) (237.1) (2485) (191 3) {197.1)
Defiit in the scheme (61.4) (549) o7 (G44) (19)
Experience (losses)/gains on scheme habilities (1.3) (.n 08 3 12
Percentage of scheme ablives 0.5% 05% % {16)% a)%
Experience gains/(Josses) on scheme assets 13 46 167 (62) 130
Percertage of scherme assets or% 25% 105% {(40)% 80%
Crher schernes
019 018 2007 216 018
&m m m £m £m
Fair value of scheme assets 1.t 124 113 95 95
Presertt value of defined benefit obligations (is.5) (14 (148) (108) )]
Deficit in the scheme Q4 Q0 @S5) oy ©9)
Experience gains/(losses) on scheme fabilities - 08 - - @)
Percantage of scheme Rabities - (58)% - - 0%
Experience gains/(losses) on scheme assets 0.5 04 13 (05) 08
Percentage of scheme assets 4.0% 33% 115% {61%% 84%
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Fair values of the assets held by the schemes were as follows:

019 2018

' m mm Total ‘dG:JmP m Tota

im m £m im £m ém

Equives 517 15 5%.2 663 70 713
Government bonds 27,1 4.0 311 269 - 269
Corporate bonds 519 0.1 520 20 18 258
Property 168 19 7.8 95 09 104
Diversfied growth fund 370 - 70 456 R 456
Cash 60 0s 65 120 04 124
Total fair value of assets 1905 13.1 203.6 1823 1l 1944

ﬂaeimsnmporrfoliosarediversiﬁed:invsmginawidcmrgeofassets.ina-dertoprovidereasombleaswrametfwtnosingeassetortype

of asset could have a materially adverse impact on the total portfolic. To reduce volatility, certain assets are held in a matching portfolio, which largely
consists of povernment and corporate bonds, designed to mirror movements in corresponding kabilities.

Around 56% (201 8: 67%) of the assets are held in equities, property and pooled investment vehides which seek a higher expacted level of retumn over
the long term.

The property assets represent quoted property investments.

Risks and risk management '

The Group scheme, in common with the majorty of LK plans, has a number of risks. These areas of risk and the ways in which the Group has sought
1o manage them, are set out in the table below.

The risks are considered from both a funding perspective, which drives the cash commitments of the Group, and from an accounting perspective,
1. the extent to which such risks affect the amounts recorded i the Group'’s financial statements:

ek Descricti

Asset The funding kabilities are cakulated using a discount rate set with reference to government bond yields, with allowance for additional return to be generated

volgtifity from the investment portfolio. The defined beneftt obligation for accounting & calculated using a discount rate set with reference 1o corporate bond yields.
The Group scheme holds a large proportion of its assets (56%) in equities and other retum-seeking assets {principally diversified growth funds (DGFs) and
property). The retumns on such assets tend 1o be volatiie and are not correlated to government bonds. This means that the funding leve! has the potential
to be volatile in the short term, potentially resulting in short-termn cash requirernents or alternative security offers, which are accepable to the Trustee and
an increase in the net defined benefit kabiity reconded on the Group's balance sheet Equities and DGFs are considered to offer the best returns over the
lorg term with an acceptable level of risk and hence the scheme holds a signilicam proportion of these types of asset. However, the scheme's assets are
well-diversified bry investing in a range of asset dlasses, including property. government bonds and corporate bonds. The Group scheme holds 19% of its
assets in DGFs which seek to maintain high levels of return whilst achieving lower volatifity than direct equity funds. The allocation to return seeking assets
is monitored to ersure it remaing appropriate given the scheme’s long-term objectives. The investment in bonds is disaurssed further below.

Changesin  Faliing bond yields tend to increase the funding and accounting obligations. However, the rwvestrnent in corporate and governmert bonds offers a degree of
bond ylelds  matching, ie. the movement in assets arising from changes in bond yields partially matches the movernent in the funding or accounting obligations. n this way,
the exposure to movements in bond yields is reduced.

Inflation risk  The majority of the scheme’s benefit obligations are bnked to inflation. Higher inflabon will lead to higher habikities (although caps on the level of inflationary
increases are in place to protect the plan against extreme inflation). The majority of the Group schame’s assets are either unaffected by inflation (fixed interest
bonds) or loosely correlated with inflation (equéties). meaning that an increase in inflabion will ako increase the deficit

Life The majority of the scheme’s cbligations are 10 provide a persion for the life of the member, so increases in ife expectancy will result in an ncrease inthe
expectancy  oblgations.

Areas of risk management

Although investment decisions in the scheme are the responsibility of the Trustee, the Group takes an actve interest to ensure that pension plan
risks are rmanaged efficiently. The Group and Trustee have agreed a long-term strategy for reducing investrment risk where appropriate.

Certain benefits payable on death before rebrement are insured

33. Contingent liabilities

Contractual disputes, guarantees and indemnities

The Company and various of its subsidiaries are, from time to time, party to contractual disputes that arise in the ordinary course of business.

The Directors do not anticipate that the outcome of any of these disputes will have a material adverse effect on the Group's financial position,
other than as already provided for in the accounts. In appropriate cases, a provision is recognised based on best estimates and management
Jjudgement but there can be no guarantee that these provisions (which may be subject to potentially material revision from time to tme) will result
in an accurate prediction, due to the uncertainty of the actual costs and liabilibes that may be incurred. The Directors will corbinue to monitor everits
s matters progress.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019

33. Contingent liabilities continued

In addition, the Company and its subsidianies have provided guarantees and indernnities in respect of performnance, issued by finandial institutions on
its behalf, amounting to £23.0m (201 8: £21.7m) in the ordinary course of business. These are not expedtad to result in any material financial loss.

Multi-employer pension schemes

The Group participates in several industry multi-employer defined benefit schemes, induding the Plumnbing & Mechanical Services (UK) industry
Pension Scheme (Plumbing Scheme). The total contributions to these schemes for the financial year ending 31 March 2020 are antcipated to be
£0.1m. The size and complexity of the Plumbing Scheme has meant the trustee is unable at this time 1o identify the assets and Yabilities of the scheme
which are attributable te the Group, Consequertly, the Group accounts for its contributions as if they were paid to a defined coniribution scherme.
When the Group (or a subsidiary of the Group) exits such schemes (typically by ceasing to have any active employees in the scheme), pension legislation
mayrequnreﬁ;gGs)muplofuruiﬂleGrulpssharcofﬂ!ctatalammmofnetrabﬂmthhau‘ue-dfmshpa‘ymem (a Section 75 debt under the
Pensions Act |

On 27 March 2018, hmdhﬁmqmmﬂw@WMawdhdrmmmdw
Plumbing Scheme as at 5 April 2017, That summary detailed the results of the vahuation on three measures;

* technical provisions - the amount of money the Plumbing Scherne needs to meet all its obligations and pay benefits in respect of past service as they
fall due, based on the scheme assets and the: economic position as at 5 Apnil 2017. This measure showed a surphus of £45m on liabilites of £1 885br;
* Persion Protection Fund (PPF) - the amount wsed to set the Plumbing Scheme’s PPF levies, The benefits under this basis are iower than the scheme’s
own benefits and the assumptions are prescribed by the Pension Regulator. This measure showed a deficit of £412m on liabikties of £2.342bn; and
¢ solvency — this is an estimate of the cost of insuning all of the Flumbing Scheme’s benefits as at 5 April 201 7 with an insurer and is the basis required
for Section 75 debt aiculations This measure showed a deficit of £658m on Jiabilties of £2 S88bn,

On 23 April 2019 the trustee of the Pumbing Scheme issued a Section 75 debt estimate to Robert Prettie & Co Limited. A provision for this debt has
been made. See Note 19.

The Group continues to have an expasure to Section 75 debts in respect of the participation of Mitie Property Services (LAQ Limited in the Pambing
Scheme, however no event has occurred 1o trigger this debt.

Employment claims

The Comparty and its subsidiaries are, from time to time, party to empioyment disputes, daims, and other potential liabirties which arise in the ordinary
cwscnﬁbmn&“e&m:torsdomrmpﬂedehmnmmmemwMa&a-rdwdmﬂywmmmm
will have a material adverse effect on the Group's financial position.

34. Related party transactions

Transactions between the Company and its subsidianes, which are refated parties, have been efiminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in

this Note.

During the year, the Group derived £0.5m (2018: £0.8m) of revenue from contracts with joint vertures arxd associated undertakings and recefved £nil
(2018: £0.6m) of dividends. At 3| March 2019 trade and other receivables from joint verttures and assodiates of £nil (2018: £02m) were outstanding
and loans to joint vertures and asseciates of £nil (2018: £nil) were induded in financing assets.

Mitie Group ple has a related party relationship with the Mitie Foundation, a charitable cormpany. During the year, the Group made donations and gifts
in kind of £0.4m (2018: £0.3m} to the Foundation.

No material contract or arrangerment has been ertered into during the year, nor existed at the end of the year, in which a Director had a rmaterial
interest.

The Group's key management personnet inchude the Executive Directors, Non-Exeautive Directors and the Executive Leadership team. Detais of the
Directors’ remuneration is incuded in Note 7. The underlying remuneration for other key rmanagement personnel, including the share-based payments
drarge is £4.0m (2018: £4.4m).

2019 2018

im im

Short-term employrment benefits 35 37
Persi 0.2 03
Share-based payments 03 04
At 31 March 40 44

The Company's preferred supplier for delivering apprenticeships to its employees is Aspire Achieve Advance Limited (3aaa), a company whose
chairman is also Mitie Group pk's Non-Exeautive Chairman. The Company pays into a govemment rmandated Apprenticeship Levy Fund, and 3aaa
withdraw from that fund to provide the apprenticeship training. On | | October 2018, the directors of 3aaa presented a petition to the Court for the
compubsory winding up of the company. This petition was accepted by the Court and the Official Receiver was appointed as liquidator an 24 October
2018. During the y=ar ended 31 March 2019, 3ama withdrew £0.6m (2018: £02m) fror the fund in respect of training provided or to be provided.
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35. Subsidiaries

The companiies set out below are those which were part of the Group at 3| March 2019.

2009 019
% voting rights and % nominal

Compary Country of ncorporation ip value owned
Care & Custody (Health) Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Cole Mators Limitedt United Kingdom 100% 100%
Creativevents Limitexft United Kingdom 100% 100%
Direct Enquiries Holdings Limited? United Kingdom 100% 100%
Jabez Hokdings Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Aviation Security Limted™ United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Belgum BVEA Betgium 100% 100%
Mite Belgurm Security BVBA Belgium 100% 100%
Mitie: Buit Ervironment Limitec® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Witie Business Services Limited United Kingdorn 100% 100%
Mitie Business Services UK Limited®* Unvted Kingdom 100% 100%
WMitie Care and Custody Linted™ Unved Kingdom ’ 100% 100%
Mitie Catering Serwces Limited™ Undted Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Cleaning & Erwironmental Services Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Cleaning Serwces Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Client Services Limted United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Comparny Secretarial Servces Limted® Unvied Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Complance Lid? United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mite Devtschland GmbH Germany 100% 100%
Mitie Document Solutions Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Dormant (No 1) Limitec? United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Engineering Limted® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Engineering Services (Bristol) Limitect United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Engineering Servces (Guerrsey) Limited Guerrsey 100% 100%
Mitie Engineenng Services (Jersey) Limited Jersey 100% 100%
Mitie Engineering Services (Northern Region) Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Engineering Services (Wales) Limited? United Kingdomn 100% 100%
Mitie Engineering Services Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Ervironmental Limited® United Kingdorn 100% 100%
tiitie Espafia, SL Spain 100% 100%
Mitie Events & Leisure Services Limned~ United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mite Fagilities Maragement Limited iretand 100% 100%
Mitie NI Limited United Kingdom 190% 100%
Mite France SAS France 100% 100%
Mpie Group Pension Scheme Trustee Company Limited* Unitec Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Holdings Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Infrastructure Limitecf~ United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mise Integrated Facifibes Managerent Limited! Urited Kingdom T 100% 100%
Mitie International Limited? Untted Xingdam 100% 100%
Mitie Investments Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie justice Limied® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Landiscapes Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mttie Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mite Local Services Limmed* Untted Kingdorn 100% 100%
Mite Maraged Services Limited! United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mtve Nedertand BY Nethertands 100% 100%
Mitie Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019 IS5
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 3| March 2019

35. Subsidiaries continued

01 2019
X voting rights and % nominal
Compary Courttry of ncorporation value owned
Mitie Norge Aljeselkap Norway 100% 100%
Mitie PFl Uimited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Polsia 5p. 2 0.0, Poland i00% 100%
{itie Property Services (UK) Linted” Urited Kingdom 100% (oo%
Mite Resources Limited® Urited ¥angdom 1o0% 100%
Mitie Schwelz GmbH Switzertand 100% 100%
Mitie Scotgate Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Security (London) Linited® Uited Kingdorn 100% 100%
Mitie Security Hoidings Umited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Security Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Services (Retaf) Limited? Uited Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Shared Services Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mite Suomi Oy Findand 100% 100%
Mitie Sverige AB Sweden 100% 100%
Mitie TS 2 Limited®~ United Kingdom 100% 100x
Mitie Technical Faciities Management Hoidings Lirmded? United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Technical Faciities Management Limited Unted Kingdom 100% 100%
Mie They Roofing Limied” United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitic Transport Services Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mtie Treasury Management Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
titie Trustee Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Wiste & Erwirormental Services Limited® United Kingdom 100% 1o0o%
Mitle Work Wise Lirnited® United Kingdom 1o 100%
Parkersel Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Procius Limited? United Kingdom 100% 100%
Rabert Predie & Co Limited Unitad Kingdom 100% 100%
Service Mandgement nternational Asa Padific PTE. L1d, Singapore 100% 100%
Source Eight Limited™ Urited Kingdom 100% 100%
Sourced Africa Limvted* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Source8 Delivery (Nigeria) Limited Nigeria . 100% 100%
SourceB Services FZULC United Arab Emirates 100% 100%
UK CRBS Umited? United Kingdom 100% 100%
Utilyx Asset Management Limitecf United Kingdom 100% 100%
Lhilyx Ass#t Maragement Projects Limitedt United Kingdom 100% 100%
Utilyx Broking Limetext Ursted Kingdom 100% 100%
Utyx Healthcare Energy Services Limited United ¥ingdorn 100% 100%
Utiyx Holdings Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Utilyx Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Utilyx Risk Management Limitec United Kingdom 100% roox
Vision Sequrity Group Limited Urited Kingdom 100% 100%
Vision Sequnty Group Systems Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
VSG Payroll Services Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
VSG Staff Hire Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
VSG Systerns Direct Limited® Upited Kingdortt 100% 100%
Wealthy Thoughts Limitad® United Kingdom 100% 100%
. m«a«dn n.g%mnmmtsmmmummmmmmmr«hwmzlmmn@md

1 These subsidaries rave Wien advirvage of the audik

4+ Held directly by the Compary.
x The Conmpany hokds direct minority iterest i these oompanses.

~ The Carnpany has voting control of these companies through direct interests in a dass of shares repessanting fewer than, 505 of the total sased share capital of the companies.
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The registered office of all subsidiaries is The Shard, Level [2, 32 London Bridge Street, {ondon, SEI 95G with the exception of

the following §.

Mitie Belgium BVEA Regus Brussek South Station, Marce! Broodthaersplein B (box 5), 1060 Brussels (Sint-Gits), Belgium g

Mitie Belgium Security BVBA Regus Brussels South Station, Marcel Broodthaersplein 8 (box 5), 1060 Brussels (Sint-Gillis), Belgium “

Mitie Deutsehiand GrmbH Melistetter Strafle 8, 70567, Suttgart, Germany

Mrtic Engineenng Services (Guermsey) Limited Martello Court, Admiral Park, 5t Peter Port. GY | 3HB, Guernsey

Mitie Engineering Services (Jersey) Limited 13 Castie Street. St Helier, JE4 SUT, jersey

Mtie Espafia, SL Oshorne Clarke, Avenida Diagonal, 477, Ptarta 20, 08026, Barcelona, Spain

Mitie Facilibes Management Limited 108 Q House, Furze Road, Sandyford, Dublin 18, Ireland

Mitie France SAS " 259 rue St Honore, 75004, Parks, France

Mrtie NI Limited Clara House. Office BS, Dunmurry Office Park, 37A Upper Dunmurry Lane, Beffast, Northem Ireland, o
£T17 0AA, United Kingdom o]

Mitie Nedertand BV. Hoofdweg 52A, 3067 GH Ratterdam, PO, Box 8540, 3009 AM Ratterdam, 3009 AM Retterdam, Nethertands g

Mibe Norge Akseselskap Kongensgate 9, 0153, Oslo, Norway, Norway é

Mitie Polsia Sp. 2 0. Solec 22, 00-410. Warsaw, Poland

Mtie Scweiz GmbH Brandschenkestrasse 90, CH-8027, Zurich, Switzerfand

Mitie Suor Oy c/o Ov Visma Servces Infocon Ab, Pormestarinrine B, 00 | 60 Helsinka, Finland

Mare Sverige AB Kurgsgatan 55, | |1 22 Stockhalm, Swiden, Sweden

Service Management International &5 Chuia Sireet, #38-02/03, OCBC Centre, Singapore, 049513

Asa Pagfic PTE. Ltd

Source8 Delivery (Nigeria) Limited 235 korodu Road, llupeju, Lagos, Nigeria

Source8 Services FZLLC 17 The Iridium Building, U Sucueirn Road, Al Barsha, Duba, PO 8OX 391186, United Arab Ervirates

No subsidiaries have non-controlling interests that are materal to the Group.
36. Events after the reporting period
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There are no material post balance sheet events that require adjustment or disclosure in the annual report.
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Company balance sheet
Asat 3| March 2019

P11 018
£m m

Noh-curvent assets
Investments in subsidiary undertalongs 528.3 5570
Deferred tax asset 6 08
Total noncurrent gssers 5309 5578
Current assets
Debiors 834 982
Total curvent assets 1.4 9%2
Total assets 6193 €560
Credaors: amounts falfing due within one year (en.3) (67 4)
Prowsions (11.3) (148)
Total curvent liabilities (0.8} |12y
Net current liabilities (11.2) 160
Net assots S1v.7 5738
Capital and reserves
Share capital 9.3 93
Share premism account 130.6 1306
Merger reserve 1042 1042
Own shares reserve (3s.1) {434)
Other resarves 233 n9
Retamed eamings 290.4 3502
Equiky shareholders’ funds 519.7 5738

The Company reported a koss for the financial year ended 3| March 2018 of £45 4m (2018: €12.7m).

The financa statements of Mitie Group pic. company registration nurmber SCO19230, were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised
for issue on 5 june 2019, They were signed on its behall by

C i BIONT Sy

Phil Bentley
Chief Executive Officer
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Company statement of changes in equity N
For the year ended 31 March 2019 R

Share Proft

EoOomRORR OoWR oS omE ore R
m im £m &m im £m tm

At | Apri 2017 9.2 1306 918 (422) 253 3674 S8 &

Loss for the year - - - - - (127} o g
Share-based payments - - - 69 [eX)] 03 48
Acquisitions and cther movemnents ol - 124 8.1 - - a4
Ohvidends paid - - - - ~ 48) 4.5
A1 31 March 2018 93 1306 1042 (43.4) 25 3502 573.8
Loss for the year - - - - - 454) (45.4)
Share-based payments - - - 53 04 - 5.7
Didends pa:d - - - - - (14.4) (14.4)
At 31 March 2019 93 1306 1042 (3a.1) 233 2904 519.7

Detais of dvdends paid to shareholders are given iIn Note L0 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Company financial statements
For the year ended 3| March 2019

I. Significant accounting policies

(a) Basis of accounting

The separate finandal statemenits of the Company are preserted as required by compary law. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention and in accordance with applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards and law. The financial statements have also been prepared in
accordance with FRS 101 ‘Reduced Dhsclosure Framework’ as issued by the Financial Reporting Council.

As permitted by FRS 101, the Company has taken advantage of the disclosure exermptions available under that standard in relation to share-based
payrnents, financial instruments, presentation of a cash flow statement, impainment of assets, standards not yet effective, and related party transactions.

Where relevant. equivalent disckasures have been given in the Group accounts

As more fully detailed in the Directors’ report, the Company’s financiai statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of Cormpany financial statements in accordance with FRS 10) requires management to make judgernents, estimates and assumptions
that affect amownts recognised for assets and liabllities at the reporting date and the amourts of revenue and expenses incured during the reporting
period. Actual resutts may differ from these judgements, estimates and assumptions.

The key aree of judgement that has the most signfiicant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is the review for imparment
of investment carrying values.

(b) Principal accounting policies
The principal accounting policies are summarised below. They have been applied consistently throughout the year and the preceding year.

Investments

Fixed asset investments in subsidaries are shown at cost less any provision for imparment,

Investments in subsidiaries are reviewed on an ongoing basis for any indication of impairment and, if any such indication exists, the investment's
recoverable amount is estinated. An impairmnent koss is recognised i the income staternent whenever the carrying value of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past eventt and it s probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benafits will be required to settfe the obligation and a rekable estimate can be made of the amount of the obkgation.
Where the Compary expects some or all of a provision 1o be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the rermbursement is recognised
as 3 separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is charged to the profit and loss ascount,
net of ary reirmbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability,
Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passape of trne is recognised as a bormowing cost.

Taxation

Current tax is provided at amournts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted

or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is provided in full on temporary differences that result in an obligation at the balance sheet date 10 pay more tax, or a right to pay fess tax,
at a future date, at rates expected to apply when they crystallise based upon tax rates and legislation that have been enacted or substantively enacted

at the balance sheet date. Termparary differences arise from the inclusion of iterns of income and expenditure in tax computations in periods different
from those in which they are inckided in the financial statements. Deferred tax 1s not provided on temporary differences, or on unremitted earnings

of subsidiaries and associates where there is no commitment to remit these earnings. Deferred tax assets are recognised 1o the extent that it is regarded
as more likely than nat that they will be recovered. Deferred tax assets and kabiltties are not discounted.

Financial instruments

Irtercompany koans are all assessed as being repayable on demand, The assessment of impairment of receivables from | Apr) 2018 is in accordance
with IFRS 9. The Group recognises a loss allowarnce for expected credit losses (ECL) on receivable balances subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the ‘general approach’ permitted under IFRS 9. In the prior year under 1AS 39, appropriate aliowarces for estimated irecoverable amounts are
recogrused in the profit and lass account where there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired.

Irterest bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Finance charges, including premiuns payable on
settiernent or redemption and direct issue costs, are accountted for on an aaoruals basis in the profit and loss accountt and are added to the carrying amount
of the instrument to the extent that they are not settiad in the period in which they arise.

Trade payables are measured at amortised cost.
Equity instruments issued by the Cormpany are recarded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial assets and financial liabikties are recognised on the Compary's batance sheet when the Company becornes a party 1o the conractual provisions
of the instrument.
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Share-based payments .

Details of the Group's share option schernes are provided in Note 31 to the consolidated finandial statements, The costs of options and conditional awards
over the Company’s shares granted to employees of the Company’s subsidiaries are accounted for as a capital comtribution within the carrying value of
investments in subsidiary undertakings.

Pensions

The Company participates in the Mitie Group ple Pension Scherme. All group companies account for the contributions to the defined benefit scheme

in respect of their employees and as part of a group arrangement one of the Company's subsidiaries accounts for the other costs, income, assets and
liabities of the scheme. Note 32 to the consolidated finandial statements sets out details of the IAS 19 ‘Empioyee benefits' net pension liabiltty of the
scheme amounting to £61.4m (2018: £548m)

2. Loss for the year

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Compary has elected not 1o presert its own statement of comprehensive income
(induding the profit and loss account) for the year. Mitie Group pk reported a loss after taxation for the financial year ended 31 March 2019 of
£454m (2018 £127m).

The auditor's remuneration for audrt services to the Compary was £40.000 (2018: £40.000).
3. Investments in subsidiary undertakings

[

Shares at cost
Ar | April 2018 6165
Capital contribution re share-basad payments 5.7
Disposals (27.0)
At 3] March 2019 $95.2
Provision for impairment
ALt Apr 2018 59.5
Charged to income statement 74
Disposals -
At 31 March 2019 65.9
Net book value
At 3l March 2019 528.3
At31 March 2018 5570
A listing of subsidiaries is given in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.
4. Debtors

2019 018

m £m

Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 78.0 963
Onher debtors 03 1B
Prepayments and acoued mcome 0.1 Ql
Corporation tax 10.0 -

BB 4 982

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of debtors approximates their fair value.
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Notes to the Company financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2019

5. Deferredtax

Share-based

Lowes  difiorames Tocal

im tm im

Deferred tax asset at | April 20i8 ) . - 08 08

Credit to income statement 17 (03) 14

Deferred tax asset at 31 March 2019 .7 05 2.2
6. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

019 2018

&m i

Owerdrafts 8.4 248

Trade crediors 4.0 44

Amounts owed to subsikary undertakings ' 532 85

Corporation tax fiablity - 06

Other taxes and sodal security 0.4 ©2

Accruals and deferred incore 123 93

883 £14

Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings are repayable on demand. The Directors consider that the carrying amount of creditors approximates their
fair vakse.

The Company’s bank overdrafts are part of the Group’s banking arrangements and are offset aganst credit balances within the Group. The Cormparry
has adequate kquidity to discharge all current obligations.

For details of Group borrowings, see Note 22 to the consolidated finandial statennents.

7. Provisions

201y 2018
&m in
Provisions i3 148

The movement in the provisions balance of £3.5m is due to amounts recognised in the income statement of £2.0m relating to the Healthcare
prowvision and £0.2m utikised from the provision, £1.2m utilised in the year relating to the restructuring provision and other movements of £0.Im.
Refer to Note 19 1o the consolidated financial staterents.

8. Contingent liabilities
Per Note 33 to the consokidated financial statements, Mitie Group pke has taken the aurdit exemption for a number of subsidianes by virtue
of Section 479A of the Companies Act.

A parent company guarantee has been provided for these entibes under Sechon 479C of the Companies Act:

9. Share-based payments

The Company has six equity-settied share schemes as described in Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company recognised an expense of £0.6m (2018: £0.4m) related to the share-based payment charge for discretionary share option schemes,
The fair value of options is rmeasured by use of the Black-Scholes and Monte Carlo models. The inputs info the Black-Scholes and Monte Carlo madels
are as described in Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

10. Related parties

The Cormparny makes managerent charges 1o its subsidiaries, whether they are wholly-owned or otherwise, and receives dividends from its subsidiares,
according to their ability to remit them. Other details of related party transactions have been given in Note 34 to the consolidated finandial statements.
The Directors are remunerated by the Company for their services 1o the Group as a whole. No remuneration was pait 10 them specifically

in respect of their services to Mitie Group plc for either year. Detailed disclosures of Directors’ remuneration and share interests are given in the
audited section of the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 70to B1. The Company had no (2018: two) employees throughout year.

Under FRS 101 the Company is exemnpt from disclosing key managerent personnel compensation and transactions with ather cornpanies wholly
owned by Mitie Group pic. There were no other related party transactions during the year ended 3| March 2019 2018: £nif).
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Appendix - Alternative Performance Measures (APMs)

The Group presents varicus APM:s as the Directors believe that these are useful for users of the finandal staternents in helping to provide a balanced
view of, and relevant infarmation on, the Group's finandal performance.

In assessing its performance, the Group has adopted certain non-statutory measures because, unbike its statutory measures, these cannot be derived
directly from its finandial staternents. The Group commonly uses the following measures to assess its performance:

Performance before other items

The Group adjusts the statutory income statement for certain other items which, in the Directors’ judgement, need to be disclosed separately by virtue
of their nature, size and incidence in order for users of the financial statements to obtain a proper understanding of the financial information and the
undertying performance of the business.

These other items indude the impairment of goodwill, amortisation of acquisition related intangible assets, acquisition and disposal costs, the gain or loss
on business disposals, the cost of restructuring programmes and other exceptional items.

Further details of these cther items are provided in Note 4.

Strategic report

01y 2018
Operatng profit/(loss) from operations m £m
Operating profit from continuing operations Face of the consohdated income statement 50.2 Ll 8
Adjust for: imparment of goodwill Note 4 - n7 E
Adjust for restructure costs Noted 15.) 470 1
Adjust for- acqisition and disposal related costs Note 4 87 84 hd
Adius for: gin on bargain purchase Note 4 @.9) -
Adiust for other exceptiona! tems Note 4 3.0 40
Operating profit before other items from contiruing operations Performance measures 8.2 832
Operating loss from discontinued operabons' . . {2.0) @4)
Adjust for impairment of goodwill Note 4 - 9
Adjust for- restructure costs Nate 4 [1E ] 03
Adjust for: gain on disposa) Nate 4 ar9) - g
Adjust for: other exceponal items Note 4 .1 36 g
Operating profit before other items from discontinued operatons Performance mezsures 40 64 E
Operating profit before oiher items — Group Performance measures 922 896 g
Note: £

I Opazﬁgbshrmmdmmmnwwmrmemﬂwofﬂ”mml&ﬁw]mﬂewmmbefmmdcﬂhmlaﬁi)Se:NcuS
Recoriliations are provided below to show how the Group's segmental statutory results are adjusted to exchude other iterms.

2019 018
&m &m
Reportad Other it Parformance Reportad Cther iters Performance
Operating profiv/(loss) from operations . resuits (Note 4) measures results (Note 4} heasures
Segment
Engineering Services 525 6.2 58.7 50.4 37 54.1
Security 291 1.6 30.7 27.1 04 275
Professional Services 4.8 0.3 54 50 06 5.6
Cleaning & Ervironmental Services 155 2.0 175 185 1 196
Care & Custody 3s 0.1 LK 18 ol 19
Catering 5.1 0.1 52 55 - 56
Corporate centre (60.8) 27.2 (33.4) (1073) 762 3Ly
Total from continuing operations 50.2 k1.1 ] a8.2 1. B2.1 832
Heahttware 0 (2.0) - - - -
Pest Control 30.0 (27.6) 14 26 - 6
Social Housing (34.0) 156 1.6 {120} 158 38
Total from discontinued operations (1.0) 8.0 4.0 G4 158 6.4
Total - Group 46.2 44.0 92.2 (83) 979 896
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Appendix - Alternative Performance Measures (APMs) continued

In line with the Group's measurement of profit/(loss) from operations before other items, the Group also presents its basic earnings per share before

ather items for continuing operations. The table below reconciles this to the statutory basic earnings per share.

b W01y 018
Eamings per share P p
Statutory basic earnings/(loss) per share Statutory measures 8.4 )
Adiust for: lasses from discontinued operations 0.3) 27
Statutory basic earnings/(loss) per share from continuing opersions 83 [GL)]
Adjust for, other ems per share [ %4 20.0
Basic earmings per share before other ferns from tontinuing operatiors Performarnce measures 168 152

Organic revenue and order book

‘I'heGroupadpssrevmueandorderbookfrommmingmbﬁfqﬁehmdamumbutomwm:minMrform

of the finandia! staternents to obtain a proper understanding of the undertying movements in these business measures.

201 018
£m
Adjust for: revenue
. Reported  acquisition of (performance Reported
Crganic revenue by segment for continuing operations ) reverLe
Segment

Engineering Services Note 3 908.7 - 905.7 8863
Security Note 3 53¢.5 (79.6) 456.9 4320
Profess'onalSamczs Note 3 1314 - 131.4 1312
Cleaning & Environmental Services Noted a4 - 044 384.)
Care & Custody Note 3 107.3 - 107.3 599
Catering Nette 3 136.1 - 136.1 137 1
Total for contirwing operations 2,221.4 (79.6) 21418 20306

The Group's disclosure of its order book is aimed to provide insight iInto s future revenue and performance. The Group's order ook the

transaction price allocated to the remaining parformance obligations on its condracts with austomers. This seaured revenue corresponds to fixed work

comracted with customers and excludes the impact of any anticipated contract extensions, and new contracts with customers.

201y p.HE

m m

Adpt for: ordor uck repored

Grgankc ander book for continuing aperstions aedes ook bict ) arder book
Segment

Engineering Services Note 3 18027 - 1,8027 20392

Security Nete 3 9TLs (209.9) %15 6408

Professonal Services Note 3 6.9 - 269 1449

Cleaning & Environmertal Services Note 3 463.1 - s83.1 6563

Care & Custody Nete 3 “s596.6 - 596.6 6701

Catering Note 3 65 - 265 347

Total for continuing operations 4,147.3 (209.6) 31,9383 4,1860
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Net debt

The Group indudes the carrying value of rts derwvative financial instrurnentts in its balance sheet n its performance net debt measure as this carrying value §_
represents the fair value of cross-currerxy interest rate swaps on the US$ private placernent notes which form part of the Group's financing liabilities, g
kY
The table beiow shows the reconxiliztion of statutory net debt to the performance net debt measure. ?
201y 018 §
Net detn ém im
Cash and cash equivalents Note 21 108.4 598
Financing liabdites Note 22 (245.5) 2594)
Net debt Statutory measures OsT1) {199.6)
Derivative financial nstrumenits hedging private placement notes Note 23 164 6.t
Net debt Performance measures (140.7) (1935)
The Group uses an average net debt measure as this reflects its financing requirements throughout the period. The Group caloulates its average net
debt based on the daily closing figures, induding its foreign currency bank koans transiated at the dosing exchange rate for the previous monith end. 8
In line with the performance net debt measure, the average net debt includes the fair value of cross-currency interest rate swaps on the US$ private -
placernent notes. This performance measure shows average net debt of £302.0m for the year ended 31 March 2019, compared with £286./m E
for the year ended 31 March 2018. S
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Shareholder information

Shareholder
information

Overviaw
HY 19/20 balf-yearty results

21 November 2019

Dividends
FY 18/19 interim dividend (133p paid)
FY 18/19 final dividend (2.67p proposed):
T T Ewdv dme 77 3re 2019
- Record date 28 hne 2019
- Last date for receipt/revocation of
DRIP mandate 15 by 2019
- Payment date 9 Aupst 2019

12 Febnuary 2019

Annual Ganeral Meating
2019 Annual General Meeting 30 iy 2009

Registered office
Mitie Group ple

35 Duchess Road
Rutherglen

Glasgow

G73 AU

Telephone: 0117 970 8800

Emait: iInfo@mide.com

Website: www.mitle.com

Registered in Scotland under compary number: $C019230
Registrars

Link Asset Services

The Registry

34 Beckenham Road

Bedienham
Kent BR3 4TU

Telephone: DBY| 664 0300*
Website: www.mitie-shares.com

* calls cost 12p a minute plus network extras,
fines are open 390 am - 5.30 pm Mon - Fri,
excuding bank holidays.
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Dividend reinvestmaent plan (DRIP)

Mitie has a dividend renvestment plan (ORIP) to enable you to build
your shareholding by using your cash dividends under a standing
election to buy additional shares in Mitie. If you would like to receive
further information, induding details of how to apply, please call Link
Asset Services on 020 B639 3402 or contact them by sending an
email to: enquiries@linkgroup.co.uk

Mitie online share portal

Mitie has a portal where shareholders can register and can then

login to:

= Access information on shareholdings and movements;

* Update address details;

* View dividend payments received and regrster bank mandate
instructions;

+ Sell Mrtie shares;

» Complete an online proxy voting form; and

* Register for e-communications allowing Mitie to notify
shareholders by email that certain documents are available to view
on its website. This will further reduce Mitie's carbon footprint as
well as reduce costs.

If you wish to register. please sign up at
www.mitle-shares.com

Corporate website

This report can be downloaded in PDF from the Mitie website,
which also contains additional general information about Mitie
Please visit www.mitie.com
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Cautionary statement
Certain statements contained in this document constitute or may
constitute forward-fooking statements’.

In some cases, these forward-looking statemertts can be identified by
the use of forward-looking terminology, including the terms ‘believes,
‘estimates| 'projects, ‘aims, 'plans, ‘predicts’, ‘prepares’, ‘anticipates’,
‘expects, ‘intends, ‘may’, ‘will' or ‘should’ or, in each case, their
negative or other variations or ccmparable terminology, or by
discussions of strategy. plans, objectives, goals, future events or
intentions. Such forward-ooking statements involve known and
unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors, which may cause

the actual results, performance or achievements of the Group to

be materially different from any future results, performance or
achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking
statements. Such forward-looking statements are based on
numerous assumptions regarding the Group's present and future
business strategies and the environment in which the Group will
operate in the future. These forward-looking statements speak onty
as at the date of this document. Except as required by applicable

law, rule or regulation, the Group expressly disclaims any obligation
or undertaking to release publicly any updates or revisions to any
forward- looking statements contained in this docurnent to reflect
any change in its expectations with regard thereto or any change

in events, conditions or circumstances on which any such statement
is based, By their nature, forward-looking statements involve risks
and uncertainties because they relate to events and depend on
tircumstances that may or may not occur in the future or are beyond
the Group’s control. Forward-looking statements are not guarantees
of future performance. Mitie's actual results of operations. financal
condition and the development of the business sector in which the
Group operates may differ materially from the expectations
disciosed or implied by the forward-looking statements contained

in this document. In addition, even if the Group's actual results

of operations, finandial condition and the development of

the business sector in which the Group operates are consistent

with the forwardHooking statements contained in this document,
those results or developments may not be indicative of results

or developments in subsequent periods. The forward-locking
statements contained in this document speak only as at the date

of this document.

Designed and produced by MerchantCantos
www.merchantcantos.com



Mitie Group plc

Registered QOffice 4
35 Duchess Road

Rutherglen

Glasgow

G73 1AL

WK

Head Office

The Shard

Level 12

32 London Bridge Street
London

SEl 95G

UK

T: +44 (0) 330 678 0710
E: info@mite.com
Registration nurmnber: 5C19230

More information

Visit our corporaté wabsite:

Foliw us on twittet:
@wearemitie
Visht eurbinkedin page:

Watch our tatest content:

Front cover image

Antheny Smaliwood, Telecoms Ciimbing
Engineer. Anthony is completing planned
preventative maintenance at height.
checking the ntegrity of the structure,
antennas and equipment.
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